BOARD OF EDUCATION
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

February 11, 2025
6:30 p.m.

Board of Education Board Room
1300 17" Street, City CENTRE — Bakersfieid, CA 93301

Any materials required by law to be made available to the public prior to a meeting of the Kern County Board of
Education can be inspected during normal business hours at the Kern County Superintendent of Schools Office,
located at 1300 17™ Street, Seventh Floor, Bakersfield, California 93301.

An individual who requires disability related accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary aids and
service, in order to participate in the board meeting should contact the Superintendent’s Office at (661) 636-4617
(Government Code 54954.2).

This meeting is being held in an in-person format. Members of the public wishing to provide comments to the
Board can attend the meeting in person. Correspondence sent by mail or email to kcboe@kern.org before noon
on the date of the board meeting on subjects within the Board's jurisdiction will be provided to the Board at the
meeting and made available for public inspection. Members of the public may also observe the meeting via
livestream at the following link: (1) Kern County Board of Education — YouTube.

1.0 GENERAL FUNCTIONS

1.1 Call to order time p.m.
1.2 Pledge of Allegiance
1.3  Roll Call

Julie A. Beechinor, Area 1

Joe L. Marcano, Area 2

Mary M. Little, Area 3

Jose E. Gonzalez, Jr., Area 4

Lori Eskew, Area 5

James V. Robinson, Area 6

Lari J. Cisneros, Area 7

Anai Valencia, Student Representative
Dr. John G. Mendiburu, Superintendent

TN
T

1.4  Adoption of the Agenda

Motion Second Ayes Nayes Abstain

15 Approval of the Minutes from January 14, 2025.

Motion Second Ayes Nayes Abstain




2.0 PUBLIC COMMENTS

The Board of Education appreciates comments from members of the public who have the opportunity to address

the Board on agenda items (before the Board’s consideration of the item) and on other matters within the Board'’s
jurisdiction.

To move the meeting business along efficiently, individual speakers are allotted up to three minutes each, and
the total time for comment on each agenda or other topic within the Board's jurisdiction will be limited to 20
minutes. All requests for public comment must be submitted prior to the start of the meeting. In exceptional
circumstances, the Board President may, with Board consent, reduce or increase the amount of time allowed for
public input and/or the time allotted for each speaker, when such adjustment is necessary to ensure full
opportunity for public input within the time allotted. Any such adjustments shall be done in an equitable manner,
so as to allow a diversity of viewpoints. The President may also ask members of the public with the same
viewpoint to select a few individuals to address the Board regarding that viewpoint.

To allow the Board to organize the public comments, persons wishing to speak will need to complete a form
before the board meeting begins, providing their name, contact information, and the agenda item or other topic
on the Board’s jurisdiction on which they wish to speak. items not appearing on the agenda cannct, by law, be
the subject of board action.

3.0 INFORMATIONAL ITEMS — NO ACTION TAKEN

31 Mock Trial Presentation.
3.2 Leaders in Life Presentation.

3.3  Child Trafficking Awareness Presentation.

4.0 ACTION ITEMS

All consent agenda items for the Kern County Board of Education are considered to be routine and will be
enacted by one motion unless a board member requests separate action on a specific item. Approval is
recommended on all items listed.
4.1 Consent Agenda
4.1.1 Approval of Graduation Diplomas.
Motion Second Ayes Nayes Abstain

42 General Business

421 Public hearing regarding the REALMS Charter Renewal Petition.
No Action Taken

422 Accept and File the Mid-Year 2024-25 LCAP Update.
No Action Taken

423 2023-2024 Annual Audit Report.

Motion Second Ayes Nayes Abstain



4.2.4 Approval of the 2023-2024 School Accountability Report Card (SARC) — Court School.
Motion Second Avyes Nayes Abstain

425 California School Boards Association 2025 Delegate Assembly Ballot.
Motion Second Ayes Nayes Abstain

—_ e N — e NNMN—-—

5.0 REPORT OF COUNTY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEMBERS

5.1 Members of the Board will report on various topics.

6.0 REPORT OF COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT

6.1 The County Superintendent will report on various topics.

7.0 CLOSED SESSION

7.1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — EXISTING LITIGATION
(Subdivision (a) of Government Code section 54956.9)
Name of case: C.T. v. Kern County Board of Education; Case No. BCV-23-100890

8.0 AGENDA ITEMS FOR THE NEXT MEETING

8.1 ltems to be considered for the next agenda.

9.0 ADJOURNMENT

9.1 Unless otherwise posted, the next regularly scheduled meeting will be held on March 11,
2025.

9.2  Time of adjournment p.m.



55 OF EDUCNY, BOARD OF EDUCATION l 5

&
— ?‘ » — '-.. 77

;'lb?.-" ! O’L.‘% REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Z i % January 14, 2025
% 3 i Z 6:30 p.m.

. ISE

"';:BI’E\ .......... }:oqf Board of Education Board Room

MQUNTY, SRS 1300 17" Street, City CENTRE — Bakersfield, CA 93301

1.0 GENERAL FUNCTIONS

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m.
Pledge of Aliegiance
Roll Call

Board Members Present
Julie A. Beechinor

Lori J. Cisneros

Lori Eskew

Mary M. Little

Joe L. Marcano

James V. Robinson
Violetamarysol Morales

Board Members Absent
Jose E. Gonzalez, Jr.

KCSOS Employees Present

Dr. John G. Mendiburu, Superintendent

Christian Shannon, Deputy Superintendent

Steve Sanders, Chief of Staff

Merril Clanton, Senior Executive Administrative Assistant to the Superintendent

It was moved by Mr. Marcano, seconded by Ms. Beechinor to approve the agenda.

Ayes: Ms. Beechinor, Ms. Cisneros, Ms. Eskew, Ms. Little, Mr. Marcano, and
Mr. Rohinson

Nayes: None

Abstain: None

Absent: Mr. Gonzalez, Jr.



15 It was moved by Ms. Beechinor, seconded by Mr. Marcano to approve the Minutes from
December 17, 2024.

Ayes: Ms. Beechinor, Ms. Cisneros, Ms. Eskew, Ms. Little, Mr. Marcano, and
Mr. Rebinson

Nayes: None

Abstain: None

Absent: Mr. Gonzalez, Jr.

2.0 PUBLIC COMMENTS

2.1 Public Comments were heard from the following:

= Inderpal Singh
» Jagmeet Singh
= Avneet Sandhu
» Angelo Frazier
» Sheila Lake

= David Sponhultz
» Michael Pollack
» Sarah Frost

« Karina Gallardo
» Jes Sanders

= Brian Russom

» Dennis McLean
= Ana Comejo

= Rosa lLopez

= Steve Bacon

= Nancy Bacon

»  Terry Maxwell

= Alyssa Jones

3.0 INFORMATIONAL ITEMS — NO ACTION TAKEN

3.1 Discussion regarding the Ten Commandments.
Presentation by ACLU Chief Counsel Peter Eliasberg and Professor Nancy Meyer.

3.2 JobsPlus! Program Presentation

4.0 ACTION ITEMS

4.1 Consent Agenda

4.1.1 It was moved by Ms. Beechinor, seconded by Ms. Cisneros to approve the Graduation

Diplomas.

Ayes: Ms. Beechinor, Ms. Cisneros, Ms. Eskew, Ms. Little, Mr. Marcano, and
Mr. Robinson

Nayes: None

Abstain: None

Absent: Mr. Gonzalez, Jr.



42 General Business

4.2.1

422

423

424

It was moved by Ms. Beechinor, seconded by Ms. Cisneros to accept and file Williams
Quarterly Report.

Ayes: Ms. Beechinor, Ms. Cisneros, Ms. Eskew, Ms. Little, Mr. Marcano, and
Mr. Robinson

Nayes: None

Abstain: None

Absent: Mr. Gonzalez, Jr.

It was moved by Mr. Robinson, seconded by Mr. Marcano to approve the file the 2023-24
Audit Report for GROW Charter.

Ayes: Ms. Beechinor, Ms. Cisneros, Ms. Eskew, Ms. Little, Mr. Marcano, and
Mr. Robinson

Nayes: None

Abstain: None

Absent: Mr. Gonzalez, Jr.

It was moved by Mr. Robinson, seconded by Mr. Marcano to approve and file the
2023-24 Audit Report for Wonderful College Prep Academy.

Ayes: Ms. Beechinor, Ms. Cisneros, Ms. Eskew, Ms. Little, Mr. Marcano, and
Mr. Robinson

Nayes: None

Abstain: None

Absent: Mr. Gonzalez, Jr.

It was moved by Ms. Beechinor, seconded by Mr. Marcano to approve the Resolution to
the Kern County Bar Association for 2024-25 Mock Trial Competitions.

Ayes: Ms. Beechinor, Ms. Cisneros, Ms. Eskew, Ms. Little, Mr. Marcano, and
Mr. Robinson

Nayes: None

Abstain; None

Absent: Mr. Gonzalez, Jr.

5.0 REPORT OF COUNTY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEMBERS

51

Trustee Cisneros expressed gratitude towards Miss Morales for her service as a student
representative on the board, recalling how they had known each other since Morales was
in fourth grade at Valley Oaks Charter School. She commended her for growing into an
exceptional, confident young woman, and expressed excitement in witnessing her future
endeavors. Additionally, Trustee Cisneros requested to review the current curriculum
materials and state standards for Social Studies and English Language Arts in the
alternative education program to better understand the academic content being taught in
classrooms.



5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

56

Trustee Robinson attended a seminar at California State University Bakersfield, which
focused on child sex trafficking and labor trafficking. He highlighted the importance of
raising awareness about these issues, especially for younger students. Trustee Robinson
emphasized that while current programs are only provided to 9th through 12th graders,
the main targets for trafficking often include younger children. He suggested that the board
should consider a presentation on this topic, tailored for younger students, to proactively
protect children in Kern County. Trustee Robinson proposed that representatives from
relevant local agencies, including law enforcement and activists, come to present at a
future board meeting to discuss strategies and educational approaches to safeguard
children from trafficking risks.

Trustee Beechinor expressed gratitude to the public for their continued engagement,
participation, and input during board meetings, emphasizing the importance of hearing
diverse perspectives. She acknowledged the community's efforts in supporting those
affected by the Los Angeles fires, highlighting various schools and programs that have
organized support and relief efforts. Trustee Beechinor aiso thanked the student
representative, Miss Morales, for her service and contributions to the board, noting her
articulate and insightful participation. She expressed anticipation for the contributions of
the new student representative joining the board.

Trustee Eskew wished everyone a Happy New Year and expressed excitement for the
new student representative joining the board, while also expressing appreciation for the
outgoing student representative, Miss Morales, acknowledging her valuable contributions
and presence. Trustee Eskew attended a Kern High School District board meeting and
raised a concern regarding clubs in schools, particularly about special needs children
being approached by clubs without parental notification. Trustee Eskew suggested the
possibility of requiring parental permission for all clubs, especially to protect special needs
students who might not fuily understand the implications of joining certain clubs. Trustee
Eskew sought clarification on whether their board could address this issue or if it was
solely under the jurisdiction of individual school districts.

Trustee Marcano praised Miss Morales for her eloguence and positive contribution as a
student representative on the board, noting that both he and another trustee frequently
marveled at her articulate input during meetings. He encouraged Morales to pursue her
potential, possibly even in law, as he could envision her being a great advocate in the
courtroom. Trustee Marcano also welcomed the new student representative, Anai
Valencia, acknowledging that she has big shoes to fill but expressing excitement to have
her join the board.

Trustee Litile thanked the public for their consistent attendance, participation, and input at
the board meetings, emphasizing that their voices are heard and valued. She applauded
the efforts of schools and programs in organizing relief efforts for families affected by the
Los Angeles fires, expressing pride in the community's response. Trustee Little also
acknowledged the student representative’s service on the board, expressing gratitude for
her contributions and stating that she looked forward to welcoming the new student
representative.



6.0 REPORT OF COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT

6.1

Dr. Mendiburu thanked Miss Morales for her outstanding contributions as a student
representative, acknowledging her positive impact and expressing excitement to see
where her future will lead. He welcomed Anai Valencia, the new student representative,
expressing anticipation for her involvement on the board. He addressed the devastating
fires in Los Angeles and Ventura counties, mentioning his ongoing communication with
both County Superintendents. While still assessing the damage and needs, he noted that
Los Angeles County is reallocating students due to school closures and that Kern County
might potentially see an influx of displaced students. Dr. Mendiburu provided an update
on the Governor's budget, stating there are no projected cuts to education for the next
year, with a proposed cost-of-living adjustment. He explained the budget process, noting
that the May revise would be crucial in finalizing financial plans. Finally, Dr. Mendiburu
supported Trustee Robinson's initiative for a presentation on child trafficking awareness,
highlighting current discussions and programs for older students and suggesting potential
benefits for younger audiences.

7.0 AGENDA ITEMS FOR THE NEXT MEETING

7.1

A recommendation by Trustee Robinson was made to discuss child and labor trafficking.

8.0 ADJOURNMENT

8.1

8.2

Unless otherwise posted, the next regularly scheduled meeting will be held on February
11, 2025.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:41 p.m.

John G. Mendiburu, Ed.D., Superintendent



California Department of Education L . j ’ \

Charter Schools Division
Revised 10/2024

Charter School Renewal Cover Sheet

Instructions: Authorizing Jocal educational agencies (LEAs) should complete and submit this cover
sheet upon its renewal of a charter school.

Section 1. Charter School Information
Complete this section as it pertains to the charter school.

1. Charter School Name: |Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music, and Scied

Charter School Number: [2050

. County-District-School Code:| 15 10157 1530500

. Administrator Email: [superintendent@rcrealms.org

2.
3
4. Administrator Name: {Don Beene
5
6

. Administrator Phone: [760-677-7470

Section 2. Authorizing Local Educational Agency Information
Complete this section as it pertains to the charter school’s authorizing LEA.

1. LEA Name: [Kem County Office of Education 2. County:|[Kern

. Superintendent Name: [John G. Mendiburu

. Superintendent Phone: |561-636-4000

3
4. Superintendent Email: omendiburu@kern.org
5
6

. Date LEA Approved Renewal.

7. Approved Charter Term: to

Section 3. Renewal Information
Select the option that best pertains to the renewal of the charter school:

1. The charter school was previously operating outside the geographical boundaries of the
charter authorizer; charter school submitted a request for renewal of the charter petition to
the school district in which the charter school is located in order to continue operating,
pursuant to California Education Code (EC) sections 47605(a)(5)(A), 47607 and 47605.1.

Previous Authorizing LEA Name: County:




Charter School Renewal Cover Sheet
Page 2 of 3

2. A resource center is currently operating outside of the boundaries of the authorizing LEA
under a currently-approved charter school that is operating within the boundaries of the
authorizing school district. The charter school under which the resource center is currently
operating submitted a petition to physically locate and operate within the boundaries of the
school district in which the resource center is currently located (i.e., transferring charter
school), as defined by EC sections 47605.1(c)(5)(A) and 47612.7(b).

Previous School District Name: County:

OB. The charter school was renewed on appeal by the county office of education in which the
charter school is located, as defined by EC Section 47605(j)(1).

Denying School District Name:

O4. The charter school was operating under the California State Board of Education (SBE) and
was renewed by the governing board of the school district or county office of education in
which the charter school is located, as defined by EC Section 47605.9(c).

OS. The charter school was operating under the SBE and was renewed by the SBE, and a local
school district or county office of education was assigned as the chartering authority, as
defined by EC Section 47605.9(c).

@6. The charter school was renewed by its previous authorizing LEA; the charter school did not
experience a change in authorizing LEAs.

Section 4. Performance Level
Indicate the renewal criterion that pertains to the charter school.

The authorizing LEA has determined, based on the renewal criteria laid out under EC sections 47607
(c)(2), 47607(c)(7), 47607.2(a), or 47607.2(b) that the charter school falls under the foliowing
performance level:

O High Performing: The charter school has Blue and/or Green on all state indicators for two
years.

@ Middle Performing: The charter school meets neither High Performing level nor Low
Performing level criteria.

OLow Performing: The charter school has Red and/or Orange on all state indicators for two
years.

ODashboard Alternative School Status (DASS) School: The charter school has its own
renewal criteria, which has been agreed upon with its authorizing LEA.

Section 5. Certifications

By signing below, | hereby certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that that the information is
correct and true. The authorizing LEA’s governing board has reviewed and approved the charter
renewal petition pursuant to relevant EC sections and California Code of Regulations, Title 5
sections in their entirety.

1. Authorizing LEA Superintendent Signature 2. Date



Charter School Renewal Cover Sheet
Page 3 of 3

Submission Information

Submit completed renewal packages to the Charter Schools Division (CSD) via email at
charters@cde.ca.gov prior to the expiration of the charter school's current term. If documents are too
large to be sent via email, contact the CSD and alternate upload arrangements will be made.

All renewal packages must include the following:

1. Charter School Renewal Cover Sheet signed by the superintendent, or designee, of the
authorizing LEA.

2. Written Notice of Approval (board minutes indicating approval of the renewal of the charter)
by the governing board of the authorizing LEA. Please note, the minutes must include the
beginning and ending dates of the charter term for which the charter school was approved.

3. Updated Charter Petition (including new legislation enacted after the charter was originally
granted or last renewed) as approved by the authorizing LEA.

4. Written Plan and Charter Board Minutes (if the status of the charter is low performing, a
copy of the written plan adopted by the governing body of the charter school as stated under
EC Section 47607.2[a][3][A] and the charter board minutes showing the date the charter
board adopted the plan).



RIDGECREST ELEMENTARY ACADEMY FOR
LANGUAGE, MUSIC, AND SCIENCE

Charter Renewal Petition
Submitted to:

Kern County Board of Education

= A@
A

REALMS

RIDGECREST ELEMENTARY ACADEMY
MUSIC, AND SCIENCE

For the term July 1, 2025 through June 30, 2030



TABLE OF CONTENTS

AFFIRMATIONS AND DECLARATION
PREFACE

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Educational Philosophy
General Description
Student Population and the Faculty Team
Eligibility for Renewal

ELEMENT ONE — EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM
Vision
Mission
Core Beliefs: SPACE
Four Focus Areas and Tactics
Whom the School is Attempting to Educate
What It Means to be an Educated Person in the 21% Century
How Learning Best Occurs
Community
Instructional Program
Assessment and Pacing
Instructional Approaches
Instructional Courses and Curriculum
Technology
Short-term Independent Study
School Calendar and Bell Schedule
Serving Academically Low and High Achieving Students
Plan for English Learners
Serving Students with Disabilities
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act
Special Education Services
Professional Learning Opportunities

FLEMENT Two — MEASURABLE PUPIL OUTCOMES;
AND ELEMENT THREE — METHODS OF MEASUREMENT
Goals, Actions & Measurable OQuicomes Aligned with the Eight State Priorities
Methods of Measurement
Collecting, Analyzing and Reporting Data
Use of Data
Parent Survey
Reporting Academic Progress

ELEMENT FOUR — GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
Legal

REALMS Charter Petition 2023-2030

10
Il
11

12

)

12

16
16
16
16
16
17
19
19
20
20
20
21
22
25
25
26
26
27
32
32

a7

32

42

43
43
43
56
57
57
58
58

59
59

[ Q8]



Board of Trustees

Board Meeting and Duties
Superintendent

Parent and Community Involvement

ELEMENT FIVE — EMPLOYEE (QUALIFICATIONS

Superintendent Qualifications

Assistant Superintendent of Instruction Qualifications
Principal

Fiscal Analyst

Teachers

Other Staff

Personnel Policies

Evaluation Procedure

ELEMENT SIX — PROCEDURES TO ENSURE HEALTH AND SAFETY OF PUPILS AND STAFF

Procedures for Background Checks

Role of Staff as Mandated Child Abuse Reporters
Tuberculosis (TB) Risk Assessment and Examination
Immunizations

Medication in Schoo!l

Vision & Hearing

Diabetes

Suicide Prevention Policy

Menstrual Products

All Gender Restrooms

Prevention of Human Trafficking

School Meals

Recess

Mental Health Education

Mental Health Information

School Safety Plan

Workplace Violence Prevention Plan

Emergency Preparedness

Blood borne Pathogens

Drug Free/Alcohol Free/Smoke Free Environment
Facility Safety

Comprehensive Anti-Discrimination and Harassment Policies and Procedures
Bullying Prevention

SAFETY Act

Homicide Threats

Guns Safety Notice

Transportation Services

ELEMENT SEVEN —STUDENT POPULATION BALANCE

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030

59
60
61
61

64
64
65
66
67
67
68
69
69

70
70
70
71
71
71
71
71
71
72
72
72
72
72
73
73
73
74
74
74
74
75
75
75
75
75
76
76

77



ELEMENT EIGHT — ADMISSION POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
PusLic RANDOM DRAWING

ELEMENT NINE — INDEPENDENT FINANCIAL AUDIT

FLEMENT TEN — SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION PROCEDURES

GROUNDS FOR SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION OF STUDENTS

ENUMERATED OFFENSES

SUSPENSION PROCEDURES

ASSIGNMENTS DURING SUSPENSION

AUTHORITY TO EXPEL

EXPULSION PROCEDURES

SpECIAL PROCEDURES FOR EXPULSION HEARINGS INVOLVING SEXUAL ASSAULT OR BATTERY
(OFFENSES

REecorD ofF HEARING

PRESENTATION OF EVIDENCE

WRITTEN NOTICE TO EXPEL

DiscipLINARY RECORDS

RIGHT TO APPEAL

EXPELLED STUDENTS/ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION

REHABILITATION PLANS

READMISSION

NoTicE TO TEACHERS

SPECIAL PROCEDURES FOR THE CONSIDERATION OF SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION OF STUDENTS
wiITH DISABILITIES

PROCEDURES FOR STUDENTS NoT YET ELIGIBLE FOR SPECIAL EDUCATION SERVICES

ELemeENT ELEVEN — RETIREMENT SYSTEMS
ELEMENT TWELVE — PUBLIC SCHOOL ATTENDANCE ALTERNATIVES
ELEMENT THIRTEEN — EMPLOYEE RETURN RIGHTS
ELEMENT FOURTEEN — DispuTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURE
ELEMENT FIFTEEN — CLOSURE PROCEDURES
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Budget and Financial Reporting

Administrative Services

Facilities

Insurance and Safety Policy
Potential Civil Liability Effecis

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030

79
30
83
84
86
86
86
87

88
88

97
98
99
100
102
104
104
105
105

106
106



APPENDICES

ApPENDIX |:
APPENDIX 2:
APPENDIX 3:
APPENDIX 4:
APPENDIX 5:
APPENDIX 6:
APPENDIX 7:
APpPENDIX 8:
APPENDIX 9:

ArpEnDIX 10:
AppENDIX 11:
APPENDIX 12:
AppEnDIX 13:
AppenDIx 14:
ApPPENDIX 15:
APPENDIX 16:
APPENDIX 17:
ArpeNDIX 18:

2024-25 ScHooL CALENDAR
2024-25 BELL SCHEDULE
2024-25 INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS LIST
2024-25 WEEKLY COLLABORATION SCHEDULE
2024-25 INDEPENDENT STUDY AGREEMENT
2024-25 STUDENT SUPPORT TEAM FFORM
2024-25 PrOFESSIONAL LEARNING QPPORTUNITIES PLAN
CORPORATE ByLAWS OF THE CHARTER SCHOOL
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF RIDGECREST CHARTER SCHOOL
CoNrFLICT OF INTEREST CODE
2024-25 EmrLOYEE HANDRBROOK
2024-25 TeacHER EVALUATION FORM
2024-25 PARENT-STUDENT HANDBOOK
2024-25 FIRST INTERIM ALTERNATIVE FORM
2024-25 BunGeT ReporT BY RESOURCE
2024-25.25-26, 26-27 CasH FL.ow PROIECTIONS
2024-25 Locar. ConTROL AccOUNTABILITY PLAN (LCAP)
2024-25 UnirorM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES AND FORM

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030



AFFIRMATIONS AND DECLARATION

As the authorized lead petitioners. we, Don Beene and Nancy O'Sullivan, hereby certify that the
information submitted in this petition for a California public charter school named Ridgecrest
Flementary Academy for Language, Music, and Science (“REALMS” or the “Charter School™),
to be operated by Ridgecrest Charter School, a nonprofit public benefit corporation, and located
within the boundaries of the Sierra Sands Unified School District (the “District™) is true to the
best of our knowledge and belief; we also certify that this petition does not constitute the
conversion of a private school to the status of a public charter school; and further, we understand
that if awarded a charter, the Charter School will follow any and all federal, state, and local laws
and regulations that apply to the Charter School, including but not limited to:

e The Charter School shall meet all statewide standards and conduct the student
assessments required, pursuant to Education Code Section 60605, and any other
statewide standards authorized in statute, or student assessments applicable to students in
non-charter public schools. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(d)(1)]

e Ridgecrest Charter School declares that it shall be deemed the exclusive public school
employer of the employees of Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music, and
Science for purposes of the Educational Employment Relations Act. [Ref. Education
Code Section 47605{(c)(6}]

e The Charter School shall be non-sectarian in its programs, admission policies,
employment practices, and all other operations. [Ref. Education Code Section
47605(e)(1)]

e The Charter School shall not charge tuition. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(e)(1)]

e The Charter School shall admit ail students who wish to attend Ridgecrest Elementary
Academy for Language, Music, and Science, unless the Charter School receives a greater
number of applications than there are spaces for students, in which case it will hold a
public random drawing to detcrmine admission. Except as required by Education Code
Section 47605(e)(2). admission to the Charter School shall not be determined according
to the place of residence of the student or their parents within the State. Preference in the
public random drawing shall be given as required by Education Code Section
47605(e}2)(BXi)-(iv). In the event of a drawing, the chartering authority shall make
reasonable efforts to accommodate the growth of the Charter School in accordance with
Education Code Section 47605(e}2}C). [Ref. Education Code Section
47605(e)2HAHO)]

e The Charter School shall not discriminate on the basis of the characteristics listed in
Section 220 (actual or perceived disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression,
nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation. or any other characteristic that is
contained in the definition of hate crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code,
including immigration status, or association with an individual who has any of the
aforementioned characteristics). [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(e)(1)]

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 6



e The Charter School shall adhere to all provisions of federal law related to students with
disabilities including, but not limited to. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973
(*Section 504™), Title 11 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (*ADA™) and the
Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004 (“IDEA™).

e The Charter School shall meet all requirements for employment set forth in applicable
provisions of law, including, but not limited to credentials, as necessary. [Ref. Title 5
California Code of Regulations Section 11967.5. 1(1)}{(5XC)]

e The Charter School shall ensure that teachers in the Charter School hold the Commission
on Teacher Credentialing (“CTC”) certificate, permit, or other document required for the
teacher’s certificated assignment. The Charter School may use local assignment options
authorized in statute and regulations for the purpose of legally assigning certificated
teachers. in the same manner as a governing board of a school district.

e The Charter School shall at all times maintain all necessary and appropriate insurance
coverage.

e The Charter School shall, for each fiscal year, offer at a minimum, the number of minutes
of instruction per grade level as required by Education Code Section
47612.5(a) 1 {A)-(D).

e If a pupil is expelled or leaves the Charter School without graduating or completing the
school year for any reason, the Charter School shall notify the Superintendent of the
school district of the pupil’s last known address within 30 days. and shall, upon request,
provide that school district with a copy of the cumulative record of the pupil, including
report cards or a transcript of grades, and health information. If the pupil is subsequently
expelled or leaves the school district without graduating or completing the school year for
any reason, the school district shall provide this information to the Charter School within
30 days if the Charter School demonstrates that the pupil had been enrolled in the Charter
School. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(e)(3)]

e The Charter School may encourage parental involvement, but shall notify the parents and
guardians of applicant pupils and currently enrolled pupils that parental involvement is
not a requirement for acceptance to, or continued enrollment at, the Charter School. [Ref.
Education Code Section 47605(n}]

e The Charter School shall adhere to each of the conditions in Education Code Section
47605(e) (4} A)~(D), including: (A) not discouraging a student from enrolling or seeking
to enroll in the Charter School for any reason; (B) not requesting a student's records or
requiring a parent, guardian, or student to submit the student's records before enrollment;
(C) not encouraging a student currently attending the Charter School to disenroll or
transfer to another school for any reason; and (D) providing a copy of the California
Department of Education (*CDE™) notice regarding the requirements in Education Code
Section 47605(e)(4)(A)-(D) to a parent/guardian or student if the student is 18 years of

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 7



age or older: (i) when a parent/guardian or student inquires about enrollment. (ii) before
conducting an enrollment lottery, or (iii) before disenrollment of a student. [Ref.
Education Code Section 47605(e}{4)(A)-(D)]

e The Charter School shall maintain accurate and contemporaneous written records that
document all pupil attendance and make these records available for audit and inspection.
[Ref. Education Code Section 47612.5(a)(2)]

e The Charter School shall on a regular basis consult with its parents and teachers
regarding the Charter School's education programs. [Ref. Education Code Section
47605(d)]

e The Charter School shall comply with any applicable jurisdictional limitations to the
locations of its facilities. [Ref. Education Code Sections 47605 and 47605.1]

e The Charter School shall comply with all laws establishing the minimum and maximum
age for public school enrollment. [Ref. Education Code Sections 47612(b) and 47610]

e The Charter School shall comply with all applicable portions of the Elementary and
Secondary Education Act ("ESEA™), as reauthorized and amended by the Every Student
Succeeds Act (“ESSA™).

e The Charter School shall comply with the California Public Records Act, Government
Code Section 7920.000, et seq. (“CPRA™).

e The Charter School shall comply with the Ralph M. Brown Act. Government Code
Section 54950, et seq. (“Brown Act”).

e The Charter School shall comply with Government Code Section 1090, ef seq.. as set
forth in Education Code Section 47604.1 (*Section 10907).

® The Charter School shall comply with the Political Reform Act, Government Code
Section 81000, ef seq. ("PRA™).

e The Charter School shall comply with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20
U.S.C. Section 1232g, 34 CFR Part 99 ("FERPA™}.

e The Charter School shall meet or exceed the legally required minimum number of school
days. [Ref. Title 5 California Code of Regulations Section 11960]

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 8



PREFACE

Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music, and Science operates under the not for
profit corporation of Ridgecrest Charter School ("RCS™). An amendment to RCS’ articles of
incorporation was filed in March 2019 to establish the Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for
Language, Music, and Science, a TK-6 elementary school.

RCS operated Ridgecrest Charter School from 2001-2019. The following represents the
accomplishments of Ridgecrest Charter School in its prior terms:

e re-accredited by the Western Association of Schools and Colleges (“WASC™) for a 6 year
term ending June 30, 2022;

e hosted TK-8 school-wide Junior Olympics every year since 2001-02. During the
2017-18 year, 36 RCS students qualified for the regional competition in Bakersfield and
earned 61 medals at that competition;

e hosted school-wide science fairs since 2012-13, and 5 students participated in the
2017-18 Kern County Science Fair with 1 student placing first and moving on to the
regional science fair in Los Angeles;

e offered music education to TK-8" grade students;

o offered STEAM education to TK- 8" grade students using the Project Lead the Way
curriculum;

o offered the Anchored For Life program to support children of active military and
Department of Defense families;

e operated multiple after school clubs including but not limited to chess, Kiwanis-Kids
service club, agriculture, yearbook, running, sandwich making, cheerleading, and art;

o collaborated with Ridgecrest Police Department to teach students about bullying and
safety and to train staff in emergency response;

o achieved unqualified audit status for each year of operation;
e achieved healthy reserves for economic uncertainties;
o built reserves for facility improvement.

RCS operated Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language. Music, and Science from
2019-2025. The following represents the accomplishments of REALMS in its current term:

e Ongoing instruction during COVID Pandemic;

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 9



[ncreased enrollment post pandemic;
New Governing Board members starting in the 2022-23 school year;
Change of school administrators starting in the 2022-23 school year;

Improved status from low to middle renewal track as defined per California Education
Code Section 47607.2(b):

Improved California Dashboard results from red and orange in several categories to
yellow for all students in all categories for the 2024-25 Dashboard:

Continued instruction for all students, TK-6, in music for 30 minutes minimum twice per
week, in Spanish for 30 minutes twice per week. and in Project Lead The Way for one
hour once per week:

Provided students with the opportunity to perform in the school band and/or orchestra for
both on-site and community performances;

Field trips supporting CCSS offered to students at each grade level TK-6, including
Camp KEEP annually for 6th grade students:

Continued the Anchored For Life program to support children of active military and
Department of Defense families started at RCS;

Community involvement by developing ongoing relationships with law enforcement, fire
department, Salvation Army, and Rotary Club;

Monthly family engagement activities created and supported by each grade level classes:
Junior Olympics annually onsite with students going on to county level competition:

Annual book fairs:

Participation in the Extended Learning Opportunity Program offering students safe and
engaging before and after school activities.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The California Charter Schools Act is intended to provide an environment where accountability,
flexibility, innovation. parental choice, parent-teacher involvement and public-private
partnerships can work together to provide a better future for our children. as a method to
accomplish all of the following:

a.

b.

Improve pupil learning;

Increase learning opportunities for all pupils, with special emphasis on expanded learning
experiences for pupils who are identified as academically low achieving;

Encourage the use of different and innovative teaching methods:

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 10



d. Create new professional opportunities for teachers including the opportunity to share
responsibility for the learning program at the school:

e. Provide parents and pupils with expanded choices in the types of educational
opportunities that are available within the public school system,

£ Hold the schools established under this part accountable for meeting measurable pupil
outcomes, and provide the schools with a method to change from rule-based to
performance-based accountability systems: and

g. Provide vigorous competition within the public school system to stimulate continual
improvements in all public schools.

Educational Philosophy

We belicve all children can learn in a safe and supportive environment; Education is a
partnership amongst students, educators, parents, and the community: Life is about choices,
personal responsibility and personal accountability: communication is the foundation for
relationships, progress and success; and every person should be treated with dignity and respect.

General Description

Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music, and Science opened its doors to
Ridgecrest students and their families in August 2019. REALMS will continue to operate under
its authorizer, the Kern County Board of Education, with administrative oversight provided by
the Kern County Superintendent of Schools.

Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music, and Science currently serves 240
students at one site in transitional kindergarten through sixth grade. Classes range in size from
15-24 students in grades TK-3 and 25-30 students in grades 4-6. Paraprofessional support is
provided in classrooms as needed. Enrollment is projected to reach approximately 325 students
by the end of the 5-year term.

For the upcoming charter term (2025-30), REALMS plans to continue to offer activities and
adult supervision Monday through Friday from 7:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. as part of the Extended
Learning Opportunities Program. Instructional minutes and number of days of instruction offered
by the Charter School will meet education code 47612.5 minimum requirements. It is planned
that the instructiona! day will be from 8:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. for Grades TK through 6. Attached
as Appendix 1, please find the 2024-25 school calendar and as Appendix 2 the 2024-25 bell
schedule.

Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music. and Science will provide a rigorous,
inquiry based curriculum, learning style-evaluation. management process, and staft development,
which will be constantly monitored and changed when necessary to maximize our effectiveness.
The Charter School will continue its balanced program that develops minds, bodies and spirits.
The program will provide physical education, health, and a nutritious meal program. Programs
that develop emotional and social life skills training through fine arts, community service and

environmental focus, including targeted counseling services and conflict resolution programs
will be offered.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 11



REALMS students, in addition to mastering the Common Core State Standards ("CCSS™). Next
Generation Science Standards (“"NGSS™), History-Social Science Framework, English Language
Development (“ELD™) standards, and the remaining State Content Standards (collectively
referred to herein as, “State Standards™), will:

« read fluently to enjoy, infer. and interpret a variety of print material, i.e. literature. poetry.
newspapers;

+ engage in constructive dialogue, value literature and language and express oneself
effectively through a variety of modalities:

+ become curious, motivated, self-reflective learners who gencrate questions to deepen
understanding;

« understand mathematical relationships, reason logically, problem solve and use
mathematical techniques effectively in practical application;

« become stewards of the environment. and seek to make the community a better place;

« integrate and apply acquired knowledge in and out of the classroom; and

« take ownership of one’s actions and be responsible citizens of the community.

tudent lation and Facultv Team

Students can enroll in the Charter School from any school in the state, but admission preference
in the event of a public random drawing will be given to students residing in the District with
preference given to students who would attend Faller Elementary School and in accordance with
the other preferences outlined under Element Eight. The Ridgecrest Charter School faculty team
will be role models to students for lifelong learning and professionalism. The faculty team will
be held accountable for ensuring that REALMS students achieve high standards. The facuity
team will have the freedom and responsibility for supporting the development of all academic
programs.

REALMS, operated under Ridgecrest Charter School (a California nonprofit public benefit
corporation). will continue to set new standards for efficient and effective management, freeing
more resources for the education of children.

Eligibility for Renewal:

Pursuant to the amendments made to Education Code Section 47607, and the creation of
Education Code Section 47607.2 by Assembly Bill (*AB™) 1505 (2019), at the time of charter
renewal, a chartering authority shall consider the performance of the charter school on the state
and local indicators reported on the California School Dashboard {(“Dashboard™), and, in some
circumstances, the performance of the charter school on assessments that deemed to be “verified
data.”

Alongside the shift toward assessing Dashboard data, AB 1505 also created a three-tiered system
for evaluating charter schools’ performance. Each of the three tiers has unique qualifying

criteria.

The three performance categories are as follows:

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 12



® High Performing — Presumptive renewal if the charter school meets the established
renewal criteria—FEducation Code Section 47607(c}2).

e Low Performing — Presumptive non-renewal if the charter school meets the non-renewal
criteria, unless the chartering authority makes a finding to approve for a two-year term
—Education Code Section 47607.2(a).

e Middle Performing — Presumptive renewal unless a chartering authority makes written
findings, supported by specific facts, that the charter school failed to meet or make
sufficient progress toward meeting standards and closure is in the best interest of

students. giving greater weight to measurements of academic performance — Education
Code Section 47607.2(b).

For the first time since 2020, the CDE has published a list of high-, middle-. and low-performing
charter schools. REALMS has been deemed a middle-performing school by the CDE, under
criterion 2 {performance schoolwide and for subgroups, against state averages).

Due to the suspension of the Dashboard in 2020 and 2021 as a consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic, charter schools could not be placed into performance categories as contemplated by
AB 1505.

For 2022, the CDE could only display the most current year of performance data (also known as
“Status™) on the Dashboard. The 2022 Dashboard used one of five Status levels (ranging from
Very High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for all state indicators based on 2021-22 school
year data. The 2023 Dashboard is the first since 2019 to display the intended red, orange, yellow.
green, and blue performance colors for schools’ status and change scores in the state indicators.
As such, the 2023 Dashboard is not based on two years of color-based performance.

The state indicators include the following:

Chronjc Absenteeism: kindergarten through grade eight;

Suspension Rate: kindergarten through grade twelve;

English Learner Progress: grades one through twelve;

Graduation Rate: high school only;

College/Career: high school only (Note: The € ollege/Career Indicator will not be reported on
the 2022 Dashboard);

e Academic: grades three through eight and grade eleven in English Language Arts
(“ELA")/Literacy and Mathematics.

California School Dashboard, School Performance Review, 2022:

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 13



English Language Arts

Mathematics

EARN MORE AN MORE
English Leamer Prograss Chronie Absanteslsm Suspentlon Rate
= = = =~ o= - TS =y
u |
Very Low Very low Nao Performance Leve Very High Very High
T 1 paimts babew starnband 1187 peiows boiww standarst €0% making progress 43.2% chronically dasant 13 1% suspended at lvast one day
towards English language
v g o v proficiency EQUTY AEPORT BT REPORT
o e T s of hstn Gomsn  Lich _ovel
o s N [ N N N ] NN YD GEEN . E— e -
2 ¢ o e Q 2 [ -] Q 4 o -] o [} 4 ¢ 1] a 0
VerpHegh s Masum L ey e Very begh  High  Mesham  Lrw ey oo
Virw Mave Delits 3 w W Drists 3 Vorwe Moxe Detads &

Virw Mars Detals

Basics: Teachers, Instructional

Implementation of Academic
Materials, Facilities

Standards
STANDARD NOT MET

STANDARD NOT MET

Local Climate Survey

Access to a Broad Course of

Study
STANDARD NOT MET

STANDARD NOT MET

California Schoal Dashboard, School Performance Review, 2023:

¥rew Move Detads ¥

Parent and Family
Engagement

STANDARD NOT MET

LEANN MORE EARN MORE
English Language Arts Mathematics Englith Learner Progress Chronlc Absenteslsm Suspension Rate
o o= == -~ o= == ==
£\ [ £\ £ AN
Red Yekow No Performance Color Red Ortange
T8 6 points Begw stamdard 194 pounts beiow standard A% making peagress 30.2% chronieatty szunt 12.8% susporeled at Isast ene day
Daclinad 4.5 Points @ Increased 21,1 Points O Declined 20% Increased 2.1% @ Daclinad 0.3% ®
Y R WYY REROKT BRETY MPORT LATY e
swerivay ¥ 1 ot M Epoh Lrwel - o I se o LY
- E— -— . S— -—— - Y — L
11 o & @ o 0 FEE 1 3
View dodt Deias 3

Fas  Cmpa

] o ]
wrew Mare Drlaky 3

Vs More Detaks 3 View More Detatls &

Basics: Teachers, Instructional
Materials, Facilities

Implementation of Academic
Standards

—-— — —-— —
2 2 L] o a
. G Bar Bad  Orpmgy  remew  Geen Bt

View More Detals 3

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030

Parent and Family
Engagement

14



Locat Climate Survey Access to a Broad Course of

Study

California School Dashboard. School Performance Review, 2024:

LEARN MORE LEARH MORE LIARN MORE LLARN MORE LEARN MBAE

English Language Arts Mathematics English Lenrror Progress Chranic Absentesism Suspension Rate
- — == -~ o - == - = -
Yellow YeHow No Performance Color Yellow YeHow
58.5 points beiaw starutpnd 83 polties below standard Fewer than 11 students - data 43.4% chrenically nbsant 2,5% pipendad at laast ene dey
Increased 21.1 Polnts & Increased 16.7 Points ® not displayed for prvacy Declinad 6.8% © Declined 8.4% ®
RANTY REPORT PILATY REEORT AT AERONT PRATY AERORY
o - e i o - - m i L e Humirer ¢ Wt % w Lach Coler e - s Ench Cmber
— — —— — L | -_— —— _— &
o 0 2 o [+] o ] 4 4] L] 1 2 1 0 1] o 2 1 1 [ ]
Rit  Oraagn  elems  Geeen B Bed  Ornge Vo= Gran B A Velem  Geren B Fod  Onarie Yelw Grem B
‘View More Detads View More Datail & View Mars Detaids > View More Details ¥ Yiew Morg Details
Basics: Teachers, Instructional implementation of Academic Parent and Family
Materials, Facilities Standards Engagement

STANDARD MET STANDARD MET STANDARD MET

Local Climate Survey Access to a Broad Course of

Study

STANDARD MET

As shown from the last three years of performance data, REALMS has made measurable

increases in academic achievement in a number of categories. as well as local indicators.

Specifically, REALMS® performance in mathematics improved significantly, increasing by over
47.8 points with a yellow indicator, performance in English Language Arts improved 16.6 points
and moved from red to yellow indicator, Chronic Absenteeism declined by 4.8% and moved
from red to yellow indicator, and our suspension rate declined by 8.7% and moved our indicator

from orange to yellow. Additionally, REALMS met the standards for all local indicators the past
two years, a noticeable improvement from the 2022 Dashboard.

While we recognize REALMS has areas that need improvement, we are confident that the steps
we are taking to address our performance will make a meaningful impact on the underlying

causes. For information regarding these steps. see our Performance Improvement Plan.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030



ELEMENT ONE
EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM

Governing Law: The educational program of the charter school, designed, among other things,
fo identify those whom the charter school is attempting fo educate, what it means io be an
“educated person” in the 21" century, and how learning best occurs. T) he goals identified in that
program shall include the objective of enabling pupils fo become self-motivated, competent, and
lifelong learners. Education Code Section 4 7605¢c)(5)(A)fi).

The annual goals for the charter school for all pupils and for each subgroup of pupils identified
pursuant to Section 52032, to be achieved in the state priorities, as described in subdivision (d)
of Section 52060, that apply for the grade levels served, and specific annual actions to achieve
those goals. A charter petition may identify additional school priorities, the goals for the school
priovities, and the specific annual actions to achieve those goals. Education Code Section
47603(c)(3)(A)(ii).

Vision

As a school of choice. the vision of Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music, and
Science is to create a growth-minded school where all students are empowered to reach their full
academic and social-emotional potential through STEAM, foreign language, music, and
resilience education programs.

Mission
Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language. Music, and Science’s mission is to offer
programs and innovative resources to create a suceessful and enriched learning environment for

all students.

The core beliefs. focus areas, and tactics of Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language,
Music. and Science are:

Core Beliefs: SPACE

Safety: All children can learn in a safe and supportive environment
e Partnership: Education is a partnership amongst students, educators, parents, and the
community
Accountability: Life is about choices, personal responsibility and personal accountability
e Communication: is the foundation for relationships. progress and success
Equality: Every person should be treated with dignity and respect

Four Focus Areas and Tactics

1. Foundational Education
Every student will have access to quality teachers, curriculum, and enrichment so that
each student can demonstrate academic growth through multiple measures:

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 16



!J

We will hire and develop qualified, credentialed teachers and support staff;

We will set high expectations for our students, teachers, and support staff to
support the growth of each of our students;

We will provide a well-rounded education focused on Science, Technology,
Engineering. Arts (music emphasizing instrument training, and foreign language)
and Math (“STEAM™);

We will provide extended learning opportunities and academic support.

Development of 21* Century Skills

Every student will have opportunities to develop skills necessary to compete in a global
society:

We will develop soft skills—critical thinking, communication, collaboration, and
creativin—with our students through the general curriculum and STEAM
education including elementary music;

We will invest in technology for students’ and teachers™ use.

3, Safe and Supportive Learning Environments
Every student will be supported in a nurturing and safe environment:

We will invest in the physical security and functional safety in and around our
campus;

We will develop our students’ social and resiliency skills through Positive
Behavior Interventions and Supports (“PBIS™);

We will teach and practice personal responsibility habits with our students.

4. Family and Community Partnerships
Partnerships are integral to the success of every student and the success of the school
community:

We will partner with our families and school community to enhance student
learning;

We will use multiple avenues such as our website, messaging system, on-line
gradebook, newsletters, and social media to regularly communicate with our
parents and community;

We will strengthen our school, family, and community partnerships through
events;

We will provide opportunities for families and community members to participate
in school planning and decisions:

We will partner with the community to create measurable school goals.

Whom the Charter School is Attempting to Educate

Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language. Music, and Science is committed to providing a
successful, safe, and rigorous educational experience to Transitional Kindergarten through sixth
grade students. REALMS focuses on students and families wanting their child’s foundational
learning experience to include project-based STEAM education, music education focusing on
instrument training, and foreign language education. Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for
Language, Music, and Science welcomes, as space and resources are available, all Kern County
residents legally able to attend a California public school in grades TK-6. Our educational

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 17



program will also emphasize social and character development emphasizing resiliency and civic
education.

The demographics for the Sierra Sands Unified School District and REALMS for the 2023-24
school year were as follows:

Demographic Characteristic | Sierra Sands Unified School
Pistrict
Black or African American 7.3%
American Indian or Alaska 1.1%
Native
Asian 2.0%
Filipino 1.4%
Hispanic or Latino 32.7%
Native Hawaiian or Pacific 0.6%
Islander
White 48.7%
Two or More Races 5.3%
Eligible for Free or 54.4%
Reduced-Price Lunch
English Leamers 5.5%
Students with Disabilities 16.2%

Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language. Music. and Science aims for its student
population to reflect the demographics from the Sierra Sands Unified School District. The
demographics for REALMS are as follows:

Demographic Characteristic REALMS
Black or African American 7.6%
American Indian or Alaska 0.4%
Native

Asian 1.8%
Filipino 1.3%
Hispanic or Latino 47.3%
Native Hawaiian or Pacific n/a
Islander

White 31.3%
Two or More Races 9.4%
Eligible for Free or 57.6%
Reduced-Price Lunch

English Learners 5.4%
Students with Disabilities 12.1%

Additionally, REALMS will continue to aim to serve:
»  Students who have demonstrated a need for additional academic support:

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 18



Families of students wanting music education emphasizing instrument training as part of
the core curriculum;

Familics of students wanting STEAM project-based education as part of the core
curriculum.

What it Means to be an Educated Person in the 21* Century

Educated persons will possess skills to create. analyze, problem solve. and innovate. The
workplace has shifted from the factory model to a model emphasizing critical thinking,
collaboration, creativity, and communication. The availability of information on the internet and
access to information due to advances in technology has changed the definition of what it means
to be an educated person in the 21 century. Value is on skills and the application of knowledge.

Educated persons of the 21st century will:

have strong foundational skills in literacy, writing, math, history and civic education, and
science;

have a foundational understanding in technology and application, and adapt to changes in
technology:

appreciate the added value of the arts:

understand historic and present world cultures and the importance of diversity in a global
society;

be able to think critically. collaborate, create, and communicate in a global society and
economy;

be a lifelong learner;

practice personal responsibility:

understand the importance of the global and local communities and contribute to the civic
progress of communities.

How Learning Best Occurs

Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music, and Science’s educational program is
based upon the understanding that learning best occurs:

in a school focused on literacy for students in grades TK-3. Students not proficient in
reading by the end of third grade are less likely to graduate from high school on time';

in an environment where students’ prior knowledge and experiences contribute to
learning;

where students are actively engaged in meaningful learning and are participants in their
education;

using a rigorous. inquiry based curriculum;

when students have opportunities to construct meaning through experiences, questioning,
and problem solving:

when children feel safe:

' Early Warning! Why Reading by the End of Third Grade Matters (Rep.). (2010).
doi:http:/'www.aecf.org/m/resourcedoc/ AECF-Early_Warning_Full_Report-201 0.pdf

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 19



in a positive, supportive, and accountable environment with high expectations;
when parents have opportunities to actively participate in school decisions;
when teachers feel part of a positive and supportive culture;

when students’ academic and social-emotional needs are met.

Community

Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music, and Science will focus on creating a
small and engaged school community. REALMS will have the capacity to serve up to 60
students per grade level. Since REALMS is an elementary program, 6" grade students will be in
an elementary setting. REALMS target enrollment is between 300 and 350 students. REALMS
will have an average class size not to exceed 24 students in TK and 30 students in K-6.

REALMS 5 Year Enrollment Projections

2025-26 | 202627 | 2027-28 | 2028-29 | 2029-30
TK/K 36 40 42 44 48
1 38 40 42 44 46
2 38 40 42 44 46
3 38 40 42 44 46
4 38 40 42 44 46
5 30 40 42 44 46
6 30 30 42 44 46
Total 248 270 294 308 324

Instructional Program

The educational program supports the school's vision and mission, Teachers use a
multi-instructional strategy approach to actively engage students and develop 21% century skills
that include creating, designing. collaborating, and communication. Teachers utilize explicit
direct instruction and project-based learning to teach and reinforce content and skills. REALMS
will provide additional instructional academic intervention, support, and enrichment during the
school day.

The core curticulum is research-based, State Standards aligned, and state adopted. (See
Appendix 3 for the Instructional Materials List.)

Our instructional program and curriculum is structured to provide learning opportunities that
create students literate in foundational reading and mathematical skills, critical thinkers,
problems solvers, and communicators. The Charter School’s dress code is designed to promote
economic parity and social equality. The dress code is fully explained in the Parent-Student
Handbook.

Assessment and Pacing

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 20



Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music, and Science’s educational program
emphasizes assessment as a tool to monitor and differentiate learning for all our students.
Teachers use formative assessments to adjust instruction to meet students’ learning needs and
summative assessments to monitor student academic growth. Students participate in benchmark
assessments three times during the school year.

The Assistant Superintendent of Instruction will routinely monitor student academic growth and
progress and provide support to teachers in meeting the learning needs of students.

Pacing plans guide and define the scope and sequence of the curriculum taught in our school

with regard to core subject areas that include English Language Arts, math, science, and social
studies.

Instructional Approaches

We believe teachers are the most important influence in cach students’ academic and
social-emotional development and success in school. Therefore, we will invest in the
professional growth and development of our teachers. Research-based highly effective
instructional strategies will be utilized for instructional delivery. Identified instructional
strategies will be based on the meta-analysis research of John Hattie and their impact on student
learning. These include. but are not limited to, direct instruction, Multi-Tier System of Supports,
Differentiated Instruction, design, teaching problem solving, concept mapping, and advance
organizers. Instructional strategics will be adjusted to meet the learning needs of our students.

Direct Instruction: Teachers determine learning objectives based on State Standards and success
criteria. The teacher explains objectives and success criteria to students, models, checks for
students’ understanding, and closes the lesson through re-telling.?

Hattie (2009) listed 7 steps for direct instruction:

1. Teacher determines the learning objective, specifically what students should understand
and be able to do;

2 Teacher determines success criteria, specifically, what students should be held

accountable for and communicate the performance expectation to students;

Teacher focuses students’ attention on the lesson;

4. Teacher presents the lesson through sharing information, modeling expectations of work,

and checking for students’ understanding:

Teacher guides and monitors students’ practice of the assigned task;

Teacher closes the lesson through review and clarification;

7. Students’ apply what they learned by independently practicing the newly acquired skill
and knowledge'.

L2

[= W}

2 Cooper, 1.M. (2006} Classroom teaching skills (8" ed.) Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co.
' Hattie, J. Visible learning a synthesis of over 800 meta-analyses relating to achievement. New York, NY:
Routledge

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 21



Multi-Tier System of Supports: Strategic approach to early intervention to students” struggling in
an academic area. Student progress is measured through frequent formative assessment.’

Differentiated Instruction: Teacher responds to students’ learning needs. Teachers can
differentiate through content, process, product, and environment based on students’ readiness,
interests, and learning profile’.

Concept Mapping: Using graphical representations to summarize, synthesize, and analyze
information.t We will utilize Thinking Maps with concept mapping.

Advance Organizers: Creating graphical representations to bridge previous knowledge and new
information.” We will utilize Thinking Maps with advanced organizets.

(Attached as Appendix 3. is the Instructional Materials List and attached as Appendix 4, is the
2024-25 Weekly Collaboration Schedule.)

Instructional Courses and Curriculum

REALMS uses a combination of state adopted programs and curriculum and supplemental
resources and programs to help students acquire foundational skills and 21 century skills. The
curriculum and supplemental resources are rescarch-based and have been successful with
elementary students.

English-Language Arts: REALMS understands the importance of literacy and the consequences
of students not reading at grade level. For this reason, REALMS will provide 120 minutes of
daily ELA instruction, practice, and intervention. Within this 120-minute instructional block:

e 30 minutes will be devoted to the Multi-Tier System of Supports (“MTSS”) in grades
TK-6. This includes intervention for students performing below grade level on California
Common Core Standards and enrichment for students performing above grade level.
Each classroom teacher will utilize small group instruction and will be provided with
paraprofessional support as needed during MTSS to maximize small group learning:

e 30 minutes will be for Designated English Language Development insiruction and
student practice. EL students will be grouped based on language proficiency and will be
taught by the grade level and proficiency level designated teacher. REALMS will use
Educeri's Launch to Literacy program for designated ELD instruction;

e 60 minutes will be devoted to instruction, guided practice, and differentiated practice in
TK-6.

REALMS will heavily focus on phonics instruction and reading fluency in TK-3 grades. We will
use the Systematic Instruction in Phonological Awareness, Phonics, and Site Words (“SIPPS”)
and SIPPS Plus programs for MTSS intervention. SIPPS is a K-3 tier 2 and 3 reading
intervention program and SIPPS Plus is targeted for students in grades 4-6. It is a rescarch based

4 https:f.fvisible-leaming.org/glossaryf#37Response_to_ir1tervention

S Tomlinson, C.A. and Moon T.R. {2013). Assessment and student success in u differentinted classroom.
Alexandria,VA: ASCD

¢ https://dese.mo.gov/sites/default/files/ 10-Research-ProvenPracticesHattie.pdf

7 https://dese.mo.govisites/default/files/1 0-Research-ProvenPracticesHattie.pdf

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 22



and well-established program emphasizing mastery of early literacy skills. The program uses
prescriptive, targeted instruction, on-going formative assessments, and summative assessments
after the completion of a unit or every 10 lessons. SIPPS will be used for all students in grades
K-6 needing reading intervention.

REALMS will use the Dynamic Indicators of Basic Early Literacy Skills (*DIBELS™) 8" Edition
program as an assessment to monitor students in grades TK-2 progress in literacy proficiency.
The benchmark assessment will be given three times each year for students in grades TK-2.
Teachers will analyze DIBELS assessment data to make adjustments to instruction and
interventions.

Guided reading and leveled readers will be used during the ELA instruction block. Teachers will
receive guided reading, DIBELS 8* Edition, and SIPPS training annually.

The Zoo Phonics program may also be used in TK and K classes to reinforce phonics and
beginning spelling.

Teachers in grades TK-3 may also use the iReady literacy program to provide targeted.
differentiated instruction and activities each week during the instruction, guided practice. or
differentiated practice part of the 120 minute ELA instructional block. Each classroom will have
iPads/chromebooks during the instruction, guided practice, or differentiated practice part of the
120 minute ELA instructional block. The teacher will rotate students throughout the week on
complete lessons and activities based on the iReady program. iReady lessons and activities are
differentiated based on the diagnostic iReady assessment.

Grades 4-6 will primarily focus on reading comprehension. interpretation, analysis, phonics, and
fluency intervention. Reading fluency intervention will use the SIPPS Plus program.

MTSS will be monitored through the Professional Learning Communities ("PLC") process.
Grade level teacher teams meet for 45 minutes each week to analyze student data and plan MTSS
instruction. Teachers analyze summative, curriculum, SIPPS, and DIBELS assessments 1o
identify students® needs and form MTSS student groups. Based on students’ needs, teachers plan
targeted instruction and activities and create common formative assessments for MTSS. MTSS
groups are adjusted every 4-6 weeks based on students’ progress and needs measured on
formative and curriculum based summative assessments.

NWEA’s MAP Growth Assessment will be used as REALMS® benchmark assessments.
Benchmark assessments are a summative measure of grade level standards-based instruction,
interventions, and enrichments. Benchmark assessments will provide a global perspective and
measure of the effectiveness of MTSS and needed adjustments to meet students” learning needs.

REALMS" goal is to close the achievement gap by providing high quality grade leve! instruction,
guided practice. independent practice. specific and targeted intervention, and enrichment to all
students during the instructional day.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 23



Using the California Common Core State Standards, all students will learn to communicate ideas
clearly and effectively through speech and writing appropriate to audience and purpose. Oral
reports. discussions, and writing prompts will be used to develop speaking and writing skills.
Students will examine and analyze various texts and demonstrate critical thinking. analysis and
active listening skills. Students will learn to write for purpose and audience including narrative,
opinion, persuasive, descriptive, and expository writing.

Social Science: Using the California Social Science Framework, students learn to be historically
literate and to become active, informed citizens. Using the California History-Social Science
framework, students learn about different communities, cultures, political systems, gconomic
systems, political policies, analyze how history has shaped California, the United States, and the
world. Students learn to evaluate resources. particularly primary and secondary sources, and
learn how historical literature can influence history. Students learn how to apply analysis of
history to local and global situations in order to comprehend contexts and events, predict and
evaluate the outcomes of human actions, and act responsibly as world citizens. Students learn to
apply chronological, thematic and integrative thinking, develop and test hypotheses about cause
and effect, gather evidence to support conclusions, use methods of historiography. conduct
in-depth and relevant research, critically examine sources, and synthesize ideas.

Mathematics: Students learn foundational math knowledge and skills that include numbers, place
value. whole number operations, fractions, decimals, and problem solving. Students acquire a
conceptual knowledge and understanding of math and the necessary skills to investigate and
problem solve. REALMS provides a minimum of 60 minutes daily for math instruction and
practice. Students who have demonstrated a readiness for more advanced math instruction will
be provided opportunities for instruction at their level.

Teachers will use formative and summative assessments to measure student growth and adjust
instruction. Assessments include curriculum based assessments and NWEA benchmark
assessmenis.

Science: Students learn foundational concepts and application of biology, chemistry, physics, and
geology. The science curriculum is centered around inquiry and real-world applied learning
experiences. Students explore and learn design-thinking principles in a standards based
curriculum through activities, projects. and relatable real-world problems.

Music: Students will learn music theory vocals, to sing the 7 notes of music, rhythm movements
appropriate to developmental level, and to read music and play a musical instrument. Students
will receive music instruction twice each week in the music classroom.

STEAM (TK-5): Using the Project lLead the Way curticulum. students learn design and
engineering principles and apply them to various problems and projects. Each model is based on
the Next Generation Science Standards. Modules include: difference between living and
non-living things; matter; healthy habits; coding and spatial sense: design: motion; the human
body; animals and adaptations; algorithms; light and sound; animation; properties of matter:
geography: sequence and structure; stability and motion; generic traits; programming patterns:

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 24



energy; robotics; and infections. Students will participate in the STEAM class once each week
for one hour.

Design Lab (grade 6): Using the Project Lead the Way Curriculum and modules, students learn
design principles and apply these principles to various problems and projects. Project Lead the
Way uses Next Generation Science Standards based modules to teach application of design
thinking principles. Modules include: design and modeling, automation and robotics, computer
science, energy, environment, acrospace, technology, architecture, and the human body.

Spanish: Students will learn to listen to, speak, read, and write Spanish. Foundational level will
focus on everyday vocabulary, simple sentences and phrases, and answering simple questions.
Intermediate level will include expanded vocabulary learning and will focus on conversational
Spanish. Advanced foreign language will focus on applying Spanish to daily context. It will
include learning additional academic and contextual vocabulary. academic and social
conversation. and academic writing in Spanish. Students will receive Spanish instruction 2 times
each week.

Social Skills (TK-K); This course will introduce transitional kindergarten and kindergarten into
socialization in a school environment. Essentially, it is teaching students how to work and play in
a school environment. The focus will be on following rules and procedures, making friends,
communicating with adults and peers, problem solving with peers, and how to ask for help.

Physical Education (TK-6): Using the California Physical Education Model Content Standards,
students will learn and develop gross motor concepts and skills: assess physical fitness to
improve health; and understand and apply game concepts during individual and team settings.

Technology

Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music, and Science recognizes access and
technology literacy is essential in preparing students for secondary education. REALMS is
addressing this need by providing resources and access to technology. Students will develop and
practice typing and basic computer skills and have opportunities to practice using on-line
Jearning platforms such as NWEA assessments, on-line curriculum, and Project Lead the Way.

REALMS has computer carts with enough iPads for every student to have one in each classroom
in TK-2. Each classroom in 3-6 also has computer carts and enough Chromebooks for every
student to have one. Technology is a necessary aspect of daily life for most college students and
working adults. The earlier students learn to use and adapt to technological devices and software.
the better prepared our students will be for secondary school and computer literacy.

Each teacher has a computer. smart board, document camera, and projector. Student academic
progress and behavior is monitored using the Aeries student information system. Teachers
receive on-going support and training for learning platforms and computer use. REALMS
contracts with KCSOS to provide hardware and software support and training.

Short-term Independent Study

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 25



In the interest of maintaining individual student academic progress and minimizing disruption to
the educational program as a result of an extended student absence, Ridgecrest Elementary
Academy for Language, Music, and Science will consider, on a case-by-case basis, the use of
short-term independent study contracts for students who receive prior approval for absences due
to travel or extended illness, of at least one (1) day in duration up to 30 days per school year. Any
such use of independent study will be fully compliant with all applicable independent study laws
and regulations. The REALMS Governing Board shall adopt a Board policy and the Charter
School will utilize written agreements in accordance with Education Code Section 51745 ef seq.
and its implementing regulations (see attached, as Appendix 5 for the Independent Study
Agreement), and shall ensure, through consultation with Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for
Language Music. and Science’s legal counsel and independent auditors, all forms and procedures
are in conformance with independent study law requirements.

School Calendar and Bell Schedule

The Charter School meets the annual instructional minutes requirements of Education Code
Section 47612.5(a)(1) (attached. as Appendix 2 please find the 2024-25 bell schedule). The
Charter School offers at minimum 175 days of instruction annually (attached, as Appendix 1,
please find the 2024-25 school calendar).

Serving Academically Low and High Achieving Students

Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language. Music, and Science’s goal is to meet the
educational needs of every child in every classroom, and to utilize general education
interventions first, where possible, to minimize the need for special education services. This
ultimately gives REALMS more latitude in responding to all children’s needs. REALMS uses the
MTSS framework to support all students below and above grade level. MTSS is a process where
REALMS will be proactive in assessing students” academic, behavioral and socio-emotional
development needs and provide students with timely, targeted and effective research-based
interventions and enrichment.

All students are assessed during the first month of school using Northwest Evaluation
Association’s (“NWEA”) Measures of Academic Progress ("MAP") assessment. The MAP
assessment is administered online and is adaptive to students’ responses. This data, along with
the student’s prior MAP benchmark assessment and CAASPP (grades 3-6) data is analyzed by
teachers during initial PLC meetings to create initial intervention and enrichment groups.
Throughout the school year, teachers ufilize PLC meetings to plan targeted instruction and
activities and create common formative assessments for MTSS. Student MTSS groups are
adjusted every 4-6 weeks based on students’ progress and needs as measured on formative and
curriculum summative assessments. Intervention and enrichment is provided during the ELA
instructional blocks.

When interventions or enrichment supports are not meeting the educational needs of a student,

the student will be referred to the Student Support Team. The Student Support Team uses a
systematic problem-solving approach utilizing teachers, administrators, parents. the student,

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 26



counselors, psychologists, relatives, and sometimes community members. The Student Support
Team is not a prerequisite to evaluation for special education eligibility, but may be used to
gather insight into a student’s academics, behavior. or other areas of interest prior to
recommendation for evaluation for special education or a Section 504 plan. (Attached as
Appendix 6, please find Student Support Team forms.)

Plan for English Learners

Overview

Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music, and Science understands targeted
instruction along with opportunities for students to engage in meaningful interactions are the
core of English acquisition for English Learners. REALMS will meet all applicable legal
requirements for English Learners (“EL”), including long-term English Learners or English
Learners at risk of becoming long-term English Learners, as they pertain to annual notification to
parents, student identification. placement, program options, EL and core content instruction,
teacher qualifications and training, reclassification to fluent English proficient status, monitoring
and evaluating program effectiveness, and standardized testing requirement.

The process for identifying and serving English Learners is as follows:
Step 1: Initial Assessment

a) Upon a student’s initial enrollment. REALMS will administer a Home Language
Survey to the parent or guardian to identify whether the primary or native language of
the student is a language other than English.

b) If a parent or guardian’s survey response indicates English as the student’s primary or
native language, the student shall be classified as English Only (*EO”).

¢) If a parent or guardian’s survey response indicates a primary or native language other
than English. REALMS will proceed with the administration of the Initial English
Language Proficiency Assessments for California (“ELPACT) assessment.
Parents/guardians will be notified in writing prior to the administration of the
assessment.

d) REALMS will administer the initial assessment, locally produce the official score for
the initial assessment in accordance with the directions of the test contractor, and
notify the parent or guardian, in writing, of the results of the ELPAC initial
assessment within 30 calendar days after the student’s date of enrollment, or, if
administered prior to the student’s initial date of enrollment, up to 60 calendar days
prior to such enrollment. but not before July 1 of the school year of the student’s
initial enrollment. The notice shall include whether or not the student met the ELPAC
initial assessment criterion for proficiency and REALMS’ contact information for use
if the student’s parent or guardian has questions or concerns regarding the student’s
classification.

e) If the student does not meet the ELPAC initial assessment criterion for proficiency,
REALMS will classify the student as EL.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 27



f) If the student meets the ELPAC initial assessment criterion for proficiency. REALMS
will classify the student as Initial Fluent English Proficient ("IFEP™).

g) A student shall be administered the initial assessment only once over the course of the
student’s enrollment in the California public school system, as verified by REALMS
through a review of the California Longitudinal Student Achievement Data System
(*CALPADS") data prior to administering the initial assessment to a student.

Step 2: Once identified as an English Learner, REALMS will provide the student with
appropriate Designated ELD instruction and services based upon the student’s grade level
and language proficiency level.

Step 3: Ongoing Assessment

All Charter School students classified as English Learners must be assessed with the
ELPAC Annual Assessment.

a) REALMS will administer the ELPAC summative assessment to all students identified
as English Learners during the mandated assessment window.

b) REALMS will notify each student’s parent or guardian of the student’s assessment
results within 30 calendar days following receipt of the test results from the test
contractor.

Step 4: Correction of Classification Errors

a) If a student is classified as EO pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of
Regulations, section 11518.5(b). but REALMS has an indication that the student’s
primary or native language is not English and the student is unable to perform
ordinary classroom work in English. REALMS may collect and review the following
evidence:

1} Parent or guardian opinion and consultation results; and

2y Evidence of the student’s performance in REALMS’ adopted course of
study and FLD, as applicable, obtained from the student’s classroom
teacher and other certificated staff with direct responsibility for teacher or
placement decisions.

3) Based upon this review, REALMS will determine whether the student will
be administered the initial assessment in order to determine the student’s
classification. At least 10 calendar days prior to administration of the
initial assessment, REALMS will notify the student’s parent or guardian in
writing that the student will be assessed. If REALMS administers the
initial assessment and if the student does not meet the ELPAC initial
assessment criterion for proficiency, REALMS will classify the student as
EL. REALMS will then notify the student’s parent or guardian in writing
of the results of its review. including the evidence that led to the
determination and the results of the initial assessment, as applicable,
within 14 calendar days of its determination. The student’s parent or

REALMS Charter Petition 20235-2030 28



guardian shall be entitled to request that REALMS review its
determination, according to state regulations.

b) If REALMS inadvertently administers an initial or summative assessment to a student

who is not eligible for the assessment as set forth in the Title 5 Regulations, the

student’s classification will remain unchanged regardless of the assessment results,

and REALMS will not maintain any such results as a student record, including in
CALPADS.

A student with a disability who is unable to participate in the initial or summative assessment, or
a section of either test with resources, shall be locally administered an alternate assessment(s) for
English language proficiency, as specified in the student’s [EP or Section 504 Plan.

Paths to Reclassification, Reclassification Criteria and Reclassification (“RFEP™) C yele

REALMS realizes the importance of monitoring and supporting students’ English language
development over time and ensuring that students are prepared to re-designate as students who
are fluent in English. For this reason, our school will have a systematic process for tracking
English Learners and their progress towards meeting the criteria for re-designation. The State
Board has established guidelines to use in reclassifying students from EL to fluent English
proficient. REALMS’ reclassification criteria will reflect the same criteria set forth by the state.

RFEP criteria consist of:

e ELPAC minimum overall score of 4, with minimum scores of 3 in Oral Language and
Written Language.

e Grade in English of C or 3 (out of 4). or better.

e Parent approval.

e English teacher recommendation.

Due to AB 484 and the suspension of the California Standards Test beginning in 2014, the
California Department of Education has encouraged schools to choose their own criteria as the
fourth measure for reclassification. Given the intimate connection between language acquisition
and literacy development, REALMS proposes to use students’ reading level and writing
performance as two measures to assess readiness for reclassification. Students must read within
one and a half years of grade level and they must score a 2 out of 4 on a cold write, based on a
common, SBAC-aligned writing rubric to complete the RFEP criteria. This aligns with our
instructional focus on literacy and language.

REALMS leaders and records personnel will identify two important checkpoints during the
school year to determine which students are eligible to meet the reclassification criteria. If a
student meets some, but not all, of the criteria, the teacher is notified so that she or he can target
instruction to help the student meet the goal of reclassification. The cycle below highlights the
annual process for reclassifying students.

Teachers and administrators will look closely at RFEP students’ progress in class and on
standardized testing measures. According to requirements outlined under the ESSA, schools

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 29



must monitor students for four years after re-designation (ESSA, 20 U.S.C.A. Section
6841(a)(5)). This is why many recently reclassified students will receive ELD instruction to
continue to support their academic English skills.

Monitoring of Reclassified English Learners

Students reclassified as RFEP will be monitored for a2 minimum of 4 years after reclassification.
REALMS will have a designated EL coordinator who will access RFEP students’ information to
monitor each RFEP’s academic progress. Parents of academically struggling RFEP students will
first be notified and the parent(s). EL coordinator, general education teacher, special education
teacher (if applicable), and administrator will meet to discuss interventions. Available
interventions include: MTSS targeted instruction, differentiated instruction, and reading and or
math support classes.

Monitoring and Evaluation of Program Effectiveness

REALM" use of achievement data will guide the instruction and Professional Learning
Opportunities as it relates to English learners. REALMS will analyze the data by this subgroup.
and continue to assess students’ growth through formative and summative assessments, including
benchmark assessments.

Specifically, the Charter School evaluates the effectiveness of its education program for ELs by:

o Adhering to Charter School-adopted academic benchmarks by language proficiency level
and years in program to determine annual progress;

e Monitoring teacher qualifications and the use of appropriate instructional strategies based
on program design:

e Monitoring student identification and placement;

e Monitoring parental program choice options;

¢ Monitoring availability of adequate resources.

English Language Development

English Learners require a systematic and explicit approach to teaching and practicing academic
English. We customize our core curriculum materials for EL students. REALMS will use
Educeri's Launch to Literacy program for designated ELD instruction.

REALMS will provide daily designated and integrated ELD instruction aligned to ELA/ELD
standards during the instructional day, specifically during the 120 minute ELA instructional
block. English Learners will receive 30 minutes of focused academic English language
instruction at their English proficiency level from a qualified teacher.

The purpose of designated ELD instruction is to provide opportunities for EL students to learn to
use English through interacting in meaningful ways that are collaborative, interpretive, and
productive. Designated ELD instruction will also provide opportunities for EL students to learn
how English works. Students will use a variety of instructional strategies such as independent.
paired, small group, and whole group practice and discussions during designated ELD. EL

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 30



students will develop academic vocabulary and grammar from texts and assignhments, learn
English functions in texts, and use language in writing different texts and in different content

areas.

Daily Instruction and Assessment within ELD teachers’ planning sets them up to implement the
following common practices during designated ELD time:

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030

Gradua!l Release of Responsibility: Designated ELD lessons are characterized by a
gradual release of responsibility from teacher modeling to guided oral practice to
independent written practice. Teachers move through each of these phases in every lesson
in order to ensure that students get enough oral practice and that they have an opportunity
to apply their new oral language to writing.

Visual Supports: ELD teachers will provide ample visual support for language learners,
such as charts with sentence frames and vocabulary word barnks, labeled posters to help
students visualize new vocabulary in context (e.g., pictorial input charts), picture cards
for students to use during partner and group talk, and graphic organizers for structured
writing support. Teachers model how students might use these visuals during oral and
written practice, as well as support students toward independent language production
without the use of a scaffold.

Structured Language Practice: During guided oral practice. students engage in Structured
Language Practice (“SLP™) routines, which promote focused, accountable talk. They
range from routines for whole class choral language practice (¢.g.. Echo Repeat) to small
group activities (e.g., Talking Stick) to partner routines (e.g., Lines of Communication).

Written Application Tasks: In order to ensure that students’ oral language production
transfers to their writing, teachers embed daily written application tasks as early in
elementary school as possible (i.e.. by the middle of kindergarten at the latest). These
tasks may be guided, as with a shared writing activity, or may be more independent, such
as an exit ticket. The key feature of all written tasks in designated ELD is that the teacher
explicitly makes the connection between them and students’ oral language practice so
that students begin to write the way they speak and speak the way they write.

Assessment: Once students are able to complete the writing tasks independently. they
serve as daily assessments, providing the teacher with crucial data on students” language
progress. In addition to written tasks, teachers use an ongoing assessment checklist to
keep track of students’ oral language production.

Structured Language Practice: In addition to these daily assessment measures, weekly
assessments are administered in the form of an application task that students complete by
synthesizing all of the language learned that week. This may be in the form of a dramatic
role play, a short essay, or a board game. No matter the task. there is a clear connection
between the language assessed and its real-life applications. By designing weekly
application tasks in this way, teachers ensure that students are engaged in authentic
language production while also gathering end-of-week assessment data to guide their

a3
—



instruction for the following week. These assessments help teachers and school leaders
track students’ language progress over time, allow them to see whether students can
apply the language learned in new contexts, and inform decisions about class placement
and ELD leveling. At the end of each academic year, leaders and teachers determine
students” readiness to move to the next ELD level based on their scores on the unit
assessments and summative benchmarks.

REALMS will provide integrated ELD instruction across disciplines throughout the instructional
day. Teachers will use the ELD standards with content standards to support English development
in students who are learning English. Teachers will review texts and tasks to identify challenging
language for EL students; identify EL strategies to help EL students learn challenging
vocabulary; monitor students using the identified language; and adjust instruction to provide
support to EL students.

Serving Students with Disabilities

Overview

REALMS shall comply with all applicable state and federal laws in serving students with
disabilities, including, but not limited to. Section 504, the ADA and the IDEA.

Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music, and Science will participate as an LEA
member of the Kern County Consortium SELPA for the purposes of special education. All LEA
members of the Kern County Consortium SELPA, make the following assurances:

The Charter School shall be solely responsible for its compliance with Section 504 and the ADA.
The facilities to be utilized by the Charter School shall be accessible for all students with
disabilities.

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act

REALMS recognizes its legal responsibility to ensure that no qualified person with a disability
shall, on the basis of disability, be excluded from participation. be denied the benefits of, or
otherwise be subjected to discrimination under any program of the Charter School. A student
who has a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life
activities, has a record of such an impairment, or is regarded as having such an impairment, is
eligible for protections under Section 504.

A 504 team will be assembled by the Superintendent or designee and shall include the
parent/guardian, the student (where appropriate) and other qualified persons knowledgeable
about the student, the meaning of the evaluation data, placement options, and accommodations.
The 504 team will review the student’s existing records; including academic, social and
behavioral records. and is responsible for making a determination as to whether an evaluation for
504 services is appropriate. If the student has already been evaluated under the Individuals with
Disabilities Education Improvement Act (“"IDEA™) but found ineligible for special education
instruction or related services under the IDEA, those evaluations may be used to help determine

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 32



eligibility under Section 504. The student evaluation shall be carried out by the 504 team who
will evaluate the nature of the student’s disability and the impact upon the student’s education.
This evaluation will include consideration of any behaviors that interfere with regular
participation in the educational program and/or activities. The 504 team may also consider the
following information in its evaluation:

e Tests and other evaluation materials that have been validated for the specific purpose for
which they are used and are administered by trained personnel:

e Tests and other evaluation materials including those tailored to assess specific areas of
educational need, and not merely those which are designed to provide a single general
intelligence quotient; and

o Tests are selected and administered to ensure that when a test is administered to a student
with impaired sensory, manual or speaking skills, the test results accurately reflect the
student’s aptitude or achievement level, or whatever factor the test purports to measure,
rather than reflecting the student’s impaired sensory, manual or speaking skills.

The final determination of whether the student will or will not be identified as a person with a
disability is made by the 504 team in writing and notice is given in writing to the parent or
guardian of the student in their primary language along with the procedural safeguards available
to them. If during the evaluation, the 504 team obtains information indicating possible eligibility
of the student for special education per the IDEA. a referral for assessment under the IDEA will
be made by the 504 team.

If the student is found by the 504 team to have a disability under Section 504, the 304 team shall
be responsible for determining what, if any, accommodations or services are needed to ensure
that the student receives the free and appropriate public education (“FAPE™). In developing the
504 Plan. the 504 team shall consider all relevant information utilized during the evaluation of
the student, drawing upon a variety of sources, including, but not limited to, assessments
conducted by REALMS" professional staff.

The 504 Plan shall describe the Section 504 disability and any program accommodations,
modifications ot services that may be necessary.

All 504 team participants, parents, guardians, teachers and any other participants in the student’s
education, including substitutes and tutors, must have a copy of each student’s 504 Plan. The
Superintendent or designee will ensure that teachers include 504 Plans with lesson plans for
short-term substitutes and that the teacher reviews the 504 Plan with a long-term substitute. A
copy of the 504 Plan shall be maintained in the student’s file. Each student’s 504 Plan will be
reviewed at least once per year to determine the appropriateness of the Plan, needed
modifications to the plan. and continued eligibility.

Special Education Services

REALMS shall be an independent local educational agency (“LEA™) and participate in the Kern
County Consortium SELPA pursuant to Education Code section 47641(a) for purposes of

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 33



compliance with federal law (IDEA: 20 U.S.C. Sections 1400 et seq.) and for eligibility for
federal and state special education funds. By participating in the SELPA as its own LEA,
REALMS will be solely responsible for the provision of special education and related services.
REALMS shall comply with the policies, procedures and requirements of the SELPA as they
apply to all SELPA schools for responding to implementation of special education services.
REALMS agrees to be responsible for any legal fees related to its application and assurances to
the Kern County Consortium SELPA. REALMS shall retain the discretion to participate in a
different SELPA as an independent LEA and will provide appropriate advance notice to the
County, the SELPA, and the California Department of Education (“CDE")} of such change in
membership. A change in SELPA membership shall not require a material revision of this
charter.

REALMS shall provide special education and related services to all eligible REALMS students
in accordance with the policies, procedures and requirements of the SELPA including. but not
limited to. referrals. assessments, IEP team meetings, delivery of educational and related
services, records requests, confidentiality of student records, and any due process or other
complaints.

REALMS shall receive funding directly from the SELPA in accordance with the allocation plan
approved by the SELPA. REALMS understands and agrees that special education funding shall
only be used to support special education services and that any costs beyond SELPA funding are
the sole responsibility of REALMS.

REALMS will be responsible for complying with all state and federal requirements regarding
notification to a student’s school district of residence and the County regarding when a student
enrolls in REALMS, becomes eligible for special education, becomes ineligible for special
education, and/or leaves REALMS.

REALMS agrees to promptly respond to all CDE or SELPA inquiries, to comply with reasonable
CDE or SELPA directives, and to allow the SELPA access to REALMS’ students, staff,
facilities, equipment and records as required to fulfill all Authorizer obligations under this
charter or imposed by law.

Staffing

All special education setvices at the Charter School will be delivered by individuals or agencies
qualified to provide special education services as required by California’s Education Code, the
Commission on Teacher Credentialing and the IDEA. Charter School staff shall participate in
SELPA in-service training relating to special education.

REALMS will be responsible for the hiring, training, and employment of site staff necessary to
provide special education services to its students, including, without limitation, special education
teachers, pataprofessionals. and resource specialists. The Charter School shall ensure that all
special education staff hired or contracted by the Charter School are qualified pursuant to SELPA
policies, as well as meet all legal requirements. The Charter School shall be responsible for the
hiring, training, and employment of itinerant staff necessary to provide special education services

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 34



to Charter School students, including. without limitation, speech pathologists, occupational
therapists, behavioral therapists, and psychologists.

REALMS may request related services (e.g. Speech, Occupational Therapy. Adapted P.E.,
Nursing, and Transportation) from the SELPA or COE, whichever is appropriate in their area.
subject to SELPA and/or COE approval and availability. The Charter School may also provide
related services by hiring credentialed or licensed providers through private agencies ot
independent contractors.

Identification and Referral

REALMS shall have the responsibility to identify, refer, and work cooperatively in locating
Charter School students who have or may have exceptional needs that qualify them to receive
special education services. The Charter Schoo! will implement SELPA policies and procedures to
ensure timely identification and referral of students who have, or may have, such exceptional
needs. A pupil shall be referred for special education only after the resources of the general
education program have been considered, and where appropriate, utilized.

REALMS will follow SELPA child-find procedures to identify all students who may require
assessment to consider special education eligibility and special education and related services in
the case that general education interventions do not provide a free appropriate public education
to the student in question.

A men

The term “assessments” shall have the same meaning as the term “evaluation™ in the IDEA, as
provided in Section 1414, Title 20 of the United States Code

As detailed above, REALMS will implement an SST process to monitor and guide educational
services prior to application of Section 504 and special education services. If REALMS staft
finds that an intervention plan, developed and implemented within the SST process, is not
sufficient to meet the student’s needs. they may recommend that student for a formal special
education assessment,. REALMS staff may also choose to refer a student for services through the
provisions of a Section 504 Plan, if appropriate. Parents/guardians will be informed that special
education and related services are provided at no cost to them.

Referral for Assessment

The referral process is a formal, ongoing review of information related to students who are
suspected of having special needs and show potential signs of needing special education and
related services.

I. Referral Response (15 Days): REALMS' internal method for referral for
assessment will be a Student Study Team. The parent or guardian of any
student suspected of needing or qualifying for special education services may
also make a referral for an evaluation. Any such referrals will be responded to
in writing by REALMS within 15 days.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 35



2. Notification of Assessment Reguest (5 Days): REALMS will notify the
authorizer and/or SELPA (where applicable according to SELPA policies) of
the assessment request within five days of receipt. Parents will be informed via
the Superintendent or a designee that special education and related services are
provided at no cost to them.

3. Assessment Plan (15 Days): If REALMS concludes that an assessment is
appropriate, the parent will receive a written Assessment Plan within 15 days,
excluding school breaks longer than five school days.

4. Parent Consent (15 Days): The parent will be given at least 15 days to provide
written consent to the Assessment Plan. Assessments will be done only upon
receipt of written parent permission.

5. IEP Meeting (60 Days): The assessment will be completed and an I[EP meeting
held within 60 days (excluding school breaks longer than five school days) of
receipt of the parent's written consent for assessment.

Assessment Process

The Superintendent or designee will be responsible for gathering all pertinent information and
sharing such information (where applicable according to SELPA policies). Information
gathered will be used as tools to determine the student's disability, eligibility for services, and
the nature and extent of required services. Assessment procedures will be conducted in the
student's primary language, and an interpreter will be provided, if needed. The types of
assessments that may be used for determining cligibility for specialized instruction and
services will include, but are not limited to:

Individual testing:

Teacher observations:

[nterviews;

Review of REALMS records. reports. and work samples; and
Parent input.

Unless conflicting with the SELPA policies and procedures, REALMS will assess students
according to the following guidelines. 1f such a conflict with SELPA policies and procedures
exists, then SELPA policies and procedures will govern.

e Parents or guardians of any student referred for assessment must give their written
consent for REALMS to administer the assessment.

e The assessment will be completed and an TEP meeting held within 60 days of receipt
of the parent's written consent for assessment (excluding school breaks longer than
five school days).

o The student must be evaluated in all areas related to his/her suspected disability.

e Assessments must be conducted by a person with knowledge of the student's suspected
disability and administered by trained and knowledgeable personnel in accordance

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030

36



with any instructions provided by the producer of the assessments.
Individually-administered tests of inicllectual or emotional functioning must be
administered by a credentialed school psychologist.

® Assessments must be selected and administered so as not to be racially, culturally, or
sexually discriminatory.

e Assessments will be delivered in the student's primary language, and a qualified
interpreter will be provided if needed.

e Assessment tools must be used for purposes for which the assessments or measures are
valid and reliable.

e Assessments will be adapted as necessary for students with impaired sensory, physical
or speaking skills.

e A multidisciplinary team will be assembled to assess the student, including a teacher
who is familiar with the disability.

Upon completion of the assessment, an [EP team will be assembled to review the results of the
assessment and determine the student's need for special education. REALMS, in coordination
with the SELPA, will be responsible for scheduling, coordinating, and facilitating the IEP
meeting. Educators qualified to interpret test results will present the assessment data at the IEP
meeting. Parents will be provided with written notice of the IEP meeting, and the meeting will be
held at a mutually agreeable time and place.

Development and Implementation of [EP

REALMS understands that decisions regarding eligibility, goals and objectives, program,
placement, services and exit from special education shall be the decision of the IEP team based
on an assessment. Special education programs, placements and services shall be in accordance
with applicable state and federal special education law, and the policies and procedures of the
SELPA.

REALMS will convene an IEP team meeting for every student who is assessed by REALMS to
review the assessment results and make an eligibility determination for special education
services, such as for autism. deaf-blindness, deafness, emotional disturbance. hearing
impairment, intellectual disability, multiple disabilities, other health impairment, orthopedic
impairment, specific learning disability, speech or language impairment, traumatic brain injury,
visual impairment, established medical disability, and other disabilities which may be mandated.

Students at REALMS who have [EPs will be served in the least restrictive environment (“LRE™).
This means that a student who has a disability should have the opportunity to be educated with
non-disabled peers to the greatest extent appropriate. They should have access to the general
education curriculum, or any other program that non-disabled peers would be able to access.
The student should be provided with supplementary aids and services necessary to achieve
educational goals if placed in a setting with non-disabled peers. Should a child with a disability
require a more resirictive setting, the full continuum of placement options will be made
available.

Each student who has an IEP will have an IEP team that oversees the IEP development,
implementation, and progress of the student. All decisions concerning the special education

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 37



programs, and services to be provided to a student with a disability. arc to be made by the IEP
team. The IEP team must include all of the following members:

e The parent or guardian of the student for whom the [EP was developed, or a
representative selected by the parent in accordance with the IDEA;

e The student, if appropriate;

e The Superintendent and/or the REALMS designated representative with appropriate
administrative authority as required by the IDEA

e At least one special education teacher;

e A general education teacher who is familiar with the curriculum appropriate to that
student, if the student is, or may be, participating in the general education environment;

e Related service providers, if appropriate; and

e If the child was recently assessed, the individual who conducted the assessment or who is
qualified to interpret the assessment results.

Others familiar with the student may be invited as needed. REALMS views the parent/guardian
as a key stakeholder in these meetings and will make every effort to accommodate
parents’/guardians’ schedules and needs so that they will be able to participate effectively on the
IEP team.

REALMS will provide an interpreter, if necessary, to ensure that all parents and/or guardians
understand and can participate in the IEP process. If a parent/guardian cannot attend the 1EP
meeting, REALMS will ensure his/her participation using other methods, such as conferencing
by telephone.

A student’s IEP must provide for a FAPE. which is an educational program that is designed to
meet that child’s unique needs and be reasonably calculated to provide the student with some
educational benefit. A copy of the IEP will be given to the parent in accordance with state laws
and SELPA policies. Upon the parent/guardian’s written consent, the 1IEP will be implemented by
REALMS, in cooperation with the Kern County Consortium SELPA.

The IEP will include all required components and be written on SELPA forms. The Goals and
Objectives section of the IEP will be an attachment to the general progress report. This will
serve to document the method by which the student’s progress toward achieving the annual goal
is measured, the student’s progress during the relevant period, the extent to which it is
anticipated the student will achieve the annual goal prior to the next annual review, and, where
needed. the reasons the student did not meet the goal. The student's IEP will include the
following:

e A statement of the student's present levels of academic achievement and functional
performance;

e Measurable annual goals and short-term objectives focusing on the student's current level
of performance;

e A description of how the student's progress toward meeting the annual goals will be
measured and monitored and when reports will be provided;

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 38



e A statement of the special education and related services and supplementary aids and
services to be provided fo the student, and a statement of the program modifications or
supports for school personnel that will be provided;

e An cxplanation of the extent, if any. to which the student will not participate with
nondisabled students in the regular class and activities;

e Accommodations necessary to measure the academic achievement and functional
performance of the pupil on state and school assessments. A description of when services
and modifications will begin, the frequency and duration of the services and
modifications, who will provide them, and where they will be delivered;

e Transition goals and services for students 16 and older.

IEP meetings will be held according to the following schedule:

o At least annually to review the student's progress and make any necessary changes;

e Lvery three years to review the results of a mandatory comprehensive
reevaluation of the student's progress;

e Afier the student has received a formal assessment or reassessment;

e When a parent or teacher feels that the student has demonstrated significant educational
growth or a lack of anticipated progress (consistent with state and federal law, IEP
meetings will be held within 30 days of a parent's request):

e When an Individual Transition Plan (*ITP") is required at the appropriate age; and

e When REALMS seeks to suspend or remove the student for a period of 10 days or more
for the same behavior, in order to determine if the student's misconduct was a
manifestation of their disability.

If a parent/guardian of a student identified as having special needs chooses not to receive
educational and/or related services offered in an IEP, REALMS will document or otherwise
obtain evidence of this election in the manner required by law. The offer of placement and
services by REALMS shall be in writing prior to this decision by the parent/guardian.

IEP Review
Once a Year and Every 3 Years

As noted above, the [EP team will formally review the student's IEP at least once a year to
determine how the IEP is meeting the individual student's needs. In accordance with IDEA
regulations, the IEP team will also conduct a formal review of the IEP once every three years, in
which the student is reassessed and the IEP is reviewed as part of an overall comprehensive
reevaluation of the student's progress.

Reassessment Within 30 Days
If a parent/guardian or faculty member feels the student’s educational needs are not being met,
they may request a reassessment or a review of the IEP by the IEP team at any time during the

year via written notice to REALMS. Once the request is received, REALMS will have thirty (30)
days, not including school vacations greater than five (5) days, to hold the IEP meeting.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030

(75
0



Quarterly Parent Notice, Goals and Objectives

Unless otherwise specified on the student's IEP, parents will be informed three(3) times a year
(which is the same frequency as progress is reported to all students and parents) of the student's
progress toward meeting annual goals and whether the student is expected to meet their annual
goals.

Prior Written Notice

Whenever REALMS proposes to initiate, or refuses to initiate or change, the identification,
evaluation. or educational placement of a REALMS student. REALMS will provide the
parent/guardian with prior written notice of such action in accordance with the requirements of
Title 34 of the California Code of Regulations, section 300.503.

Reporting

All necessary procedures and practices to ensure confidentiality and accurate/timely reporting
will be the responsibility of the Superintendent or designee. The Superintendent or designee will
ensure that a central file with all special education evaluation material and IEPs is maintained
and that this file is locked and confidential, in accordance with IDEA guidelines. The
Superintendent or designee will oversee access to these records, and will be responsible for
ensuring that all providers responsible for the implementation of a student's IEP will have access

to a copy of the IEP and will be informed of their specific responsibilities in implementing the
IEP.

Procedural Safeguards

The Superintendent or designee will ensure the following procedural safeguards and procedures
are followed:

1. Procedural Safeguards: Parents/guardians of students with [EPs at REALMS must give
written consent for the evaluation and placement of their child, be included in the
decision-making process when a change in placement is under consideration, and be
invited, along with teachers. to conferences and meetings to develop their child’s IEP.

2. Disagreements Acknowledged: Any concerns or disagreements raised by
parents/guardians will be acknowledged by REALMS within five (5) days, after which a
meeting between the parent and REALMS will be scheduled to seek resolution of the
disagreement. If a disagreement or concern persists, parents or guardians have the right
to initiate a due process hearing to challenge a decision regarding the identification.
evaluation, or educational placement of their child.

3. Notice of Procedural Safeguards: REALMS will provide the parent with a written Notice

of Procedural Safeguards in their native language, which will include information on the
procedure to initiate both formal and informal dispute resolutions, at least once per year.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 40



REALMS will utilize the Notice of Procedural Safeguards used by the SELPA in which it
is a member.

Interim and Initial Placements of New Charter School Students

REALMS shall comply with Education Code Section 56325 with regard to students transferring
into the Charter School within the academic school year. In accordance with Education Code
Section 56325(a)(1), for students who enroll in the Charter School from another school district
within the State, but outside of the SELPA with a current IEP within the same academic year, the
Charter School shall provide the pupil with a free appropriate public education. including
services comparable to those described in the previously approved IEP, in consultation with the
parent, for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days, by which time the Charter School shall adopt
the previously approved IEP or shall develop, adopt, and implement a new IEP that is consistent
with federal and state law.

In accordance with Education Code Section 56325(a)(2), in the case of an individual with
exceptional needs who has an 1EP and transfers into the Charter School from a district operated
program under the same special education local plan area of the Charter School within the same
academic year, the Charter School shall continue, without delay, to provide services comparable
to those described in the existing approved [EP. unless the parent and the Charter School agree to
develop, adopt, and implement a new [EP that is consistent with federal and state law.

For students transferring to REALMS with an IEP from outside of California during the same
academic year, the Charter School shall provide the pupil with a free appropriate public
education, including services comparable to those described in the previously approved IEP in
consultation with the parents. until the Charter School conducts an assessment pursuant 10
paragraph (1) of subsection (a) of Section 1414 of Title 20 of the United States Code, if
determined to be necessary by the Charter School, and develops a new IEP, if appropriate, that is
consistent with federal and state law.

Non-Public Placements/Non-Public Agencies

The Charter School shali follow the procedures of the SELPA regarding Non-Public School and
Non-Public Agency placements. SELPA shall participate in IEPs where these issues are
discussed: should a student be placed with one of the non-public settings, REALMS will be
solely responsible for selecting, contracting with, and overseeing all non-public schools and
non-public agencies used to serve special education students.

Non-disgrimination
It is understood and agreed that all children will have access to the Charter School and no student
shall be denied admission nor counseled out of the Charter School due to the nature, extent, or

severity of histher disability or due to the student’s request for, or actual need for, special
education services.

Parent/Guardian Concerns and Complaints

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 41



The Charter School shall adopt policies for responding to parental concerns or complaints related
to special education services. The Charter School shall receive any concerns raised by
parents/guardians regarding related services and rights.

The Charter School’s designated representative shall investigate as necessary, respond to, and
address the parent/guardian concern or complaint.

The parents of students in the Charter School and/or Charter School Administrators have access
to the Alternative Dispute Resolution system currently in place within the SELPA to assist in
dispute resolution prior to either party making a formal complaint with the California
Department of Education or with the Office of Administrative Hearing.

Dug Process Hearings

The Charter School may initiate a due process hearing or request for mediation with respect to a
student enrolled in the Charter School if it determines such action is legally necessary or
advisable. In the event that the parents/guardians file for a due process hearing, or request
mediation. the Charter School shall defend the case.

In the event that a due process hearing request is filed against the Kern County Superintendent of
Schools (“County Superintendent™) or the Kern County Board of Education related to the
provision of special education and related services to a REALMS student, REALMS shall fully
indemnify, hold harmless and pay for all costs associated, including attorney’s fees, costs, and
fees for legal representation, settlement costs and damages. The County Superintendent and
REALMS will work together to select legal representation and decide on case management.

SELPA Representation

it is the Charter School’s understanding that it shall represent itself at all SELPA meetings.

Funding

The Charter School understands that it will be subject to the allocation plan of the SELPA.

Professional Learning Opportunities

Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music, and Science teachers participate annually
in a minimum of seventy (70) hours of Professional Learning Opportunities and a minimum of
45 minutes weekly of Professional Learning Community (*PLCs™) time. The purpose of PLCs is
to evaluate students’ progress and plan instruction based on the analysis of students’ progress.
REALMS is committed to training teachers in English learner strategies, use of assessments and
data to drive instruction, peer observation and dialogue, standardized testing preparation, and use
of technology. (Attached as Appendix 7, please find a 2024-25 Professional Learning
Opportunities Plan.}

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 42



ELEMENT TWO
MEASURABLE PUPIL OUTCOMES

Governing Law: The measurable pupil outcomes identified for use by the charter school. “Pupil
outcomes,” for purposes of this part, means the extent to which all pupils of the charter school
demonstrate that they have attained the skills, knowledge, and attitudes specified as goals in the
charter school’s educational program. Pupil outcomes shall include outcomes that address
increases in pupil academic achievement both schoolwide and for all pupil subgroups served by
the charter school, as that term is defined in subdivision (a) of Section 52032. The pupil
outcomes shall align with the state priorities, as described in subdivision (d) of Section 52060,
that apply for the grade levels served by the charter school. Education Code Section
47605(c)(5)(B).

And

ELEMENT THREE
METHODS OF MEASUREMENT

Governing Law: The method by which pupil progress in meeiing those pupil outcomes is fo be
measured. To the extent practicable, the method for measuring pupil outcomes for state priorities
shall be consistent with the way information is reported on a school accountability report card.
Education Code Section 47605(cj(5)(C).

Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music, and Science shall meet all statewide
standards and conduct the student assessments required, pursuant to Education Code Section
60605, and any other statewide standards authorized in statute, or student assessments applicable
to students in non-charter public schools.

Is, Action Measura t Aligned with the Eight State Prioriti
Pursuant to Education Code Sections 47605(c)(5)AXii) and 47605(c)(5)(B), the Charter
School's annual goals, actions and measurable outcomes, both schoolwide and for each subgroup

of pupils, which address and align with the Eight State Priorities as described in Education Code
Section 52060(d), can be found in the table below:

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 43



ELEMENT ONE anD Two: MEASURABLE PupiL OUTCOMES

CHARTER SCHOOL GOALS, ACTIONS AND MEASURABLE QUTCOMES THAT ALIGN WITH THE EIGHT
STATE PRIORITIES

Pursuant to Education Code Sections 47603(c)(5)(A)ii) and 47605(c)(5)}B), the Charter
School has established goals. actions, and measurable outcomes both schoolwide and for each
subgroup of pupils, which address and align with the Eight State Priorities identified in
Education Code Section 52060(d).

Local Control and Accountability Plan

In accordance with Education Code Section 47606.5, the Charter School shall comply with all
elements of the Local Conirol and Accountability Plan (“LCAP” attached as Appendix 17)
pursuant to regulations and a template adopted by the California Authorizer and reserves the
right to establish additional and/or amend school-specific goals and corresponding assessments
throughout the duration of the charter. The Charter School shall submit the LCAP to the
County Superintendent of Schools annually on or before July 1, as required by Education Code
Section 47604.33.

The LCAP and any revisions necessary to implement the LCAP. including outcomes and
methods of measurement listed below, shall not be considered a material revision to the charter,
and shall be maintained by the Charter School at the school site.

STATE PrRIORITY #1— BASIC SERVICES

The degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned (E.C. § 44258.9) and fully
credentialed in the subject areas, and, for every pupil they are teaching, every pupil in the
school district has sufficient access to standards-aligned instructional materials (E.C. §
60119), and school facilities are maintained in good repair (E.C. § 17002(d))

SUBPRIORITY A — TEACHERS

e REALMS will seek, support, and retain highly qualified, talented
staff to meet the needs of our students and families.
e REALMS will obtain the most up-to-date standards aligned

instructional materials that will prepare students for college and
career.

GOAL TO ACHIEVE
SUBPRIORITY

o All candidates will undergo a rigorous hiring process, which
includes paper screening, interviews, and reference checks.

e Faculty will have 10+ days of targeted Professional Learning
Opportunities; based on individual and school goals and the needs

ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE of students based on data.

GoAaL o School leaders and faculty will research and obtain the most
up-to-date standards-aligned materials and participate in a yearly
updating process.

¢ Annual school community survey.
e Faculty participates in a shared decision making process.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 44



Increase the percentage of teachers appropriately assigned and
fully credentialed.

MEASURABLE
OUTCOME

90% satisfaction rating on annual school community survey
results.

90% of faculty agree that they participate in a shared decision
making process as reported on a school survey.

90% of teaching staff will be appropriately assigned and fully
credentialed by 2026-27 school year.

METHODS OF
MEASUREMENT

Community and parent surveys.

Faculty and staff surveys.

Teacher list with credentials and hire dates.
Audit of instructional materials.

SUBPRIORITY B — INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS

GOAL TO ACHIEVE
SUBPRIORITY

100 Percent of students with access to Common Core
standards-aligned instructional materials in all subjects.

All REALMS curriculum will be designed to support ELs and
other struggling subgroups.

ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE
GoAL

Teachers will use CCSS and state-aligned instructional materials to
deliver instruction, extension, and intervention support for ELA,
Math. ELL, Science, Art, Music, and Modern Language.
Supplemental ELD curriculum for designated and integrated ELD
enrichment is used in all grade level classes.

A continuum of professional learning Opportunities, collaborative
weekly PLCs and lesson planning by teachers to support:
curticulum implementation, EL students and other identified
struggling students.

MEASURABLE
OUTCOME

Maintain 100% of students have access to standards-aligned
instructional materials in all subjects.

Teacher lesson plans will be aligned to CCSS and ELD standards
and include ELD instruction.

Attendance records of staff professional learning opportunities on
adopted curriculum.

METHODS OF
MEASUREMENT

Audit of Instructional Materials list.

Audit of teacher lesson plans.

Audit of Continuum of Professional Learning Opportunities.
CAASPP summative assessments.

ELPAC summative assessments.

NWEA assessimments.

SurprIORITY C — FACILITIES

GOAL 70 ACHIEVE
SUBPRIORITY

Site facilities are maintained and in good repair.

ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE
GoaL

Regular walkthroughs of school facilities by school leadership.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 45




METHODS OF
MEASUREMENT

e Ongoing review and recording of facilities conditions on the
Facilities Inspection Tool.

e Parent input on facilities is elicited through surveys and
participation on Advisory Committees.

e 90% of community members agree that the school is clean and

MEASURABLE orderly based on a survey.
OUTCOME e School leaders rate the school condition as “very good™ or better

on the Facility Inspection Tool.

e Parents and community members survey of school facilities.

Facility Inspection Tool authorized by the Office of Public School
Construction.

StaTE PrioriTy #2— IMPLEMENTATION OF CoMMON CORE STATE STANDARDS

Implementation of Common Core State Standards, including how EL students will be enabled
10 gain academic content knowledge and English language proficiency

SUBPRIORITY A — CCSS IMPLEMENTATION

GoaL 1o AciEve | ® All REALMS teachers will implement the California Common
SUBPRIORITY Core State Standards curriculum.
e Teachers will actively participate in PLCs and Professional
Learning Opportunity sessions.
e Teachers will use CCSS state adopted or CCSS standards aligned
instructional materials, including intervention and ELD materials.
AcCTIONS TO ACHIEVE | ®  All core content areas will have, and teachers will use, pacing
GoaL guides with embedded schedules and assessments.
e Teachers will receive assessment data to analyze implementation
of CCSS curriculum.
e Students will receive interventions or enrichment as determined by
formative and summative assessments.
e Percent of staff participating in PLCs and Professional Learning
Opportunities will exceed 90% annually.
e 100% of instructional materials will be CCSS and ELD aligned.
MEASURABLE e ELs making progress towards English proficiency will increase
OutcomE 10% annually as measured by the ELPAC.
e Teacher lesson plans will be aligned to CCSS and ELD standards
and include ELD instruction.
e PLO agendas and sign in sheets.
METHODS OF ¢ ELPAC summative assessments.
MEASUREMENT ® Audit of teacher lesson plans and PLC work.
e Audit of instructional materials.

StePRIORITY B — EL STUDENTS & ACADEMIC CONTENT KNOWLEDGE

GOAL TO ACHIEVE
SUBPRIORITY

All English Learners will receive designated and integrated ELD
instruction.

REALMS Charter Petition 2(25-2030 46




® Teachers will receive training on designated and integrated ELD
ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE instruction.
GoaL e Teachers will develop lesson plans that include designated and
integrated ELD instruction.
e Percent of staff participating in ELD Professional Learning
Opportunities will exceed 90% annually.
MEASURABLE e [.esson Plans will show Designated and Integrated ELD
OuvrcomE instruction.
e ELs making progress towards English proficiency will increase
10% annually as measured by the ELPAC.
M e ELD Professional Learning Opportunity agenda and sign in sheets.
ETHODS OF ) .
MEASGREMENT L ELP“AC summative assessments pfaﬁmen.cy data. .
' e Audit of teacher lesson plans and instructional materials.
SueprioRITY C — EL STUDENTS & ENGLISH LANGUAGE PROFICIENCY

GoaL To ACHIEVE | @  All English Learners will show improved scores in all areas of the
SUBPRIORITY Summative ELPAC .
" e English Learners will practice strategies, learn skills, and take the
ACTIONETO CENEYE Interim ELPAC assessments.
OAL : e .
e Teachers will receive training on the Interim ELPAC assessments.
MEASURABLE o ELs making progress towards English proficiency will increase
OUTCOME 10% annually as measured by the ELPAC.
e ELPAC interim and summative assessment proficiency data.
METHODS OF .
) e Evaluation of teacher lesson plans.
MEASUREMENT e . )
o Audit of instructional materials.

STATE PRIORITY #3— PARENTAL INVOLVEMENT AND FAMILY ENGAGEMENT

A. Parental involvement and family engagement, including efforts [the school] makes to
seek parent input in making decisions for [the school], and including how fthe school]
will promote parental participation in programs for unduplicated pupils and individuals
with exceptional needs.

B. Family engagement may include, but need not be limited to: efforts to apply
research-based practices, such as welcoming all families into the school community,
engaging in effective two-way communication, Supporting pupil success, and
empowering families to advocate for equity and access; families as partners fo inform,
influence, and create practices and programs that support pupil success and
collaboration with families and the broader community, expand pupil learning
opportunities and community services, and promote civic participation.

SUBPRIORITY A — ACHIEVING/MAINTAINING PARENTAL INVOLVEMENT

GOAL TO ACHIEVE
SUBPRIORITY

Parents view themselves as a key component of their student’s and
the school’s success as demonstrated by their level of participation.
Parents demonstrate a high satisfaction with the school’s program.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 47




ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE
GoaL

Publish opportunities for parenta! involvement through Parent
Square and websites.

Continuously invite parents to student assemblies.

Invite parents to advisory meetings for parents to give feedback to
school leadership.

Schoo! community surveys.

MEASURABLE
OUTCOME

Increased number of parents in attendance to weekly assemblies.
75% of parents view themselves as a key component of their
student’s and the school’s success as demonstrated by their level of
participation based on community surveys and increased parent
involvement.

75% of parents demonstrate a high satisfaction with the school's
program based upon community surveys.

METHODS OF
MEASUREMENT

Surveys.

Meeting minutes.
Meeting sign in sheets.
Photos of assemblies.

SuBPRIORITY B — PROMOTING PARENT PARTICIPATION

GOAL TO ACHIEVE

g - e . ib sed.
C— Opportunities for parent participation will be visibly advertised
e Promote school advisory committee meetings on the school
ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE n . .
GoaL website, Parent Square, social media, teacher newsletters, and
Assembly announcements.
e Percentage of parents involved in advisory committees will
MEASURABLE increase.
OUTCOME e Percentage of parents of unduplicated students involved in
advisory committees (PTO, ELAC, SSC) will increase.
e Audit of school website.
METHODS OF e Parent Square notifications.
MEASUREMENT o Teacher newsletters.
e Assembly agendas.
SUBPRIORITY C — FAMILY ENGAGEMENT
GOAL TO ACHIEVE e Parenis regularly participate in programs for unduplicated pupils,
SUBPRIORITY classroom conferences and school wide activities.

e Parents of students eligible for unduplicated pupil programs will be
notified of their eligibility and their opportunities to participate in
the decision making process.

ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE . . - o
GoaL e Families will be notified of volunteer opportunities and school
activities.

¢ Promote school events and activities on Parent Square, school

website, social media, and in teacher newsletters.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 48




Rate of parents/guardians of SWD participating in IEP meetings.
75% of parents complete community survey.
Increased number of families participating in volunteer activities.

MEASURABLE
OUTCOME

IEP Meeting attendance records.
PTO records of volunteers.

METHODS OF Surveys,

MEASUREMENT Meeting minutes.

Meeting sign in sheets.

Family Engagement day sign in sheets.

STATE PRIORITY #4— STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT

Pupil achievement, as measured by all of the following, as applicable:

A. California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CA4ASPP) statewide
assessment

Percentage of pupils who have successfully completed courses that satisfy UC/CSU
entrance requirements, or career technical education

B

!

Percentage of ELs who make progress toward English language proficiency as

measured by the English Language Proficiency Assessment for California (ELPAC)
D. EL reclassification rate
E

._Percentage of pupils who have passed an AP exam with a score of 3 or higher

E__Percentage of pupils who participate in and demonstrate college preparedness pursuant
to the Early Assessment Program (E.C. §99300 et seq.) or any subsequent assessment
of college preparedness

SuseriORITY A — CAASPP

e Students in 3-6 grades will participate in all annual CAASPP
assessments.

GoaL TO ACHIEVE | ® Students in 3-6 grades will increase progress towards meeting and
SUBPRIORITY exceeding standards on each CAASPP assessment.

e Students in grades TK-6 will participate in NWEA MAP Growth
benchmark assessments 3 times each year.

o Students will use CCSS aligned instructional materials.

e Students will receive instruction and intervention supports aligned
to the CCSS.

e Teachers will have Professional Learning Opportunities in
CAASPP preparation including interim assessments.

e Students will participate in CAASPP practice and interim
assessments.

ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE
GoAL

e Students will participate in NWEA benchmark assessments.
¢ MTSS interventions.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 49



® 95% or more of students in grades 3-6 will participate in CAASPP
MEASURABLE assessments.
OUTCOME e Dashboard distance from standard (DFS) will positively improve
for all students and all significant subgroups from year to year.
METHODS OF CAASPP ELA and math interim and summative assessments.
MEASUREMENT NWEA benchmark assessments.

SuspPRIORITY B — UC/CSU Courst REQUIREMENTS (OR CTE) - NOT APPLICABLE

SuePrIORITY C — EL PROFICIENCY RATES

GoaL 1o ACHHEVE | ® English Learners will demonstrate progress towards English
SUBPRIORITY proficiency as measured on the ELPAC.

e Teachers will receive training in interim and summative ELPAC
assessments.

o Teachers will design lessons and activities that include designated

ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE . ; .
GOAL and integrated EL.D instruction.

e Students will have opportunities to learn and practice English in
meaningful ways that are collaborative, interpretive, and
productive.

MEASURABLE e FELs making progress towards English proficiency will increase
OUTCOME 10% annually as measured by the ELPAC.
METHODS OF e ELPAC interim and summative assessment data.
MEASUREMENT e Reclassification forms and materials data.

SuePRIORITY D — EL: RECLASSIFICATION RATES

GOAL TO ACHIEVE

e o English Learner reclassification rates will increase annually.
e Teachers will receive training in interim and summative ELPAC
assessments.
o Teachers will receive training in designated and integrated ELD
instruction.
ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE i . — i .
GOAL e Teachers will design lessons and activities that include designated
and integrated ELD instruction.
¢ Students will have opportunities to learn and practice English in
meaningful ways that are collaborative, interpretive, and
productive.
MEASURABLE e The number of Reclassified EL students will increase as measured
OuTCOME by reclassification criteria.
METHODS OF e FLPAC summative assessments.
MEASUREMENT ¢ Reclassification forms and materials data.
e ELPAC proficiency data.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 50




SuBPRIORITY E — AP EXAM PASSAGE RATE - NOT APPLICABLE

SUBPRIORITY F — COLLEGE PREPAREDNESS/EAP - NOT APPLICABLE

STATE PRIORITY #5— STIUDENT ENGAGEMENT

Pupil engagement, as measured by all of the following, as applicable:
A. School attendance rates

B. Chronic absenteeism rates
C. Middle school dropout rates
D. High school dropout rates

E. High school graduation rates

SUBPRIORITY A — STUDENT ATTENDANCE RATES

GoAL TO ACHIEYE

3 e Students will regularly and consistently attend school,
SUBPRIORITY
e Maintain Student Support Center to serve as a location for students
to receive social-emotional or physical services, including
counseling.
e Educate students and parents about the importance of school
A attendance and truancy.
ACTIONZ{)(;L CHIEVE | o  Office Coordinator will monitor student attendance on a weekly
basis.
e Parents/guardians will be notified daily via phone or print of
absences.
e Parents/guardians of students who are truant will be sent letters and
requests for meetings to look for solutions to address truancy.
MEASURABLE . .
. e 05% of students will attend school consistently and regularly.
OvTCcoME
e Student Support Center participation records.

METHODBS OF
MEASUREMENT

Notifications and Agendas for parent education events.
Student attendance records from Aeries.

SUBPRIORITY B — STUDENT ABSENTEEISM RATES

GoaL 1o AcHIEVE | ® Student engagement in school activities will increase and chronic
SUBPRIORITY absenteeism will decrease.

e Maintain School Attendance Review Team to look at ways to

engage each student and address barriers that lead to decreased
ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE absenteeism.
GoaL e Educate students and parents about the importance of school

attendance and chronic absenteeism.

.

Implementation of Positive Behavioral Intervention and Supports.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 51




MEASURABLE
OUTCOME

e Chronic absenteeism will decrease annually.

METHODS OF
MEASUREMENT

SART meeting notes.

Written notices provided to parents and guardians.
PBIS Team agenda and notes.

Student attendance records from Aeries.

SuBPRIORITY C — MIDDLE ScHOOL DROPOUT RATES - NOT APPLICABLE

SupprIORITY D — Hicu ScHooL DrorouT RATES - NOT APPLICABLE

SusprIORITY E — HiGH ScHOOL GRADUATION RATES ~ NOT APPLICABLE

STATE PRIORITY #6— SCcHOOL CLIMATE

School climate, as measured by all of the following, as applicable:
A. Pupil suspension rafes
B. _Pupil expulsion rates
C._Other local measures, including surveys of pupils, parents, and teachers on the sense of
safety and school connectedness

SUBPRIORITY A — PUPIL SUSPENSION RATES

GoAL TO ACHIEVE

e REALMS will consider alternative means of correction before
suspending students. The exception will be violations to education

SUBPRIORITY .
code that mandate suspension.
e Train teachers and support staff in systematic supervision and
Crisis Prevention and Intervention (CPI).
Train administrators in restorative justice practices.
ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE Utilize counseling and alternative corrections.
GoaL Inform and engage parents in correcting and changing students’
behaviors.
e Implement PBIS lessons and strategies that teach expected student
behaviors.
MEASURABLE . .
e Suspension rate will be below 5%.
OutrcomE
METHODS OF N . .. . .
) e Student discipline records are in Aeries,
MEASUREMENT

SuBPRIORITY B — PuriL. EXPULSION RATES

GOAL TO ACHIEVE
SUBPRIORITY

e REALMS will use alternative means of correction before expelling
students. The exception will be violations to education code that
mandate recommendation for expulsion.

ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE
GoaL

¢ Train teachers and support staff in systematic supervision and
Crisis Prevention and Intervention (CPI).

e Train administrators in restorative justice practices.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 32




e Utilize counseling and alternative corrections.
e Inform and engage parents in correcting and changing students’
behaviors.
o Implement PBIS lessons and strategies that teach expected student
behaviors.
MEASURABLE . .
e Expulsion rate will be below .5%.
OurcoME
METHODS OF . et .
¢ Student discipline records are maintained in Aeries.
MEASUREMENT

SUBPRIORITY C — OTHER SCHOOL SAFETY AND SCHOOL CONNECTEDNESS MEASURES (SURVEYS)

GOAL TO ACHIEVE
SUBPRIORITY

Students and parents will actively voice their thoughts on, and
relay a positive sense of, school safety and connectedness.

ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE
GOAL

School activities and volunteer opportunities will be
communicated to families.

Families will be invited to participate in advisory meetings (school
site council, English Language Advisory Council, Parent Teacher
Organization) to share their thoughts on school safety and
connectedness.

Facilities will be clean and safe.

Students are engaged in leaming and extracurricular activities.
Students receive academic supports and enrichment to meet
learning needs.

MEASURABLE
OUTCOME

At least 75% of students in grades 4-6 and all parents will
communicate satisfaction with the school’s program.

METHODS OF
MEASUREMENT

Parent/guardian, community and student surveys.
Advisory meeting notes.

Facilities Inspection Tool results.

Student attendance records from Aeries.

STATE PRIiORITY #7— COURSE ACCESS

The extent to which pupils have access to, and are enrolled in, a broad course of study,
including programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated students (classified
as EL, FRPM-eligible, or foster youth; E.C. § 42238.02) and students with exceptional needs.

“Broad course of study " includes the following, as applicable:
Grades 1-6: English, mathematics, social sciences, science, visual and performing aris, health,
physical education, and other as prescribed by the governing board. (E.C. § 51210)

GOAL TO ACHIEVE
SUBPRIORITY

All students will be enrolled in English-Language Arts,
mathematics, social science, science, music, foreign language, and
physical education courses.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 53




¢ All students will be enrolled in all education courses upon
ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE enrollment.
GoAL e Unduplicated students will have programs and services provided in
addition to the broad course of study for all students.
e 100% of students will be enrolled in English-Language Arts.
mathematics, social science, science, music, foreign language. and
IMEASURABLE physical education courses.

OUTCOME e 100% of Unduplicated students are enrolled and have access to
programs and services specifically developed and provided for
them.

SLEIGUS OF e Student records in Aeries for all student groups.

MEASUREMENT

STATE PrIORITY #8—OTHER STUDENT OUTCOMES

Pupil outcomes, if available, in the subject areas described above in #7, as applicable.

SUBPRIORITY A - ENGLISH

GoaL To AcHieve. | @  All student groups will show improved scores on the NWEA ELA
SUBPRIORITY assessments given each year.
ACTIONS T0 ACHIEVE | ® All students will be given the NWEA ELA assessment 3 times per
GoaL year.
e All student groups, including unduplicated students, will show
MEASURABLE . .
improved NWEA results as measured from the beginning
OUTCOME
assessment compared to the end of year assessment.
METHODS OF o NWEA benchmark assessments.
MEASUREMENT e Student records in student information system (Aeries).
SuUBPRIORITY B — MATHEMATICS
GoaL To ACHIEVE | ® Al student groups will show improved scores on the NWEA math
SUBPRIORITY assessments given each year.
ACTIONs TO ACHIEVE | ® All students will be given the NWEA math assessment 3 times per
GoaL yeat,
. s All student groups, including unduplicated students, will show
MEASURABLE . .
OUTCOME improved NWEA results as measured from the beginning
‘ assessment compared to the end of year assessment.
METHODS OF o NWEA benchmark assessments.
MEASUREMENT ¢ Student records in student information system (Aeries).
ScBPRIORITY C — SOCIAL SCIENCES
GOAL TO ACHIEVE : - . .
e All students will be enrolled in Social Studies.

SUBPRIORITY

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 54




ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE
GoaL

o All students will be enrolled in Social Studies upon enrollment.

MEASURABLE
OUTCOME

o 100% of students will be enrolled in social studies.

METHODS OF
MEASUREMENT

e Student records in Aeries.

SUBPRIORITY D) — SCIENCE

GOAL TO ACHIEVE
SUBPRIORITY

o All students will be enrolled in science.

ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE

e All students will be enrolled in science upon enrollment.

MEASUREMENT

GoaL
MEASURABLE e 100% of students will be enrolled in science.
OUTCOME e 95% of 5th grade students will participate in the California Science
' Test (CAST).
METHODS OF ¢ Student records in student information system (Aeries).

e California Science Test (CAST).

SUBPRIORITY E — VISUAL AND PERFORMING ARTS

GOAL TO ACHIEVE
SUBPRIORITY

e All students will be enrolled in music.

ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE

o All students will be enrolled in music upon enroliment.

GoaL
MEASURABLE . . )
o 100% of students will be enrolled in music.
OUTCOME
METHODS OF . )
o Student records in Aeries.
MEASUREMENT

SuerRIORITY F — PuysiCAL EDUCATION

GOAL TO ACHIEVE
SUBPRIORITY

o All students will be enrolled in physical education.

ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE

o All students will be enrolled in physical education upon

GoaL enrollment.
MEASURABLE e 100% of students will be enrolled in physical education.
Ol'T(F‘OME ® 100% will participate in and 75% of 5th grade students will meet

guidelines for passing the California Physical Fitness Test.

METHODS OF
MEASUREMENT

e Student records in Aeries.

e School Accountability Report Card reports the results of the CA
PFT.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-203¢ 55




Each of these goals addresses the unique needs of all students attending the Charter School,
including our numerically significant student subgroups. The metrics associated with these goals
help the Charter School to ensure that these specific subgroups are making satisfactory progress,
and are provided with necessary additional supports made possible by additional funds from the
Local Control Funding Formula.

The Charter School shall create and annually update and develop the LCAP (attached as
Appendix 17) in accordance with Education Code Section 47606.5 and shall use the LCAP
template adopted by the Authorizer. The Charter School reserves the right to establish additional
and/or amend school-specific goals and corresponding assessments throughout the duration of
the charter through the annual LCAP update. The Charter School shall submit the LCAP to the
Authorizer annually on or before July 1, as required by Education Code Section 47604.33.

The LCAP and any revisions necessary to implement the LCAP shall not be considered a
material tevision to the charter, and shall be maintained by the Charter School at the school site.

Methods of Measurement

The table below lists the various assessments administered at the Charter School to measure
student outcomes.

Assessments Applicable Grade Levels | Frequency/Timing of
Assessments

CAASPP Interim 3-6 Multiple times throughout the

Assessments year.

CAASPP — ELA 3-6 Once per year/Spring

CAASPP — Math 3-6 Once per year/Spring

CAST - Science 5 Once per year/Spring

Initial ELPAC TK-6 Initial identification of students

whose primary language is a
language other than English

Interim ELPAC Multiple times throughout the
year.

Summative ELPAC K-6 Annual/ Winter-Spring

NWEA MAP Growth TK-6 3 times annually/ Fall, Winter,

Assessments Spring

To the extent practicable, the method for measuring pupil outcomes for state priorities shall be
consistent with the way information is reported on a school accountability report card. Pupil
outcomes for the 8 state priorities are measured through formative and summative assessments.
NWEA’s MAP growth assessment is REALMS’ benchmark assessment. Benchmark assessments
are a summative measure of grade level standards based instruction, interventions, and
enrichments. Benchmark assessments will provide a global perspective and measure of the
effectiveness of MTSS and needed adjustments to meet students’ learning needs. CAASPP
interim assessments are also administered numerous times each year to help teachers target

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 56



instructional goals with their students. Students in all grades participate in the MAP assessments
at the end of each trimester and within the nationally normed testing windows. CAASPP and
ELPAC assessments, student and parent surveys. parent participation, maintenance of facilities
reports, hiring and retaining credentialed staff reports, and student attendance monitoring reports
are used to collect, analyze, and report REALMS" information regarding the 8 state priorities.

Collecting. Analyzing, and Reporting Data

REALMS collects and analyzes student achievement data regularly and provides student
achievement data to staff, parents and guardians, and the authorizer:

e Staff will receive data on student achievement during PLC meetings or Professional
Learning Opportunity days to help monitor and improve REALM’s education program
through identifying student needs. adjusting instruction, planning assessments;

e Parents and guardians will receive students’ data reports during parent teacher
conferences and scheduled meetings; and

e The Authorizer will receive data on student achievement through school reports and/or
presentations upon request.

REALMS uses the MAP Growth assessment from the Northwest Evaluation Association
(NWEA) and California Interim Assessments to assist with identifying students’ areas of
strength and need. The California Physical Fitness Test will be administered, and results data is
used to inform the content of the PE program. Prior to the start of school, staff meets for up to
one full week to analyze data, review cumulative files, receive professional training, and
collaborate to discuss students’ needs.

REALMS uses multiple formative and summative assessments to guide instruction. These
assessments provide additional data between benchmark assessments and CAASPP assessments
about student’s progress towards reaching the state standards.

The NWEA platform will allow REALMS to analyze students’ assessments by grade level,
classroom, gender, and ethnicity. REALMS will also use the Kern Integrated Data System
(KIDS) to disaggregate students’ assessments of our choosing. Since we plan on using KIDS and
the platform is customizable as to which assessments we choose to measure, students can be
analyzed based on ethnicity, English learner, and special education.

Use of Data

Students” growth and progress towards meeting State Standards is the core of Ridgecrest
Elementary Academy for Language, Music. and Science. REALMS holds itself accountable for
student progress. Staff are accountable to Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music,
and Science for student performance improvement. In addition to CAASPP assessments,
REALMS utilizes MAP Growth assessments, internal curriculum, skills-based formative and
summative assessments to monitor student growth and progress towards meeting State
Standards. Teachers are trained and provided resources on how to assess learning and analyze
results to improve teaching strategies and student achievement.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 57



Parent Survey

Each year Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music. and Science surveys parents
and community members on a variety of indicators of parent satisfaction, staff relationships, and
student progress. Results of the survey may be published on the Charter School website or on
Parent Square.

Reportin ademic Progre

Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music. and Science shall meet all the applicable
reporting and inspection/site visit requirements under Education Code Sections 47604.33 and
47607 and the memorandum of understanding (“MOU™) with its Authorizer which currently
requires ongoing academic reports and shall promptly respond to all rcasonable inquiries in
accordance with Education Code Section 47604.3.

Parents/guardians will receive report cards three times each year, one at the end of each trimester.
Progress reports will be sent home half way through each trimester. Parents/guardians have
access to Aeries, our online grade reporting system through Aeries Parent Portal.

In addition to the reports to the Authorizer required under the MOU and applicable law,
Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music. and Science shall publish a School
Accountability Report Card (“SARCT) each year as required by law.

The SARC shall be transmitted in writing to the Authorizer and the California Department of

Education. Copies of the SARC will be made available to each family in the Charter School and
shall be posted on the school’s main webpage.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 58



ELEMENT FOUR
GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Governing Law: The governance structure of the charter school, including, but not limited to, the
process to be followed by the charter school to ensure parental involvement. Education Code
Section 47605(c)(3)(D).

Legal

Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language. Music, and Science is a directly funded
independent public charter school, operated by a California non-profit public benefit corporation,
Ridgecrest Charter School, pursuant to California law and within the terms and conditions
specified in this petition.

The Charter School will comply with all federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and
ordinances that are applicable to California charier schools, including those related to zoning,
occupancy, construction, health, and safety. The Charter School will secure general liability
insurance, workers compensation. and unemployment insurance.

The Charter School will operate autonomously from the Authorizer, with the exception of the
supervisory oversight as required by statute and other contracted services as may be negotiated
between the Authorizer and the Charter School. In accordance with Education Code Section
47604(d), an authority that grants a charter to a charter school to be operated by a non-profit
public benefit corporation is not liable for the debts or obligations of the charter school. or for
claims arising from the performance of acts, errors, or omissions by the charter school, if the
Authorizer has complied with all oversight responsibilities required by law.

(Attached as Appendix 8 areThe Corporate Bylaws of the Charter School. attached as Appendix
9 are The Articles of Incorporation of Ridgecrest Charter School, and attached as Appendix 10 is
the Conflict of Interest Code.)

Board of Trustees

Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music, and Science will be governed by the
Ridgecrest Charter School Board of Trustees (“Charter Board™). understanding that Ridgecrest
Elementary Academy for Language, Music, and Science is part of a California nonprofit public
benefit corporation and has a legal fiduciary responsibility for the well-being of the Charter
School. As such, and with particular reference to the Education Employment Relations Act, the
exclusive public school employer of the employees of Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for
Language, Music, and Science will set the terms and working conditions for all employees and
will do so consistent with state and federal law.

The Charter Board shall have no less than five (5) and no more than seven (7) board members.
Per Education Code Section 47604(c), the Authorizer may designate a representative to the
Board of Ridgecrest Charter School. The corporation will strive to compose a Board that
includes a city community member, a member appointed by staff election, and three school

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 59



community members (including the parent or guardian of currently enrolled students). All Board
members (not including the member appointed by the Authorizer) shall be subject to an election
process as outlined in the corporate bylaws, section 11.C.1.

Board members hold two year terms which are staggered to ensure continuity on the Board. Two
(or three if 7 members) terms will end on June 30 of the even calendar years and two (or three if
7 members) terms will end on June 30 of the odd calendar years. No Trustee may serve for more
than three consecutive full-length terms of services (partial terms are not included).

Board Meetings and Duties

The Board of Trustees of the Charter School will meet regularly and in accordance with the
Brown Act and Education Code Section 47604.1(c). The Charter Board will be responsible for
the operation and fiscal affairs of the Charter School including. but not limited to, the following:

approval of the general policies of the Charter School;

reviewing employment, discipline, and release of Charter School employees;

approval and monitoring of the Charter School's budget;

receipt of funds for the operation of the Charter School in accordance with the Charter

and applicable law;

e solicitation and receipt of grants and donations consistent with the mission of the Charter
School;

e reviewing the Charter School's personnel policies and receiving from the Superintendent
reports refative to their implementation, such policies to be consistent with any applicable
laws;

e fulfilling all other responsibilities provided for in the California Corporations Code, the
Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, or this charter necessary to ensure the proper operation
of the Charter School is being carried out;

e reviewing monthly operations reports from the Superintendent and annual independent
audit reports:

e hiring and evaluation of the Superintendent;

e hold at least one public hearing to solicit recommendations and comments of members of

the public regarding specific actions and expenditures proposed to be included in the

LCAP or its annual update.

It is understood that the Authorizer shall have the right of access to all Charter School records to
carry out its oversight responsibilities, and that the records of the Charter School are subject to
the California Public Records Act. The Charter School shall comply with the Brown Act and
Education Code Section 47604.1. and Board members shall receive annual training on the Ralph
M. Brown Act.

The Charter School has adopted a Conflict of Interest Code that complies with the Political
Reform Act. Government Code Section 1090, et seq., as set forth in Education Code Section
47604.1, and Corporations Code conflict of interest rules, which shall be updated with any
charter school-specific conflict of interest laws or regulations. {The Conflict of Interest Code is

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 60



attached as Appendix 10.) As required, the Conflict of Interest Code has been made available to
the County Board of Supervisors for approval.

The Board may execute any powers delegated by law to it and shall discharge any duty imposed
by law upon it and may delegate to an employee of the Charter School any of those duties with
the exception of budget approval or revision, approval of the fiscal audit and performance report,
and the adoption of Board policies. The Board, however, retains ultimate responsibility over the
performance of those powers or duties so delegated. Such delegation will:

° Be in writing;

e  Specify the entity designated:

e  Describe in specific terms the authority of the Board of Directors being delegated,
any conditions on the delegated authority or its exercise and the beginning and
ending dates of the delegation; and

e  Require an affirmative vote of a majority of Board members.

Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music. and Science will act as its own fiscal
agent to the fullest extent of the law. Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music, and
Science will see to it that all provisions of charter school legislation will be followed. Ridgecrest
Elementary Academy for Language. Music, and Science will monitor the budget monthly.
Ridgecrest Elementary Academy School for Language, Music, and Science contracts with the
Kern County Office of Education for a fiscal analyst and back office service providers to ensure
best accountable business practices.

The Charter School Board of Trustees will attend an annual in-service for the purposes of
training individual board members on their responsibilities with topics to include, at minimum,
ethics. conflicts of interest and the Brown Act.

Superintendent

The Superintendent will be the leader of the Charter School. and shall also have the
responsibility of organizing, reorganizing, and arranging any of the educational, administrative,
management, and support staff, which in their judgment best serves the Charter School, subject
to the authority and approval of the Board of Trustees. See Element Five below for more details
regarding the responsibilities of the Superintendent.

Parent and Community Involvement

School Site Council

REALMS encourages all groups to participate in and share responsibility for the educational
process and educational results. [n order to achieve this important end, the Charter School shares
local control with the School Site Council (*SSC™), consisting of parents and Charter School
representatives. The SSC participates in developing school policies and efforts to engage the
support of the community. The SSC may make recommendations about issues related to the
Charter School and participate in reviewing parental and community concerns. The SSC consists

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 61



of representatives of the following parties: administrators, teachers, parents and community
members. The administrator is responsible for communicating all SSC policy recommendations
to the Board of Trustees.

Parent Involvement

One goal of the Charter School is empowering parents as educational partners. Parents know
their voice and participation at the Charter School influences the development of the whole
school and its components. Parents have opportunities to participate in a variety of meaningful
ways at the school site and their presence on campus and assisting teachers in the classroom is
most important.

REALMS will have a standing Parent Teacher Organization (“PTO”) serving in an advisory
capacity to the Board and is open to all parents and staff. The PTO supports the educational
program through family events and fundraising for school enrichment activities. The PTO has
opportunities to review and provide input on curriculum, facilities, safety, grants, technology. and
community relations. The Charter School encourages active parent participation through
attendance at conferences, Student Study Team meetings, school meetings such as LCAP,
budget, and safety plan updates, monthly family engagement events, and volunteering.
Additionally, the Charter School will present a mid-year overview of the LCAP and Local
Control Funding Formula budget, per the requirements of Education Code Section 47606.5(¢).

Parents are encouraged to volunteer at the Charter School. While the Charter School may
encourage parental involvement, it will notify the parents and guardians of applicant pupils and
currently enrolled pupils that parental involvement is not a requirement for acceptance to, or
continued enrollment at, the Charter School. Volunteer opportunities include campus
beautification events, assisting in the classroom, assisting with a school event, or attending a
school meeting. REALMS will communicate with parents through Parent Square, REALMS’
website, social media, e-mail, and phone calls.

The PTO, with support from Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music, and
Science, ensures notice is given to the parents of the following:

e special classtoom and school-wide events to be held during the year:
e the process for time and labor donations to the Charter School; and
e the process for “phone tree/e-mail communication™ for all classrooms.

Additional Opportunities for Parent Involvement

e Parents, students and teachers meet at least three times a year to plan and assess the
students’ learning progress and determine goals.

e School and staff evaluations — parents complete an annual survey evaluating school and
staff strengths and areas of need.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 62



e Parents may have access to student academic and behavior progress through a student
information system such as Aeries.

e Volunteer Opportunities — various opportunities will arise for parents to volunteer, such
as helping in classrooms, leading extra-curricular activities, assisting in event planning,
attending study trips, and serving on parent committees.

e Fundraising — parents and community members may work with the Charter School to
raise additional resources to support students and the Charter School program.

e Advocacy — parents and community members communicate the Charter School design
and outcomes to the public, educators and policy makers and advocate for necessary
policies and resources.

e Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music, and Science Board of Trustees
meetings — parents and community members are welcome to the Board meetings. In
compliance with the Brown Act, REALMS posts the agenda for Regular Board of
Trustees meetings at least 72 hours prior to the meeting, giving parents and community
members notice of the meeting.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 63



ELEMENT FIVE
EMPLOYEE QUALIFICATIONS

Governing Law: The qualifications to be met by individuals to be employed by the charter
school Education Code Section 476053(c)(3)(E).

Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language. Music, and Science will recruit professional,
effective, and qualified personnel to serve in administrative, instructional, instructional support,
and non-instructional support capacities. REALMS believes all of its employees create a
successful learning environment and will recruit qualified employees throughout the
organization. REALMS recognizes employment is voluntary, and the REALMS Board shall not
require any employee to be employed at REALMS. The Charter School will conduct background
checks on employee candidates as outlined in Element Six, to provide for the health and safety of
the Charter School’s faculty. staff, and pupils and the academic success of the pupils. REALMS’
Human Resources department, along with the Superintendent, shall monitor compliance with this
policy. Employees will meet specific qualifications for employment as outlined in their job
descriptions. Teachers will meet all requirements for employment set forth in applicable
provisions of law, including credential requirements outlined in Education Code Section
47605(1).

Selection and appointment of Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music, and
Science’s staff members shall be the exclusive prerogative of Ridgecrest Elementary Academy
for Language, Music, and Science. Persons who work at the Charter School shall be selected,
employed, and released by the Charter School which will exclusively set the terms and
conditions of employment.

Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music. and Science does not discriminate
against any applicant on the basis of protected classes, as described in more detail in Element
Six. The Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music, and Science Board is involved
in the selection process for the Superintendent.

Superintendent

Subject to the approval of the Charter School Board, the Superintendent shall also have the
responsibility of organizing, reorganizing, and arranging any of the educational, administrative,
management, and support staff, which in their judgment best serves the Charter School.

The Superintendent shall personally or by direction: (a) review all policies adopted by the
Charter School Board and make appropriate recommendations to the Board; (b) pericdically
evaluate employees as provided for by California law and Board pelicy; (¢) advise the Board of
sources of educational programs, student services, special education services and funds which
are available to implement present or contemplated Charter School programs; (d) represent the
Charter School at community functions; (e) advocate for the Charter School; (f} lead
Professional Learning Opportunities sessions for teachers and support staff; (g) supervise and
evaluate administrators; (h) oversee and support preparation and reviews of state and federal
reports; (i) advise the Board about all Charter School matters; and (j) hire Charter School staff.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 64



The Superintendent shall supervise and provide oversight throughout the term of their contract
for all duties within this position description, even while the Board recognizes that an
appropriate amount and type of work shall be delegated to other positions by the Superintendent.

The Superintendent shall meet all qualifications established by the Board, including, but not
limited to, the following:

Education and Experience:

o M.A./M.S. Degree
California Administrative Services Credential, preferred
California Multiple Subject Teaching Credential, preferred
5 plus years teaching and/or administrative experience

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:

Excellent communication and community-building skills

Deep knowledge of curriculum development and program design
A record of success in developing teachers

Knowledge of school finance and operations

Entrepreneurial passion

Knowledge of data analysis and application

Assistant Superintendent of Instruction

The assistant Superintendent (hired as enrollment and budget allows) shall personally or by
direction (a) track. evaluate, and support the academic program; (b) repott. analyze and develop
action plans for continuous improvement; (c) provide instructional support to staff; (d) manage
the Professional Learning Opportunities calendar; (e} lead Professional Learning Opportunities
sessions for teachers and support staff; (f) review all special education and Section 504 policies
adopted by the Charter School Board and make appropriate recommendations to the
Superintendent to keep policies current; (g} advise the Superintendent of sources of educational
programs, student services, special education services and funds which are available: (h) support
students programs and discipline; (i) act as Director for special education and Section 504
students; and (j) represent the Charter School in the community. The Assistant Superintendent
of Instruction shall meet the following minimum qualifications:

Education and Experience:

¢ MA./M.S. Degree
California Administrative Services Credential, preferred
California Multiple Subject Teaching Credential, preferred
California Special Education Teaching Credential, preferred
Experience teaching students with special needs
Experience in data analysis and application to instructional practice

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
e Excellent communication and community-building skills
e Curriculum development and program design
e A record of collaboration with teachers, administrators, parents, and community members

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 65



Entrepreneurial passion

Knowledge of leadership theories and practices

Knowledge of Professional Learning Communities

Knowledge of best instructional practices and systems change

Knowledge of special education laws and laws regarding Section 504 plans
Abiljty to develop academic programs and schedules

Principal

The Principal (hired as enrollment and budget allows) shall personally or by direction (a) review
all policies adapted by the Charter School Board and make appropriate recommendations to the
Superintendent to keep policies current: (b) periodically evaluate employees as provided for by
Board policy or Employment Handbook; (c) advise the Superintendent of sources of educational
programs, student services, special education services and funds which are available to
implement present or contemplated Charter School programs; (d) support students programs and
discipline; () represent the Charter School in the community; (f) lead Professional Learning
Opportunities sessions for teachers and support staff; (g) supervise teachers and support staff; (h)
advise the Superintendent about all Charter School matters; (i} hire school staff; (j) plan master
schedule; (k) develop student discipline policies and supervise student discipline; (1} work
closely with parents and community members: and (m} work with the Superintendent and
assistant Superintendent on improving student academic performance. The Principal shall meet
the following minimum qualifications:

Education and Experience:
o M.A/M.S. degree
e California Administrative Services Credential. preferred
e California Multiple Subject Teaching Credential, preferred
California Special Education Teaching Credential, preferred
» Experience teaching students with special needs
o 5 plus years teaching and/or school leadership experience
Experience in data analysis and application

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:

Excellent communication and community-building skills

Knowledge of curriculum development and program design

A record of collaboration with teachers, administrators, parents, and community members
Entrepreneurial passion

Knowledge of Leadership theories and practices

Knowledge of Professional Learning Communities and interventions

Knowledge of Best instructional practices and systems change

The Principal should possess leadership abilities and a comprehensive educational vision that is
consistent with the Charter School’s mission and educational program.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 06



Fiscal Analvst

Under the administrative direction of the Superintendent. the fiscal analyst has overall
responsibility for financial and asset management functions; plans, organizes, directs and
administers all financial and business operations of the Charter School. The fiscal analyst serves
as principal advisor to the Superintendent regarding fiscal policy development and for short- and
long-range financial and facility planning. The fiscal analyst shall meet all qualifications
established by the Board, including but not limited to the following:

Education and Experience:
e Graduation from four-year college or university, with a major in business, accounting,
finance, economics, public or business administration (preferred)
o Year-for-year qualifying experience as a Fiscal Officer or Business Officer may be
substituted for up to two years of college requirement (preferred)
e A minimum of five years of increasingly responsible experience in business and financial
management, preferably in public finance
e Proficiency with Microsoft Office and accounting software
Experience in supervising employees
e Experience in human resources management (preferred)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
e Theory and practice of fiscal and school business management
o Governmental finance, budgeting. accounting, payroll. auditing, procurement. risk
management, contract administration, and debt issuance and management
e Technology including selection, implementation and management of administrative and
business technology systems
Ability to successfully manage multiple projects and meet deadlines
Strong interpersonal and communication skills
Ability to work independently as well as with a team
Ability to monitor daily enrollment

The fiscal analyst shall have the responsibility of directing, coordinating and organizing facilities
and business operation services, which in their judgment best serves the Charter School. The
fiscal analyst shall also personally or by direction review all facilities and business operation
services and policies adopted by the Charter School Board and make appropriate
recommendations to the Board.

Teachers

Criteria for the selection of teachers are adapted from the California Standards for the Teaching
Profession. During the hiring process, candidates are evaluated using these standards:

Engaging and supporting all students in learning

Creating and maintaining effective environments for learning
Understanding and organizing subject matter for student learning
Planning instruction and designing learning experiences for all students

albalh S

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 67



5. Assessing students for learning
6. Developing as a professional educator

Teachers will be required to hold the Commission on Teacher Credentialing certificate, permit,
or other document required for the teacher’s certificated assignment, pursuant to Education
Code Sections 47605(1) and 47605.4(a).* The Charter School may use local assignment options
authorized in statute and regulations for the purpose of legally assigning certificated teachers, in
the same manner as a governing board of a school district.

As required under Education Code Section 48000(g)(4). and subject to any future amendments,
al] teachers who are first assigned to a transitional kindergarten classroom after July 1, 2025,
must possess at least one of the following:
® At least 24 units in early childhood education, or childhood development, or both.
. As determined by the Charter School, professional experience in a classroom
setting with preschool age children that is comparable to 24 units of early
childhood education, or childhood development.
® A child development teacher permit, or an early childhood education specialist
credential, issued by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing.

Specific qualifications include:

e Dedication to putting in time, energy, and cffort in developing the Charter School’s
program;

e Commitment to working with parents as educational pattners;

Willingness to become a learner as well as teacher/coach in the Charter School:

e Knowledge or willingness to become knowledgeable about the developmental needs of
the Charter School students;

e Sensitivity to social as well as academic needs of the students;

¢ Willingness and ability to plan cooperatively with other teachers;

e Willingness to be trained in the use of different curriculums and learning styles in the
classroom;

e Willingness fo be an active participant in staff meetings:

e Willingness to work closely with the Student Study Team Coordinator by providing any
information regarding a student's behavior change, attitude, and/or classroom
performance;

o Willingness to take a leadership role in some aspect of the Charter School’s development;
and

e A strong knowledge of their personal strengths and weaknesses, and a willingness to
continue education through additional courses and training, workshops, seminars, and
staff development.

Other Staff

¢ These documents shall be maintained on file at the charter school and are subject to periodic inspection by the
chartering authority.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 68



All other staff members shall meet the basic criteria for employment as approved by the
Governing Board. All staff will understand. in dress and demeanor, that they are role models for
students. The best individuals are sought — understanding that those who desire to work in a
public charter school should display a love for learning and exhibit joy in their task. All staff
members, including teachers, will be interviewed by a panel put together by the Superintendent.

Instructional support staff, meeting all other legal prerequisites for employment (e.g. fingerprint
clearance and Tuberculosis Tisk assessment or testing, 1-9 verification, etc.), may be
non-certificated but will not. in accordance with the law, serve as the “teacher of record” who is
responsible for overseeing the student’s academic progress and who will monitor all grading and
matriculation decisions as specified in the Charter School’s operational policies.

Personnel Policies

Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music. and Science has developed personnel
policies published in the Employee Handbook, which is periodically reviewed by the Ridgecrest
Elementary Academy for Language, Music, and Science Board and the Charter School's legal
counsel for compliance with applicable laws. (Attached, as Appendix 11, please find the 2024-25
Employee Handbook.}

Evaluation Procedure

The Superintendent, Assistant Superintendent of Instruction, and/or Principal, shall observe and
evaluate staff using a performance appraisal framework and system. The purpose of the
performance appraisal system is to promote greater accountability and improvement in
professional practice that results in the continuous improvement of student achicvement. The
assessment will include, but need not be limited to:

e an analysis of student achievement based on student performance on standardized and
other specific assessments;

e observations by an administrator. in professional settings;

e accomplishment and growth consistent with core professional expectations as
documented by the teacher in a professional performance improvement program;

e aself-assessment based on adherence to the vision and mission of the Charter School:

e community presence and involvement including frequency of parent contact; and

e an analysis of parent and student surveys to be collected in the spring of the year.

After five consecutive satisfactory evaluations, teachers may opt for an alternative evaluation.
The alternative evaluation is a project based evaluation. The purpose of the alternative evaluation
is to allow deeper growth in content knowledge, instructional practices. and pedagogy.
(Attached, as Appendix 12, please find the 2024-25 Teacher Evaluation Form.)

The Superintendent will be evaluated by the Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language,
Music, and Science Board.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 69



ELEMENT SIX
PROCEDURES TO ENSURE HEALTH AND SAFETY OF
PUPILS AND STAFF

Governing Law: The procedures that the charter school will follow o ensure the health and
safety of pupils and staff. These procedures shall require all of the following:

(i) That each employee of the charter school furnish the charter school with a criminal record
summary as described in Section 44237

(ii) For all schools, the development of a school safety plan, which shall include the safety topics
listed in subparagraphs (4) to (K), inclusive, of paragraph (2) of subdivision (a) of Section
32282.

(iii) That the school safety plan be reviewed and updated by March 1 of every year by the charter
school. Education Code Section 47605(c)(3)}(F).

In order to provide safety for all students and staff. REALMS will continue to update, adopt and
implement full health and safety procedures and risk management policies at our school site in
consultation with its insurance carriers and risk management experts. Ridgecrest Elementary
Academy for Language. Music, and Science’s health and safety policies and procedures are
encapsulated in the 2024-25 Parent-Student Handbook, which is attached as Appendix 13, and
will be reviewed on an ongoing basis. REALMS shall ensure that staff are trained annually on
the health and safety policies.

The following is a summary of the health and safety policies of the Charter School:

Procedures for Background Checks

Employees and contractors of REALMS will be required to submit to a criminal background
check and furnish a criminal record summary as required by Education Code Sections 44237 and
45125.1. Applicants for employment must submit two sets of fingerprints to the California
Department of Justice for the purpose of obtaining a criminal record summary. The Charier
School shall not hire any person, in either a certificated or classified position, who has been
convicted of a violent or serious felony except as otherwise provided by law, pursuant to
Education Code Sections 44830.1 and 45122.1. The Superintendent of the Charter School shall
designate a staff member to monitor compliance with this policy and report to the Superintendent
so the Superintendent can repott to the Charter School Governing Board on a regular basis. The
Board President shall monitor the fingerprinting and background clearance of the
Superintendent. Volunteers who will volunteer outside of the direct supervision of a credentialed
employee shall be fingerprinted and receive background clearance prior to volunteering without
the direct supervision of a credentialed employee.

Role of Staff as Mandated Child Abuse Reporters

All employees are mandated child abuse reporters and will follow all applicable reporting laws,
the same policies and procedures used by the District. The Charter School shall provide

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 70



mandated reporter training to all employees annually in accordance with Education Code Section
44691.

erculosis (“TB”) Risk As ment Examination

Employees, and volunteers who have frequent or prolonged contact with students, will be
assessed and examined (if necessary) for tuberculosis prior to commencing employment or
working with students, and for employees at least once each four years thereafter, as required by
Education Code Section 49406.

Immunizations

All enrolled students who receive classroom-based instruction are required to provide records
documenting immunizations as is required at public schools pursuant to Health and Safety Code
Sections 120325-120375, and Title 17. California Code of Regulations Sections 6000-6075.

Upon a student’s admission or advancement to 6th grade, the Charter School shall submit to the
student and their parent or guardian a notification that advises students to adhere to current
immunization guidelines regarding human papillomavirus (“HPV™) before admission or
advancement to 8th grade, consistent with the requirements of Education Code Section 48980.4
and Health and Safety Code Section 120336.

Medication in School

The Charter School adheres to Education Code Section 49423 regarding administration of
medication in school. The Charter School will adhere to Education Code Section 49414
regarding epinephrine auto-injectors and training for staff members; per AB 1651 (2023), the
Charter School shall store emergency epinephrine auto-injectors in an accessible location upon
need for emergency use and include that location in annual notices required by law. To the
extent the Charter School maintains a stock of albuterol inhalers to respond to respiratory distress
in students, the Charter School shall comply with the requirements of Education Code Section
49414.7, including with respect to training, notices, and the stocking of albuterol inhalers.

isi Heari

Students are screened for vision and hearing. The Charter School adheres to Education Code
Section 49450 ef seq., as applicable to the grade levels served by the Charter School.

Diabetes

The Charter School shall make type ! diabetes informational materials accessible to the parent or
guardian of a pupil when the pupil is first enrolled in elementary school.

icide P nti lic

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 71



The Charter School shall maintain a policy on student suicide prevention in accordance with
Education Code Section 215. The Charter Schoo! shall review, at a minimum every fifth year, its
policy on pupil suicide prevention and, if necessary, update its policy. Pursuant to AB 58
(2021-22), the Charter School will also review and update its suicide prevention policy by
Japuary 1, 2025 to incorporate best practices identified by the California Department of
Education’s mode! policy, as revised.

Menstrual Products

The Charter School will stock the school’s restrooms at all times with an adequate supply of
menstrual products, available and accessible, free of cost, in all women’s restrooms and
all-gender restrooms, and in at least one men’s restroom. The Charter School shall post a notice
regarding the requirements of Education Code Section 35292.6 in a prominent and conspicuous
location in every restroom required to stock menstrual products, as specified. This notice shall
include the text of Education Cede Section 35292.6 and contact information, including an email
address and telephone number, for a designated individual responsible for maintaining the
requisite supply of menstrual products.

11 I troom

On or before July 1, 2026, the Charter School shall provide and maintain at least one all-gender
restroom for voluntary student use at each of its schoolsites that has more than one female
restroom and more than one male restroom designated exclusively for student use. The restroom
shall have signage identifying the bathroom as being open to all genders, it shall remain
unlocked, unobstructed, and easily accessible by any student, and be available during school
hours and school functions when students are present. The Charter School shall designate a staff
member to serve as a point of contact and to post a notice regarding these requirements.

T ti f Human Traffickin

The Charter School shall identity and implement the most appropriate methods of informing
parents and guardians of students in grade 6 of human trafficking prevention resources.

School Meals

The Charter School shall provide breakfast and lunch free of charge during cach school day to
any pupil who requests a meal without consideration of the pupil’s eligibility for a federally
funded free or reduced-price meal. with a maximum of one free meal for each meal service
period. The meals provided under this paragraph shall be nutritionally adequate meals that
qualify for federal reimbursement.

The Charter School shall provide each student adequate time to eat as determined by the Charter
School in consideration of available guidance.

Recess

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 72



Except where a field trip or other educational program is taking place, if the Charter School
provides recess, to the extent required by Education Code Section 49056. the Charter School
shall provide supervised and unstructured recess, distinct from physical education courses and
mealtimes, of at least 30 minutes on regular instructional days and at least 15 minutes on early
release days. The Charter School shall not restrict a student’s recess unless there is an immediate
threat to the physical safety of the student or one or more of their peers.

Mental Health Education

If the Charter School offers one or more courses in health education to students in 6th grade, the
Charter School shall include in those courses instruction in mental health that meets the
requirements of Education Code Section 51925, et seq.

Mental Health Information

The Charter School shall create and post a poster at the school site identifying approaches and
resources addressing student mental health in compliance with Education Code Section 49428.5.
The poster shall be displayed in English and the primary language(s) spoken by 15 percent or
more of students enrolled at the school site. The poster shall be prominently and conspicuously
displayed in appropriate public areas that are accessible to, and commonly frequented by,
students at the school site. The poster shall also be digitized and distributed online to students
through social media, internet websites, portals. and learning platforms at the beginning of each
school year.

School Safety Plan

The Charter School shall adopt a School Safety Plan, to be reviewed and updated by March | of
every year, which shall include identification of appropriate strategies and programs that will
provide or maintain a high Jevel of school safety and address the Charter School’s procedures for
complying with applicable laws related to school safety, including the development of all of the
following pursuant to Education Code Section 32282(a)(2)A)-(K):

o child abuse reporting procedures;

e routine and emergency disaster procedures;

e policies for students who committed an act under Education Code Section 48915 and
other Charter School-designated serious acts leading to suspension, expulsion, or
mandatory expulsion recommendations;

e procedures to notify teachers of dangerous students pursuant to Education Code Section
49079;

e a discrimination and harassment policy consistent with Education Code Section 200;

e provisions of any school-wide dress code that prohibits students from wearing
“gang-related apparel,” if applicable;

e procedures for safe ingress and egress of pupils, parents. and employees to and from the
Charter School;

e g safe and orderly environment conducive to learning;

o the rules and procedures on school discipline adopted pursuant to Education Code
Sections 35291, 35291.5, 47605, and 47605.6;

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 73



e procedures for conducting tactical responses to criminal incidents;

¢ procedures to assess and respond to reports of any dangerous, violent, or unlawful
activity that is being conducted or threatened to be conducted at the school, at an activity
sponsored by the school, or on a school bus serving the school.

The School Safety Plan shall be drafted specifically to the needs of the facility in conjunction
with law enforcement and the Fire Marshal. Staff shall receive training in emergency response,
including appropriate "first responder” training or its equivalent.

Disaster procedures included in the School Safety Plan shall address and include adaptations for
students with disabilities. To the extent an employee, parent/guardian, educational rights holder,
or student brings concerns regarding the procedures to the Superintendent and, if there is merit to
the concern, the Superintendent shall direct the Comprehensive Schoo! Safety Plan to be
modified accordingly.

Workplace Violence Prevention Plan

As of July 1. 2024, the Charter School shall establish, implement, and maintain, at all times in all

work areas, an effective workplace violence prevention plan consistent with the requirements of
Labor Code Section 6401.9.

Emergency Preparedness

REALMS adheres to an Emergency Preparedness Handbook drafted specifically to the needs of
REALMS in conjunction with law enforcement and the Fire Marshal. This Handbook includes.
but not be limited to the following responses: fire. flood. earthquake. terrorist threats, active
shooter, and hostage situations.

Staff shall receive training in emergency response, including appropriate "first respondet”
training or its equivalent.

Blood Borne Pathogens

REALMS meets state and federal standards for dealing with blood borne pathogens and other
potentially infectious materials in the workplace. The Board established a written infectious
control plan designed to protect employees and students from possible infection due to contact
with blood borne viruses, including human immunodeficiency virus (“HIV™) and hepatitis B
virus (“HBV™).

Whenever exposed to blood or other bodily fluids through injury or accident, staff and students
shall follow the latest medical protocol for disinfecting procedures.

Drug Free/Alcohol Free/Smoke Free Environment

REALMS functions as a drug, alcohol and smoke free envirenment.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 74



Facility Safety

REALMS complies with Education Code Section 47610 by utilizing facilities that arc cither
compliant with the Field Act or compliant with the California Building Standards Code. The
Charter School agrees to test sprinkler systems, fire extinguishers. and fire alarms annually at its
facilities to ensure that they are maintained in an operable condition at all times. REALMS shall
conduct fire drills as required under Education Code Section 32001.

dur

The Charter School is committed to providing a school that is free from discrimination and
sexual harassment, as well as any harassment based upon the actual or perceived characteristics
of race, religion, creed. color, gender. gender identity, gender expression, nationality. national
origin, ancestry, ethnic group identification, genetic information, age, medical condition, marital
status, sexual orientation, sex and pregnancy, physical or mental disability, childbirth or related
medical conditions, military and veteran status, denial of family and medical care leave. or on the
basis of a person’s association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or
perceived characteristics, or any other basis protected by federal, state, local law, ordinance or
regulation. The Charter School has adopted a comprehensive policy to prevent and immediately
remediate any concerns about discrimination or harassment at the Charter School (including
employee to employee, employee to student, and student to employee misconduct). Misconduct
of this nature is very serious and will be addressed in accordance with the Charter School’s
anti-discrimination and harassment policies.

A copy of the policy shall be provided as part of any orientation program conducted for new and
continuing pupils at the beginning of each semester, or summer session, as applicable, and to
each faculty member, all members of the administrative staff, and all members of the support
staff at the beginning of the first semester of the school year, or at the time that there 15 a new
employee hired.

Bullving Prevention

The Charter School has adopted procedures for preventing acts of bullying, including
cyberbullying. The Charter School shall annually make available the online training module
developed by the CDE pursuant to Education Code Section 32283.5(a) to certificated school site
employees and all other school site employees who have regular interaction with children.

SAFETY Act

Pursuant to AB 19355 (2024), employees of the Charter School shall not be required to disclose
any information related to a pupil’s LGBTQ+ identity to any other person without the pupil’s
consent unless otherwise required by state or federal law. This provision shall not limit a parent’s

ability to request school records on behalf of their child.

Homicide Threats

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 75



The Charter School shall comply with all requirements under Education Code Sections
49390-49395 regarding mandatory reporting in response to homicidal threats. All employees and
Board members who are alerted to or who observe any threat or perceived threat in writing or
through an action of a student that creates a reasonable suspicion that the student is preparing to

commit a homicidal act related to school or a school activity shall make a report to law
enforcement.

Gun Safety Notice

At the beginning of the first semester, the Charter School shall distribute a notice to the
parents/guardians of each student addressing California’s child gun access prevention laws and
laws related to firearm safety utilizing the most updated mode! language published by the
California Department of Education.

Transportation Services
Effective July 1, 2025, the Charter School shall comply with the requirements of Education Code

Section 39875(c). if applicable. relating to background checks and testing for individuals
providing transportation services for students.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 76



ELEMENT SEVEN
STUDENT POPULATION BALANCE

Governing Law: The means by which the charter school will achieve a balance of racial and
ethnic pupils, special education pupils, and English learner pupils, including redesignated fluent
English proficient pupils, as defined by the evaluation rubrics in Section 52064.5, that is
reflective of the general population residing within the territorial jurisdiction of the school
districi to which the charter petition is submiited. Upon renewal, for a charter school not
deemed to be a local educational agency for purposes of special education pursuant to Section
47641, the chartering authority may consider the effect of school placements made by the
chartering authority in providing a free and appropriate public education as required by the
federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (Public Law 101-476), on the balance of
pupils with disabilities at the charter school. Education Code Section 47605(c)(3)(G).

REALMS sirives to ensure the student population is reflective of the general population residing
within the territorial jurisdiction of the local school district. REALMS annually monitors the
racial and ethnic, special education, and English learner balance of its student population and
adjusts our outreach plan in an effort to achieve a diverse student population.

The demographics for the Sierra Sands Unified School District for the 2023-24 school year were
as follows:

Demographic Characteristic | Sierra Sands Unified School
District
Black or African American 7.3%
American [ndian or Alaska 1.1%
Native
Asian 2.0%
Filipino 1.4%
Hispanic or Latino 32.7%
Native Hawaiian or Pacific (.6%
Islander
White 48.7%
Two or More Races 5.3%
Eligible for Free or 54.4%
Reduced-Price Lunch
English Learners 5.5%
Students with Disabilities 16.2%

The demographics for REALMS for the 2023-24 school year were as follows:

Demographic Characteristic REALMS
Black or African American 7.6%
American Indian or Alaska 0.4%
Native

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 77



Asian 1.8%
Filipino 1.3%
Hispanic or Latino 47.3%
Native Hawaiian or Pacific n/a
[slander

White 31.3%
Two or More Races 9.4%
Eligible for Free or 57.6%
Reduced-Price L.unch

English Learners 5.4%
Students with Disabilities 12.1%

Outreach and marketing strategies include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. An enrollment timeline and process allowing for a broad-based recruiting and application
process;

2. Meetings and tours with prospective parents, neighborhood groups, community and
leadership organizations, churches, and local preschools. Meetings are held in convenient
locations throughout the district and available upon request;

3. Advertising student openings through local advertising, social media, direct mail, and
community bulletin boards targeted towards diverse populations. Advertising may be in
various languages spoken within our community;

4. Distributing promotional and informational materials to community groups and agencies
serving diverse racial and ethnic groups.

REALMS shall not discriminate on the basis of the characteristics listed in Section 220 (actual or
perceived disability, gender, gender identity. gender expression, nationality. race or ethnicity.
religion, sexual orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in the definition of hate
crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code, including immigration status, or association
with an individual who has any of the aforementioned characteristics). Pupils will be considered
for admission without regard to any of the above listed characteristics. Ridgecrest Elementary
Academy for Language, Music. and Science will strive to achieve a racial and ethnic, special
education, and English learner balance of students and staff which reflects that of the general
population residing in the District through its student recruitment strategies.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 78



ELEMENT EIGHT
ADMISSION POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

Governing Law: Admission policies and procedures, consistent with [Education Code Section
47605] subdivision (e). Education Code Section 4 7605 (e H).

The Charter School will be nonsectarian in its programs, admission policies, and all other
operations, and will not charge tuition nor discriminate against any student based upon any of the
characteristics listed in Education Code Section 220.

The Charter School shall admit all pupils who wish to attend the Charter School. No test or
assessment shall be administered to students prior to acceptance and enroliment into the Charter
School. The Charter School will comply with all laws establishing minimum and maximum age
for public school attendance in charter schools. Admission, except in the case of a public random
drawing, shall not be determined by the place of residence of the pupil or their parent or legal
guardjan within the state. unless required by Education Code Section 51747.3. In accordance
with Education Code Sections 49011 and 47605(e)(2)(B)(iv), admission preferences shall not
require mandatory parental volunteer hours as a criterion for admission or continued enrollment.

In accordance with Education Code Section 47605(e)(4)(A), the Charter School shall not
discourage a pupil from enrolling or seeking to enroll in the charter school for any reason,
including. but not limited to, academic performance of the pupil or because the pupil exhibits
any of the characteristics described in Education Code Section 47605(e)}2)(B)(iii), including
pupils with disabilities. academically low-achieving pupils, English learners, neglected or
delinquent pupils, homeless pupils. or pupils who are economically disadvantaged. as determined
by eligibility for any free or reduced-price meal program, foster youth, or pupils based on
nationality. race, ethnicity, or sexual orientation. Similarly, in accordance with Section
47605(e)(4)(C), the Charter School shall not encourage a pupil currently atiending the Charter
School to disentoll from the Charter School or transfer to another school for any reason,
including. but not limited to the academic performance of the pupil or because the pupil exhibits
any of the characteristics described in Education Code Section 47605(e)(2}BXiii), as listed
above.

Pursuant to Education Code Section 47605(e)(4)(D), the Charter School shall post a notice
developed by the CDE on the Charter School website, outlining the requirements of Section
47605(e)}4), and make this notice available to parents.

The Charter School shall require students who wish to attend the Charter School to complete an
application form. After admission, students will be required to submit an enrollment packet,
which shall include the following:

Completed student enrollment form

Proof of Immunization

Home Language Survey

Completed Emergency Medical Information Form

Ll

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 79



5. Proof of minimum age requirements
6. Release of records’

Public Random Drawing

Applications will be accepted during a publicly advertised open enro{lment period each year for
enrollment in the following school year. Following the open enrollment period cach year,
applications shall be counted to determine whether any grade level has received more
applications than availability. In the event that this happens, the Charter School will hold a
public random drawing (or “lottery”) to determine admission for the impacted grade level, with
the exception of existing students, who are guaranteed admission in the following school year.
Admission preferences in the case of a public random drawing shall be given to the following
students in the following order:

l. Students who are currently enrolled in or who reside in the elementary school attendance
area of the public elementary school(s) in which Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for
Language, Music. and Art is located

Siblings of students admitted to or attending the Charter School

Children of Charter School teachers and staff (up to 10% of total enrollment capacity)
Residents of the Sierra Sands Unified School District

All other applicants

Lh ok LHab

The Charter School and the Authorizer agree to adhere to the requirements related to admission
preferences as set forth in Education Code Section 47605(e)}2HBXi)-(iv).

The Board of Trustees will take all necessary efforts to ensure lottery procedures are fairly
executed. Lottery spaces are pulled in order of grade level by the designated lottery official
(appointed by the Superintendent). Separate lotteries shall be conducted for each grade in which
there are fewer vacancies than pupils interested in attending. All lotteries shall take place on the
same day in a single location. Lotteries will be conducted in ascending order beginning with the
lowest applicable grade level. There is no weighted priority assigned to the preference
categories; rather, within each grade level, students will be drawn from pools beginning with all
applicants who qualify for the first preference category, and shall continue with that preference
category until all vacancies within that grade level have been filled. If there are more students in
a preference category than there are spaces available, a random drawing will be held from within
that preference category until all available spaces are filled. If all students from the preference
category have been selected and there are remaining spaces available in that grade level, students
from the second preference category will be drawn in the lottery, and the drawing shall continue
until all spaces are filled and preference categories are exhausted in the order provided above.

At the conclusion of the public random drawing, all students who were not granted admission
due to capacity shall be given the option to put their name on a wait list according to their draw
in the lottery. This wait list will allow students the option of enrollment in the case of an opening

7 In accordance with Education Code Section 47605(e)(4}(B), the Charter School shall not request a pupil’s records
or require a parent, guardian, or pupil to submit the pupil’s records to the Charter School before enrollment.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 80



during the current school year. In no circumstance will a wait list carry over to the following
school year.

Public random drawing rules, deadlines, dates and times will be communicated in the application
form and on the Charter School’s website. Public notice for the date and time of the public
random drawing will also be posted once the application deadline has passed. The Charter
School will also inform parents of all applicants and all interested parties of the rules to be
followed during the public random drawing process via mail or email at least two weeks prior to
the lottery date.

The Charter School will conduct the lottery in the spring for enrollment in fall of that year.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 81



ELEMENT NINE
INDEPENDENT FINANCIAL AUDIT

Governing Law: The manner in which annual, independent financial audits shall be conducted,
which shall employ generally accepted accounting principles, and the manner in which audit
exceptions and deficiencies shall be resolved to the satisfaction of the chartering authority.
Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(D).

An annual independent financial audit of the books and records of the Charter School will be
conducted as required by Education Code Sections 47605(c)(5)(1) and 47605(m). The books and
records of the Charter School will be kept in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and as required by applicable law, the audit will employ generally accepted
accounting procedures. The audit shall be conducted in accordance with applicable provisions
within the California Code of Regulations governing audits of charter schools as published in the
State Controller’s K-12 Audit Guide.

The Charter School Board will select an independent auditor through a request for proposal
format. The auditor will have, at a minimum, a CPA and educational institution audit experience
and will be approved by the State Controller on its published list as an educational audit
provider. To the extent required under applicable federal law. the audit scope will be expanded
to include items and processes specified in the applicable Office of Management and Budget
Circulars.

The annual audit will be completed and forwarded to the County Superintendent of Schools, the
State Controller, and to the CDE by the 15th of December of each year. The Superintendent,
along with the audit committee, if one is formed, will review any audit exceptions or deficiencies
and report to the Charter School Board of Trustees with recommendations on how to resolve
them. The Board will submit a report to the Authorizer describing how the exceptions and
deficiencies have been or will be resolved to the satisfaction of the Authorizer along with an
anticipated timeline for the same. Audit appeals or requests for summary review shall be
submitted to the Education Audit Appeals Panel (*EAAP”) in accordance with applicable law.

The independent financial audit of the Charter School is a public record to be provided to the
public upon request.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 82



ELEMENT TEN
SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION PROCEDURES

Governing Law: Element 10: Suspension and Expulsion Procedures

Governing Law: The procedures by which pupils can be suspended or expelled from the charter
school for disciplinary reasons or otherwise involuntarily removed from the charter school for
any reason. These procedures, at a minimum, shall include an explanation of how the charter
school will comply with federal and state constitutional procedural and substantive due process
requirements that are consistent with all of the following:

(i) For suspensions of fewer than 10 days, provide oral or written notice of

the charges against the pupil and, if the pupil denies the charges, an explanation

of the evidence that supports the charges and an opportunity for the pupil to

present the pupil s side of the story.

(ii) For suspensions of 10 days or more and all other expulsions for

disciplinary reasons, both of the following:

(1) Provide timely, written notice of the charges against the pupil and an

explanation of the pupil s basic righis.

(Il Provide a hearing adjudicated by a neutral officer within a reasonable

number of days at which the pupil has a fair opportunily to present festimony,

evidence, and witnesses and confront and cross-examine adverse witnesses, and

at which the pupil has the right to bring legal counsel or an advocate.

(iii)  Contain a clear statement that no pupil shall be involuntarily removed by

the charter school for any reason unless the parent, guardian, or educational

rights holder of the pupil has been provided written notice of intent to remove the

pupil no less than five schooldays before the effective date of the action. The

written notice shall be in the native language of the pupil or the pupil’s parent or

guardian, or, if the pupil is a homeless child or youth or a foster child or youth. in

the native language of the homeless or foster childs educational rights holder. In

the case of a foster child or youth, the written notice shall also be provided to the

foster child’s attorney and county social worker. If the pupil is an Indian child, as

defined in Section 224.1 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, the written notice

shall also be provided to the Indian child s tribal social worker and, if applicable,

county social worker. The written notice shall inform the pupil, the pupil s parent

or guardian, the homeless child’s educational rights holder, the foster childs

educational rights holder, attorney, and county social worker, or the Indian child's

tribal social worker and, if applicable, county social worker of the right to initiate

the procedures specified in clause (ii) before the effective date of the action. If the

pupil’s parent or guardian, the homeless childs educational rights holder, the

foster childs educational rights holder. attorney, or county social worker, or the

Indian child’s tribal social worker or, if applicable, county social worker initiates

the procedures specified in clause (ii), the pupil shall remain enrolled and shall

not be removed until the charter school issues a final decision. For purposes of

this clause, “involuntarily removed” includes disenrolled, dismissed, transferred,

or ferminated, but does not include suspensions specified in clauses (i) and (ii).

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 83



(iv) A foster child’s educational rights holder. attorney, and county social worker
and an Indian child’s tribal social worker and if applicable, county social worker
shall have the same rights a parent or guardian of a child has to receive a
suspension notice, and other documents and related information.

Education Code Section 47605(c)(3)(J}.

This suspension and expulsion policy has been established in order to promote learning and
protect the safety and wellbeing of all students at REALMS. When the policy is violated, it may
be necessary to suspend or expel a student from regular classroom instruction. This policy shall
serve as REALMS® policy and procedures for student suspension and expulsion. In creating this
policy, REALMS has reviewed Education Code Sections 48900 ef seq.. which describe the list of
offenses and procedures for suspensions and expulsions for students attending non-charter public
schools. REALMS’ proposed list of offenses are those for non-charter public schools included
in Education Code Sections 48900 ef seq.. and REALMS believes such list provides adequate
safety for students, staff and visitors at the school and serves the best interests of REALMS’
students and their parents/guardians.

Staff shall enforce disciplinary rules and procedures fairly and consistently among all students.
This policy and its procedures will clearly describe discipline expectations, and it will be printed
and distributed as part of the Student Handbook which is sent to each student at the beginning of
the school year. REALMS administration shall ensure that students and their parents/guardians™
are notified in writing upon enrollment of all discipline and involuntary removal policies and
procedures.

Discipline inciudes, but is not limited to, advising and counseling students, conferring with
parents/guardians, detention during and after school hours, use of alternative educational
environments, suspension and expulsion.

Corporal punishment shall not be used as a disciplinary measure against any student. Corporal
punishment includes the willful infliction, or willfully causing the infliction. of physical pain on
a student. For purposes of this policy, corporal punishment does not include an employee’s use of
force that is reasonable and necessary to protect the employee, students, staff or other persons or
to prevent damage to school property.

Suspended or expelled students shall be excluded from all school and school-related activities
unless otherwise agreed during the period of suspension or expulsion.

A student identified as an individual with disabilities or for whom REALMS has a basis of
knowledge of a suspected disability pursuant to the IDEA or who is qualified for services under
Section 504 is subject to the same grounds for suspension and expulsion and is accorded the
same due process procedures applicable to general education students except when federal and

19 The Charter School shall ensure that a homeless child or youth's educational rights holder; a foster child or
youth’s educational rights holder, attorney, and county social worker: and an Indian child’s tribal social worker and,
if applicable, county social worker have the same rights as a parent or guardian to receive a suspension notice,
expulsion notice. manifestation determination notice, involuntary transfer notice, involuntary removal notice, and

other documents and related information. For purposes of this Policy and its Procedures, the term *parent/guardian”
shall include these parties.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 84



state law mandates additional or different procedures. REALMS will follow all applicable
federal and state laws when imposing any form of discipline on a student identified as an
individua! with disabilities or for whom REALMS has a basis of knowledge of a suspected
disability or who is otherwise qualified for such services or protections in accordance with due
process to such students.

No student shall be involuntarily removed by REALMS for any reason unless the parent ot
guardian of the student has been provided written notice of intent to remove the student no less
than five school days before the effective date of the action. The written notice shall be in the
native language of the student or the student’s parent or guardian or, if the student is a foster
child or youth or a homeless child or youth, the student’s educational rights holder, and shall
inform them of the right to initiate the expulsion procedures described below before the effective
date of the action. If the student’s parent, guardian, or educational rights holder initiates the
expulsion procedures described below, the student shall remain enrolled and shall not be
removed until REALMS Board of Directors issues a final decision. For purposes of this clause,
“involuntarily removed” includes disenrolled, dismissed. transferred, or terminated, but does not
include suspensions or expulsions pursuant to the suspension and expulsion procedures described
below.

Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion of Students

A student may be suspended or expelled for prohibited misconduct if the act is 1) related to
school activity, 2) school attendance occurring at REALMS or at any other school, or 3) a
REALMS-sponsored event. A student may be suspended or expelled for offenses identified in
subsection B below and related to school activity or attendance that occur at any time, including,
but not limited to, the following:

while on school grounds;

while going to or coming from school.

during the lunch period, whether on or off the school campus: or
during, going to, or coming from a school-sponsored activity.

Enumerated Qffenses

REALMS® list of offenses for suspension and expuision shall be those that apply to non-charter
public schools, which are included in Education C ode Sections 48900 et seq.

Suspension Procedures

Suspensions shall be initiated according to the following procedures:

Conference

Suspension shall be preceded, if possible, by a conference conducted by the Superintendent or
the Superintendent’s designee with the student and their parent/guardian and, whenever practical,

the teacher, supervisor or school employee who referred the student to the Superintendent or
designee.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 85



The conference may be omitted if the Superintendent or designee determines that an emergency
situation exists. An “emergency situation™ is one that involves a situation determined by the
Superintendent or designee to constitute a clear and present danger to the life, safety or health of
students or school personnel. If a student is suspended without this conference, both the
parent/guardian and student shall be notified of the student’s right to return to school for the
purpose of a conference.

At the conference, the student shall be informed of the reason for the disciplinary action,
including the other means of correction that were attempted before the suspension, and the
evidence against them and shall be given the opportunity to present their version and evidence in

their defense, in accordance with Education Code Section 47605(¢)(5)(D(1).

This conference shall be held within two school days, unless the student waives this right or is
physically unable to attend for any reason including, but not limited to, incarceration or
hospitalization. The conference shall then be held as soon as the student is physically able to
return to school for the conference.

No penalties may be imposed on a student for failure of the student’s parent or guardian to attend
a conference with school officials. Reinstatement of the suspended student shall not be
contingent upon attendance by the student’s parent or guardian at the conference.

Notice to Parents/Guardians

At the time of suspension. the Superintendent or designee shall make a reasonable effort to
contact the parent/guardian by telephone or in person. Whenever a student is suspended, the
parent/guardian shall be notified in writing of the suspension and the date and time when the
student may return following the suspension. If school officials wish to ask the parent/guardian
to confer regarding matters pertinent to the suspension, the notice may request that the
parent/guardian respond to such requests without delay.

Suspension Time Limits/Recommendation for Placement/Expulsion

Suspensions, when not including a recommendation for expulsion, shall not exceed five (5)
consecutive school days per suspension.

Upon a recommendation of expulsion by the Superintendent or designee, the student and the
student’s parent/guardian or representative will be invited to a conference to determine if the
suspension for the student should be extended pending an expulsion hearing. In such instances,
when REALMS has determined a suspension period shall be extended. such extension shall be
made only after a conference is held with the student or the student’s parent/guardian, unless the
student or parent/guardian fail to attend the conference. This determination will be made by the
Superintendent or designee upon either of the following: 1) the student’s presence will be
distuptive to the education process; or 2) the student poses a threat or danger to others. Upon
either determination, the student’s suspension will be extended pending the results of an
expulsion hearing.

Assignments During Suspension

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 86



In accordance with Education Code Section 47606.2(a), upon the request of a parent, a legal
guardian or other person holding the right to make education decisions for the student, or the
affected student. a teacher shall provide to a student in any of grades 1 to 12, inclusive, who has
been suspended from school for two (2) or more school days, the work that the student would
otherwise have been assigned.

In accordance with Education Code Section 47606.2(b), if a work assignment that is requested
pursuant to Section 47606.2(a) and turmed in to the teacher by the student either upon the
student’s return to school from suspension or within the timeframe originally prescribed by the
teacher, whichever is later, is not graded before the end of the academic term, that assignment
shall not be included in the calculation of the student’s overall grade in the class.

Authority to Expel

Students recommended for expulsion are entitled to a hearing adjudicated by a neutral Hearing
Officer or Administrative Panel to determine whether the student should be expelled. The
procedures herein provide for such a hearing and the notice of said hearing. as required by law.
A student may be expelled either by the Board upon the recommendation of either neutral
Hearing Officer or panel ("Administrative Panel™) appointed by the Superintendent following a
hearing before it. The Administrative Panel shall consist of at least three members who are
certificated and neither a teacher of the student or a Board member of REALMS Board of
Directors. The REALMS Board shall make the final determination regarding the expulsion of
any student found to have committed an expellable offense. The Hearing Officer or
Administrative Panel may recommend expulsion of any student found to have committed an
expellable offense.

Expulsion Procedures

Students recommended for expulsion are entitled to a hearing to determine whether the student
should be expelled. Unless postponed for good cause, the hearing shall be held within thirty (30)
school days after the Superintendent or designee determines that the student has committed an
expellable offense and recommends the student for expulsion.

The Superintendent or designee shall either select a Hearing Officer or appoint an Administrative
Panel to hear and consider the recommendation for expulsion. The hearing shall be beld in a
confidential setting (complying with all student confidentiality rules under the Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act (*"FERPA™).)

Written notice of the hearing shall be forwarded to the student and the student’s parent/guardian
at least ten (10) calendar days before the date of the hearing. Upon mailing the notice, it shall be
deemed served upon the student. The notice shall include:

1. The date and place of the expulsion hearing;

2. A statement of specific facts, charges and offenses upon which the proposed expulsion is
based;

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 87



A copy of REALMS' disciplinary rules which relate to the alleged violation;

Notification of the student’s or parent/guardian’s obligation to provide information about

the student’s status at REALMS to any other school district or school to which the
student seeks enrollment;

An explanation of the opportunity for the student or the student’s parent/guardian to
appear in person or to employ and be represented by counsel or a non-attorney advisor;

An explanation of the right to inspect and obtain copies of all documents to be used at the
hearing;

An explanation of the opportunity to confront and question all witnesses who testify at
the hearing; and

An explanation of the opportunity to question all evidence presented and to present oral
and documentary evidence on the student’s behalf including witnesses.

The Hearing Officer or Administrative Panel may, upon finding a good cause, determine that the
disclosure of either the identity of the witness or the testimony of that witness at the hearing, or
both, would subject the witness to an unreasonable risk of psychological or physical harm. Upon
this determination, the testimony of the witness may be presented at the hearing in the form of
sworn declarations which shall be examined only by the Hearing Officer or Administrative
Panel. Copies of these sworn declarations, edited to delete the name and identity of the witness,
shall be made available to the student.

EQ

The complaining witness in any sexual assault or battery case must be provided with a
copy of the applicable disciplinary rules and advised of their right to (a) receive five
days’ notice of their scheduled testimony, (b) have up to two (2) adult support persons of
their choosing present in the hearing at the time they testify. which may include a parent,
guardian, or legal counsel, and (¢) elect to have the hearing closed while testifying.

REALMS must also provide the victim a room separate from the hearing room for the
complaining witness' use prior to and during breaks in testimony.

At the discretion of the person or panel conducting the hearing, the complaining witness
shall be allowed periods of relief from examination and cross-examination during which
he or she may leave the hearing room.

The person conducting the expulsion hearing may also arrange the seating within the
hearing room to facilitate a less intimidating environment for the complaining witness.

The person conducting the expulsion hearing may also limit time for taking the testimony
of the complaining witness to the hours the complaining witness is normally in school, if
there is no good cause to take the testimony during other hours.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 83



V. DISQUALIFICATION

No designated employee shall make, participate in making, or try to use his/her official position to
influence any Charter School decision which he/she knows or has reason to know will have a
reasonably foreseeable material financial effect, distinguishable from its effect on the public
generally. on the official or a member of his or her immediate family.

VI. MANNER OF DISQUALIFICATION
A. Non-Governing Board Member Designated Employees

When a non-Governing Board member designated employee determines that he/she should not
make a decision because of a disqualifying interest. he/she should submit a written disclosure of
the disqualifying interest to his/her immediate supervisor. The supervisor shall immediately
reassign the matter to another employee and shall forward the disclosure notice to the Charter
School C.E.O., who shall record the employee's disqualification. In the case of a designated
employee who is head of an agency. this determination and disclosure shall be made in writing to
his/her appointing authority.

B. Governing Board Member Designated Employees

The Corporation shall not enter into a contract or transaction in which a director directly or
indirectly has a material financial interest (nor shall the Corporation enter into any contract or
transaction with any other corporation, firm, association. or other entity in which one or more of
the Corporation’s directors are directors and have a material financial interest).

Pursuant to Education Code section 47604.1 (effective Jan. 1, 2020), notwithstanding Article 4
(commencing with Section 1090} of Chapter | of Division 4 of Title 1 of the Government Code.
an employee of a charter school shall not be disqualified from serving as a member of the
governing body of the charter school because of that employee’s employment status. A member
of the governing body of a charter school who is also an employee of the charter school shall
abstain from voting on, or influencing or attempting to influence another member of the governing
body regarding, all matters uniquely affecting that member’s employment.

RIDGECREST CHARTER SCHOOL PAGE2 OF2
CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE



6. Prior to a complaining witness testifying, the support persons must be admonished that
the hearing is confidential. Nothing in the law precludes the person presiding over the
hearing from removing a support person whom the presiding person finds is disrupting
the hearing. The person conducting the hearing may permit any one of the support
persons for the complaining witness to accompany them to the witness stand.

7. If one or both of the support persons is also a witness, REALMS must present evidence
that the witness™ presence is both desired by the witness and will be helpful to REALMS.
The person presiding over the hearing shall permit the witness to stay unless it is
established that there is a substantial risk that the testimony of the complaining witness
would be influenced by the support person, in which case the presiding official shall
admonish the support person or persons not to prompt, sway, or influence the witness in
any way. Nothing shall preclude the presiding officer from exercising their discretion to
remove a person from the hearing whom they believe is prompting, swaying. or
influencing the witness.

8. The testimony of the support person shall be presented before the testimony of the
complaining witness and the complaining witness shall be excluded from the hearing
room during that testimony.

9. Especially for charges involving sexual assault or battery, if the hearing is to be
conducted in public at the request of the student being expelled, the complaining witness
shall have the right to have their testimony heard in a closed session when testifying at a
public meeting would threaten serious psychological harm to the complaining witness
and there are not alternative procedures to avoid the threatened harm. The alternative
procedures may include videotaped depositions or contemporancous examination in
another place communicated to the hearing by means of closed-circuit television.

10. Evidence of specific instances of a complaining witness’ prior sexual conduct is
presumed inadmissible and shall not be heard absent a determination by the person
conducting the hearing that extraordinary circumstances exist requiring the evidence be
heard. Before such a determination regarding extraordinary circumstances can be made,
the witness shall be provided notice and an opportunity to present opposition to the
introduction of the evidence. In the hearing on the admissibility of the evidence, the
complaining witness shall be entitled to be represented by a parent, legal counsel, or other
support person. Reputation or opinion evidence regarding the sexual behavior of the
complaining witness is not admissible for any purpose.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 89



Record of Hearin
A record of the hearing shall be made and may be maintained by any means. including electronic

recording. as long as a reasonably accurate and complete written transcription of the proceedings
can be made.

Presentation of Evidence

While technical rules of evidence do not apply to expulsion hearings, evidence may be admitted
and used as proof only if it is the kind of evidence on which reasonable persons can rely in the
conduct of serious affairs. A recommendation by the Superintendent or Administrative Panel to
expel must be supported by substantial evidence that the student committed an expellable
offense.

Findings of fact shall be based solely on the evidence at the hearing. While hearsay gvidence is
admissible, no decision to expel shall be based solely on hearsay. Sworn declarations may be
admitted as testimony from witnesses of whom the Hearing Officer or Administrative Panel
determines that disclosure of their identity or testimony at the hearing may subject them to an
unreasonable risk of physical or psychological harm.

I, due to a written request by the accused student, the hearing is held at a public meeting, and the
charge is committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault or committing a sexual battery as
defined in Education Code Section 48900, a complaining witness shall have the right to have
their testimony heard in a session closed to the public.

The decision of the Superintendent or Administrative Panel shall be in the form of written
findings of fact and a written recommendation to REALMS Board of Directors who will make a
final determination regarding the expulsion. The final decision by REALMS Board of Directors
shall be made within ten (10) school days following the conclusion of the hearing. The decision
of REALMS Board of Directors is final.

If the Superintendent or Administrative Panel decides not to recommend expulsion, the student
shall immediately be returned to their previous educational program.

The REALMS Board may also determine to suspend the enforcement of the expulsion order for
a period of not more than one (1) calendar year from the date of the expulsion hearing and return
the student to the student’s previous educational program under a probationary status and
rehabilitation plan to be determined by the Superintendent. During the period of the suspension
of the expulsion order, the student is deemed to be on probationary status. The Superintendent
may revoke the suspension of an expulsion order if the student commits any of the enumerated
offenses listed above or violates any of the Charter School’s rules and regulations governing
student conduct. If the Superintendent revokes the suspension of an expulsion order, the student
may be expelled under the terms of the original expulsion order. The REALMS Board shall
apply the criteria for suspending the enforcement of the expulsion order equally to all students,
including individuals with exceptional needs.

Written Notice to Expel

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 90



The Superintendent or designee following a decision of REALMS Board of Directors to expel
shall send written notice of the decision to expel, including the adopted findings of fact, to the
student or parent/guardian. This notice shall also include the following:

1. Notice of the specific offense committed by the student.

2. Notice of the student’s or parent/guardian’s obligation to inform any new district in which
the student seeks to enroll of the student’s status with REALMS.

The Superintendent or designee shall send a copy of the written notice of the decision to expel to
the student’s district of residence. This notice shall include the following:

1. The student’s name.
2. The specific expellable offense committed by the student.
isciplina r

REALMS shall maintain records of all student suspensions and expulsions at REALMS. Such
records shall be made available to the County upon request, consistent with applicable law and
subject to any necessary assurances of confidentiality for purposes of the Public Records Act.

Right to Appeal

The student shall have a right to appeal REALMS Board of Directors’ decision to expel to the
Kern County Board of Education in accordance with Education Code Sections 48919-48924.

Expelled Students/Alternative Education

Students who are expelled shall be responsible for seeking alternative education programs
including. but not limited to, programs within the County or their school district of residence.
Parents/guardians of students who are expelled shall be provided with information regarding
alternative education programs that may be available including. but not limited to, programs
within the County or their school district of residence.

Rehabilitation Plans

Students who are expelled from REALMS shall be given a rehabilitation plan upon expulsion as
developed by REALMS Board of Directors at the time of the expulsion order, which may
include. but is not limited to, periodic review as well as assessment at the time of review for
readmission. The rehabilitation plan should include a daic not later than one (1) year from the

date of expulsion when the student may reapply to REALMS for readmission.

Readmission

The decision to readmit a student or to admit a previously expelled student from another school,
school district or charter school shall be in the sole discretion of REALMS Board of Directors

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 91



following a meeting with the Superintendent and the student and parent/guardian or
representative to determine whether the student has successfully completed the rehabilitation
plan and to determine whether the student poses a threat to others or will be disruptive to the
school environment. The Superintendent shall make a recommendation to the REALMS Board
following the meeting regarding their determination. The charter school shall allow an appeal
right to the County Board of Education in accordance with Education Code Sections
48915-48924. The readmission process shall align with that used by the Sierra Sands Unified
School District and no student shall be denied readmission unless the Charter School does not
have space available.

Notice to Teachers

The Charter School shall notify teachers of cach student who has engaged in or is reasonably
suspected to have engaged in any of the acts listed in Education Code Section 49079 and the
corresponding enumerated offenses set forth above.

Special Procedures for the Consideration of Suspension and Expulsion of Students with
Disabilities

Notification of SELPA

REALMS shall immediately notify the SELPA regarding any student with a disability or student
whom REALMS would be deemed to have knowledge that the student had a disability who is
suspended for more than ten (10) school days during a school year.

Services During Suspension

Students suspended for more than ten (10) school days in a school year shall continue to receive
services so as to enable the student to continue to participate in the general education curriculum,
although in another setting {(which could constitute a change in placement and the student’s IEP
would reflect this change), and to progress toward meecting the goals set out in the student's
IEP/Section 504 Plan; and receive, as appropriate, a functional behavioral assessment and
behavioral intervention services and modifications that are designed to address the behavior
violation so that it does not recur. These services may be provided in an interim alternative
educational setting.

Procedural Safeguards/Manifestation Determination

Within ten (10) school days of a recommendation for expulsion or any decision to change the
placement of a child with a disability because of a violation of a code of student conduct,
REALMS, the parent/guardian, and relevant members of the IEP team/504 team shall review all
relevant information in the student's file, including the student's 1EP/Section 504 Plan, any
teacher observations. and any relevant information provided by the parents/guardians to
determine:

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 92



e If the conduct in question was caused by, or had a direct and substantial relationship to,
the child's disability; or

e If the conduct in question was the direct result of the local educational agency's failure to
implement the IEP/Section 504 Plan.

If REALMS, the parent, and relevant members of the IEP team/Section 504 team determine that
either of the above is applicable for the student, the conduct shall be determined to be a
manifestation of the student's disability.

If REALMS, the parent, and relevant members of the IEP team/Section 504 team make the
determination that the conduct was a manifestation of the student's disability, the IEP
team/Section 504 team shall:

e Conduct a functional behavioral assessment and implement a behavioral intervention plan
for such student, provided that REALMS had not conducted such assessment prior to
such determination before the behavior that resulted in a change in placement:

e If a behavioral intervention plan has been developed, review the behavioral intervention
plan and modify it. as necessary, to address the behavior; and

e Return the student to the placement from which the student was removed. unless the
parent/guardian and REALMS agree to a change of placement as part of the modification
of the behavioral intervention plan.

If REALMS, the parent/guardian and relevant members of the IEP team/Section 504 team
determine that the behavior was not a manifestation of the student’s disability and that the
conduct in question was not a result of the failure to implement the IEP/Section 504 Plan, then
REALMS may apply the relevant disciplinary procedures to students with disabilities in the
same manner and for the same duration as the procedures would be applied to students without
disabilities.

Due Process Appeals

The parent/guardian of a student with a disability who disagrees with any decision regarding
placement, or the manifestation determination, or REALMS believes that maintaining the current
placement of the student is substantially likely to result in injury to the student or to others, may
request an expedited administrative hearing through the Special Education Unit of the Office of
Administrative Hearings or by utilizing the dispute provisions of the 504 Policy and Procedures.

When an appeal relating to the placement of the student or the manifestation determination has
been requested by either the parent/guardian or REALMS, the student shall remain in the interim
alternative educational setting pending the decision of the hearing officer in accordance with
state and federal law, including 20 U.S.C. Section 1415(k), or until the expiration of the
forty-five (45) day time period provided for in an interim alternative educational setting, unless
the parent/guardian and REALMS agree otherwise.

In accordance with 20 U.S.C. Section 1415(k)(3), if a parent/guardian disagrees with any
decision regarding placement, or the manifestation determination, or if the Charter School

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 93



believes that maintaining the current placement of the child is substantially likely to result in
injury to the child or to others, the parent/guardian, or Charter School may request a hearing.

In such an appeal, a hearing officer may: (1} return a child with a disability to the placement
from which the child was removed; or (2) order a change in placement of a child with a disability
to an appropriate interim alternative educational setting for not more than 45 school days if the
hearing officer determines that maintaining the current placement of such child is substantially
likely to result in injury to the child or to others.

Special Circumstances

Charter School personnel may consider any unique circumstances on a case-by-case basis when
determining whether to order a change in placement for a student with a disability who violates a
code of student conduct.

The Superintendent or designee may remove a student to an interim alternative educational
setting for not more than forty-five (45) days without regard to whether the behavior is
determined to be a manifestation of the student’s disability in cases where a student:

e Carries or possesses a weapon, as defined in 18 U.S.C. Section 930, to or at school, on
school premises, orto orata school function;

e Knowingly possesses or uses illegal drugs, or sells or solicits the sale of a controlled
substance while at school, on school premises, or at a school function; or

e Has inflicted serious bodily injury, as defined by 20 U.S.C. Section 1415(k)(7¥D). upon
a person while at school, on school premises, or at a school function.

Interim ive Educational in

The student's interim alternative educational setting shall be determined by the student’s IEP
team/Section 504 team.

Procedures for Students Not Yet Eligible for Special Fducation Services

A student who has not been identified as an individual with disabilities under the IDEA and who
has violated REALMS’ disciplinary procedures may assert the procedural safeguards granted
under this administrative regulation only if REALMS had knowledge that the student was
disabled before the behavior occurred.

REALMS shall be deemed to have knowledge that the student had a disability if one of the
following conditions exists:

e The parent/guardian has expressed concern in writing, or orally if the parent/guardian
does not know how to write or has a disability that prevents a written statement, to
Charter School supervisory or administrative personnel, or to one of the student’s
teachers. that the student is in need of special education or related services.

o The parent has requested an evaluation of the student.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 94



e The student’s teacher, or other Charter School personnel, has expressed specific concerns
about a pattern of behavior demonstrated by the student, directly to the director of special
education or to other Charter School supervisory personnel.

If REALMS knew or should have known the student had a disability under any of the three (3)
circumstances described above, the student may assert any of the protections available to
IDFEA-cligible children with disabilities. including the right to stay put.

If REALMS had no basis for knowledge of the student’s disability, it shall proceed with the
proposed discipline. REALMS shall conduct an expedited evaluation if requested by the
parents/guardians; however, the student shall remain in the educational placement determined by
REALMS pending the results of the evaluation. REALMS shall not be deemed to have
knowledge that the student had a disability if the parent/guardian has not allowed an evaluation,
refused services, or if the student has been evaluated and determined to not be eligible.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 95



ELEMENT ELEVEN
RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

Governing Law: The manner by which staff members of the charter schools will be covered by
the State Teachers® Retirement System, the Public Employees’ Retirement System, or federal
social security. Education Code Section 47605(c)(3)(K).

All employees of Ridgecrest Charter School who qualify for membership in the State Teachers’
Retirement System (“STRS”) or the Public Employees™ Retirement System (“PERS™) shall be
covered under the appropriate system, as determined by credential status. Non-credentialed
employees will contribute to PERS and federal social security. Employees will contribute at the
rate established by STRS or PERS. The fiscal analyst of REALMS will ensure that appropriate
arrangements for the coverage have been made. Ridgecrest Charter School will make all
employer contributions as required. Ridgecrest Charter School will also make contributions for
workers’ compensation insurance, unemployment insurance and any other payroll obligations of
an employer.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 96



ELEMENT TWELVE
PUBLIC SCHOOL ATTENDANCE ALTERNATIVES

Governing Law: The public school attendance alternatives for pupils residing within the school
district who choose not fo attend charter schools. Education Code Section 47605(c)(3)(L).

No student may be required to attend the Charter School. Students who reside within the District
who choose not to attend the Charter School may attend schoo! within the District according to
District policy or at another school district or school within the District through the District’s
intra and inter-district policies. Parents and guardians of each student enrolled in the Charter
School will be informed on admission forms that the students have no right to admission in a
particular school of a local education agency as a consequence of enroliment in the Charter
School, except to the extent that such a right is extended by the local education agency.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 97



ELEMENT THIRTEEN
EMPLOYEE RETURN RIGHTS

Governing Law: The rights of an employee of the school district upon leaving the employment of
the school district to work in a charter school, and of any rights of return to the school district
after employment at a charter school. Education Code Section 47605(c)(3)(M).

No public school district employee shall be required to work at Ridgecrest Elementary Academy
for Language, Music, and Science. Employees of the District who choose to leave the
employment of the District to work at the Charter School will have no automatic rights of return
to the District after employment by the Charter School unless specifically granted by the District
through a leave of absence or other agreement. Charter School employees shall have any right
upon leaving the District to work in the Charter School that the District may specify. any rights
of return to employment in a school district after employment in the Charter School that the
District may specify, and any other rights upon leaving employment to work in the Charter
School that the District determines to be reasonable and not in conflict with any law.

Sick or vacation leave or years of service credit at the District or any other school district may be

transferred to the Charter School. Employment by the Charter Schoo! provides no rights of
employment at any other entity, including any rights in the case of closure of the Charter School.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 98



ELEMENT FOURTEEN
DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURE

Governing Law:
Governing Law: The procedures to be followed by the charter school and the chartering

authority to resolve disputes relating to provisions of the charter. Education Code Section
47605(c)(5)(N).

The Charter School and the Authorizer {collectively referred to as the “parties™ for purposes of
these dispute resolution procedures) agree to aftempt to resolve all disputes, controversies or
claims arising out of or relating to this charter, except any controversy or claim that in any way
relates to the revocation of this charter, pursuant to the terms of this section. The parties will
refrain from public commentary regarding such disputes, controversies or claims until the matter
has progressed through the dispute resolution process. unless otherwise required by law.

Any disputes between the Authorizer and the Charter School over the terms of the charter shall
be resolved as follows:

1. The dispute shall be identified in writing by the administrator of the Charter School and
the staff member designated by the Authorizer pursuant to Education Code Section
47604.32(a). This notice shali be provided within 15 calendar days of when the party
either knew or should have known of the possible dispute unless there are extenuating
circumstances. In an emergency, where oral notice precedes written notice, the oral notice
shall be immediately followed by written notice. These designated individuals will meet
in a good faith attempt to resolve the dispute. Failure of the Charter School
representative to participate in efforts to resolve the dispute shall be grounds for
revocation of the charter.

2. If a resolution is reached, a written description of that resolution shall be drafted and
signed and preserved as guidance for future action.

3. If the dispute is not resolved by the meeting described above, the parties may elect to
mediate the dispute by mutually agreeing on a mediator. The first opportunity for striking
the choice of mediator shall be determined by lot. The parties shall alternately strike until
one name remains. Within 10 calendar days of appointment or otherwise mutually
agreed, the parties shall meet to attempt to resolve the dispute. In the event the parties
agree to attempt to resolve the dispute in mediation, the mediator’s fees shall be split
equally between the Authorizer and the Charter School, unless otherwise agreed. Any
agreements reached shall be written and preserved as guidance for future action.

4. If the dispute is not resolved by the meeting or by mediation. the matter shall be referred
to the Authorizer’s Board at its next regularly scheduled meeting. The Authorizer’s
Board shall make a final decision regarding the dispute, provided that the Charter School
may seek judicial review of the Authorizer’s Board’s decision in a court of competent
jurisdiction.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 99



5. Notwithstanding the above. nothing in this dispute resolution process shall prevent or
delay the Authorizer from exercising and discharging any power or duty authorized by
law with respect to oversight of the charter including. but not limited to. the right to
revoke the charter as authorized by law.

6. Nothing in this section shall be interpreted as a waiver by the Charter School of any
available legal rights or recourse in response to action by the Authorizer.

7. All timelines and procedures in this section may be revised upon mutual written
agreement of the Authorizer and the Charter School.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 100



ELEMENT FIFTEEN
CLOSURE PROCEDURES

Governing Law: The procedures to be used if the charter school closes. The procedures shall
ensure a final audit of the charter school to determine the disposition of all assets and liabilities
of the charter school, including plans for disposing of any net assets and for the maintenance
and transfer of pupil records. Education Code Section 47605(c)(3)(0).

Closure of the Charter School will be documented by official action of the Governing Board. The
action will identify the reason for closure. The official action will also identify an entity and
person or persons responsible for closure-related activities.

The Charter School will promptly notify parents and students of the Charter School. the
Authorizer (the Kern County Office of Education). the Charter School’s SELPA, the retirement
systems in which the Charter School’s employees participate (e.g., Public Employees’
Retirement System, State Teachers” Retirement System, and federal social security), and the
California Department of Education of the closure as well as the effective date of the closure.
This notice will also include the name(s) of and contact information for the person(s) to whom
reasonable inquiries may be made regarding the closure; the pupils’ school districts of residence;
and the manner in which parents/guardians may obtain copies of pupil records, including specific
information on completed courses and credits that meet graduation requirements.

The Charter School will ensure that the notification to the parents and students of the Charter
School of the closure provides information to assist parents and students in locating suitable
alternative programs. This notice will be provided promptly following the Board's decision to
close the Charter School.

The Charter School will also develop a list of pupils in each grade level and the classes they have
completed, together with information on the pupils’ districts of residence, which it will provide
to the entity responsible for closure-related activities.

As applicable, the Charter School will provide parents, students and the Authorizer with copies
of all appropriate student records and will otherwise assist students in transferring to their next
school. All transfers of student records will be made in compliance with the FERPA. The Charter
School will ask the Authorizer to store original records of Charter School students. All student
records of the Charter School shall be transferred to the Authorizer upon Charter School closure.
if the Authorizer will not or cannot store the records. the Charter School shall work with the
County Office of Education to determine a suitable alternative location for storage.

All state assessment results. special education records, and personnel records will be transferred
to and maintained by the entity responsible for closure-related activities in accordance with
applicable law.

As soon as reasonably practicable, the Charter School will prepare final financial records. The
Charter School will also have an independent audit completed within six months after closure.
The Charter School will pay for the final audit. The audit will be prepared by a qualified

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 101



Certified Public Accountant selected by the Charter School and will be provided to the
Authorizer promptly upon its completion. The final audit will include an accounting of all
financial assets, including cash and accounts receivable and an inventory of property, equipment,
and other items of material value, an accounting of the liabilities, including accounts payable and
any reduction in apportionments as a result of audit findings or other investigations, loans, and
unpaid staff compensation, and an assessment of the disposition of any restricted funds received
by or due to the Charter School.

The Charter School will complete and file any annual reports required pursuant to Education
Code section 47604.33.

On closure of the Charter Schoal, all assets of the Charter School, including but not limited to all
leaseholds, personal property, intellectual property and all ADA apportionments and other
revenues generated by students attending the Charter School. remain the sole property of the
nonprofit public benefit corporation. Upon the dissolution of the non-profit public benefit
corporation, all net assets shall be distributed to another public school that satisfies the
requirements of paragraphs (a) through (e) of section IILA of Notice 2015-07 issued by the
Internal Revenue Service and the Treasury Department entitled “Relief for Certain Participants
in § 414(d) Plans” or any final regulations implementing 26 U.S.C.§ 414(d) or to a State,
political subdivision of a State, or agency or instrumentality thercof. Any assets acquired from
the Authorizer or Authorizer property will be promptly returned upon Charter School closure to
the Authorizer. The distribution shall include return of any grant funds and restricted categorical
funds to their source in accordance with the terms of the grant or state and federal law, as
appropriate, which may include submission of final expenditure reports for entitlement grants
and the filing of any required Final Expenditure Reports and Final Performance Reports, as well
as the return of any donated materials and property in accordance with any conditions established
when the donation of such materials or property was accepted.

On closure, the Charter School shall remain solely responsible for all liabilities arising from the
operation of the Charter School.

As the Charter School is operated by a non-profit public benefit corporation, should the
corporation dissolve with the closure of the Charter School. the Board will follow the procedures
set forth in the California Corporations Code for the dissolution of a non-profit public benefit
corporation and file all necessary filings with the appropriate state and federal agencies.

As specified by the Budget in Appendices 14-16, the Charter School will utilize the reserve fund
to undertake any expenses associated with the closure procedures identified above.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 102



MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Budget and Financial Reporting

Governing _Law: The petitioner or petitioners also shall be required to provide financial
statements that include a proposed first year operational budget, including startup cosls, and

cash flow and financial projections for the first three years of operation. Education Code Section
47605(h).

Attached. as Appendices 14-16, please find the following documents:

Budget narrative

A projected budget

Budget assumptions

Financial projections and cash flow for three years of operation

These documents are based upon the best data available to the Petitioners at this time.

The Charter School shall provide reports to the County Superintendent of Schools as follows in
accordance with Education Code Section 47604.33, and shall provide additional fiscal reports as
requested by the Authorizer or required by the MOU with the Authorizer:

1. By July 1. a preliminary budget for the current fiscal year.

2. By July 1, an annual update to the LCAP required pursuant to Education Code Section
47606.5.

3. By December 15, an interim financial report for the current fiscal year reflecting changes
through October 31. Additionally, on December 15, a copy of the Charter School’s
annual, independent financial audit report for the preceding fiscal year shall be delivered
to the Authorizer. State Controller, California Department of Education and County
Superintendent of Schools;

4. By March 15, a second interim financial report for the current fiscal year reflecting
changes through January 31; and

5. By September 15, a final unaudited report for the full prior year. The report submitted to
the Authorizer shall include an annual statement of all the Charter School’s receipts and
expenditures for the preceding fiscal year.

The Charter School shall provide reporting to the Authotizer as required by law and as requested
by the Authorizer including. but not limited to, the following: California Basic Educational Data
System (“CBEDS™), actual Average Daily Attendance reports, all financial reports required by
Education Code Sections 47604.33 and 47605(m). the SARC. and the LCAP.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 103



The Charter School agrees to and submits to the right of the Authorizer to make random visits

and inspections in order to carry out its statutorily required oversight in accordance with
Education Code Sections 47604.32 and 47607.

Pursuant to Education Code Section 47604.3, the Charter School shall promptly respond to all
reasonable inquiries including, but not limited to. inquiries regarding its financial records from
the Authorizer.

Administrative Services

Governing Law: The manner in which administrative services of the charter school are to be
provided. Education Code Section 47605 (h).

The Charter School will provide or procure its own administrative services including, but not
limited to. financial management. accounts payable/receivable, payroll, human resources, and
instructional program development cither through its own staff or through an appropriately
qualified third-party contractor.

REALMS will contract for accounting, budgeting, payroll, and independent audit services with a
school district, the County Office of Education. or a commercial firm with charter school
experience. REALMS will provide for fiscal and business management service functions either
through in-house staff or through an outside service provider.

REALMS may, where permitted, contract with the Authorizer for goods or services which the
Authorizer, at its discretion, may choose to make available. Such contracts, however, shall not be
construed to negate the operational independence of the Charter School from the Authorizer.

Facilities

Governing Law: The facilities to be used by the charter school. The description of the facilities
to be used by the charier school shall specify where the charter school intends to locate.
Education Code Section 47603(h).

Ridgecrest Charter School under the RCS Facilities LLC owns and holds title to the Charter
School’s property that includes all of the Charter School’s facilities.

Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language. Music, and Science’s facility will be located at
325 South Downs in Ridgecrest, CA. It is a prior school site, with portable classrooms added
along with 2 playground areas. landscaping, a perimeter fence. music rooms, cafeteria and a
library.

The following table represents the projected classroom distribution by grade level:

Class Size Distribution — Number of Classrooms By Average Enrollment

2025-2026

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 104



Q)
g
1)
=

)
[
=
—
1
[
<

=
~

o] A =] @ =] =]~
=1 =1 =1 =1 =1 0= =2 S
—_—f =] =] RN o

Insurance and Safety Policy

Ridgecrest Elementary Academy Charter School for Language, Music, and Science will acquire
and maintain, as necessary, general liability, student accident insurance, automotive liability,
errors and omissions, property, workers’ compensation, and unemployment insurance policies
through its own insurance program or through agencies recommended by the Authorizer. If
separate insurance is procured, coverage amounts will be based on recommendations provided
by the Authorizer and the Charter School’s insurer. The Authorizer shall be named as an
additional insured on all policies of the Charter School. The Charter School will provide
evidence of the above insurance coverage to the Authorizer.

Potential Civil Liability Effects

Governing Law: Potential civil liability effects, if any, upon the charter school and upon the
school district. Education Code Section 47605(h).

The Charter School shall be operated by a California nonprofit public benefit corporation. This
corporation is organized and operated exclusively for charitable purposes within the meaning of
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and California Revenue and Taxation Code
Section 23701(d).

Pursuant to Education Code Section 47604(d), an authority that grants a charter to a charter
school operated by or as a non-profit public benefit corporation shall not be liable for the debts
or obligations of the charter school or for claims arising from the performance of acts, errors or
omissions by the charter school if the authority has complied with all oversight responsibilities
required by law. The Charter Schoo! shall work diligently to assist the Authorizer in meeting
any and all oversight obligations under the law, including monthly meetings. reporting, or other
Authorizer-requested protocol to ensure the Authorizer shall not be liable for the operation of the
Charter School.

Further. the Charter School intends to enter into a memorandum of understanding with the
Authorizer. wherein the Charter School shall indemnify the Authorizer for the actions of the
Charter School under this charter.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 105



The corporate bylaws of the Charter School shall provide for indemnification of the Charter
School’s Board, officers, agents. and employees, and the Charter School has purchased general
liability insurance, Board Members and Officers insurance, and fidelity bonding to secure against
financial risks.

As stated above, insurance amounts will be determined by recommendation of the Authorizer
and the Charter School’s insurance company for schools of similar size, location, and student
population. The Authorizer shall be named an additional insured on the general liability
insurance of the Charter School.

The Charter School Board will institute appropriate risk management practices as discussed

herein, including screening of employees. establishing codes of conduct for students, and dispute
resolution.

REALMS Charter Petition 2025-2030 106



29-2 Teacher Work Week

5 First Day of Instruction

16 Staff Development, Early
Release 12715

30 Staff Development, Early
Release 12:15

2 LaborDay

13 Staff Development, Early
Release 12:15

20 In Service Day
Non School Day

27 staff Development, Early
Release 12:15

11 Staff Professional
Development, Early
Release 12:15

14 Columbus Day

23 In Service Day
Non Schoo! Day

25 Staff Professional
Development, Early
Release 12:15

31 End of 1= Trimester

8  Staff Development, Early
Release 12:15

4-7 Parent/Teacher
Conferences-Early
Release 12:15

11 No School Veterans Day

22 Staff Development, Early

6 Staff Development, Early
Release 12:15
20-7 Winter Break

D First/Last Day of Instruction

[] Red Ribbhon Week

A 2024 - 2025 School Year Calendar w/ Activities
Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language, Music, and Science

325 S, Down St. Ridgecrest, CA. 93555 *Phone {760) 375 = 1010 *Fax {760} 375 -7766

H

JANUARY '25

4 |5

11]12[13[14[15[16

[19 20121'22 23

_25 26 _z_ 30
1 1

SEPTEMBER '24
§ M T W Th

S

+
15| 16

22 23 [24

28| 29 |30 |31

1 31456
g |9 !10]11]12 13
15| 16| 17|18 19

2223|2425 |26 |27

7

14

21
28

U b s
s M|[T[w|T|[F]s
] 1 | | 1|2
AR EHEEEE
10 12|13 14]15]16
17 (18 | 19|20 21]22]23
24 30

D Trimester Ends

. Holiday/No School

2 [3 |4 |5 |6 J 2|
9 |10[11 |12 ]13 [14]15 |
16 |17 |18 |19 |20 [21 [22 |
23 | 24 [25 [26 |27 |28 |29 |
- |
20

S| M| T W Th|F|S
5

6 |7 |8 [9 10 faa]12
[13 114 15 |16 [17 19 |
20 |21 [22 |23 [24 [25 |26

27 :':-‘ng 30'l

) 17
S| M| T|W T F[s]
IEENERE
4—_5-:'|7|s 9 |10
1 13|14 15 (16 | 17
19 | 20|21 ][22 [23] 24
:H [_29 30 | 31

D Events

180

1-7 Continue Winter Break

17 Staff Development, Early
Release 12:15

MLK Jr Birthday

Staff Professional
Development, Early
Release 12:15

20
31

14 Lincoln's Birthday

17 Washington's Birthday

24 End of 2™ Trimester

24-27 Parent/Teacher Conferences-
Early Release 12:15

28 staff Development, Early
Release 12:15

14 Staff Development, Early
Release 12:15

28 Staff Development, Early
Release 12:15

31-4 Spring Break

1-4 Continue Spring Break

11 Staff Development, Early
Release 12:15

18 In Lieu of Admissions Day

25 Staff Development, Early
Release 12:15

9  Staff Development, Early
Release 12:15

23 Staff Development, Early
Release 12:15

26 Memorial Day

28 Last Day of Instruction

D Minimum Days and Flex Release @12:15pm



A@
G.
REALMS

25 5. Downs Avenue Ridgecrest. CA $3555-4531
Phone {760) 3751010 Fax (760) 3757766 Website www rcrealms.org

2024-2025
REGULAR BELL SCHEDULE

Transitional Kindergarten/Kindergarten/Grade 1

Regular Day Schedule (Monday-Friday)

8:00 9:30 90
9:30 9:45 Break 15
9:43 11:30 103
11:30 12:15 Lunch 45
12:15 3:00 165
Total Minutes: 420
Total Instructional Minutes: 360
Grades 2 to 3
Regular Day Schedule (Monday-Friday)
8:00 9:45 105
9:45 10:00 Break 15
13:00 12:00 120
12:00 12:45 Lunch 45
12:45 3:00 135

Total Minutes: 420
Total Instructional Minutes: 360

Grades 4 to 6

Regular Day Schedule (Monday-Friday)

8:00 10:00 120
10:00 10:15 Break 13
10:15 12:30 135
12:30 1:15 Lunch 45
1:15 3:00 105

Total Minutes: 420
Total Instructional Minutes: 340




O
REALMS

325 5. Downs Avenue Ridgecresi, CA $3555-4531
Phone (760} 375.1010  Fax (760} 375.7766 Website www rcreakns org

2024-2025
MINIMUM DAY BELL SCHEDULE

Transitional Kindergarien/Kindergarten/Grade 1

Minimum Day Schedule (Monday-Friday)

8:00 9:30 90
9:30 9:45 Break 15
9:45 11:00 75
11:00 11:30 Lunch 30
11:30 12:15 45

Total Minutes: 255
Total Instructional Minutes: 210

Grades 2 to 3

Minimum Day Schedule (Monday-Friday)

2:00 9:45 105
9:45 10:00 Break 15
10:00 11:20 80
11:20 i1:50 Lunch 30
11:50 12:15 25

Total Minutes: 255
Total Instructional Minutes: 210

Grades4to 6
Minitnum Day Schedule (Mondays-Fridays)
8:00 10:00 120
10:00 10:15 Break 15
10:15 11:40 83
11:40 12:10 Lunch 30
12:10 12:15 5

Total Minutes: 255
Total Instructional Minutes: 210




yooqyxal

a1ydesHoas [euoneN

sJAYDES) 04 SSBD0B JUIUQ

yoogalou puom Ap

%00qIx3} PHOA, AN

s8Ipn)g [E190G - SEAARS

SJ9yJes) JO) SSBD0E IUUO

uonippe siayoeal

NEPIAL 8210E14 pue Bulyoesiay

syooqxa]

YIE UOISIAUT - UOSIEAd

5I92E9) O} SS3208 AUUD

uoljippe slayoeal

uoiuedwo?) Buipeay aso|D

doysylop Bunupa / Buipesy

sa1Bojoyuy

SISPUOM - IIH MBS 21




Aoeleyn o} ysune - a1l

elsiA - ysiueds

s19Y2ES] 10} §5920€ BUUD

uolippe s1ayoses|

uoedwon Yo0galoN Mam




[e120G ‘Uoljaniisu]
pue wnnang ‘sigd
‘f9jeg pue saIcES
:apnioul sespWIwIoD
sBuesw sapILUWOD
ul ayedoped

Liog Jels payissef
pug pajenuapai)

Buiiely sauy

Aq pauiuuziep aq (I
yeys bugeddiyed-0d
pays|duwodaoe 3om

jo yodai pue epusby

Ajgpuow x| sBunesiy
BANILWOYD ? 4BIS
Ayuow

x| -sapunpoddo
Buiuresn |euoissajold
00:+-0E:C
shepu4-xa|4

"LIODISSED 8y} Ul Jawl
Buiag a1 sue|d UsSpM
JI2y) Jo sjuawalinbal
1|e 2insus o}

113 10 'P0S ‘431 LSS
UE SABY OUM SIUSPNIS
MaIna) 0) 3w siu}
asn geis Buiyoeay (I

Aena sjuedisiped

paysidwos3E Hiom
jo yodai pue epushy

sBunasiy
F0S/d3NNLSS

papasu se sally 1ayl0
wd QoiF-G1E

10 Wr'e gy:/-00:2

Apjaam sajnuiw G
sAepsiny ]

(sessep ¢) apelb o
(sosse|o 7) spesb pig
(sassE|0 7) apesb puz

{sosse|o 7) apeub 1s|

AL

sue|d uossa APEsm

uofjonsu|
pajenualagig pue
T13-Buluue|d uosss

wd Q0-5LE

10 “W'e G:2-00:L

Apjeam salnuiw Gt

sAepsaupapn

(sossep ¢) apeib o-v
{sossep g) apeib pig
(sasse|o g) ope.b pug

(sassejp ) apelb is|

AL

W04 UOHBAIRSAQ SSe|D

[oOUIS
Jaye 1o s10j8q sbuasw
dn mojjo} Yum sAepsang
1o sAepuoly uo Aep
|[ooyas ayy buunp auop
suojeAlasgo-Buyoeo)

‘wrd 00:v-G1'€

10 W'e G:/-00'L

Apj@am sanuiwl i
sAepsan]

(sassep ¢) apelb o-¢
{sosse|o g) apelb pig
{sosseo Z) apeld pug

{sosselo Z) apeib 1s|

ML

paysi|dwoose yiom
Jo podal pue epuaby

Apeay! ‘ddSvYvO
‘"YIMN 'Sair
W0y} EJep Juapnis
BuizAjeue-sJ1d

‘wd go:#-G1E

i0 W'B G /-00:L

Apjeam sanuiu Gy
SABpUCI

8|npayos uohe.oge||o] Ao GZ-7202

sjuedioined
sjuediniped
sjuediniped

sjuedpiyed

siuedpiped

awoonNQ palinbay

Alinnoy

SaL
Bupsay [euondo

sawl] Bunaap

panojje awil
Aepyaapa



325 S. Downs, Ridgecrest, California 93555
Phone (760) 375-1010 Fax (760) 375-7766

MASTER AGREEMENT FOR SHORT TERM INDEPENDENT STUDY

Student Name Grade

ID Number Teacher
Birth date Age
E-Mail Telephone
Address

Reason for Request
Does the student receive Special Education Services? oYes GNo

Have |EP modifications/accommodations been taken into consideration when listing assignments? oYes oNo
First Date of Planned Absence Last Date of Planned Absence Total Days
Return Date

Method of Study:
Specific methods of study will be designated on the Student Assignment Sheet and Attendance Record incorporated herein.
Examples of methods of study for the student will include but are not limited to:

* Independent Reading » Texthook Activities * Problem Solving « Study Projects
* Drill & Practice ¢ Experiential Learning + Computerized Curriculum » Internet Research
* Library Research * Field Trips « Learning Center Courses * Other:

Method of Evaluation:
Academic evaluations will be designated on the Student Assignment Sheet and Attendance Record incorporated herein. Examples of
acceptable methods of evaluation include but are not limited to:

* Teacher-made Tests » Student Conferences *» Progress/Report Cards = Chapter/Unit Tests

» Work Samples « Observations » Partfolios » State Standardized Testing
* Learning Journals * Presentations * Quizzes * Labs

* Finals + Other:

Resources:

The school will provide appropriate instructional materials and personnel to enable the student to complete the assigned work.
Resources must include those reasonably necessary to the achievement of the objectives and must inciude resources that are
normally available to all students on the same terms as the terms on which they are available to all. Assignments and specific
resources will be designated on the Assignment and Attendance Record incorporated herein.

Board Paolicies:

1. For pupils in all grade levels offered by the Charter School, short term independent study is available for students who may
be absent for 1 or more school days. Maximum of days per year is 14 school days (EC sections 51 744-51749.6).

2. For pupils in grades TK-3, the maximum length of time that may elapse between the time an assighment is made and the
date by which the pupil must complete the assigned work shall be 1 week.

3. A pupil in grades TK-3 may miss 20% of assignments during any period of 1 week before an evaluation is conducted to
determine whether it is in the best interests of the pupil to remain in independent study. Therefore, when any pupil fails to
complete 80% of assignments during any period of 1 week, the Administrator or designee shall conduct an evaluation to
determine whether it is in the best interests of the pupil to remain in independent study. A written record of the findings of
any evaluation conducted pursuant to this policy shall be treated as a mandatory interim pupil record. This record shall be
maintained for a period of three years from the date of the evaluation and if the pupil transfers to another California public
school, the record shall be forwarded to that school.

Objectives:



I/S Days |

The student will complete the courses listed below. All course objectives will be consistent with the established charter school’s
policies and are consistent with charter school standards, as outlined in the charter school’s subject/course descriptions. Assignment
Sheet and Attendance Record will include additional descriptions of the major objectives and activities of the courses of study

covered by this agreement including the evaluation of student work and is incorporated herein. The term “Course Value” {“CV")
refers to the weeks of work the student will attempt.

Course Credits or Other Measuras of Academic Achievement to be Earned Upon Completion

Category Subject v Achievements
English-Languag
e Arts
Mathematics

Sacial Studies or
Hummanities
Science

Total Equivalent
Days Completed

Conditions of the Independent Study Agreement

1. The major objective for the duration of this agreement is to enable the student to keep current with the grade studies for
the period covered by this agreement.

2. This agreement is to enable the student to successfully meet all applicable State Content Standards. With the support of
the parent, guardian, or caregiver the student will submit all assignments on or before the due date.

3. All the assigned work must be completed, maintained in order in the assignment folder, and returned the day the student
returns or the designated day of return, whichever comes first.

4. Assignments completed and submitted by due date will earn full academic credit. To receive full credit, all work in all
subjects must be completed.

5. If the assigned work is not returned on time as explained above, the student will not receive credit. All parties agree that
failure to complete this contract may result in the lowering of a grade and will require evaluation of whether or not the pupil
may participate in future short term independent study contracts.

6. ALL work completed pursuant to this contract will be graded, and a copy will be kept in the records office.

7. Failure to comply will void this short term independent study contract.

Voluntary Statement:

It is understood that independent study is an optional educational alternative in which no pupi! may be required to participate. In
the case of a pupil who is referred or assigned to any school, class or program pursuant ta Education Code Section 48915 or 48317,

instruction may be provided to the pupil through independent study only if the pupil is offered the alternative of classroom
instructiion.

ALL OF THE FOLLOWING SIGNATURES ARE REQUIRED BEFORE THE STUDENT LEAVES.

| have read and | understand the terms of this agreement, and agree to all provisions set forth.

Student Signature: Date:
Parent/Guardian/Caregiver Signature: Date:
Teacher Signature: Date:

Administrator Signature: Date:




Student Study Team Request & Modification History

Student Name
Grade/Teacher
Address
City/State/Zip
Phone
DOB Number:

Home Language

Describe
Specific
Concerns:

Describe
Student’s
Strengths:

I o .J

o



BEHAVIOR

INTERVENTIONS

ACADEMIC

INTERVENTIONS

ATTENTION
INTERVENTIONS

ENVIRONMENT
INTERVENTIONS

TEACHING
TECHNIQUES

O Team with another

0 Review of CUME

0 Reinforcement for

O Stdy carrels

o o o o

student

Detention

Reward for starting,

continuing, or
completing rask

Daily citizenship
report

Parent phone call
Parent conference

Proximity and
mobility
Student conference

Change seat

Preferential seating in
classroom

Parent conference

Parent observe

student in the
classroom or school

Refer to Restorative
Justice
Get auditory or visual

attention before
beginning lesson

Use non-verbal signs

to stop inappropriate
behavior Assignment
book contract

Daily contract
Weekly contract
School contract

Positive note sent
home

folder

O Informal testmg

O Breakdown of tasks
into small steps/contert
analysis

O Use ditferent learning
approaches: visual,
auditory, multi-sensory,
gte.

O Provide visual cues:
emphasize symbols,
illustrations, etc.

0 Copying for visual
motor reinforcement

O Use of concrete
materials

O  Use of media

O  Provide auditory cues:
read instructions
individually, tape
record directions, etc.

O Teach to student’s
strength

00 Teacher circuiates
around room

O Limil # of oral
instructions

O Vary volume of voice

B Use eye contact

O List assignments and/or
instructions on board

O Clarification of
instructions

O Differentiate for
diverse needs

O  Tedcher tutoring after

school

starting, continuing,
or completing task

Use of timer

Positive notes sent

home

Classroom
performance
contract
Provide routing
schedule

Frequent

assignments/
activities of short
duration.

Frequent breaks in
routine/release
tension

Refocus by tap on

shoulder, or desk,
soft name call ot
other signal

Get auditory &

visual attention
before beginning
lesson

Use non-verbal
signals to stop
inappropriate
behavior signals in
advance

Provide necessary

materials to aid the
unorganized child
Specify time
expectations/
specify what to do
upon
completion/how to
get help if needed.

O Change of seating
arrangement

& Reduce distractions

O Special seating area

O Change of
cooperative groups

O Class change

0  Schedule change

O Change groups

0  Use eye confact

Vary voice volume

Teacher circulates
around room.
Repeat instructions
differently

Use visnal aids in

giving instructions.
(Overhead and
board}

Teach study skilis

Explicit Direct

Instruction and
Checking for
Understanding

Alternative lesson

dehivery

\@)

)




Student Study Team Request & Modification History

Current Academic Levels (% in grade book and NWEA scores):
ELA

Math

NWEA
ELA

NWEA
Math

NWEA
Language

Attendance: Days attended this year / Days enrolled this year = %o
Number of excused absences

Behavior Regularly Displayed: (check all that apply)

OHyperactivity O Insecurity OAggressiveness [ Frustration
OApathy OShow-off [ Defiance OTries hard
ODependability [0 Chewing [ Destructiveness [ Day Dreams
OCrying HTantrums 1 Moodiness [1Stealing

UBad Language O Cheerfulness [0 Cooperative O] Explosive reactions
[JAnxiety OlIndifference [ Withdrawal [ Fearfulness

Other:

Who discussed concerns with the parent?

Contact Person Contact Dates Method (phone, email, in
person)
Referred by: Position: Date:




Positive O  Parent help (at home or
reinforcement of school)
appropriate responses | o Peer/cross-age tutoring
Removal from .
O Teach study skills
classroom:
--t0 anather O Reinforcement of
classroom "
--to an administrator CORSSCL IESPOnSEs
immediately
Reduced da
ue ¥ 0 Use of tators
85T . ;
O Small group mstruction
IEP behavior plan --Universal Access
addendum 0 Modify/shorten
PBIS assignments
O Extend time to
complete assignment
O Assignment book
contract
O Remedial intervention
O 1tol tcacher time
O  Parent conference
O Explicit Direct
Instruction and
Checking for
Understanding
RSST-3




SV
(O

RIDGECREST ELEMENTARY ACADEMY
MUSIC, AND SCIENCE

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

2024-2025
Concentration = PLC, PBIS, and Thinking Maps
Monday, July 29, 2024 Professional Learning Communities (PLC) Training
by KCSOS -3 hrs
Tuesday, July 30, 2024 Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports - 30 min.

Workplace Violence Prevention Plan Training - 1 hr
KIDS Training - 2 hrs
Wednesday, July 31, 2024 SIPPS Training - 1 hr
DIBELS Training - 30 min
PLC Training Part Two - 3 hrs

Thursday, August 1, 2024 Aeries Training - 3 hrs
SIPPS Training - 1 hr
Friday, August 2, 2024 Project Lead the Way (PLTW) Training - 6 hrs
Friday, August 23, 2024 PBIS Presentation
Friday, Sept. 13, 2024 Teacher’s observe another classroom / school off campus
Friday, Sept. 20, 2024 PLTW Inservice (6 hrs)
Friday, Sept. 27, 2024 PLTW Inservice (3hrs)
Future professional development
TBD PL.C Inservice - 2 hrs
TBD PBIS - KCSOS - 6 hrs
Friday. Feb. 28, 2025 PLC Inservice - 2 hrs
Thinking Maps Professional Development with KCSOS (Denise Gentry)
Wednesday, Nov. 20, 2024 Thinking Maps - 8 hours
Wednesday, Dec. 18, 2024 Thinking Maps - 8 hours
Thursday, Feb. 6, 2025 Thinking Maps
Monday, March 10, 2025 Thinking Maps
Tuesday, March 11, 2025 Thinking Maps
Monday, March 24, 2025 Thinking Maps
Tuesday, March 25, 2025 Thinking Maps
Monday., March 24, 2025 Thinking Maps

Tuesday, March 25, 2025 Thinking Maps



Teacher Mentoring / Coaching Program
Push into classes - 4 hrs per month plus:

Friday, Nov. 22, 2024
Friday, Jan. 31, 2025
Friday, Feb. 28, 2025
Friday, March 28, 2025
Friday, April 25, 2025

Music Inservice
Saturday, Sept. 14, 2024

Continuing

Mentoring 2 hours
Mentoring 2 hours
Mentoring 2 hours
Mentoring 2 hours
Mentoring 2 hours

Bakersfield 8 hours

Ongoing Aeries training



BYLAWS OF RIDGECREST CHARTER SCHOOL.
(A California nonprofit public benefit corporation)

MEMBERSHIP; GENERAL AND SPECIFIC PURPOSES; LIMITATIONS:
DEDICATION OF ASSETS

A. General and Specific Purposes

This corporation is a nonprofit public benefit corporation and is not organized for the private
gain of any person. It is organized under the Nounprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law for
public and charitable purposes. This corporation is organized exclusively for educational
purposes within the meaning of Inicrnal Revenue Code section 501 (¢) (3) or the
corresponding provision of any future United States internal revenue law. Despite any other
provisions in these bylaws, the Corporation shall not, except to an insubstantial degree,
engage in any activities or exercise any powers that do not further the purpose of this
corporation, and the corporation shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be
carricd on by (a) a corporation exempt from federal income tax under Internal Revenue Code
section 501 (c) (3) or the corresponding provision of any future United States intetnal revenue
law; or (b) a corporation, contributions to which are deductible under Internal Revenue Code
section 170 (¢) (2) or the corresponding provision of any future United States internal revenue
law. No substantial part of the activities of the Corporation shall consist of the carrying on of
propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the Corporation shall not
participate in, or intervene in (including the publishing or distributing of statements) any
political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for public office.

B. Members

The corporation shall have no voting members within the meaning of the nonprofit
corporation law. The rights which would otherwise vest in the members vest in the directors
of the corporation (hereinafter "Trustees") of RCS.

Actions which would otherwise require approval by a majority of all members or approval
by the members require only approval of a majority of all Trustees or approval by the Board
of Trustees (hereinafter "Board™).

C. Dedication of Assets

This corporation's assets are irrevocably dedicated to public benefit purposes as set forth in
the Charter School's Charter. No part of the net earnings, properties, or assets of the
corporation, on dissolution or otherwise, shall inure to the benefit of any private person or
individual, or to any Trustee or officer of the corporation. On liquidation or dissolution, all
properties and assets rematning after payment, or provision for payment, of all debts and
liabilities of the corporation shall be distributed to a nonprofit fund, foundation, or corporation
that is organized and operated exclusively for charitable purposes and that has established its
exempt status under Internal Revenue Code section 501(c)(3).

Page 10f15



IL

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

A. Powers

The Board shall conduct or direct the affairs of the corporation and exercise its
powers, subject to the limitations of the California Nonprofit Public Benefit
Corporation Law, the Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws. The Board may
delegate the management of the activities of the corporation to others, so long as the
affairs of the corporation are managed, and its powers are exercised, under the Board's
ultimate jurisdiction.

Without limiting the generality of the powers herc granted to the Board, but subject to
the same limitations, the Board shall have all the powers enumerated in these Bylaws,
and the following specific powers:

1. Appoint and remove, at the discretion of the Board of Trustees, all
corporate officets, agents, and employees; prescribe powers and duties
for them as are consistent with the law, the articles of incorporation,
and these bylaws; fix their compensation; and require from them
security for faithful service.

2. Change the principal office or the principal business office in
California from one location to another, cause the corporation to be
qualified to conduct its activities in any other state, territory,
dependency, or country; and conduct its activities in or outside
California.

3. Borrow money and incur indebtedness on the corporation's behalf and
cause to be executed and delivered for the corporation's purposes, in
the corporate name, promissary notes, bonds, debentures, deeds of
trust, mortgages, pledges, hypothecations, and other evidences of debt
and securities.

4. Adopt and use a corporate seal.
B. Number of Trustees

The number of Trustees of the corporation shall be no less than five (5) and no more
than seven (7). The Board may fix the aumber of Trustees by Board resolution or
amendment of the Bylaws.

The corporation will strive to compose a Board that includes a city community member,
a member appointed by staff election, and three school community members (including
the parent or guardian of currently enrolled students). All members, excluding the
charter authorizer designated representative, shall be subject to an election process as
outlined in Section 11.C. and none shall be employed by the School or receive any direct
or indirect financial benefit from relationships with the School. One member shall be
held aside for charter authorizer appointment. Per Education Code 47604(b), the charter
authorizer may designate a voting representative to the Board at the discretion of the
authorizer.

Page 2 of 15



C.

Nomination, Election of Trustees & Terms of Office

1.

Nomination and Election Process.

Not less than sixty (60) days prior to April 30th, the Board Chair shall
appoint a Nominating Committee of not more than five (5) members
consisting of at least one (1) Trustec, at least one (1) staff member, and
at least one (1) parent or guardian of a current RCS student. [t shall be
the duty of the Committee to return a list of nominees for election to
the Board according to eligibility guidelines listed in Section C.2.
Eligible individuals may also self-nominatc, subject to applicable
deadlines, and will be included on the list of nominees. A ballot with
all eligible candidates will be prepared and distributed.

The Board of Trustees elections shall be held in May, beginning on the
first Monday in May of each year, All current Ridgecrest Charter
School staff membets shall first vote for the staff-elected Trustee from
the list of current board members as well as the list of nominees for the
open positions on the board. The staff-elected Trustee shall be elected
by majority vote and if they were not a current board member, their
name shall be removed from the ballot prior to the school community
election and the number of Trustee vacancies shall be reduced by one.

Thereafter, ballots shall be distributed to each school community
member. Each school community member is entitled to submit one
ballot. School community members include each parent and/or legal
guardian of children currently enrolled in Ridgecrest Charter School
(not to exceed a total of two ballots per family). The number of
nominees equal to the number of upcoming Trustee vacancies who
receive the majority of the votes will be considered the elected
Trustees.

Eligibility. The electing bodies (staff and school community members)
may elect any person who in their discretion they believe will serve the
interests of the corporation faithfully and effectively. Candidates must
accept nomination or be self nominated to be placed on any ballot.

Interested Persons. No Trustees serving on the Board may be interested
persons. An "interested person” is:

a. Any person currently being compensated by the corporation for
services rendered to it within the previous 12 months, whether as
a full-time or part-time employee, independent contractor or
otherwise, excluding any reasonable compensation paid to a
Trustee as Trustee; or

b. Any sister, brother, ancestor, descendant, spouse, sister-in-law,

Page 3 of 15



brother-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, mother-in-law ,
father-in-law, common law, domestic partner, or any persons or
persons of common personal financial interests of any such
person. However, any violation of this paragraph shall not affect
the validity or enforceability of transactions entered into by the
corporation. The Board may adopt other policies circumscribing
potential conflicts of interest.

c. Any Presiding Trustee that becomes or endeavors to become, an
interested person, be it intentional or otherwise, is in violation of
Ridgecrest Charter School Bylaws Section II, item C-2:
Eligibility, and must resign their post to remedy the conflict of
interest. If resignation does not occur in a timely fashion the
Board may act appropriately under Section 11, item D of the RCS
Bylaws.

4, Term of Office.

a. The term of office of all members of the Board of Trustees,
excluding the charter authorizer designated representative, shall
be two (2) years.

b. Terms shall be staggered to ensure continuity. Two terms will

end on June 30 of the even calendar years and three terms will
end on June 30 of the odd calendar years.

C. No Trustee may serve for more than three consecutive terms of
service (for a total of no more than six (6) consecutive years).

d. A Trustee's term of office shall not be shortened by any
reduction in the number of Trustee resulting from amendment
of the Articles of Incorporation or the Bylaws or other Board
action.

e. A Trustee's term of office shall not be extended beyond that for
which the Trustee was elected by amendment of the Articles of
Incorporation or the Bylaws or other Roard action.

D. Removal of Trustees

Any Trustee may be removed, with or without cause, by the vote of the majority of the
remaining Trustees at a special meeting called for that purpose, or at a regular meeting,
provided that notice of that meeting and of the removal in question are given in
compliance with the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act {Chapter 9 (commencing
with Section 54950) of Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code]. Any vacancy

caused by the removal of a Trustee shall be filled as provided in Scction F.

The electing bodies shall also reserve the right to recall any Trustee at its discretion by
majority vote following the submission to the Board of a majority signed petition

(signed by either a majority of the staff for the staff-clected Trustee, or a majority of the
Paged of 15



ml

parents/guardians of currently enrolled students for all other Trustees).
E. Resignation by Trustee

A Trustee may resign by giving signed written notice to the Board Chair or Board
President or Secretary. The resignation becomes effective when given, and/or at any
later date specified in the written notice of resignation. A Trustee may not resign if the
Trustee's resignation would leave the corporation without a duly elected Trustee in
charge of its affairs, without first giving notice to the California Attorney General.

E. Vacancies

A vacancy is deemed to occur on the effective date of the resignation of a Trustee,
upon the removal of a Trustee, upon declaration of vacancy pursuant o these Bylaws,
or upon a Trustee's death. A vacancy is also deemed to exist upen the increase by the
Board of the authorized number of Trustees.

When a vacancy occuts, a nominating committee shall be appointed as specified in
Section C.1. The committee shall select a nominee for proposal to the remaining
Trustees. Vacancies on the Board of Trustees may be filled by vote of the Board of
Trustees, or, if the number of Trustees then in office is less than a quorum, by (1) the
affirmative vote of a majority of the Trustees then in office ata meeting held
according to notice complying with Corporations Code Section 6211, or (2) asole
remaining Trustee.

G. Compensation of Trustees
Trustees shall serve without compensation. However, the Board may apptove

reimbursement of a Trustee's actual and necessary expenses while conducting
corporation business.

PRINCIPAL OFFICE

The corporation's principal office shall be at 325 South Downs Street, Ridgecrest, California,
93555, or at such other place as the Board may select by resolution or amendment of the
Bylaws. The Secretary shall note any change in principal office on the copy of the Bylaws
maintained by the Secretary.

Iv.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

All meetings of the Board shall be called, held, and conducted in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Ralph M. Brown Act, California Government Code Sections 54950, et
seq., as said chapter may be modified by subsequent legislation.

A. Place of Meetings

Meetings shall be held at the principal office of the Corporation. The Board of Trustees
Page 5 of 15



may designate that a meeting be held at any place within the Charter School’s
jurisdiction that has been designated by resolution of the Board of Trustees or in the
notice of the meeting. All meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be called, held and
conducted in accordance with the terms and provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act,
California Government Code Sections 54930, et seq, as said chapter may be modified
by subsequent legislation.

B. Annual Meetings

An Annual Meeting shall be held in July of each year for the purpose of swearing in
Trustees, electing board positions, making and receiving reports on corporate affairs, and
transacting other business as comes befare the meeting. This meeting shall be held at a
time, date, and place as may be specified and noticed by resolution of the Board of
Trustees.

C. Regular Meetings

Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees, including annual meetings, shall be held at
such times and places as may from time to time be fixed by the Board of Trustees. At
feast 72 hours before a regular meeting, the Board of Trustees, or its designee shall post
an agenda containing a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted
or discussed at the meeting.

D. Special Meetings

Special meetings of the Board for any purpose may be called at any time by the Chair of
the Board or a majority of the Board of Trustees. The party calling a special meeting
shall determine the place, date, and time thereof,

E. Adjournment

A majority of the Trustees present at a meeting may adjourn the meeting 1o another time
and place. If a meeting is adjourned for more than twenty-four (24) hours, notice of such
adjournment to another time or place shall be given, prior to the time schedule for the
continuation of the meeting, to the Trustees who were not present at the time of the
adjournment, and to the public in the manner prescribed by any applicable public open
meeting law.

F. Notices
Notices of Board Meetings shall be given as follows:

1. Annual Meetings and Regular Meetings: At least 72 hours before a regular
meeting, the Board of Trustees, or its designee shall post an agenda
containing a brief general description of each item of business to be
transacted or discussed at the meeting.

Page 6 of 15



2. Special Meetings. In accordance with the Brown Act, special meetings
of the Board of Trustees may be held only after at least twenty-four (24)
hours’ nofice is given to each Trustee and to the public through the
posting of an agenda. Pursuant to the Brown Act, the Board shall adhere
to the following notice requirements for special meetings:

a.

Any such notice shall be addressed or delivered to each Trustee at
the Trustee's email or physical address as it is shown on the records
of the Corporation, or as may have been given to the Corporation
by the Trustee for purposes of notice, of, if an address is not shown
on the Corporation's records or is not readily ascertainable, at the

place at which the meetings of the Board of Trustees are regularly
held.

Notice by mail shall be deemed received at the time a properly
addressed written notice is deposited in the United States mail,
postage prepaid. Any other written notice shall be deemed
received at the time it is personally delivered to the recipient ot
is delivered to a common carrier for transmission, or is actually
transmitted by the person giving the notice by electronic means o
the recipient. Oral notice shall be deemed received at the time it
is communicated, in person or by telephone or wireless, to the
recipient or to a person at the office of the recipient whom the
person giving the notice has reason to believe will promptly
communicate it to the receiver.

The notice of special meeting shall state the time of the meeting,
and the place if the place is other than the principal office of the
Corporation, and the general nature of the business proposed to
be transacted at the meeting. No business, other than the business
the general nature of which was set forth in the notice of the
meeling, may be transacted at a special meeting.

ACTION BY THE BOARD

A.

A majority of the voting Trustees then in office shall constitute a quorum., If a quorum

is present, the affirmative vote of the majority of the voting power represented at the

Quorum

meeting, entitled to vote, and voting on any matter shall be a decision of the Board of
Trustees. Should there be less than a majority of the Trustees present at any meeting,

no quorum exists and a meeting will not be held. Voting Trustees may not vote by

proxy.

B.

Action by the Board

1. Actions Taken at Board Meetings. The actions done and decisions
made by a majority of the Trustees present at a meeting duly held at
which a quorum is present are the actions and decisions of the Board,
except for purposes of electing Trustees, appointing committees and

Page 7of 15



delegating authority thereto, or amending the corporation's Bylaws,
where the action of a majority of Trustees then in office is required by
the California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law or as set out
in these Bylaws.

28 Board Meeting by Conference Telephone. Members of the Board of
Trustees may participate in teleconference meetings so long as all of
the following requirements in the Brown Act are complied with:

a.

C. Committees

At 2 minimum, a quorum of the members of the Board of
Trustees shall participate in the teleconference meeting from
locations within the boundaries of the schoot district in which the
Charter School operates;

All votes taken during a teleconference meeting shall be by roll
call;

If the Board of Trustees elects to use telecanferencing, it shall
post agendas at all teleconference locations with each
teleconferance location being identified in the natice and agenda
of the meeting;

All locations where a member of the Board of Trustees
participates in a meeting via teleconference must be fully
accessible to members of the public and shall be listed on the
agenda;'

Members of the public must be able to hear what is said during
the meeting and shall be provided with an opportunity to address
the Board of Trustees directly at each teleconference location;
and

The agenda shall indicate that members of the public atiending a
meeting conducted via teleconference need not give their name
when entering the conference call.?

1. Appointment of Committces. The Board may appoint one or more
Board Committees by vote of the majority of Trustees. A Board
Standing Committee will consist of not less than two Trustees, who
shall serve at the pleasure of the Board.

2. Authority of Board Committees. The Board may delegate to 2 Board
committee any of the authority of the Board, except with respeci to:

| {Members of the Board of Trustees who choose to utilize their homes or offices as
teleconference locations must open these lacations to the public and accommodate any
members of the public who wish to attend the meeting at that locaticn.

2 The Brown Act prohibits requiring members of the public to provide their names as a
condition of attendance at the meeting.

Page 8 of 15



D.

The election of Trustees.

Filling vacancies on the Board or any committee which has the
authority of the Board.

The fixing of Trustee compensation for serving on the Board or
on any comumittee.

The amendment or repeal of any Board resolution.

The amendment or repeal of Bylaws or the adoption of new
Bylaws.

The appointment of other committees of the Board, or the
members of the committees.

The expenditure of corporate funds to support a nominee for
Trustee.

Approve any contract ot fransaction to which the corporation is
a party and in which one or more of its Trustees has a material
financial interest.

Procedures of Committees. Meetings and actions of committees of the
Board of Trustees shall be governed by, held, and taken under the
provisions of these bylaws concerning meetings, other Board of
Trustees' actions, and the Brown Act, if applicable, except that the time
for general meetings of such commiltees and the calling of special
meetings of such committecs may be set either by Board of Trustees'
resolution or, if none, by resolution of the committee. Minutes of each
meeting shall be kept and shall be filed with the corporate records. The
Board of Trustees may adopt rules for the governance of any committee
as long as the rules arc consistent with these bylaws. If the Board of
Trustees has not adopted rules, the commitiee may do so.

Standard of Care

1.

Performance of Duties. Each Trustee shall perform all duties of a
Trustee, including duties on any Board Committee, in good faith, in a
manner the Trustee believes to be in the corporation's best interest and
with such care, including reasonable inquiry, as an ordinary prudent
person in a like position would use under similar circumstances.

Reliance on Others. In performing the duties of a Trustee, 2 Trustee shall
be entitied to rely on information, opinions, reports or statements,
including financial statements and other financial data, presented or
prepared by:

d.

Onc or more officers or employees of the corporation whom the
Trustee believes to be reliable and competent in the matters
presented,

Legal counsel, independent accountants or other persons as to

Page 9 of 15



VL

matters that the Trustee believes are within that person's
professional or expert competence; or

C. A Board Committee on which the Trustee does not serve, as to
matters within its designated authority provided the Trustee
believes the Committec merits confidence and the Trustee acts
in good faith, after reasonable inquiry when the need is
indicated by the circumstances, and without knowledge that
would cause such reliance to be unwarranted.

3. Investments. In investing and dealing with all assets held by the
corporation for investment, the Board shall exercise the standard of
care described above and avoid speculation, looking instead to the
permanent disposition of the funds, consideting the probable income,
as well as the probable safety of the corporation’s capital, The Board
may delegate its investment powers 10 others, provided that those
powers are exercised within the ultimate direction of the Board. No
investment violates this section where it conforms to provisions
authorizing such investment contained in an instrument or agreement
pursuant to which the assets were contributed to the corporation.

E. Rights of Inspection

Every Trustee has the right to inspect and copy all books, records and documents of
every kind and to inspect the physical properties of the corporation, provided that such
inspection is conducted at a reasonable time after reasonable notice, and provided that
such right of inspection and copying is subject to the obligation to maintain the
confidentiality of the reviewed information, in addition to any obligations imposed by
any applicable federal, state or local law.

F. Participation in Discussions and Voting

Every Trustee has the right to participate in the discussion and vote on all issues
before the Board or any Board Committee, except Trustees shall adhere to the
provisions of the RCS Conflicts Code, these bylaws, and any Trustee shall be excused
from the discussion and vote on any matter involving; (a) a self-dealing transaction;
(b) a conflict of interest, (¢) indemnification of that Trustee; or (d) any other matter at
the discretion of a majority of the Trustees then present.

G. Duty to Maintain Board Confidences

Every Trustee has a duty to maintain the confidentiality of all Board actions, including
discussions and votes. Any Trustee violating this confidence may be removed from
the Board. Mareover, the Trustee may be disciplined, including immediate dismissal,
if Board information is disclosed without the Chair's prior approval.

OFFICERS
A. Officers

The officers of the corporation consist of a President (hereinafter "Chair"), Vice
President (hereinafter "Vice Chair"), a Secretary and a Chief Financial Officer

(hereinafter "Treasurer"). The corporation also may have such other officers as the
Page 10 of 15



Board deems advisable.

1.

Chair. Subject to Board control, the Chair has general supervision,
direction and control of the affairs of the corporation, and such other
powers and duties as the Board may prescribe. If present and able, the
Chair shall preside at Board meetings.

Vice Chair. If the Chair is absent or disabled, the Vice Chair shall
perform all the Chair's duties and, when so acting, shall have all the
Chair's powers and be subject to the same restrictions, The Vice Chair
shall have other such powers and perform such other duties as the
Board may prescribe.

Secretary. The Secretary shall: (a) keep or cause to be kept, at the
corporation's principal office, o such other place as the Board may
direct a book of minutes of all meetings of the Board and Board
Committees, noting the time and place of the meeting, whether it was
regular or special (and if special, how authotized), the notice given, the
names of those present, and the proceedings; (b) keep or cause 10 be
kept a copy of the corporation's Atticles of Incorporation and Bylaws,
with amendments; (c) give ot cause to be given notice of the Board and
Committce meetings as required by the Bylaws; and (d) have such
other powers and perform such other duties as the Board may
prescribe.

Treasurcr. The Treasurer shall: (a) keep or cause to be kept adequate
and correct accounts of the corporation's properties, receipts and
disbursements; {b) make the books of account available at all times for
ingpection by any Trustee; (c) deposit or cause to be deposited the
corporation's monies and other valuables in the corporation's name and
to its credit, with the depositories the Board designates; (d) disburse or
cause to be disbursed the corporation’s funds as the Board directs; (e)
render to the Chair and the Board, as requested but no less frequently
than once every fiscal year, an account of the corporation's financial
transactions and financial condition; (f) prepare any reports on financial
issues required by an agresment on loans; and (g) have such other
powers and perform such other duties as the Board may prescribe.

B. Election, Eligibility and Terms of Office

1.

Election. The Board shall elect the officers annually at the Annual
Mecting or a Regular Meeting designated for that purpose or at 2
Special Meeting called for that purpose, except that officers elected to
fill vacancies shall be elected as vacancies occur.

Eligibility. A Trustee may hold any number of offices, except that
neither the Secretary nor Treasurer may serve concurrently as the
Chair.

Terms of Office. Each officer serves at the discretion of the Board,
holding office until resignation, removal or disqualification from
service, or until his or her successor is elected.

Page 11 of 15



C. Removal and Resignation

The Board may remove any officer, either with or without cause, at any time. Such
removal shall not prejudice the officer's rights, if any, under an employment contract.
Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the corporation, the
resignation taking effect on receipt of the notice or at a later date as specified in the
notice.

VII. NON-LIABILITY OF TRUSTEES

The Trustees shall not be personally liable for the corporation's debts, liabilities or other
obligations.

VIII. INDEMNIFICATION OF CORPORATE AGENTS

To the fullest extent permitted by law, this corporation shall indemnify its Trustees, officers,
employees, and other persons described in Corporations Code Section 5238(a), including
persons formerly occupying any such positions, against all expenses, judgments, fines,
settlements, and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred by them in connection with
any "proceeding,” as that term is used in that section, and including an action by or in the right
of the corporation by reason of the fact that the person is or was a person described in that
section. "Expenses," as used in this bylaw, shall have the same meaning as in that section of the
Corporations Code.

On written request to the Board of Trustees by any person secking indemnification under
Corporations Code Section 5238 (b) or Section 5238 (c) the Board of Trustees shall promptly
decide under Corporations Code Section 5238 (¢) whether the applicable standard of conduct
set forth in Corporations Code Section 5238 (b) or Section 5238 (c) has been met and, if so, the
Board of Trustccs shall authorize indemnification.

I1X. INSURANCE FOR CORPORATE AGENTS

The Board may adopt a resolution authorizing the purchase and maintenance of insurance on
behalf of any Trustee, officer, employee or other agent of the corporation, against any liability
other than for violating provisions of law relating to self-dealing asserted against or incurred
by the agent in such capacity or arising out of the agent's status as such, whether or not the
corporation would have the power to indemnify the agent against such liability under the
provisions of the California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law.

X. SELF-DEALING TRANSACTIONS

A. Contracts with Directors

The Corporation shall not enter into a contract or tranisaction in which a Trustee
directly or indirectly has a material financial interest (nor shall the Corporation
enter into any contract or transaction with any other corporation, firm,
association, or other entity in which one or more of this Corporation's Trustees

Page 12 0f 15



are directors and have a material financial interest). Pursuant to Education Code
section 47604.1 (effective Jan. [, 2020), notwithstanding Article 4
(commencing with Section 1090) of Chapter 1 of Division 4 of Title | of the
Government Code, an employee of a charter school shall not be disqualified
from serving as a member of the governing body of the charter school because
of that employee’s employment status. A member of the governing body of a
charter school who is also an employee of the charter school shall abstain from
voting on, or influencing or attempting to influence another member of the
governing body regarding, all matters uniquely affecting that member’s
employment,

B. Contracts with Non-Trustee Designated Employees

The Corporation shall not enter into a contract or transaction in which a non-
trustee designated employee (e.g., officers and other key decision-making
employees) directly or indirectly has a material financial interest unless all of
the requirements in the Corporation’s Conflict of Interest Code have been
fulfilled.

C. Loans to Trustees and Officers

This corpotation shall not lend any money or property to or guarantee the obligation of
any Trustee or officer without the approval of the California Attorney General,
provided, however, that the corporation may advance money to 2 Trustee ot officer of
the corporation for expenses reasonably anticipated to be incurred in the performance
of his or her duties if that Trustee or officer would be entitled to reimbursement for such
expenses of the corporation.

OTHER PROVISIONS
A. Fiscal Year.

The fiscal year of the corporation begins on July 1 of each year and ends on June
30 of the following year.

B. Execution of Instruments.

Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, the Board may adopt a resolution
authorizing any officer or agent of the corporation to enter into any coniract or
execute and deliver any instument in the name of or on behalf of the
corporation. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.
Unless so authorized, no officer, agent or employee shall have any power to bind
the corporation by any contract or engagement, to pledge the corporation's
credit, or to render it liable monetarily for any purpose or any amount.

C. Checks and Notes.

Except as otherwise specifically provided by Board resolution, checks, drafts,
promissory notes, orders for the payment of money, and other evidence of
indebtedness of the corporation may be signed by the Chair, Treasurer or RCS
Executive Director.

Page 13 of 15



D. Construction and Definitions.

Unless the context otherwise requires, the general provisions, rules of
construction, and definitions contained in the California Nonprofit Corporation
Law and the California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law shall govern
the construction of these Bylaws. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, words in these Bylaws shall be read as the masculine or feminine
gender, and as the singular or plural, as the context requires, and the word
“person” includes both a corporation and a natural person. The captions and
headings in these Bylaws are for convenience of reference only and are not
intended to limit or define the scope or effect of any provisions.

E. Conflict of Interest

The corporation shall comply with the provisions of the California Corporations
Code applicable to nonprofit public benefit corporations, as well as the Political
Reform Act and Government Code Section 1090, as applicable to public charter
schools pursuant to Education Code Section 47604.1.

F. Interpretation of Charter

Whenever any provisions of these Bylaws are in conflict with the provisions of the
Charter, the provisions of the Charter and the Conflicts Code control.

G. Compliance with Laws Governing Student Records
The Boatd shall comply with all applicable provisions of the Family Education Rights
and Privacy Act ("FERPA") as set forth in Title 20 of the United States Code Section
1232g.
Xil. AMENDMENT
The Board of Trustees may adopt, amend or repeal any of these Bylaws by a majority of the
Trustees present at a meeting duly held at which a quorum is present, except that no
amendment shall change any provisions of the Charter that created the Ridgecrest Charter

Qchool or make any provisions of these Bylaws inconsistent with that Charter, the
corporation’s Articles of Incorporation, or any laws.

Certificate of Secretary

Page 14 of 15



I certify that [ am the duly elected and acting Secretary of Ridgecrest Charter School,
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation; that these Bylaws, consisting of 15 pages,
are the Bylaws of this corporation as adopted by the Board of Directors in 2001 and amended
on 09 September 2020 and that these Bylaws have not been amended or modified since that most
recent date.

Executed on 9th of September 2020, at Ridgecrest, California.

YL N ~ Deana Lukens, Secretary

Page 15 of 15



2335376

SECRETARY OF STATE

I, BILL JONES, Secretary of State of the State of California,
hereby certify:

That the attached transcript of Z page(s) has
been compared with the record on file in this office, of
which it purports to be a copy, and that it is full, true
and correct.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | execute this
certificate and affix the Great Seal of
the State of California this day of

Max 17 2001

e

Secretary of State

- §F 98 13324



Nro
(h)
(%)
i
Ly

16

ENDORSED - FILED
inthe office of the Secretary of State
of the State of California

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION MAR 1 2 2001
OF
RIDGECREST CHARTER SCHOOL BILL JONES, Secrotasy of Siats

(A California Non-Profit Public Benefit Corporation)

L
The name of the Corporation shall be: Ridgecrest Charter School.

IL

The Corporation is a non-profit public benefit corporation and is not organized for the
private gain of any person. It is organized under the Non-Profit Public Benefit Corporation Law
for public and charitable purposes. The specific purposes for which this Corporation is
organized are to manage, operate, guide, direct and promote the Ridgecrest Charter School (2
California public schoot).

The Corporation is organized and operated exclusively for charitable purposes pursuant
to and within the meaning of section 501{c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code or the
corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law. Notwithstanding any
other provision of these articles, the Corporation shall not, except 1o an insubstantial degree,
engage in any other activities or exercise of power that do not further the purposes of the
Corporation. The Corporation shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried
on by: (a) a corporation exempt from federal income tax under section 501{c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future federal tax code; or (b) by a

corporation, contributions to whicl deductible under section 170(c)(2) of the Internal
Revenue Code, or the correspondin; . m of any future federal tax code.
1.

The name and address in the State of California of this Corporation’s initial agent for
service of process is:
Paul C. Minney
7 Park Center Drive
Sacramento, CA 95825

Iv.

All corporate property is irrevocably dedicated to the purposes set forth in the second
article above. No part of the net earnings of the Corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be
distributable to any of its directors, members, trustees, officers or other private persons except
that the Corporation shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for
services rendered, and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set
forth in Article IT.




No substantial part of the activities of the Corporation shall consist of the carrying on of
propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the Corporation shall not
participate in, or intervene in (including the publishing or distribution of statements) any political
campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for public office.

Subject to the provisions of the non-profit public benefit provisions of the Non-Profit
Corporation Law of the State of California, and any fimitations in the articles or bylaws relating
to action to be approved by the members or by a majority of all members, if any, the activities
and affairs of this Corporation shall be conducted and all the powers shall be exercised by or
under the direction of the board of directors.

The number of directors shall be as provided for in the bylaws. The bylaws shall
prescribe the qualifications, mode of election, and term of office of directors.

V.

The authorized number and qualifications of members of the corporation, if any, the
different classes of membership, the property, voting and other rights and privileges of members,
and their Liability for dues and assessments and the method of collection thereof, shall be set
forth in the bylaws.

VL

Upon the dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, its assets remaining after payment
of all debts and liabilities of the Corporation, shall be distributed to a non-profit fund,
foundation, or association which is organized and operated exclusively for educational, public or
charitable purposes and which has established its tax exempt status under section 501{c)(3) of the
Tnternal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future federal tax code, or shall be
distributed to the federal government, or ta a state or local government, for a public purpose.
Any such assets not so disposed of shall be disposed of by a court of competent jurisdiction of
the county in which the principal office of the Corporation is then located, exclusively for such
purposes or to such organization or organizations, as said court shall determine, which are
organized and operated exclusively for such purposes.

Dated: ;’/2‘250/ 5 {ﬂéi’///%‘;;‘/_
aul C. Minney

Incorporator




RIDGECREST CHARTER SCHOOL

CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE

L ADOPTION

[n compliance with the Political Reform Act of 1974. California Government Code Section 87100,
et seq., the Ridgecrest Charter School hereby adopts this Conflict of Interest Code (“Code™), which
shall apply to all governing board members and all other designated employees of Ridgecrest
Charter School (“Charter School™), as specifically required by California Government Code
Section 87300.

I1. DEFINITION OF TERMS

As applicable to a California public charter school, the definitions contained in the Political
Reform Act of 1974, the regulations of the Fair Political Practices Commission, specifically
California Code of Regulations Section 18730, and any amendments or modifications to the Act
and regulations are incorporated by reference to this Code.

III. DESIGNATED EMPLOYEES

Employees of this Charter School. including governing board members, who hold positions that
involve the making or participation in the making, of decisions that may foreseeably have a
material effect on any financial interest, shall be “designated employees.” The designated positions
are listed in “Exhibit A” attached to this policy and incorporated by reference herein.

IV. STATEMENT OF ECONOMIC INTERESTS: FILING

Each designated employee, including governing board members, shall file a Statement of
Economic Interest (“Statement™) at the time and manner prescribed by California Code of
Regulations, title 2. section 18730, disclosing reportable investments, interests in real property,
business positions, and income required to be reported under the category or categories to which
the employee’s position is assigned in “Exhibit A.”

An investment, interest in real property or income shall be reportable, if the business entity in
which the investment is held, the interest in real property. the business position, or source of
income may foreseeably be affected materially by a decision made or participated in by the
designated employee by virtue of his or her position, The specific disclosure responsibilities
assigned to each position are set forth in “Exhibit B.”

Statements Filed With the Charter School. All Statements shall be supplied by the Charter
School. All Statements shall be filed with and retained by the Charter School. The Charter
School’s filing officer shall maintain all Statements and make them available for public
inspection and reproduction upon request (Government Code Section 31008).

RIDGECREST CHARYER SCHOOL PAGE10F2
CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE



EXHIBIT B

Disclosure Categories

Category 1 Reporting:
Designated positions assigned to this category must report:

A. Interests in real property which is located in whole or in part within a two mile radius:
a. of any school district that has authorized a Ridgeerest Charter School charter school, or
b. of any facility utilized by Ridgecrest Charter School charter schools, or
¢. of aproposed site for a Ridgecrest Charter School facility.

B. Investments and business positions in business entities, and sources of income (including gifts,
loans, and travel payments) of the type that engage in the purchase or sale of real property or are
engaged in building construction or design.

Category 2 Reporting:

Designated positions assigned to this category must report:

A, Investments and business positions in business entities and sources of income (including gifts,
loans, and travel payments) that are contractors engaged in the performance of work or services, or
sources that manufacture, sell, repair, rent or distribute school supplies, books, materials, school
furnishings or equipment of the type utilized by Ridgecrest Charter School.

Category 3 Reporting:

Designated positions assigned to this category must repott:

A. Investments and business positions in business entities and sources of income (including gifts.
loans, and travel payments) that are contractors engaged in the performance of work or services, of
sources that manufacture, sell, repair, rent or distribute school supplies, books, materials, school
furnishings or equipment of the type utilized by the designated position’s department.

Approved: September 9, 2020
Approved Revision: November 29, 2022

RIDGECREST CHARTER SCHOOL PAGE1 OF 1
CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE
EXHIBIT B



Ridgecrest Elementary
Academy for Language,
Music, and Science

o)X ¢}
)

RIDGECREST ELEMENTARY ACADEMY
MUSIC, AND SCIENCE

Employee Handbook
2024-2025

325 South Downs Street
Ridgecrest, CA 93555
Phone: (760) 375-1010

Fax: (760) 375-7766



ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK

PLEASE READ THE EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK AND SUBMIT A SIGNED COPY OF THIS ‘
STATEMENT TO THE SUPERINTENDENT.

EMPLOYEE NAME: ]

1 ACKNOWLEDGE that I have received a copy of the Employee Handbook. | have read and
understood the contents of the Handbook, and T agree to abide by its directions and procedures. I
have been given the opportunity to ask any questions I might have about the policies in the
Handbook. I understand that it is my responsibility to read and familiarize myself with the
policies and procedures contained in the Handbook. I also understand that if I am ever unclear on
any language, or policies and procedures in this Handbook, it is my responsibility to seek
clarification from the School.

I understand that the statements contained in the Handbook are guidelines for employees
concerning some of the School's policies and benefits. and are not intended to create any
contractual or other legal obligations or to alter the at-will nature of my employment with the
School. In the event 1 do have an employment contract which expressly alters the at-will
relationship, | agree to the foregoing except with reference to an at-will employment status.

| understand that except for employment at-will status, any and all policies or practices can be
changed at any time by the School.

I understand that other than the Governing Board, no person has authority to enter into any
agreement, express or implied, for employment for any specific period of time, or fo make any
agreement for employment other than at-will: only the Board has the authority to make any such
agreement and then only in writing signed by the Board President.

Employee’s Signature: Date:

Please print name/sign/date, tear out, and return to the School.
Retain this Handbook for your reference.



Expectations for REALMS Staff

1. Be self-sufficient.

2. Be a team player.

3. Contribute to a positive school culture.

4. Be accountable for your performance.

5. Be willing to learn, grow, and try new things.

Employee Name:

Employee’s Signature:

Date:

Please print name/sign/date, tear out, and return to the School.
Retain this Handbook for your reference.



Table of Contents

INTRODUCTION TO HANDBOOK
CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT
Equal Employment Opportunity Is Our Policy
Employment At-Will
Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting
Criminal Background Checks
Tuberculosis Testing
Immigration Compliance
Professional Boundaries: Staff/Student Interaction Policy
Policy Prohibiting Unlawful Harassment, Discrimination, and Retaliation
Whistleblower Policy
Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace
Confidential Information
Conflict of Interest
No Smoking
THE WORKPLACE
Work Schedule
Meal and Rest Periods
Lactation Accommodation
Attendance and Tardiness
Timecards/Records
Use of Email. Voicemail and Internet Access
Personal Business
Social Media
Personal Appearance/Standards of Dress
Health and Safety Policy
Security Protocols
Occupational Safety
Accident/Incident Reporting
Reporting Fires and Emergencies
EMPLOYEE WAGES AND HEALTH BENEFITS
Payroll Withholdings

Overtime Pay

o o~ SN N N h W e W

—



Paydays
Wage Attachments and Garnishments
Medical Benefits
COBRA Benefits
PERSONNEL EVALUATION AND RECORD KEEPING
Employee Reviews and Evaluations
Personnel Files and Record Keeping Protocols
HOLIDAYS, VACATIONS AND LEAVES
Holidays
Vacation
Unpaid Leave of Absence
Sick Leave
Family Care and Medical Leave
Pregnancy Disability Leave
Industrial Injury Leave (Workers” Compensation)
Military and Military Spousal Leave of Absence
Bereavement Leave
Jury Duty or Witness Leave
Voting Time Off
School Appearance and Activities Leave
Bone Marrow and Organ Donor Leave
Victims of Abuse Leave
Returning From Leave of Absence
DISCIPLINE AND TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT
Rules of Conduct
Oft-Duty Conduct
Termination of Employment
INTERNAL COMPLAINT REVIEW
Internal Complaints
Policy for Complaints Against Employees
General Requirements
AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK
APPENDIX A
APPENDIX B
INTERNAL COMPLAINT FORM

21
21
21
22
24
24
24
26
26
26
26
27
28
33
37
38
38
39

39
39
40
41
42
42
43
44
45
45
45
46
47
48
50
50



INTRODUCTION TO HANDBOOK

This Handbook is designed to help employees get acquainted with Ridgecrest Elementary
Academy for Language, Music, and Science (hercinafter referred to as “REALMS” or the
“School™). It explains some of our philosophies and beliefs, and describes some of our
employment guidelines in general terms. Although this Handbook is not intended to be an
exclusive or comprehensive policies and procedures manual, we hope that it will serve as a
useful reference document for employees throughout their employment at the School. Employees
should understand, however, that this Handbook is not intended to be a contract (express or
implied), nor is it intended to otherwise create any legally enforceable obligations on the part of
the School or its employees. In no way does the Handbook replace any official plan documents
(e.g., health insurance, retirement plan, etc.) or insurance contracts. which will govern in all
cases. This Handbook supersedes and replaces all previous personnel policies, practices, and
guidelines.

Due to the fact that REALMS is a growing and changing organization, it reserves full discretion
to add to. modify, or delete provisions of this Handbook, or the policies and procedures on which
they may be based, at any time without advance notice. REALMS also reserves the right to
interpret any of the provisions set forth in this Handbook in any manner it deems appropriate.

No individual other than the Board of Directors has the authority to enter into any employment
or other agreement that modifies REALMS policy. Any such modification must be in writing.

This Handbook is the property of the REALMS, and it is intended for personal use and
reference by employees of the REALMS. Circulation of this Handbook outside of the
REALMS requires the prior written approval of the Superintendent.

Employees must sign the acknowledgment form at the beginning of this Handbook, tear it out,
and return it to the Superintendent. This will provide the School with a record that each
employee has received this Handbook.



CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT

Equal Employment Opportunity Is Our Policy

REALMS is an equal opportunity employer. It is the policy of REALMS to afford equal
employment and advancement opportunity to all qualified individuals without regard to:
e Race (including traits historically associated with race, such as hair texture and hairstyle,
including but not limited to braids, locks, and twists).
e Color;

Gender (including gender identity, gender expression and transgender identity, whether or
not the employee is transitioning or has transitioned);
e Sex (including reproductive health decision-making, pregnancy, childbirth, breastteeding,
and medical conditions related to such);
e Sex stereotype (inciuding an assumption about a person's appearance or behavior, gender
roles, gender expression, or gender identity, or about an individual's ability or inability to
perform certain kinds of work based on a myth, social expectation, or generalization
about the individual’s sex);
Religious creed (including religious dress and grooming practices);

Marital/registered domestic partner status;
Age (forty (40) and over);

National origin or ancestry (including native language spoken) and possession of a
driver’s license issued to persons unable to prove their presence in the U.S. is authorized
by federal law;

Physical or mental disability (including HIV and AIDS);

Medical condition {(including cancer and genetic characteristics);

Taking of a leave of absence pursuant to the Family Medical Leave Act ("FMLA™),
Pregnancy Disability Leave ("PDL”) law, Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA”),
California Family Rights Act (*CFRA"), the Fair Employment and Housing Act
“FEHA"), or laws related to domestic violence, sexual assault and stalking;

Genetic information;

Sexual orientation;
Military and veteran status; or

Any other consideration made unlawful by federal. state, or local laws.

This policy extends to all job applicants and employees and to all aspects of the employment
relationship, including the hiring of new employees and the training, transfer, promotion,
discipline, termination, compensation and benefits of existing employees.

To comply with applicable laws ensuring equal employment opportunities to qualified
individuals with a disability, the School will make reasonable accommodations for the known
physical or mental limitations of an otherwise qualified individual with a disability who is an
applicant or an employee unless undue hardship would result.

Any applicant or employee who requires an accommodation in order to perform the essential
functions of the job should contact a School representative with day-to-day personnel
responsibilities and request such an accommodation. The individual with the disability should
specify what accommodation he or she needs to perform the job, or if unknown, what job duties



the disability impairs. REALMS will conduct an investigation to identify the barriers that
interfere

with the equal opportunity of the applicant or employee to perform his or her job. REALMS will
identify possible accommodations. if any, that will help eliminate the limitation. If the
accommodation is reasonable and will not impose an undue hardship, REALMS will make the
accommodation.

Employment At-Will

Except if stated expressly otherwise by employment contract, it is the policy of REALMS that all
employees are considered “at-will" employees of REALMS. Accordingly, either REALMS or
the employee can terminate this relationship at any time, for any reason, with or without cause,
and with or without advance notice.

Nothing contained in this Handbook, employment applications, REALMS memoranda or other
materials provided to employees in connection with their employment shall require REALMS to
have “cause” to terminate an employee or otherwise restrict REALMS right to release an
employee from their at-will employment with REALMS. Statements of specific grounds for
termination set forth in this Handbook or elsewhere are not all-inclusive and are not intended to
restrict REALMS right to terminate at-will. No School representative, other than the Board or
Superintendent or its designee, is authorized to modify this policy for any employee or to make
any representations to employees or applicants concerning the terms or conditions of
employment with REALMS that are not consistent with the REALMS policy regarding “at-will”
employment.

This policy shall not be modified by any statements contained in this Handbook or employee
applications, School memoranda, or any other materials provided to employees in connection
with their employment. Further, none of those documents whether singly or combined, or any
employment practices, shall create an express or implied contract of employment for a definite
period, nor an express or implied contract concerning any terms or conditions of employment.

Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting

California Penal Code section 11166 requires any child care custodian who has knowledge of, or
observes, a child in his or her professional capacity or within the scope of his or her employment
whom he or she knows or reasonably suspects has been the victim of child abuse to report the
known or suspected instance of child abuse to a child protective agency immediately, or as soon
as practically possible, by telephone and to prepare and send a written report thereof within
thirty- six (36) hours of receiving the information concerning the incident,

REALMS will provide annual training on the mandated reporting requirements, using the online
training module provided by the State Department of Social Services. to employees who are
mandated reporters. Mandated reporter training will also be provided to employees hired during
the course of the school year. This training will include information that failure to report an
incident of known or reasonably suspected child abuse or neglect, as required by Penal Code
section 11166, is a misdemeanor punishable by up to six (6) months confinement in a county jail,
or by a fine of one-thousand dollars ($1,000), or by both imprisonment and fine.

All employees required to receive mandated reporter training must provide proof of completing
the training within the first six (6) weeks of each school year or within the first six (6) weeks of
that employee’s employment.



By acknowledging reccipt of this Handbook, employees acknowledge they are child care
custodians and are certifying that they have knowledge of California Penal Code section 11166
and will comply with its provisions. The phone number for the Ridgecrest office of the Kern
County Department of Human Services Child Abuse Hotline is (760) 375-6049. Mandated
reporter forms can be found at:
https://www.co.kern.ca.us/dhs/ChildWelfareServices/child_abuse_reporting.html

Criminal Background Checks

As required by law, all individuals working or volunteering at REALMS will be required to
submit to a criminal background investigation. No condition or activity will be permitted that
may compromise REALMS commitment to the safety and the well-being of students takes
precedence over all other considerations. Conditions that preclude working at REALMS include
conviction of a controlled substance or sex offense, or a serious or violent felony. Similarly,
convictions involving crimes of moral turpitude (e.g., fraud), child abuse or neglect, violence, or
any offense which may make the employee unsuitable/undesirable to work around students may
also serve as a bar to employment at the School. Additionally, should an employee be arrested
for, charged with, or convicted of any offense during his/her employment with REALMS, the
employee must immediately report as much to the Superintendent.

Tuberculosis Testing

All employees of the School must submit written proof from a health care provider of a risk
assessment examination for tuberculosis (TB) within the last sixty (60) days. If TB risk factors
are identified, a physician must conduct an examination to determine whether the employec is
free of infectious TB. The examination for TB consists of an approved TB test. which, if
positive, will be followed by an x-ray of the lungs. or in the absence of skin testing. an x-ray of
the lungs. All employees will be required to undergo TB risk assessments and, if risk factors are
found, the examination at least once every four (4) years. Volunteers may be required to undergo
a TB examination as necessary. The TB risk assessment and, if indicated, the examination is a
condition of initial employment with REALMS and the cost of the exam will be borne by the
applicant.

Food handlers may be required to have annual TB exams. Documentation of employee and
volunteer compliance with TB risk assessments and examinations will be kept on file in the
office. This requirement also includes contract food handlers, substitute teachers, and student
teachers serving under the supervision of an educator. Any entity providing student services to
the School will be contractually required to ensure all contract workers have had TB testing that
shows them to be free of active TB prior to conducting work with REALMS students.

Immigration Compliance

REALMS will comply with applicable immigration law, including the Immigration Reform and
Conirol Act of 1986 and the Immigration Act of 1990. As a condition of employment, every
individual must provide satisfactory evidence of his or her identity and legal authority to work in
the United States. However, REALMS will not check the employment authorization status of
current employees or applicants who were not offered positions with REALMS unless required
to do so by law.

REALMS shall not discharge an employee or in any manner discriminate, retaliate, or take any



adverse action (e.g., threatening to report the suspected citizenship or immigration status of an
employec or a member of the employee’s family) against any employee or applicant for
employment because the employee or applicant exercised a right protected under applicable law.

Further, REALMS shall not discriminate against any individual because he or she holds or
presents a driver’s license issued per Vehicle Code § 12801.9 to persons who have not
established their federally-authorized presence in the United States. Finally, in compliance with
the immigrant Worker Protection Act, the School shall not allow a federal immigration
enforcement agent to enter any nonpublic areas of the School without a judicial warrant, or
voluntarily give consent to an agent to access, review or obtain employee records without a
subpoena or judicial warrant. If a search of employee records is authorized by a valid subpoena
or judicial warrant, the School will give employees notice of the inspection both before and after
it has occurred as required by law.

Professional Boundaries: Staff/Student Interaction Policy
REALMS recognizes its responsibility to make and enforce all rules and regulations governing
student and employee behavior to provide the safest and most learning-conducive environment

possible.

Corporal Punishment

Corporal punishment shall not be used as a disciplinary measure against any student. Corporal
punishment includes the willful infliction of, or willfully causing the infliction of, physical pain
on a student.

For purposes of this policy, corporal punishment does not include an employee’s use of force that
is reasonable and necessary to protect the employee, students, staff or other persons or to prevent
damage to property.

For clarification purposes, the following examples are offered for direction and guidance of
REALMS personnel:

A. Examples of PERMITTED actions (NOT corporal punishment)

Stopping a student from fighting with another student;

Preventing a pupil from committing an act of vandalism;

Defending yourself from physical injury or assault by a student;

Forcing a pupil to give up a weapon or dangerous object;

Requiring an athletic team to participate in strenuous physical training
activities designed to strengthen or condition team members or improve
their coordination, agility, or physical skills;

6. Engaging in group calisthenics, team drills, or other physical education or
voluntary recreational activities.

Sl bl

B. Examples of PROHIBITED actions (corporal punishment)

1. Hitting, shoving, pushing, or physically restraining a student as a means of
control;
2. Making unruly students do push-ups, run laps, or perform other physical

acts that cause pain or discomfort as a form of punishment;
3. Paddling, swatting. slapping, grabbing, pinching, kicking, or otherwise



causing physical pain.

Acceptable and Unacceptable Staff/Student Behavior

This policy is intended to guide all REALMS faculty and staff in conducting themselves in a way
that reflects the high standards of behavior and professionalism required of school employees
and to specify the boundaries between students and staff.

Although this policy gives specific, clear direction, it is each staff member’s obligation to avoid
situations that could prompt suspicion by parents, students, colleagues. or school leaders. One
viable standard that can be quickly applied, when you are unsure if certain conduct is acceptable,
is to ask yourself, “Would 1 be engaged in this conduct if my family or colleagues were standing
next to me?”

For the purposes of this policy, the term “boundaries” is defined as acceptable professional
behavior by staff members while interacting with a student. Trespassing the boundaries of a
student/teacher relationship is deemed an abuse of power and a betrayal of public trust.

Some activities may seem innocent from a staff member’s perspective, but can be perceived as
flirtation or sexual insinuation from a student or parent point of view. The objective of the
following lists of acceptable and unacceptable behaviors is not to restrain innocent, positive
relationships between staff and students. but to prevent relationships that could lead to, or may be
perceived as, sexual misconduct.

Staff must understand their own responsibility for ensuring that they do not cross the boundaries
as written in this policy. Disagreeing with the wording or intent of the established boundaries
will be considered irrelevant for disciplinary purposes. Thus, it is crucial that all employees learn
this policy thoroughly and apply the lists of acceptable and unacceptable behaviors to their daily
activities. Although sincere, competent interaction with students certainly fosters leaming,
student/staff interactions must have boundaries surrounding potential activities, locations and
intentions.

Duty to Report Suspected Misconduct

When any employee reasonably suspects or believes that another staff member may have crossed
the boundaries specified in this policy, he or she must immediately report the matter to a school
administrator. All reports shall be as confidential as possible under the circumstances. It is the
duty of the administrator to investigate and thoroughly report the situation. Employees must also
report to the administration any awareness or concern of student behavior that crosses boundaries
or where a student appears to be at risk for sexual abuse.

Examples of Specific Behaviors

The following examples are not an exhaustive list: Unacceptable

Staff/Student Behaviors (Violations of this Policy)

(a) Giving gifts to an individual student that are of a personal and intimate nature,
(b)  Kissing of any kind.

(c) Any type of unnecessary physical contact with a student in a private situation.
(d) Intentionally being alone with a student away from the school.



(e) Making or participating in sexually inappropriate comments.
(H Sexual jokes.

(2) Seeking emotional involvement with a student for your benefit.
(h) Listening to or telling stories that are sexually oriented.

1)) Discussing inappropriate personal troubles or intimate issues with a student in an
attempt to gain their support and understanding.
) Becoming involved with a student so that a reasonable person may suspect

inappropriate behavior.

Unacceptable Staff/Student Behaviors without Parent and Supervisor Permissign

(These behaviors should only be exercised when a staff member has parent and supervisor
permission.)

(a)  Giving students a ride to/from school or school activities.
(b) Being alone in a room with a student at school with the door closed.
{c) Allowing students in your home.

tion taff t Behavior,

(These behaviors should only be exercised when a reasonable and prudent person, acting as
an educator, is prevented from using better practice or behavior. Staff members should
inform their supervisor of the circumstance and occurrence prior to or immediately after
the occurrence)

(a) Remarks about the physical attributes or development of anyone.

(b)  Excessive attention toward a particular student.

(c) Sending emails, text messages or letters to students if the content is not about
school activities

Acceptable and Recommended Staff/Student Behaviors

(a) Getting parents’ written consent for any after-school activity.

(b) Obtaining formal approval to take students off school property for activities such
as field trips or competitions.

(e) Emails, text, phone and instant messages to students must be very professional
and pertaining to school activities or classes (Communication should be limited to
school technology).

(d) Keeping the door open when alone with a student.

{e) Keeping reasonable space between you and your students.

(H Stopping and correcting students if they cross your own personal boundaries.

&) Keeping parents informed when a significant issue develops about a student.

(h)  Keeping after-class discussions with a student professional and brief.

(1) Asking for advice from fellow staff or administrators if you find yourself in a
difficult situation related to boundaries.
1)) Involving your supervisor if conflict arises with the student.

(k) Informing the Superintendent. about situations that have the potential to become
more severe.

(Iy Making detailed notes about an incident that could evolve into a more serious
situation later.

(m) Recognizing the responsibility to stop unacceptable behavior of students or



coworkers.

(n)  Asking another staff member to be present if you will be alone with any type of
special needs student.

(0)  Asking another staff member to be present when you must be alone with a student
after regular school hours.

(p)  Giving students praise and recognition without touching them.

(qQ Pats on the back, high fives and handshakes are acceptable.

(1) Keeping your professional conduct a high priority.

(s) Asking yourself if your actions are worth your job and career.

Policy Prohibiting Unlawful Harassment, Discrimination, and Retaliation

REALMS is committed to providing a work and educational atmosphere that is free of unlawful
harassment, discrimination, and retaliation. REALMS policy prohibits unlawful harassment.
discrimination. and retaliation based upon: race (including traits historically associated with race,
such as hair texture and hairstyle. including but not limited to braids, locks, and twists); color;
gender (including gender identity, gender expression, and transgender identity, whether or not the
employee is transitioning or has transitioned); sex (including reproductive health
decision-making, pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding, and related medical conditions); sex
stereotype (including an assumption about a person's appearance or behavior, gender roles,
gender expression, or gender identity. or about an individual's ability or inability to perform
certain kinds of work based on a myth, social expectation, or generalization about the
individual's sex); religious creed (including religious dress and grooming practices).
marital/registered domestic partner status; age (forty (40) and over); national origin or ancestry
(including native language spoken and possession of a driver’s license issued to persons unable
to prove their presence in the U.S. is authorized by federal law); physical or mental disability
(including HIV and AIDS); medical condition (including cancer and genetic characteristics);
taking a leave of absence authorized by law; genetic information; sexual orientation; military and
veteran status; or any other consideration made unlawful by federal, state, or local laws.

Employees, volunteers, unpaid interns, individuals in apprenticeship programs, and independent
contractors shall not be harassed, or discriminated or retaliated against, based upon the
characteristics noted above.

REALMS does not condone and will not tolerate unilawful harassment, discrimination, or
retaliation on the part of any employee (including supervisors and managers) or third party
(including independent contractors or other persons with which the REALMS does business).
Supervisors and managers are to report any complaints of unlawful harassment to the
Superintendent or designee.

When REALMS receives allegations of unlawful harassment, discrimination, or retaliation, the
Board (if a complaint is about the Superintendent.) or the Superintendent or designee will
conduct a fair, timely and thorough investigation that provides all parties an appropriate process
and reaches reasonable conclusions based on the evidence collected. The investigation will be
handled in as confidential a manner as possible, although complete confidentiality cannot be
guaranteed. Complainants and witnesses shall not be subject to retaliation for making complaints
in good faith or participating in an investigation. REALMS is committed to remediating any
instances where investigation findings demonstrate unlawful harassment, discrimination, or
retaliation has occurred.

Prohibited Unlawful Harassment




Verbal conduct such as epithets, derogatory jokes or comments or slurs;

Physical conduct including assault, unwanted touching, intentionally blocking normal
movement, or interfering with work because of sex. race or any other protected basis;
. Retaliation for reporting or threatening to report harassment; or

) Disparate treatment based on any of the protected classes above.

Prohibited Unlawful Sexual Harassment

REALMS is committed to providing a workplace free of sexual harassment and considers such
harassment to be a major offense, which may result in disciplinary action, up to, and including
dismissal, of the offending employee.

Sexual harassment consists of sexual advances, request for sexual favors and other verbal or
physical conduct of a sexual nature, regardless of whether or not the conduct is motivated by
sexual desire, when: (1) submission to the conduct is either made explicitly or implicitly a term
or condition of an individual’s employment; (2) an employment decision is based upon an
individual’s acceptance or rejection of that conduct; and/or (3) that conduct interferes with an
individual’s work performance or creates an intimidating. hostile or offensive working
environment.

It is also unlawful to retaliate in any way against an employee who has articulated a good faith
concern about sexual harassment against him or her or against another individual.

All supervisors of staff will receive two (2) hours of sexual harassment prevention training
within six (6) months of hire or their assumption of a supervisory position and every two (2)
years thereafter. All other employees will receive one (1) hour of sexual harassment prevention
training within six (6) months of hire and every two (2) years thereafter. Such training will
address all legally required topics, including information about the negative effects that abusive
conduct has on both the victim of the conduct and others in the workplace, as well as methods to
prevent abusive conduct undertaken with malice a reasonable person would find hostile,
offensive, and unrelated to an employer’s legitimate business interests. Abusive conduct includes
but is not limited to repeated infliction of verbal abuse, such as the use of derogatory remarks,
insults, and epithets, verbal or physical conduct that a reasonable person would find threatening.
intimidating, or humiliating, or the gratuitous sabotage or undermining of a person’s work
performance. Supervisors shall also be trained on how to appropriately respond when the
supervisor becomes aware that an employee is the target of unlawful harassment. Other staff will
receive sexual harassment prevention training as required by law.

Each employee has the responsibility to maintain a workplace free from any form of sexual
harassment. Consequently, should any individual, in particular those with supervisory
responsibilities, become aware of any conduct that may constitute sexual harassment or other
prohibited behavior, immediate action should be taken to address such conduct. Any employee
who believes they have been sexually harassed or has witnessed sexual harassment is encouraged
to immediately report such harassment to the Superintendent. See Appendix A for the
“Harassment/Discrimination/Retaliation Complaint Form.” Sec Appendix B for the general
“Internal Complaint Form.” Complaints that fall within the scope of Title IX will be investigated
in accordance with the School’s Title IX Policy and Procedures.

Sexual harassment may include, but is not limited to:

o Physical assaults of a sexual nature, such as:



0 Rape, sexual battery, molestation or attempts to commit these assaults and

o Intentional physical conduct that is sexual in nature, such as touching, pinching,
patting, grabbing, brushing against another’s body. or poking another’s body.

e Unwanted sexual advances, propositions or other sexual comments, such as:

0 Sexually oricnted gestures, notices, remarks, jokes, or comments about a person’s
sexuality or sexual experience.

o  Preferential treatment or promises of preferential treatment to an employee for
submitting to sexual conduct, including soliciting or attempting to solicit any
employee to engage in sexual activity for compensation or reward or disparate
treatment for rejecting sexual conduct.

o  Subjecting or threats of subjecting an employee to unwelcome sexual attention or
conduet or intentionally making performance of the employee’s job more difficult
because of the employee’s sex.

e Sexual or discriminatory displays or publications anywhere at the workplace by
employees, such as:

o  Displaying pictures, cartoons, posters, calendars, graffiti, objections, promotional
materials, reading materials, or other materials that are sexually suggestive,
sexually demeaning or pornographic or bringing to work or possessing any such
material to read, display or view at work;

0 Reading publicly or otherwise publicizing in the work environment materials that
are in any way sexually revealing, sexually suggestive, sexually demeaning or
pornographic; and

o  Displaying signs or other matetials purporting to segregate an employee by sex in
an area of the workplace (other than restrooms or similar rooms).

The illustrations of harassment and sexual harassment above are not to be construed as an all-
inclusive list of prohibited acts under this policy. Morcover, please note that while in most
situations a personal relationship is a private matter, these relationships are not appropriate in a
professional setting, particularly where one of the parties has management or supervisory
responsibilities. As such, consensual relationships in the workplace may violate REALMS

policy.
Whistleblower Policy

REALMS requires its Superintendent, officers, employees. and volunteers to observe high
standards of ethics in the conduct of their duties and responsibilities within REALMS. As
representatives of REALMS, such individuals must practice honesty and integrity in fulfilling all
responsibilities and must comply with all applicable laws and regulations. The purpose of this
policy is to create an cthical and open work environment, to ensure that REALMS has a
governance and accountability

structure that supports its mission, and to encourage and enable Superintendent, officers,
employees. and volunteers of REALMS to raise serious concerns about the occurrence of illegal
or unethical actions within REALMS before turning to outside parties for resolution.



All Superintendent, officers, employees, and volunteers of REALMS have a responsibility to
report any action or suspected action taken within REALMS that is illegal. unethical or violates
any adopted policy of REALMS, or local rule or regulation. Anyone reporting a violation must
act in good faith, without malice to REALMS or any individual at REALMS and have
reasonable grounds for believing that the information shared in the report indicates that a
violation has occurred. A person who makes a report does not have to prove that a violation has
occurred. However, any report which the reporter has made maliciously or any report which the
reporter has good reason to believe is false will be viewed as a serious disciplinary offense. No
one who in good faith reports a violation, or who, in good faith, cooperates in the investigation of
a violation shall suffer harassment, retaliation, or adverse employment action. Further, no one
who in good faith discloses, who may disclose. or who REALMS believes disclosed or may
disclose, information regarding alleged violations to a person with authority over the employee
or another employee who had responsibility for investigating, discovering or correcting the
purported violation shall suffer harassment, retaliation, or adverse employment action.

Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace

REALMS is committed to providing a drug and alcohol-free workplace and to promoting safety
in the workplace, employee health and well-being, customer confidence and a work environment
that is conducive to attaining high work standards. The use of drugs and alcohol by employees,
whether on or off the job, jeopardizes these goals, since it adversely affects health and safety,
security, productivity, and public confidence and trust. Drug or alcohol use in the workplace or
during the performance of job duties is extremely harmful to employees and to other REALMS
stakeholders.

The bringing to the workplace, possession or use of intoxicating beverages or drugs on any
REALMS premises or during the performance of work duties is prohibited and will result in
disciplinary action up to and including termination.

Confidential Information

All information relating to students, personal information, schools attended, addresses, contact
numbers and progress information is confidential in nature, and may not be shared with or
distributed to unauthorized parties. All records concerning special education pupils shall be kept
strictly confidential and maintained in separate files. All personnel information that is obtained
by an employee shall be treated with confidentiality, and access to employee files shall be limited
to those who have a school-related reason for access. Failure to maintain confidentiality may
result in disciplinary action, up to and including release from at-will employment.

Conflict of Interest

All employees must avoid situations involving actual or potential conflict of interest. An
employee involved in any relationships or situations which may constitute a conflict of interest
should immediately and fully disclose the relevant circumstances to the Superintendent, or the
Governing Board, for a determination about whether a potential or actual conflict exists. If an
actual or potential conflict is determined, REALMS may take whatever corrective action
appears

appropriate according to the circumstances. Failure to disclose facts shall constitute grounds for
disciplinary action.



No Smoking

REALMS is a smoke free facility. The use of electronic devices for smoking/vaping is also
prohibited under this policy.



THE WORKPLACE
Work Schedule

Business hours are normally 7:30 a.m. — 4:30 p.m. Monday through Friday. The regular workday
schedule for nonexempt employees is eight (8) hours; the regular workweek schedule is forty
(40) hours. Exempt employees are also generally expected to be present during business hours
and to commit whatever additional time is necessary to satisfactorily complete all job
requirements.

Meal and Rest Periods

Nonexempt employees working at least five (5) hours are provided with a thirty (30) minute
meal period, to be taken approximately in the middle of the workday but by no later than the end
of the 5® hour of work. An employee may waive this meal period if the day’s work will be
completed in no more than six (6) hours, provided the employee and REALMS mutually consent
to the waiver in writing.

Nonexempt employees are also provided with a ten (10) minute rest period for every four (4)
hours worked which should be scheduled towards the middle of the four (4) hour work period as
practicable. Employees are prohibited from combining meal and rest period time.

An employee’s supervisor must be aware of and approve scheduled meal and rest periods.
Employees must immediately inform their supervisor if they are prevented from taking their
meal and/or rest periods. Employees are expected to observe assigned working hours and the
time allowed for meal and rest periods.

Lactation Accommaodation

REALMS accommodates lactating employees by providing a reasonable amount of break time to
any employee who desires to express breast milk for an infant child. The break time shall, if
possible, run concurrently with any break time already provided to the employee. Any break time
provided to express breast milk that does not run concurrently with break time already provided
to the nonexempt employee shall be unpaid.

REALMS will make reasonable efforts to provide employees who need a lactation
accommodation with the use of a room or other private location that is located close to the
employee’s work area. Such a room/location shall not be a bathroom, and shall have electricity.
Employees shall also be given access to a sink with running water and a refrigerator. Employees
with private offices will be required to use their offices to express breast milk. Employees who
desire lactation accommodations should contact their supervisor to request accommodations.

Attendance and Tardiness

All employees, whether exempt or nonexempt, are expected to arrive at work consistently and on
time. Absenteeism and tardiness negatively affects REALMS ability to implement its educational
program and disrupts consistency in students’ learning.

If it is necessary to be absent or late, employees are expected to telephone the Superintendent as
soon as possible but no later than one (1) hour before the start of the workday. If an employee is



absent from work longer than one (1) day. he or she is expected to keep the Superintendent
sufficiently informed of the situation.

As noted in the section of this Handbook concerning prohibited conduct, excessive or unexcused
absences or tardiness may result in disciplinary action up to and including release from at-will
employment with REALMS. Absence for more than three (3) consecutive days without notifying
the Superintendent will be considered a voluntary resignation from employment.

Timecards/Records

By law, the School is obligated to keep accurate records of the time worked by nonexempt
employees. Such employees shall be required to utilize the School’s timecard system.

Nonexempt employees must accurately clock in/sign in and out of their shifts as this is the only
way the payroll department knows how many hours each employee has worked and how much
each employee is owed. The timecard indicates when the employee arrived and when the
employee departed. All nonexempt employees must clock/sign in and out for arrival and
departure, along with lunch and for absences like doctor or dentist appointments. All employees
are required to keep the office advised of their departures from and returns to the school premises
during the workday.

Nonexempt employees are solely responsible for ensuring accurate information on their
timecards and remembering to record time worked. If an employee forgets to clock/mark their
timecard or makes an error on the timecard, the employee must contact their supervisor or the
Superintendent to make the correction and such correction must be initiated by both the
employee and their supervisor or the Superintendent.

Nonexempt employees are prohibited from performing off-the-clock work. including but not
limited to checking emails before/after work hours, performing work in the morning before
logging in, and running School errands after logging out.

No one may record hours (or clock in/out for another employee) worked on another’s timecard.
Any employee, who violates any aspect of this policy may be subject to disciplinary action, up to
and including release from at-will employment with the School.

Use of Email, Voicemail and Internet Access

REALMS will permit employees to use its email, voicemail systems and Internet access subject
to the following:

1. Minimal personal use as long as it does not interfere with timely job performance and is
consistent with law and appropriate protocols.

2. The email system and Internet access is not to be used in any way that may be disruptive,
offensive to others. or harmful to morale. For example, sexually explicit images, ethnic
slurs, racial epithets, or anything else that may be construed as harassment or
disparagement of others based on their race. national origin, sex, sexual orientation, age,
religious beliefs or political beliefs may not be displayed or transmitted.

(S

Employees should not attempt to gain access to another employee’s personal file or email
or voicemail messages without the latter’s express permission.



4, REALMS staff will not enter an employee’s personal email files or voicemail unless there
is a business need to do so. REALMS retains a copy of all passwords; passwords
unknown to REALMS may not be used. System security features, including passwords
and delete functions. do not neutralize REALMS ability to access any message at any
time. Employees must be aware that the possibility of such access always exists.

5. Employees should not use personal devices or personal email accounts for School-related
communications. Such communications should only take place using School-issued
devices and via the employee’s REALMS email account.

Personal Business

REALMS facilities for handling mail and telephone calls are designed to accommodate
REALMS business. Employees should have personal mail directed to their home address and
limit personal telephone calls to an absolute minimum. Personal calls should not be made outside
the immediate dialing arca. Do not use School material, time or equipment for personal projects.

Social Media

If an employee decides to post information on the Internet (i.c., personal blog, Facebook,
Instagram, Twitter, etc.) that discusses any aspect of his/her workplace activities, the following
restrictions apply:

e REALMS equipment, including REALMS computers and electronics systems, may not
be used for these purposes:
e Student and employee confidentiality policies must be strictly followed:

e Employees must make clear that the views expressed in their blogs are their own and not
those of the REALMS;

e Employees may not use REALMS logos, trademarks and/or copyrighted material and are
not authorized to speak on the REALMS behalf; inquiries should be directed to the
school office

¢ Employees are not authorized to publish any confidential or proprietary information
maintained by the REALMS;

e Employees are prohibited from making discriminatory, defamatory, libelous or slanderous
comments when discussing REALMS, the employee’s supervisors, co-workers and
competitors;

e Employees must comply with all REALMS policies, including, but not limited to. rules
against unlawful harassment and retaliation.

REALMS reserves the right to take disciplinary action against any employee whose Internet
postings violate this or other School policies.

Personal Appearance/Standards of Dress

REALMS employees serve as role models to the School’s students. All employees should
therefore maintain professional standards of dress and grooming. Just as overall attitude and
instructional competency contribute to a productive learning environment. so do appropriate
dress and grooming.

Employees are encouraged to wear clothing that will add dignity to the educational profession,
will present an image consistent with their job responsibilities, and will not interfere with the
learning process. Accordingly, all employees shall adhere to the following standards of dress:



1) Slacks, jeans. and shorts are to be worn on the waist with no portion of an undergarment
showing. Shorts should be modest in length and should be no higher than three (3) inches
above the knec. Clothing must be clean and in good condition. Slits or tears in pants or
other articles of clothing are not permitted

2) Head coverings, including hats of any kind. except those worn for religious or safety
reasons. are not to be worn inside school buildings including assemblies, classrooms, labs
and offices (exceptions would be for special class events for which a hat might be an
accessory to said event). Hats may be worn outside for sun protection. All hats are to be
removed upon entering school buildings. For exceptions to this policy. prior approval
must be granted by the Superintendent.

3) Slacks and shorts are to be worn on the waist with no portion of an undergarment
showing. Blue jeans are permitted. Shorts should be modest in length and should be no
higher than three (3} inches above the knee.

4} Skirts and dresses should be no higher than three (3) inches above the knee. Modest slits
in dresses or skirts should be no higher than three (3) inches above the knee.

5) All tops must be appropriate to the work environment, and should be clean. neat, and
provide proper coverage.

6) For safety purposes, earrings must not dangle more than one (1) inch below the ear and
jewelry must be safe and appropriate to the educational environment.

7 Clothing or jewelry with logos that depict and/or promote gangs, drugs, alcohol, tobacco,
sex, violence, illegal activities, profanity, or obscenity are not permitted.

) Appropriate shoes must be worn at all times. No flip flops or Crocs unless prior approval
from Superintendent

9 Leggings and Jeggings are not permitted without a garment (skirt, dress or appropriate
Jong shirt) over the top of the Leggings/Jeggings covering the employee’s front and rear.

Health and Safety Policy

REALMS is committed to providing and maintaining a healthy and safe work environment for
all employees.

Employees are required to know and comply with REALMS General Safety Rules and to follow
safe and healthy work practices at all times. Employees are required to report immediately to the
Superintendent any potential health or safety hazards. and all injuries or accidents.

In compliance with Proposition 65, REALMS will inform employees of any known exposure 1o
a chemical known to cause cancer or reproductive toxicity.

Security Protocols

REALMS has developed guidelines to help maintain a secure workplace. Be aware of unknown
persons loitering in parking areas, walkways, entrances and exits and service areas. Report any
suspicious persons or activities to the Superintendent. All employees must secure their



workspace at the end of each workday. When an employee is called away from his or her work
area for an extended length of time, valuable or personal articles should not be lefi around a
workstation that may be accessible. The security of facilities as well as the welfare of employees
depends upon the alertness and sensitivity of every individual to potential security risks.
Employees should immediately notify the Superintendent when keys are missing or if security
access codes or passes have been breached.

Occupational Safety

REALMS is committed to the safety of its employees, vendors, contractors and the public and to
providing a clear safety goal for management.

The prevention of accidents is the responsibility of every REALMS supervisor. It is also the duty
of all employees to accept and promote the established safety regulations and procedures. Every
effort will be made to provide adequate safety training. If an employee is ever in doubt how to
perform a job or task safely, assistance should be requested. Unsafe conditions must be reported
immediately.

It is the policy of REALMS that accident prevention shall be considered of primary importance
in all phases of operation and administration. REALMS management is required to provide safe
and healthy working conditions for all employees and to establish and require the use of safe
practices at all times.

Failure to comply with or enforce REALMS safety and health rules, practices and procedures
could result in disciplinary action up to and including possible termination.

Accident/Incident Reporting

It is the duty of every employee to immediately or as soon as is practical report any accident or
injury occurring during work or on REALMS premises so that arrangements can be made for
medical or first aid treatment. as well as for investigation and follow-up purposes.

Reporting Fires and Emergencies
It is the duty of every employee to know how to report fires and other emergencies quickly and

accurately. Employees should report any such emergency by calling the front office. In addition.
all employees should know the local emergency numbers such as 911.



EMPLOYEE WAGES AND HEALTH BENEFITS
Payroll Withholdings

As required by law, REALMS shall withhold Federal Income Tax. State Income Tax, Social
Security (FICA) and State Disability Insurance from each employee’s pay as follows:

I. Federal Income Tax Withholding: The amount varies with the number of exemptions the
employee claims and the gross pay amount.

2. State Income Tax Withholding: The same factors which apply to federal withholdings
apply to state withholdings.

3. Social Security (FICA): The Federal Insurance Contribution Act requires that a certain
percentage of employee earnings be deducted and forwarded to the federal government.
together with an equal amount contributed by REALMS. Employees enrolled in STRS
will not have Social Security withheld.

4. State Disability Insurance (SDI): This state fund is used to provide benefits to those out
of work because of illness or disability.

Employees may also have deductions made to their paychecks when a wage overpayment occurs.
The School may require the employee to reimburse an overpayment through a mutually
agreeable method, including through cash repayment or a deduction of the employee’s payroll
check, among other options. An employee who is separated from employment before full
repayment of the overpayment amount shall have any remaining amounts withheld from their
final check. The School also reserves the right to exercise any and all other legal means to
recover any additional amounts owed. The School shall provide employees with advance written
notice of the deduction prior to the pay period when it will go into effect.

Every deduction from an employee’s paycheck is explained on the check voucher. If an

employee does not understand the deductions, he or she should ask the Superintendent to explain
them.

Employees may change the number of withholding allowances claimed for Federal Income Tax
purposes at any time by filling out a new W-4 form and submitting it to the Superintendent. The
office maintains a supply of these forms.

All Federal, State, and Social Security taxes will be automatically deducted from paychecks.
Federal Withholding Tax deduction is determined by the employee’s W-4 form. The W-4 form
should be completed upon hire and it is the employee’s responsibility to report any changes in
filing status to the Superintendent and to fill out a new W-4 form.

At the end of the calendar year, a “withholding statement™ (W-2) will be prepared and forwarded
to each employee for use in connection with preparation of income tax returns. The W-2 shows
Social Security information, taxes withheld, retirement and healthcare contributions, and total
wages.

Overtime Pay

Whether an employee is exempt from or subject to overtime pay will be determined on a
case-by- case basis and will be indicated in the employee’s job description. Generally. teachers



and administrators are exempt. Nonexempt employees may be required to work beyond the
regularly scheduled workday or workweek as necessary. Only actual hours worked in a given
workday or workweek can apply in calculating overtime for nonexempt employees. REALMS
will attempt to distribute overtime evenly and accommodate individual schedules. All overtime
work must be previously authorized by their supervisor or the Superintendent. REALMS
provides compensation for all overtime hours worked by nonexempt employees in accordance
with state and federal law as follows:

For employees subject to overtime, all hours worked in excess of eight (8)
hours in one workday or forty (40) hours in one workweek shall be treated as
overtime. Compensation for hours in excess of forty (40) for the workweek or
in excess of eight (8) and not more than twelve (12) for the workday, and for
the first eight

(8) hours on the seventh consecutive day in one workweek, shall be paid at a
rate of one and one-half times the employee’s regular rate of pay.
Compensation for hours in excess of twelve (12) in one workday and an excess
of eight (8) on the seventh consecutive workday of the workweek shall be paid
at double the regular rate of pay.

Exempt employees may have to work hours beyond their normal schedules as work demands.
require. No overtime compensation will be paid to these exempt employees.

Paydays

Paydays will be on the last day of each month for administrative and teaching staff. For classified
staff, payday will be on the 15® of each month.

If an employee observes any error in his or her check, it should be reported immediately to the
Superintendent.

Wage Attachments and Garnishments

Under normal circumstances. REALMS will not assist creditors in the collection of personal
debts from its employees. However, creditors may resort to certain legal procedures such as
garnishments, levies or judgments that require REALMS, by law, to withhold part of an
employee’s earnings in their favor.

Employees are strongly encouraged to avoid such wage attachments and garnishments. If
REALMS is presented a second garnishment request concerning an employee, the
Superintendent or the Superintendent will discuss the situation with the employee.

Medical Benefits
Eligibility

An employee is eligibie for medical coverage if he or she is a regular employee working for the
School at least thirty (30) hours per week.

Employees who go from part-time to full-time employment become eligible for full benefits on
the first day of the month following the effective date of the change.

When Coverage Starts



An employee’s coverage will begin on the first day of employment or if hired mid-month it will
start on the first day of the next month. Employee enrollment forms must be submitted to the
Superintendent or designee as soon as possible. This form serves as a request for coverage, and
authorizes any payroll deductions necessary to pay for the employee’s coverage.

COBRA Benefits

When coverage under REALMS medical and/or dental plans ends, employees or their
dependents can continue coverage for eighteen (18) or thirty-six (36) months, depending upon
the reason benefits ended. To continue coverage, an employee must pay the full cost of coverage
— the employee contribution and the REALMS previous contribution plus a possible
administrative charge.

Medical coverage for an employee, his/her spouse, and eligible dependent children can continue
for up to eighteen (18) months if coverage ends because:

e Employment ends, voluntarily or involuntarily, for any reason other than gross
misconduct; or

e Hours of employment are reduced below the amount required to be considered a full-time
employee or part-time, making an employee ineligible for the plan.

This eighteen (18)-month period may be extended an additional eleven (11) months in cases of
disability subject to certain requirements. This eighteen (18)-month period may also be extended
an additional eighteen (18) months if other events (such as a divorce or death} occur subject to
certain requirements.

An employee’s spouse and eligible dependents can continue their health coverage for up to
thirty- six (36) months if coverage ends because:

o The employee dies while covered by the plan;
e The employee and his/her spouse become divorced or legally separated;

® The employee becomes eligible for Medicare coverage, but his/her spouse has not yet
reached age sixty-five (65); or

e The employee’s dependent child reaches an age which makes him or her ineligible for
coverage under the plan.

Rights similar to those described above may apply to retirees, spouses and dependents if the
employer commences a bankruptey proceeding and those individuals lose coverage.

REALMS will notify employees or their dependents if coverage ends due to termination or a
reduction in work hours. If an employee becomes eligible for Medicare, divorced or legally
separated, dies, or when a dependent child no longer meets the eligibility requirements, the
employee or a family member are responsible for notifying REALMS within thirty (30) days of
the event. REALMS will then notify the employee or his/her dependents of the employee’s
rights.

Health coverage continuation must be elected within sixty (60) days after receiving notice of the



end of coverage, or within sixty (60) days after the event causing the loss. whichever is later.
There are certain circumstances under which coverage will end automatically. This happens if:

e Premiums for continued coverage are not paid within thirty (30) days of the due date:

e The employee (or his/her spouse or child) become covered under another group health
plan which does not contain any exclusion or limitation with respect to any pre-existing
condition the employee (or the employee’s spouse or child, as applicable) may have;

¢ REALMS stops providing group health benefits:

e The employee (or the employee’s spouse or child) become entitled to Medicare; or

e The employee extended coverage for up to twenty-nine (29) months due to disability and
there has been a final determination that the employee is no longer disabled.



PERSONNEL EVALUATION AND RECORD KEEPING

Employee Reviews and Evaluations

Each employee will receive periodic performance reviews conducted by their supervisor or the
Superintendent. Performance evaluations will be conducted annually. The frequency of
performance evaluations may vary depending upon length of service, job position, past
performance, changes in job duties, or recurring performance problems.

Performance evaluations may review faciors such as the quality and quantity of the work
performed, knowledge of the job, initiative, work attitude, and attitude toward others. The
performance evaluations are intended to make employces aware of their progress. areas for
improvement, and objectives or goals for future work performance. Favorable performance
evaluations do not guarantee increases in salary or promotions. Salary increases and promotions
are solely within the discretion of REALMS and depend upon many factors in addition to
performance. After the review, an employee will be required to sign the evaluation report simply
to acknowledge that it has been presented to them, that they have discussed it with the
Superintendent, and that they are aware of its contents.

Newly hired employees may have their performance goals reviewed by their supervisor and the
Superintendent within the first ninety (90) days of employment.

Salary and potential for advancement will be based largely upon job performance. On a periodic
basis. their supervisor and the Superintendent will review employee job performance with an
employee in order to establish goals for future performance and to discuss the employee’s current
performance. The REALMS evaluation system will in no way alter the at-will employment
relationship.

Personnel Files and Record Keeping Protocols

At the time of employment, a personnel file is established for each employee. It is each
employee’s responsibility to keep the Superintendent advised of changes that should be reflected
in their personnel file. Such changes include: change in address, telephone number, marital
status., number of dependents and person(s) to notify in case of emergency. Prompt notification of
these changes is essential and will enable REALMS to contact employees should the change
affect their other records.

Employees have the right to inspect documents in their personnel file, as provided by law, in the
presence of a School representative, at a mutually convenient time. Employees also have the
right to obtain a copy of their personnel file as provided by law. Employees may add comments
to any disputed item in the file, REALMS will restrict disclosure of employee personnel files to
authorized individuals within REALMS. A request for information contained in the personnel
file must be directed to the Superintendent. Only the Superintendent or designee is authorized to
release information about current or former employees. Disclosure of information to outside
sources will be limited. However, REALMS will cooperate with requests from authorized law
enforcement or local, state or federal agencies conducting official investigations or as otherwise
legally required.

Credible complaints of substantiated investigations into or discipline for egregious misconduct
will not be expunged from an employee's personnel file unless the complaint is heard by an

arbitrator, administrative law judge, or the Board and the complaint is deemed to be false, not



credible, unsubstantiated or a determination was made that discipline was not warranted.



HOLIDAYS, VACATIONS AND LEAVES

Holidays

The REALMS calendar reflects any and all holidays observed by the School. Holidays are aiso
outlined on individual employee contracts as well as available upon request.

Vacation

While REALMS recognizes the importance of vacation time as a period of rest and rejuvenation
away from the job, vacations must be scheduled with due consideration for “peak traffic periods”
in the school. With this in mind, it is expected vacation time will be taken when school is not in
session.

Non-teaching employees working at least thirty (30) hours per month are entitled to vacation
terms based upon date of hire. length of service and status with the School. Clerical staff shalil
accrue one (1) day of paid vacation for each month worked. beginning after six {6) months of
service. For example. an employee regularly assigned to six (6) hours per day will earn six (6)
hours of vacation per month, and an employee regularly assigned to eight (8) hours per day will
eamn eight (8) hours per month. Employees with five (5) to nine (9) years of service will accrue
one and one- quarter (1.25) days of paid vacation for each month worked; employees with ten
(10) to fourteen

(14) years of service will accrue one and one-half (1.5) days of paid vacation for each month
worked: and employees with fifteen (15) or more years of service will accrue one and three-
quarters (1.75) days of paid vacation for each month worked.

Paid vacation time for administrators will be established in the administrator’s employment
contract. Instructional employees shall not earn vacation days. Employees working fewer than
thirty (30) hours per week shall not earn vacation days.

Any vacation time taken during the school year or otherwise should be coordinated and cleared
by their supervisor and the Superintendent subject to scheduling and seniority. No vacation time
may be taken by clerical staff during August unless specifically authorized by the Superintendent
for special circumstances.

For clerical employees. vacation days should be taken when school is not in session, preferably
during summer vacation/break. Vacation time is figured on a school year beginning with the
opening of school rather than on a fiscal year.

Vacation time may not be utilized before it is earned. An employee whose employment
terminates will be paid for accrued unused vacation days. Vacation can accrue up to a maximum
of two (2) times the number of days an employee may accrue in a year. Once this cap is reached
(e.g. twenty- four (24) days for employees in the first four (4) years of service), no further
vacation will accrue until some vacation is used. When some vacation is used, vacation
compensation will begin to accrue again. There is no retroactive grant of vacation compensation
for the period of time the accrued vacation compensation was at the cap.

Unpaid Leave of Absence



REALMS recognizes that special situations may arise where an employee must leave his or her
job temporarily. At its discretion, the School may grant employees leaves of absence. Any unpaid
leave of absence must be approved in advance by the School.

The granting of a leave of absence always presumes the employee will return to active work by a
designated date or within a specific period.

During a Family and Medical Leave Act, California Family Rights Act leave, and/or Pregnancy
Disability Leave, the employee’s medical and dental benefits will remain in force, provided the
employee pays the appropriate premiums. Otherwise, benefits are terminated the month any
other type of leave begins. If an employee fails to return from a leave and is subsequently
terminated, the employee is entitled to all earned but unused vacation pay. provided that the
vacation pay was earned prior to the commencement of leave. No vacation time is accrued
during any type of unpaid leave of absence.

Sick Leave

To help prevent loss of earnings that may be caused by accident or illness, or by other
emergencies, REALMS offers paid sick leave to its employees. Sick leave may be taken to
receive preventive care (including annual physicals or flu shots) or to diagnose, treat, or care for
an existing health condition. Employees may also use sick leave to assist a family member (i.e..
children, parents, spouses/domestic partners, grandparents, grandchildren, or siblings) or a
designated person (i.e., a person identified by the employee at the time the employee requests
sick leave) who must receive preventative care or a diagnosis, treatment, or care for an existing
health condition. Employees are limited to one (1) designated person per twelve (12} month
period. Employees may also take paid sick leave to receive medical care or other assistance to
address instances of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking,.

Paid sick leave is available to all REALMS employees who work at least thirty (30} days within
the span of a single calendar year from the commencement of employment. Regular full-time

eligible employees accrue one (1) day of sick leave per each month worked in a year._ All other
eligible employees shall earn one (1) hour of sick time for every thirty {30) hours worked.
Furthermore, all full-time employees will accrue additional sick leave per month worked for a
total of eighty (80) hours per full work year.

Employees cannot use paid sick leave until the ninetieth (90™) calendar day following the
employee’s start date. Sick leave must be taken by eligible employees in increments of at least
two (2) hours. Employee use of sick days is limited to twelve (12) days per year. The
Superintendent has authority to waive this limitation in the event of serious or catastrophic
illness. .

No employee will receive pay in lieu of sick leave under any circumstances, and employees will
not be paid for any accrued but unused sick leave upon separation from employment.

If an employee is absent longer than three (3) days due to illness, medical evidence of illness
and/or medical certification of the employee’s fitness to return to work satisfactory to the School
may be required. The School will not tolerate abuse or misuse of sick leave privileges. If the
School suspects abuse of sick leave, the School may require a medical certification from an
employee verifying the employee’s absence.

Employees must provide reasonable advance notification, either orally or in writing. if a need for
paid sick leave is foreseeable. Further, employees should schedule medical appointments in a



manner that does not interfere with their job duties whenever possible. If the need for paid sick
leave is unforeseeable, the employee must provide notice for the leave as soon as practicable.

Once an employee has exhausted sick leave, the employee may continue on an unpaid medical
leave depending upon the facts and circumstances of the employee’s basis for leave beyond

accrued sick leave. Employee requests for unpaid medical leave must be approved in advance by
REALMS.

Family Care and Medical Leave

This policy explains how REALMS complies with the federal Family and Medical Leave Act
(“FMLA”) and the California Family Rights Act (“CFRA”), both of which require the School to
permit each eligible employee to take up to twelve (12) workweeks (or twenty-six (26)
workweeks where indicated) of FMLA/CFRA leave in any twelve (12) month period for the
purposes enumerated below.

. Employee Eligibility Criteria

To be eligible for FMLA/CFRA leave, the employce must have been employed by
REALMS for a total of at least twelve (12) months, worked at least 1,250 hours during
the twelve (12) month period immediately preceding commencement of the leave, and
work at a location where the School has at least fifty (50) employees within seventy-five
(75) miles (except for purposes of CFRA where the School must only have at least five
(5) employees).

. Events That May Entitle an Employee To FMLA/CFRA Leave

The twelve (12) week (or twenty-six (26) workweeks where indicated) FMLA/CFRA
allowance includes any time taken (with or without pay) for any of the following reasons:

L. To care for the employee’s newborn child or a child placed with the employee for
adoption or foster care. Leaves for this purpose must conclude twelve (12) months
after the birth, adoption, or placement. If both parents are employed by REALMS,
they each will be entitled to a separate twelve (12) weeks of leave for this
purpose, which cannot be loaned or otherwise assigned from one employee to the
other.

b2

Because of the employee’s own serious health condition (including a serious
health condition resulting from an on-the-job illness or injury) that makes the
employee unable to perform any one or more of the essential functions of his or
her job (other than a disability caused by pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical
conditions, which is covered by the REALMS separate pregnancy disability
policy).

a. A “serious health condition” is an illness, injury (including, but not limited to,
on-the-job injuries), impairment, or physical or mental cendition of the
employee or a child, parent, or spouse of the employee that involves either
inpatient care or continuing treatment, including. but not limited to, treatment
for substance abuse.

b. “Inpatient care™ means a stay in a hospital, hospice. or residential health care
facility, any subsequent treatment in connection with such inpatient care, or



any period of incapacity. A person is considered an “inpatient” when a health
care facility formally admits him/her to the facility with the expectation that
he/she will remain at least overnight and occupy a bed, even if it later
develops that such person can be discharged or transferred to another facility
and does not actually remain overnight.

c. “Incapacity” means the inability to work, attend school, or perform other
regular daily activities due to a serious health condition, its treatment. or the
recovery that it requires.

d. “Continuing treatment” means ongoing medical treatment or supervision by a
health care provider.

To care for a spouse, domestic partner, child, or parent with a serious health
condition, a qualifying family member may also include a parent-in-law,
grandparent, grandchild, sibling, or designated person for CFRA purposes.
“Designated person™ refers to any individual related by blood or whose
association with the employee is the equivalent to a family relationship.
Employees are limited to one (1) designated person per twelve {12) month period.

When an employee is providing care to a spouse, son, daughter, parent, or next of
kin who is a covered Armed Forces service member with a serious injury or
illness. the employee may take a maximum of twenty-six (26) weeks of additional
FMLA leave in a single twelve (12)-month period to provide said care. CFRA
does not provide leave specific to caring for a service member.

For any “qualifying exigency” because the employec is the spouse. son,
daughter, or parent of an individual on active military duty, or an individual
notified of an impending call or order to active duty. in the Armed Forces. For
CFRA purposes, this may also include a domestic partner.

Amount of FMLA/CFRA Leave Which May Be Taken

1.

FMLA/CFRA leave can be taken in one (1) or more periods, but may not exceed
twelve (12) workweeks total for any purpose in any twelve (12) month period, as
described below, for any one, or combination of the above-described situations.
“Twelve workweeks” means the equivalent of twelve (12) of the employee’s
normally scheduled workweeks. For a full-time employee who works five (5)
eight-hour days per week. “twelve workweeks™ means sixty (60) working and/or
paid eight (8) hour days.

In addition to the twelve (12) workweeks of FMLA/CFRA leave that may be
taken, an employee who is the spouse. son, daughter, parent, or next of kin of a
covered Armed Forces setvice member may also be entitled to a total of
twenty-six (26) workweeks of FMLA leave during a twelve (12) month period to
care for the servicemember.

The “twelve month period” in which twelve (12} weeks of FMLA and CFRA
leave may be taken is the twelve (12) month period immediately preceding the
commencement of any FMLA/CFRA lcave.

If a holiday falls within a week taken as FMLA/CFRA leave, the week is



nevertheless counted as a week of FMLA/CFRA leave. If, however. the School’s
business activity has temporarily ceased for some reason and employees are
generally not expected to report for work for one or more weeks, such as the
Winter Break, Spring Break, or Summer Vacation. the days the School’s activities
have ceased do not count against the employee’s FMLA or CFRA leave
entitlement. Similarly, if an employee uses FMLA/CFRA leave in increments of
less than one

(1) week, the fact that a holiday may occur within a week in which an employee
partially takes leave does not count against the employee’s leave entitlement
unless the employee was otherwise scheduled and expected to work during the
holiday.

Pay during FMLA/CFRA Leave

l. An employee on FMLA/CFRA leave because of hisher own serious health
condition must use all accrued paid sick leave at the beginning of any otherwise
unpaid FMLA/CFRA leave period. If an employee is receiving a partial wage
replacement benefit during the FMLA/CFRA leave. REALMS and the employee
may agree to have REALMS-provided paid leave, such as vacation or sick time,
supplement the partial wage replacement benefit unless otherwise prohibited by
law.

2. An employee on FMLA/CFRA leave for baby-bonding or to care for a qualifying
family member with a serious health condition may use any or all accrued sick
leave at the beginning of any otherwise unpaid FMLA leave.

3. If an employee has exhausted his/her sick leave, leave taken under FMLA/CFRA
shall be unpaid leave.

4, The receipt of sick leave pay or State Disability Insurance benefits will not extend
the length of the FMLA or CFRA leave. Sick pay accrued during any period of
unpaid FMLA or CFRA leave only until the end of the month in which unpaid
leave began.

Health Benefits

The provisions of the REALMS’s various employee benefit plans govern continuing
eligibility during FMLA/CFRA leave, and these provisions may change from time 1o
time. The health benefits of employees on FMLA/CFRA leave will be paid by REALMS
during the leave at the same level and under the same conditions as coverage would have
been provided if the employee had been continuously employed during the leave period.
When a request for FMLA/CFRA leave is granted, REALMS will give the employee

written confirmation of the arrangements made for the payment of insurance premiums
during the leave period.

If an employee is required to pay premiums for any part of his/her group health coverage.
REALMS will provide the employee with advance written notice of the terms and
conditions under which premium payments must be made.

REALMS may recover the health benefit costs paid on behalf of an employee during
his/her FMLA/CFRA leave if:



The employee fails to return from leave after the period of leave to which the
employee is entitled has expired. An employee is deemed to have “failed to return
from leave™ if he/she works less than thirty (30) days after returning from
FMLA/CFRA leave; and

2. The employee’s failure to return from leave is for a reason other than the
continuation, recurrence. or onset of a serious health condition that entitles the
employee to FMLA/CFRA leave. or other circumstances beyond the control of
the employee.

Seniority

An employee on FMLA/CFRA leave remains an employee and the leave will not
constitute a break in service. An employee who returns from FMLA/CFRA leave will
return with the same seniority he/she had when the leave commenced.

Medical Certifications

1.

An employee requesting FMLA/CFRA leave because of his/her own or a
relative’s serious health condition must provide medical certification from the
appropriate health care provider on a form supplied by REALMS. Absent
extenuating circumstances. failure to provide the required certification in a timely
manner (within fifteen (15) days of the REALMS request for certification) may
result in denial of the leave request until such certification is provided.

REALMS will notify the employee in writing if the certification is incomplete or
insufficient, and will advise the employee what additional information is
necessary in order to make the certification complete and sufficient. REALMS
may contact the employee’s health care provider to authenticate a certification as
needed.

If REALMS has reason to doubt the medical certification supporting a leave
because of the employee’s own serious health condition, REALMS may request a
second opinion by a health care provider of its choice (paid for by REALMS). If
the second opinion differs from the first one, REALMS will pay for a third,
mutually agreeable, health care provider to provide a final and binding opinion.

Re-certifications are required if leave is sought after expiration of the time
estimated by the health care provider. Failure to submit required re-certifications
can result in termination of the leave.

Procedures for Requesting and Scheduling FMLA/CFRA Leave

1.

An employee should request FMLA/CFRA leave by completing a Request for
Leave form and submitting it to the Superintendent. An employee asking for a
Request for Leave form will be given a copy of REALMS then-current
FMLA/CFRA leave policy.

Employees should provide not less than thirty (30) days’ notice for foreseeable
childbirth, placement, or any planned medical treatment for the employee or
his/her qualifying family member. Failure to provide such notice is grounds for
denial of a leave request. except if the need for FMLA leave was an emergency or



was otherwise unforeseeable.

Where possible, employees must make a reasonable effort to schedule foreseeable
planned medical treatments so as not to unduly disrupt the REALMS’s operations.

I[f FMLA/CFRA leave is taken because of the employee’s own serious health
condition or the serious health condition of the employee’s qualifying family
member, the leave may be taken intermittently or on a reduced leave schedule
when medically necessary, as determined by the health care provider of the person
with the serious health condition.

If FMLA/CFRA leave is taken because of the birth of the employee’s child or the
placement of a child with the employee for adoption or foster care, the minimum
duration of leave is two (2) weeks, except that the School will grant a request for
FMLA/CFRA leave for this purpose of at least one day but less than two (2)
weeks" duration on any two (2) occasions.

If an employee needs intermittent leave or leave on a reduced leave schedule that
is foreseeable based on planned medical treatment for the employee or a family
member, the employee may be transferred temporarily to an available alternative
position for which he or she is qualified that has equivalent pay and benefits and
that better accommodates recurring periods of leave than the employee’s regular
position.

REALMS will respond to an FMLA/CFRA leave request no later than five (5)
business days of receiving the request. If an FMLA/CFRA leave request is
granted, REALMS will notify the employee in writing that the leave will be
counted against the employee’s FMLA/CFRA leave entitlement. This notice will
explain the employee’s obligations and the consequences of failing to satisfy
them.

Return to Work

1.

Upon timely return at the expiration of the FMLA/CFRA leave period, an
employee is entitled to the same or a comparable position with the same or similar
duties and virtually identical pay, benefits, and other terms and conditions of
employment unless the same position and any comparable position(s) have ceased

to exist because of legitimate business reasons unrelated to the employee’s
FMLA/CFRA leave.

When a request for FMLLA/CFRA leave is granted to an employec, REALMS will
give the employee a written guarantee of reinstatement at the termination of the
leave (with the limitations explained above).

Before an employee will be permitted to return from FMLA/CFRA leave taken
because of his/her own serious health condition, the employee must obtain a
certification from his/her health care provider that he/she is able to resume work.

If an employee can return to work with limitations, REALMS will evaluate those
limitations and, if possible, will accommodate the employec as required by law. If
accommodation cannot be made, the employee will be medically separated from
REALMS.



Employment during Leave

No employee, including employees on FMLA/CFRA leave, may accept employment with
any other employer without REALMS written permission. An employee who accepts
such employment without REALMS written permission will be deemed to have resigned
from employment at REALMS.

Pregnancy Disability Leave

This policy explains how REALMS complies with the California Pregnancy Disability Act,
which requires REALMS to give each female employee an unpaid leave of absence of up to
four (4) months per pregnancy, as needed, for the period(s) of time a woman is actually disabled
by pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions.

Employee Eligibility Criteria

To be eligible for pregnancy disability leave, the employee must be disabled by
pregnancy, childbirth, or a related medical condition and must provide appropriate
medical certification concerning the disability.

Events That May Entitle an Employee to Pregnancy Disability Leave

The four (4) -month pregnancy disability leave allowance includes any time taken (with
or without pay) for any of the following reasons:

1. The employee is unable to work at all or is unable to perform any one or more of
the essential functions of her job without undue risk to herself, the successful
completion of her pregnancy, or to other persons because of pregnancy or
childbirth, or because of any medically recognized physical or mental condition
that is related to pregnancy or childbirth (including severe morning sickness); or

2. The employee needs to take time off for prenatal care.

Duration of Pregnancy Disability Leave

Pregnancy disability leave may be taken in one or more periods, but not to exceed four
months total. “Four months” means the number of days the employee would normally
work within four months. For a full-time employee who works five (5) eight (8) hour
days per weck, four (4} months means 693 hours of leave (40 hours per week times 17
1/3 weeks).

For employees who work more or less than forty (40) hours per week, or who work on
variable work schedules, the number of working days that constitutes four (4) months is
calculated on a pro rata or proportional basis. For example, for an employee who works
twenty (20) hours per week, “four months™ means 346.5 hours of leave entitlement (20
hours per week times 17 1/3 weeks). For an employee who normally works forty-eight
(48) hours per week. “four months™ means 832 hours of leave entitiement (48 hours per
week times 17 1/3 weeks).

At the end or depletion of an employee’s pregnancy disability leave, an employee who
has a physical or mental disability (which may or may not be due to pregnancy,



childbirth. or related medical conditions) may be entitled to reasonable accommodation.
Entitlement to additional leave must be determined on a case-by case basis, taking inio
account a number of considerations such as whether an extended leave is likely to be
effective in allowing the employee to return to work at the end of the leave, with or
without further reasonable accommaodation, and whether or not additional leave would
create an undue hardship for REALMS. REALMS is not required to provide an indefinite
leave of absence as a reasonable accommodation.

Pay during Pregnancy Disability Leave
I. An employee on pregnancy disability leave must use all accrued paid sick leave

and may use any or all accrued vacation time at the beginning of any otherwise
unpaid leave period.

2. The receipt of vacation pay, sick leave pay, or state disability insurance benefits,
will not extend the length of pregnancy disability leave.

3. Vacation and sick pay accrued during any period of unpaid pregnancy disability
leave only until the end of the month in which the unpaid leave began.

Heaith Benefits

REALMS shall provide continued health insurance coverage while an employee is on
pregnancy disability leave consistent with applicable law. The continuation of health
benefits is for a maximum of four (4) months in a twelve (12) -month period. REALMS
can recover premiums that it already paid on behalf of an employee if both of the
following conditions are met:

1. The employee fails to return from leave after the designated leave period expires.
2. The employee’s failure to return from leave is for a reason other than the following:

e The employee is taking leave under the California Family Rights Act.

e There is a continuation, recurrence or onset of a health condition that entitles
the employee to pregnancy disability leave.

e There is a non-pregnancy related medical condition requiring further leave.

e Any other circumstance beyond the control of the employee.
Seniority
An employee on pregnancy disability leave remains an employee of the School and a
leave will not constitute a break in service. When an employee returns from pregnancy
disability leave, she will return with the same seniority she had when the leave

commenced.

Medical Certifications

L. An employee requesting a pregnancy disability leave must provide medical
certification from her healthcare provider on a form supplied by REALMS.



Failure to provide the required certification in a timely manner (within fifteen (15)
days of the leave request) may result in a denial of the leave request until such
certification is provided.

Re-certifications are required if leave is sought after expiration of the time
estimated by the healthcare provider. Failure to submit required re-certifications
can result in termination of the leave.

Requesting and Scheduling Pregnancy Disability Leave

1.

An employee should request pregnancy disability leave by completing a Request
for Leave form and submitting it to the Superintendent. An employee asking for a
Request for Leave form will be referred to REALMS then current pregnancy
disability leave policy.

Employees should provide not less than thirty (30) days’ notice or as soon as is
practicable, if the need for the leave is foreseeable. Failure to provide such notice
is grounds for denial of the leave request, except if the need for pregnancy
disability leave was an emergency and was otherwise unforeseeable.

Where possible, employees must make a reasonable effort to schedule foreseeable
planned medical treatments so as not to unduly disrupt REALMS operations.

Pregnancy disability leave may be taken intermittently or on a reduced leave
schedule when medically advisable, as determined by the employee’s healthcare
provider.

if an employee needs intermittent leave or leave on a reduced leave schedule that
is foreseeable based on planned medical treatment. the employee may be
transferred temporarily to an available alternative position for which he or she is
qualified that has equivalent pay and benefits that better accommodates recurring
periods of leave than the employee’s regular position.

REALMS will respond to a pregnancy disability leave request within ten (10)
days of receiving the request. If a pregnancy disability leave request is granted,
REALMS will notify the employee in writing and leave will be counted against
the employee’s pregnancy disability leave entitlement. This notice will explain the
employee’s obligations and the consequences of failing to satisty them.

Return to Work

I.

Upon timely return at the expiration of the pregnancy disability leave period, an
employee is entitled to the same position unless the employee would not
otherwise have been employed in the same position at the time reinstatement is
requested. If the employee is not reinstated to the same position, she must be
reinstated to a comparable position unless one of the following is applicable:

a. The employer would not have offered a comparable position to the employee
if she would have been continuously at work during the pregnancy disability
leave.



b. There is no comparable position available, to which the employee is either
qualified or entitled, on the employee’s scheduled date of reinstatement or
within sixty (60) calendar days thereafter. REALMS will take reasonable steps
to provide notice to the employee if and when comparable positions become
available during the sixty (60) day period.

A “comparable” position is a position that involves the same or similar duties and
responsibilities and is virtually identical to the employee’s original position in
terms of pay, benefits, and working conditions.

2. When a request for pregnancy disability leave is granted to an employee,
REALMS will give the employee a written guarantee of reinstatement at the end
of the leave (with the limitations explained above}).

3. In accordance with REALMS policy. before an employee will be permitted to
return from a pregnancy disability leave of three (3) days or more, the employee
must obtain a certification from her healthcare provider that she is able to resume
work.

4, If the employee can return to work with limitations, REALMS will evaluate those
limitations and, if possible. will accommodate the employee as required by law. If
accommodation cannot be made. the employee will be medically separated from
REALMS.

. Employment during Leave
No employee. including employees on pregnancy disability leave, may accept
employment with any other employer without REALMS written permission. An

employee who accepts such employment without written permission will be deemed to
have resigned from employment.

Industrial Injury Leave (Workers’ Compensation)
REALMS, in accordance with State law, provides insurance coverage for employees in case of
work-related injuries. The workers' compensation benefits provided to injured employees may
include:

e Medical care:

o Cash benefits, tax-free to replace lost wages; and

e Vocational rehabilitation to help qualified injured employees return to suitable
employment.

To ensure employees receive any worker’s compensation benefits to which they may be entitled.
employees will need to:

e Immediately report any work-related injury to their supervisor, the Superintendent, or
designee:

o Seek medical treatment and follow-up care if required;



e Complete a written Employee’s Claim Form (DWC Form 1) and return it to their
supervisor, the Superintendent, or designee; and

e Provide REALMS with a certification from the employee’s health care provider regarding
the need for workers’ compensation disability leave as well as the employee’s eventual
ability to return to work from the leave.

It is REALMS policy that when there is a job-related injury, the first priority is to insure that the
injured employee receives appropriate medical attention. REALMS. with the help of its
insurance carrier, has selected medical centers to meet this need. Each medical center was
selected for its ability to meet anticipated needs with high quality medical service and a location
that is convenient to REALMS operation.

s If an employee is injured on the job, he/she is to go or be taken to the approved medical
center for treatment. If injuries are such that they require the use of emergency medical
systems (EMS) such as an ambulance, the cheice by the EMS personnel for the most
appropriate medical center or hospital for treatment will be recognized as an approved
center.

e All accidents and injuries must be reported to their supervisor, the Superintendent, or
designee and to the individual responsible for reporting to REALMS insurance carrier.
Failure by an employee to report a work-related injury by the end of his/her shift could
result in loss of insurance coverage for the employee. An employee may choose to be
treated by his/her personal physician at his/her own expense, but he/she is still required to
go to a REALMS approved medical center for evaluation. All job-related injuries must be
reported to the appropriate State Workers’ Compensation Burcau and the insurance
carrier.

e When there is a job-related injury that results in lost time, the employee must have a
medical release from a REALMS approved medical facility before returning to work.

e Any time there is a job-related injury, REALMS policy may require drug/alcohol testing
along with any medical treatment provided to the employee.

Military and Military Spousal Leave of Absence

REALMS shall grant a military leave of absence to any employee who must be absent from work
due to service in the uniformed services in accordance with the Uniformed Services Employment
and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 (“USERRA™). All employees requesting military leave
must provide advance written notice of the need for such leave, unless prevented from doing so
by military necessity or if providing notice would be impossible or unreasonable.

If military leave is for thirty (30) or fewer days, REALMS shall continue the employee’s health
benefits. For service of more than thirty (30) days. employees shall be permitted to continue their
health benefits at their option through COBRA. Employees are entitled to use accrued vacation
or paid time off as wage replacement during time served, provided such vacation/paid time off
accrued prior to the leave.

Except for those employees serving in the National Guard, REALMS will reinstate those
employees returning from military leave to their same position or one of comparable seniority,
status, and pay if they have a certificate of satisfactory completion of service and apply within
ninety (90) days after release from active duty or within such extended period, if any, as required



by law. For those employees serving in the National Guard, if he or she left a full-time position.
the employee must apply for reemployment within forty (40) days of being released from active
duty, and if he or she left part-time employment, the employee must apply for reemployment
within five (5) days of being released from active duty.

An employee who was absent from work while fulfilling his or her covered service obligation
under the USERRA or California law shall be credited, upon his or her return to REALMS. with
the hours of service that would have been performed but for the period of absence from work due
to or necessitated by USERRA-covered service. Exceptions to this policy will occur wherever
necessary to comply with applicable laws.

REALMS shall grant up to ten (10) days of unpaid leave to employees who work more than twenty
(20) hours per week and who are spouses of deployed military servicemen and servicewomen.
The leave may be taken when the military spouse is on leave from deployment during a time of
military conflict. To be eligible for leave, an employee must provide REALMS with (1) notice of
intention to take military spousal leave within two (2) business days of receiving official notice
that the employee’s military spouse will be on leave from deployment, and (2) documentation
certifying that the employee’s military spouse will be on leave from deployment during the time
that the employee requests leave.

Bereavement Leave

All employees who have worked for the School for at least thirty (30) days shall be eligible to
take up to five (5) days of bereavement leave due to the death of a covered family member
(spouse, child, parent, sibling, grandparent. grandchild. domestic partner, or parent-in-law).
Exempt employees are entitled to up to five (5) days of pay during bereavement leave. For all
other employees, bereavement leave shall be unpaid unless an employee elects to use available
accrued/unused paid leave. Bereavement leave must be utilized within three (3) months of the

covered the family member’s date of death. Bereavement pay will not be used in computing
overtime pay. Upon request. an employee may be required to provide documentation of the death
of a covered family member.

Reproductive Loss Leave

All employees who have worked for the Schoo! for at least thirty (30) days shall be eligible to
take up to five (5) days of leave upon the employee experiencing a reproductive loss event. A
reproductive loss event includes any failed adoption, failed surrogacy, miscarriage, stillbirth, or
unsuccessful assisted reproduction. Reproductive loss leave must be used within three (3)
months of a reproductive loss event. Employees may take up to twenty (20) days of leave due to
qualifying reproductive loss events within a twelve (12) month period. Reproductive loss leave
shall be unpaid unless the employee elects to use available accrued/unused paid leave.
Reproductive loss leave shall not be used in computing overtime pay.

Jury Duty or Witness Leave

For all exempt employees. REALMS will pay for time off if an employee is called to serve on a
jury provided the employee continues to perform work duties as assigned. For all nonexempt
employees, REALMS will pay for up to three (3) days if the employee is called to serve on a
jury.



Voting Time Off

If an employee does not have sufficient time outside of working hours to vote in an official state-
sanctioned election, the employee may take oft enough working time to vote. Such time off shail
be taken at the beginning or the end of the regular working shift, whichever allows for more free
time and the time taken off shall be combined with the voting time available outside of working
hours to a maximum of two (2) hours combined. Under these circumstances, an employee will be
allowed a maximum of two (2) hours of time off during an election day without loss of pay.
When possible, an employee requesting time off to vote shall give the Superintendent at least
two (2) days notice.

School Appearance and Activities Leave

As required by law, REALMS will permit an employee who is a parent or guardian (including a
stepparent, foster parent, or grandparent) of school children, from kindergarten through grade
twelve (12), or a child enrolled with a licensed child care provider, up to forty (40) hours of
unpaid time off (up to eight (8) hours in any calendar month of the school year) to participate in
activities of a child’s school or child care. If more than one (1) parent or guardian is an employee
of REALMS, the employee that first provides the leave request will be given the requested time
off. Where necessary, additional time off will also be permitted where REALMS requires the
employee(s) appearance.

The employee requesting school leave must provide reasonable advance notice of the planned
absence. The employee must use accrued but unused paid leave (e.g., vacation or sick leave) to
be paid during the absence.

When requesting time off for school activities, the employee must provide verification of
participation in an activity as soon as practicable. When requesting time off for a required
appearance, the employee(s) must provide a copy of the notice from the child’s school requesting
the presence of the employee.

Bone Marrow and Organ Donor Leave

As required by law, eligible employees who require time off to donate bone marrow to another
person may receive up to five (5) workdays off in a twelve (12) month period. Eligible
employees who require time off to donate an organ to another person may receive up to sixty
{60) workdays off in a twelve (12) month period.

To be eligible for bone marrow or organ donation leave (“*Donor Leave™), the employce must
have been employed by REALMS for at least ninety (90) days immediately preceding the Donor
Leave.

An employee requesting Donor Leave must provide written verification to REALMS that he or
she is a donor and that there is a medical necessity for the donation of the organ or bone marrow.

Up to five (5) days of leave for bone marrow donation, and up to thirty (30) days of leave for
organ donation, may be paid provided the employee uses five (5) days of accrued paid leave for
bone marrow donation and two (2) weeks of accrued paid leave for organ donation. If the

employee has an insufficient number of paid leave days available, the leave will otherwise be
paid.

Employees returning from Donor Leave will be reinstated to the position held before the leave



began, or to a position with equivalent status, benefits, pay and other terms and conditions of
employment. REALMS may refuse to reinstate an employee if the reason is unrelated to taking a
Donor Leave. A Donor Leave is not permitted to be taken concurrently with an FMLA/CFRA
Leave.

Yictims of Abuse Leave

REALMS provides reasonable and necessary unpaid leave and other reasonable accommodations
to employees who are victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking or other crimes. Such
leave may be taken to attend legal proceedings or to obtain or attempt fo obtain any relief
necessary, including a restraining order, to ensure the employee’s own health, safety or welfare,
that of the employee’s child or children or when a person whose immediate family member is
deceased as the direct result of a crime. A crime includes a crime or public offense that would
constitute a misdemeanor or felony if the crime had been committed in California by a competent
adult, an act of terrorism against a resident of California (whether or not such act occurs within
the state), and regardless of whether any person is arrested for, prosccuted for, or convicted of,
committing the crime. Employees may also request unpaid leave for the following purposes:

Seck medical attention for injuries caused by domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking.
Obtain services from a domestic violence shelter, program, or rape crisis center.
Obtain psychological counseling for the domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking.

Participate in safety planning, such as relocation, to protect against future domestic
violence, sexual assault, or stalking.

To request leave under this policy, an employee should provide REALMS with as much advance
notice as practicable under the circumstances. If advance notice is not possible, the employee
requesting leave under this policy should provide REALMS one (1) of the following
certifications upon returning back to work:

1. A police report indicating that the employee was a victim of domestic violence, sexual
assault, or stalking.

2. A court order protecting the employee from the perpetrator or other evidence from the
court or prosecuting attorney that the employee appeared in court.

3. Documentation from a licensed medical professional, domestic violence or sexual assault
counselor, licensed health care provider, or counselor showing that the employee’s
absence was due to treatment for injuries or abuse from domestic violence, sexual assault,
or stalking.

4. Any other form of documentation that reasonably verifies that the crime or abuse
occurred, including but not limited to, a written statement signed by the employee, or an
individual acting on the employee’s behalf, certifying that the absence is for a purpose
authorized under the law.

Employees requesting leave under this policy may choose to use accrued paid leave. In addition,
REALMS will provide reasonable accommodations to employees who are victims of domestic
violence, sexual assault or stalking for the employees’ safety while at work. To request an
accommodation under this policy. an employee should contact the Superintendent.

Returning From Leave of Absence

Employees cannot return from a medical leave of absence without first providing a sufficient



doctor’s return to work authorization.

When business considerations require. the job of an employee on leave may be filled by a
temporary or regular replacement. An employee should give the Superintendent thirty (30) days’
notice before returning from leave. Whenever REALMS is notified of an employee’s intent to
return from a leave, REALMS will attempt to place the employee in his former position or in a
comparable position with regard to salary and other terms and conditions for which the employce
is qualified. However, re-employment cannot always be guaranteed. If employees need further
information regarding Leaves of Absence, be sure to consult the Superintendent.



DISCIPLINE AND TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT

Rules of Conduct

The following conduct is prohibited and will not be tolerated by REALMS. This list of
prohibited conduct is illustrative only and applies to all employees of REALMS; other types of
conduct that threaten security. personal safety, employee welfare and REALMS operations also
may be prohibited. Further, the specification of this list of conduct in no way alters the at-will
employment relationship as to at-will employees of REALMS. If an employee is working under
a contract with REALMS which grants procedural rights prior to termination, the procedural
terms in the contract shall apply.

l.

2.

3.

e e

13.

14.
15.

16.
17.

18.
19.
20.

Insubordination - refusing to perform a task or duty assigned or act in accordance with
instructions provided by an employee’s manager or proper authotity.
Unprofessional conduct.

Inefficiency - including deliberate restriction of output, carclessness or unnccessary
wastes of time or material, neglect of job, duties or responsibilities.

Unauthorized soliciting, collecting of contributions. distribution of literature, written or
printed matter is strictly prohibited on REALMS property by non-employees and by
employees. This rule does not cover periods of time when employees are off their jobs,
such as lunch periods and break times. However, employees properly off their jobs are
prohibited from such activity with other employees who are performing their work tasks.

Damaging, defacing. unauthorized removal, destruction or theft of another employee’s
property or of REALMS property.

Fighting or instigating a fight on REALMS premises.

Violations of the drug and alcohol policy.

Using or possessing firearms, weapons or explosives of any kind on REALMS premises.
Gambling on REALMS premises.

Tampering with or falsifying any report or record including, but not limited to, personnel,
absentee. sickness or production reports or records, specifically including applications for
employment and timecards.

Recording the clock card, when applicable, of another employee or permitting or
arranging for another employee to record your clock card.

Use of profane. abusive or threatening language in conversations with other employees
and/or intimidating or interfering with other employees.

Conducting personal business during business hours and/or unauthorized use of telephone
lines for personal calls.

Excessive absentecism or tardiness excused or unexcused.

Posting any notices on REALMS premises without prior written approval of
management. unless posting is on a REALMS bulletin board designated for employee
postings.

Immoral or indecent conduct.
Conviction of a criminal act.

Engaging in sabotage or espionage (industrial or otherwise)
Violations of the sexual harassment policy.

Failure to report a job-related accident to the employee’s manager or failure to take or



follow prescribed tests, procedures or treatment.
21.  Sleeping during work hours.

22.  Release of confidential information without authorization.

23.  Any other conduct detrimental to other employees or REALMS interests or its efficient
operations.

24.  Refusal to speak to supervisors or other employees.

25.  Dishonesty.

26.  Failure to possess or maintain the credential/certificate required of the position.

For employees who possess an employment contract which provides for other than at-will
employment, the procedures and process for termination during the contract shall be specified in
the contract.

Off-Duty Conduct

While REALMS does not seek to interfere with the off-duty and personal conduct of its
employees, certain types of off-duty conduct may interfere with REALMS legitimate business
interests. For this reason, employees are expected to conduct their personal affairs in a manner
that does not adversely affect REALMS or its own integrity, reputation, or credibility. Illegal or
immoral off- duty conduct by an employee that adversely affects REALMS legitimate business
interests or the employee’s ability to perform his or her work will not be tolerated.

While employed by REALMS, employees are expected to devote their energices to their jobs with
REALMS. For this reason, second jobs are strongly discouraged. The following types of
additional employment elsewhere are strictly prohibited:

e Additional employment that conflicts with an employee’s work schedule, duties, and
responsibilities at REALMS.

» Additional employment that creates a conflict of interest or is incompatible with the
employee’s position with REALMS

s Additional employment that impairs or has a detrimental effect on the employee’s work
performance with REALMS.

e Additional employment that requires the employee to conduct work or related activities
on REALMS property during the employer’s working hours or using REALMS facilities
and/or equipment; and

e Additional employment that directly or indirectly competes with the business or the
interests of REALMS.

Employees who wish to engage in additional employment that may create a real or apparent
conflict of interest must submit a written request to REALMS explaining the details of the
additional employment. If the additional employment is authorized, REALMS assumes no
responsibility for it. REALMS shall not provide workers’ compensation coverage or any other
benefit for injuries occurring from or arising out of additional employment. Authorization to

engage in additional employment that can be revoked at any time.



Termination of Employment

Should it become necessary for an employee to terminate his/her at-will employment with
REALMS. the employee should notify the Superintendent. regarding their intention as far in
advance as possible. At least two (2) weeks™ notice is expected whenever possible.

When an employee terminates histher at-will employment, the employee will be entitled to all
carned but unused vacation pay. If the employee is participating in the medical and/or dental
plan, the employee will be provided information on their rights under COBRA.

INTERNAL COMPLAINT REVIEW

The purpose of the “Internal Complaint Review Policy™ is to afford all employees of REALMS
the opportunity to seek internal resolution of their work-related concerns. All employees have
free access to the Superintendent or the Governing Board to express their work-related concerns.

Specific complaints of unlawful harassment, discrimination, and retaliation are addressed under
the Schoo!’s “Policy Prohibiting Unlawful Harassment, Discrimination, and Retaliation.”

Internal Complaints
(Complaints by Employees Against Employees)

This section of the policy is for use when a REALMS employee raises a complaint or concern
about a coworker.

If reasonably possible, internal complaints should be resolved at the lowest possible level,
including attempts to discuss/resolve concerns with the immediate supervisor. However, in the
event an informal resolution may not be achieved or is not appropriate, the following steps will
be followed by the Superintendent or designee:

I. The complainant will bring the matter to the attention of the Superintendent as soon as
possible after attempts to resolve the complaint with the immediate supervisor have failed
or if not appropriate; and

2. The complainant will reduce his or her complaint to writing, indicating all known and
relevant facts. The Superintendent or designee will then investigate the facts and provide a
solution or explanation:

(S ]

If the complaint is about the Superintendent, the complainant may file his or her complaint
in a signed writing to the President of the School’s Governing Board, who will then
confer with the Board and may conduct a fact-finding or authorize a third party
investigator on behalf of the Board. The Board President or investigator will report his or
her findings to the Board for review and action, if necessary.

This policy cannot guarantee that every problem will be resolved to the employee’s satisfaction.
However. the Schoo! values each employee’s ability to express concerns and the need for

resolution without fear of adverse consequences to employment.

Policy for Complaints Against Employees



(Complaints by Third Parties Against Employees)

This section of the policy is for use when a non-employee raises a complaint or concern about a
REALMS employee.

If complaints cannot be resolved informally, complainants may file a written complaint with the
office of the Superintendent or designee or Board President (if the complaint concerns the
Superintendent) as soon as possible after the events that give rise to the complainant’s concerns.
The written complaint should set forth in detail the factual basis for the complaint.

In processing the complaint, Superintendent (or designee) shall abide by the following process:

1. The Superintendent. or designee shall use his or ber best efforts to talk with the parties
identified in the complaint and to ascertain the facts relating to the complaint.

2. In the event that the Superintendent (or designee) finds that a complaint against an
employee is valid. the Superintendent (or designee) may take appropriate disciplinary
action against the employee. As appropriate, the Superintendent (or designee) may also
simply counsel/reprimand e¢mployees as to their conduct without initiating formal
disciplinary measures.

3. The Superintendent (or designee) decision relating to the complaint shall be final unless it
is appealed to the Governing Board of the School. The decision of the Governing Board
shall be final.

General Requirements

Confidentiality: All complainants will be notified that information obtained from the
complainants and thereafter gathered will be maintained in a manner as confidential as possible,
but in some circumstances absolute confidentiality cannot be assured.

Non-Retaliation: All complainants will be advised that they will be protected against retaliation
as a result of the filing of any complaints or participation in any complaint process.

Resolution: The Board (if a complaint is about the Superintendent) or the Superintendent or
designee will investigate complaints appropriately under the circumstances and pursuant to the
applicable procedures, and if necessary. take appropriate remedial measures to ensure effective
resolution of any complaint.

AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK

This Employee Handbook contains the employment policies and practices of the School in effect
at the time of publication.

REALMS reserves the right to amend, delete or otherwise modify this Handbook at any time
provided that such modifications are in writing and duly approved by the employer.

Any written changes to the Handbook will be distributed to all employees. No oral statements can
in any way alter the provisions of this Handbook.



APPENDIX A

HARASSMENT/DISCRIMINATION/RETALIATION COMPLAINT FORM

It is the policy of the School that ail of its employees be free from harassment, discrimination and
retaliation. This form is provided for you to report what you believe to be harassment,
discrimination and rvetaliation so that the School may investigate and take appropriate
disciplinary or other action when the facts show that there has been harassment, discrimination
or retaliation.

If you are an employee of the School, you may file this form with the Superintendent or the Board
President.

Please review the School’s policies concerning harassmeni, discrimination, and retaliation for a
definition of such unlawful conduct and a description of the types of conduct that are considered
unlawful.

REALMS will undertake every effort to handle the investigation of your complaint in a
confidential manner. In that regard, the School will disclose the contents of your complaint only
to those persons having a need to know. For example, to conduct its investigation, the School will
need to disclose portions of your factual allegations fo potential witnesses, including anyone you
have identified as having knowledge of the facts on which you are basing your complaint, as well
as the alleged offender.

In signing this form below, you authorize the School to disclose to others the information you
have provided herein, and information you may provide in the future. Please note that the more
detailed information you provide, the more likely it is that the School will be able to address your
complaint to your satisfaction.

Charges of harassment, discrimination, and retaliation are taken very seriously by the School
both because of the harm caused by such unlawful conduct, and because of the potential
sanctions that may be taken against the offender. It is therefore very important that you report the
facts as accurately and completely as possible and that you cooperate Jully with the person or

reior 3 ya o 1o, » 1 .

e e o

Your Name: Date:

Date of Alleged Incident(s):

Name of Person(s) you believe harassed, or discriminated or retaliated against you or someone else:

List any witnesses that were present:

Where did the incident(s} occur?

Please describe the events or conduct that are the basis of your complaint by providing as much
factual detail as possible (i.e. specific statements; what, if any, physical contact was involved; any
verbal statements; what did you do to avoid the situation, etc.) (Attach additional pages. if needed):




[ acknowledge that [ have read and that [ understand the above statements. I hercby authorize the
School to disclose the information 1 have provided as it finds necessary in pursuing its investigation.

I hereby certify that the information I have provided in this complaint is true and correct and
complete to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Date:

Signature of Complainant

Print Name

Received by: Date:




APPENDIX B

INTERNAL COMPLAINT FORM

Your Name: Daate:

Date of Alleged Incident(s}):

Name of Person(s) you have a complaint against:

List any witnesses that were present:

Where did the incident(s) cccur?

Please describe the events or conduct that are the basis of your complaint by providing as much factual detail
as possible (i.e. specific statements: what, if any, physical contact was involved; any verbal statements; what
did you do to avoid the situation, etc.) (Attach additional pages, if needed):

I hereby authorize the School to disclose the information | have provided as it finds necessary in pursuing its
investigation. T hereby certify that the information I have provided in this complaint is true and correct and
complete to the best of my knowledge and belief. I further understand providing false information in this
regard could result in disciplinary action up to and including termination.

Date:
Signature of Complainant
Print Name
To be completed by School:
Received by: Date:

48B9-7854-7664, v. 2



v 10 | abed

Toad5al PUE Ssauile) Setowold Jeu) eleww|o & PUUSIIGEIST 2'2

0 o o Qg
O O O O "SJUSPMS |8 Sebebus Jey} JUSWUOIIALS jeaisAyd e bupeald |'g SINaWIT3
“(S22U815)u0D 10 LUOHEBIUSWINIOP ‘UCIIBAIDS]O
‘LoI08|81 (BLIMO]|O} B} JO DIOW Jo BUO Aq pessasse) ONINYYIT INIANLS HOd SLNIWNOHIANT SAILOF443 ONINIVLNIVIN ANV DONILLYIHO
v[ele]|t] Z QHVYANVLS DNIHOVAL

(9oUBpIAG puE SBIIAIOE) AHVYININNS

O o OO "S1Uapn}s |8 10} buiwies| sAlnoS|je) PajosIIp-)es bujowold S|
O O 10 ‘[njBulueaLL JepEeW 103lgns SxEW JBU} SAINAIIOE JOUI0 pue Bupjuiyy 1eonuo ‘Buiajos welqoid Ul sjuspnis Bubetus |
O O O O 20100 puUe UOROBIaUl ‘AWIOUOINE BJ0WaId 18y} seouanadxa DBuiuies| buley|ioes £}
O O Cc O "Sp95U ©SI2AIp ,S1UapN]S 0} puodsal 0} S30IN0SaI pue selDelEA)S [BUOIONASU| JO AlBLBA B buisn 21
O O O g "S[eoB BUIWIES| UM S}Slajul pue sousliadxe 8| ‘abpapmouy Joud suspms Builosuuod || SINIWTTE
"(seoualajuoo Jo
UOIEIUSINDOP ‘UOAISSC ‘UONOBYSI :BUIMO||0) 8U1 JO SJowl IO 8uo Aq pessesse) DNINHYIT NI SINIANLS TV DONILLHOLdNS ANY ONIDVONI
ve [e [} ] I QHVANVLS DNIHOVIL
ONILVAONNI ¥ | ONILYHDILNI € | INIWJO13A3A SA3AN 2 [ FONYWHOLHId LNFIDI44NSNI "1
LNINWNDISSY
Hy3A TOOHOS TO0HOS ANWYN

WYO04 NOLLYNIVYAT H3HOVAL

aousIog pue ‘oisny ‘ebenbue-] Jo} Awapedsy Aejuswialg ysa4096piy

e



¥ )0 g effieg

S00UaJa)u0s JO UDRBIUBWNI0P “UOIJeAISSgO ToRo8|e1 (BUIMO|[0} BU} JO 2J0W 10 SUO AQ pessesse) ONINHYI1 LNIANLS ONISSISSY

vlele|l]

S QHVANVLS DNIHOVIL

(90ouspIAe puE SBIHAIDE) AHVYININNS

"Speau JUspN}s 1o} 1snipe 0} sue|d [euononisul bulAJpoW S§'F

~ - Bululea] JUBPN}s 19350} 0} Sue|d Wie)-buol pue Lel-poys bulubissq ¢

‘Buiuies| JUAPNIS Jo) SENSEW pUE S8llAII0E [BUOonisul Buouenbes pue Buidojeasq €

“BuluIEs] JUepns 10} S[eoh DUNENOILE pue bulysiiqels3 g

(] ] g ]
] ] ] ] i
) (] (O ) T
(] ] gl ) I

"Spoeu BuluieEa| [E1USLIdOjaAap PUE SiSalelul ‘spunoibyoeq sjuspnis Buinjea pue uo buimelq L'y IRELERE

~(580UeJ3JU02 JO UOKRIUSWNIOP “UOHEBAIBS]O ‘Uolo8el
:BuIMO[|0} BU} JO 80U JO BUO Aq passasse) SINIANLS TTv HO4 STONIIHIJXI ONINFVYI SNINDISIA ANV NOILLONYHLSNE DNINNY1d

v ezl ¥ QHVANVLS DNIHOVIL
{eouspira pue sallIAlDR) AHYWINNS
ololotic "S1UBPNIS O} 8|qISS800E Jaiel 10algns exew o} S8ID0jouLdS)} PUE S80IN0sal "Spenejewl BUISn G'E
Olololo ~/enewW j0olans ey} o} sjeldoudde aie jey) salbojels [euonondsul ybnoayy Bulpuelsispun Juepnys buidoereg '€
olalolo "SETIE JenEll 13elgns SS0i0e PUB LUIULM UoleWIOUl pue seop! Duielslail] £°F
ololals “JaleLl 108lgns ey} Jo bulpuelsiapun juspns poddns 01 wnnaIng Buziuvebig z'e
Ololo|lo uewdojeAap JUBPMIS PUE JuSued Jexew joslgns Jjo abpapwoln bunegsuowsq L'g SINIWIT3

-[530UL18UCD JO LO|JEJUSWNDOOP ‘UoIeAI3SqO
‘uonos)jal :BUIMO][O} B4} JO BI0W IO BLC Aq passasse) ONINHYIT INIANLS HO4 HALIVIAL LO3rdnNs ONIZINYDHO ANV DNIANYLSHIANN

€ QHVYANVLS DNIHOVAEL

(eouUspIAe puE SBIJAIRE) AHYIWINNS

“KleAnoaye au} [eUORONASUI bulsn 9°2

‘Buiures| yuapnis woddns jey) ssunol pue saInpaoo.d WIoo.sse|d Buyuawe|dw pue builueld §'2

“JOIABUSY JUSPNIS 10} SPJBpUER]S Dulllejulew pue Buysigesy v'e

0oyl
(] I
g afo
] (] )

“Agisuodsas dnoib pue uswdojpaap |Bloos Bunowold €2




+ 10 ¢ abey

O O O "SSIIANDE PUE SiUSpnIs JO UoIsiAadns Joj Fnqisuodsal Jo 8ieys Alej Sidaddy _ INEERE!
-(590US42)UCD 40 LUOIIEIUSWINDOP ‘UOEAIaSqO ‘LOII3|a -Buimoyjo} a4} Aq pessasse) S31LNA LONNray
€ _ [ _ I SIILIMFISNOLSIH TVYNOLLIaQyY

uonejoadx3 Jo spiepue)s s}ean ‘e

I juewdotareg SpPasN ‘2 [ aouBLIOLIad Jusloynsy| *|

uayoesl Jead e yum waysAs Bupopuow ssoifoad JuspNS & HE)S pue SABP OF UMM S. 4711 |

je ayepdn o} paunbal o4 ||Im SIaYoERa) HJUBLSIS SIy] UL Bules soueulouad JuRIHIENSU|

¥

-soueUUopad UBIDIYNSUI SB pajed 8] |[BUS O- | SPIEpUElS {g) oml Aue ) sBulyel souewicped Jusioynsul jo Aliofew sy Bulaaoas sisyoes] e

(souapPIAG PUB SORIAIE) AHYINWNS

"SME| pUE Sj0eAU00 ‘sepljod ‘suolejnbal 'se|ni paus|Igelsa a)is [004IS pue JOLISID Yim sa||dwon g9

“gonoesd [euolssaold aaoidul| 0} SONDES||02 YUm AeAneredood BUBIOp G'9

"aonoeld [euoissajold sacidull 01 SeljiLUE) UM buppop #'0

“gonoeid [euoissaj01d aAoIdl O} SeIUNLUWOD UM BUBLOM €°9

“Aeuoissajoid mo.b o} sepjunpoddo Bunsind pue sjeob [euoissejold bulysiiqelsy 2'9

(] (] g ] ]

(] ] o] ) ]

] ) p) () Il

] [l ] i ) |

ueidolenep [euoissejoud Buluueld pue eoioeld Buiqoes) Lo bunos|dy L9

SLINIWII

‘(saoualaguoD

1O UOIIEIUALINTOP ‘UOITBAISSTO ‘LOII0B|e) (BUIMOII0} S O 8I0W Jo 8uo Aq Passesse) HOLVONAI TYNOISSIIOHd V SV ONIJOTIAD

<

-

9 QHVANVYLS DNIHOVIL

(souspina pue salMIOB) AHYIWNNS

(5159} palEeld J9ydea) JaL]0 ‘SJUBLLISSasSY
SAIJELLLIOS ‘SIUBLLSSESSY MJRLUYDUSE WNNSLUND ‘SIUBISSBSSY Yellousy YIMN) "sainsesiu eouelwlopad sdiynw
WO} SYNSaJ AQ PAOUSPIAG SE SPIEPUE]S OILUSPEDE [9A8] 8pe.b JO JusUIUBlE S} SPIeMO} ssaiboid Juapnys Jo aouapial 9°G L

~559100id JUSPNIS INOGUE Se0UBIPNE JAUJ0 PUE SSIJILLE] "SJUSPNIS LM DUNBOIUNLLIWOYD GG

*UoNoNASUl 3PIND 0] S1USLISSBSSE JO S)NSal 8y} Buisn ¢S

‘Buiuies| UMO Ji1ay) Puissesse U] sjuspnis jje BuipIinB pue BulAjcAl| §°G

“BuILIES| JUSPN}S SSOSSE O] UOKEULIOJUI JO S804N0S 8jdiyniu buisn pue Bunos|on 2'S

] |t | |

(] o} o ] ) A
(] {0 ot
O{Oojojme, o

"SJUBpNIS ||E O} S[E0D BujuIEs| BUNEDIUNILLLCO pue Bulysiiqelss |'g

SINIWZT3




t Jo ¢ abeg

areq aimeubig s uapusiuLadng

ereq ainieublg s,aafojdw] s a.meub|g s, o1en|eAs
] Buneaouul ] Bunesbaju| O juswdo|anraq spaanN 1 @ouewlopad uaniynsu| INOILYNIYAT TIVHIAO
1SJUSILLIOY) Javoeal

1SUONEPUSLILIOIDY/SIUSUIWIOY Jolen|eA]

{(@ouapine pue saiIAlOE) AHYININNS

“AjenBal peyepdn aie pue uolondisul [enplalput apinb o} pasn aJe s.47|

SjUelLSSasse abenbue| pue 'buipeal ‘yrew y3MN Ul S19h.B} IMOJD J98ll 0} SJUSPNIS JO %05 WNWIULL JB 10} S8ALLS

Frengeoca buipnjoul abenBUe| ojlepEde U] S1suies ebenbue ysibul jo ymoaB el spoddng

LpMOIB DILISPEOE PUE [BUOIIOLLS-|EI00S ,SJUSPNIS UO SIsNd04

Sieob JUSpNIS d3] PUE 0S 0} Selaupy

suejd 1SS SMO||0} pue AIBSSa08U Usym SISS seyeniu

"uow Jad Aepseupap) | 15e9] 1B sjeaw 1B} gnjo B SJBLI-00 1O SIIBYD

"ysgem selepdn pue sulejule

“7Inp 550054 UCOUIOWE PUE BuIUIOW paubisse BuLnp sjuspnis paIojiuo

"ReM||BY urew uj pieoq unajing suiejuiey

“[essiwsip bunnp sjuspn)s sesiaedns NV [ESSIUSIP 0} i} UD

(] [ o o o ] fom} y of  }
a|o|o|o|o|c|ajolo|joyn| o

(] [ o] o o] o] ] Y] ] Y ) UL A

"{looyos 210480) sannp Buluiow paubisse o} awi uo




=240

O
REALMS

FAER 1SRy ACADEN
ML AN STIENCE

2024-25 Parent-Student Handbook

(Board approved 07/23/2024)

Students and parents are responsible for knowing and following the contents of this handbook. The handbook
will be reviewed annually.

The administration reserves the right to make additions and deletions, as it deems necessary, for the safety
and/or welfare of all students.



Table of Contents

GENERAL INFORMATION 4
(IS = TaTs Mo 11 12 s APUUU O PP PP S PPRSPITPERRILS 4
BIrthday CEIBDTAtIONS ... vttt 4
PErSONA! BEIOMGINGS ... .- et reeireei ittt oot oo oe e 4
PROLO REIBASE . .o oeoeeee oo e e e et ettt s e saee e 2 e e as e e s en b e e ae e e e e e e L E S e e L 4
Textbook Contract: Parent/STUAENT ... ...o.eii oot o 4
LUSE OF the OFfICE PHOME .ot eeeee e et eteees ettt ee b e e o e nas e b e e b e e s aE e b e s 4
VT e e L0 s - Lo 11 NUUUUTEUUU OO U SRR PRPTS PP ST PPPR PP FPPPTEPRIIILRLIIERECE 5
Weekly Envelopes, Automated Email, School Web Page, & Facebook. ... 6
Suggestions, Comments, and CONCEIMNS PrOCESS ...t e 6
DITESS COTR o oveeoeee e eee e e e e e et et e e e e eeee e e e esee s et e eeeaiREeeaLaTe e SeeeEe e e e 6
IMIEAIS & INUBTIION e eeerees et ee e et eeaeesae s e e eae e e as e sm o e es e ee S na e are £ b oo RE LTS e L e E b et 8

CURRICULAR PROGRAM 8
School Attendance Hours: Student Drop Off and Pick Up Before/After School ... 8
Short Term Independent Study Contracts ... 9
ALNIEHC GUILEIINES . veoveee ettt ee et eae et et et e re e e e e s e e am s Ra b oS T L a0 e a A e LS 9
SHUAENE RECOGNMITION ... ettstre e e ee it et es b St 9
List of Course Descriptions (ProSPECIUS)... ..o e it 9
Academic Performance StANGAITS ....o..v oo e e et es e 10
Grade Promotion and RETENTION .......ooiee et eee e ie i e eeer o rta et e e e r e ne e o e e s 10
H O T WO K oo oo e oot e e oo e atteeeeauee e e ee e e sbeREe s e s et e e ean e e e o e E e e AR e oA R s 11
HOROT RO . oo oot e et eeue e+ e e e et es R e sk ea s she e e sme oo eh £ 4o E e e R e £ oo n R LR SR s 11
Kindergarten Graduation REQUIFEIMENTS ..ot s 11
PrOGTESS REPOMS ... rerseesitiuiitie it es oo b r e E e RS L 11
REPOT CAIIS. ... eveti et eee oot ee et es e b ST S 11
School Accountability REPOT CANAS ... 11
Standardized, Norm-Referenced Achievement TESIS ... 12
STUAENTE SUAY TRAMNL....cuetoeerit ettt ettt et oo e er b s saes e E e e ch e ne e ens SRS 12
A GG EITIIC ACCEIETAIION ... oo eeeeeeeeeee et ves e e e oo eetaeseas e e s ees et aaaans e e abssas s e TR EEE o e s b e e £ s Rn e b 12

EXPECTATIONS FOR STUDENT CONDUCT 13
Character Counts, Second Step, and PBIS .. ... o 13
ACAABIMIC HOMESTY ... .o ieetiee et ee et ebe s em e es e E e e s E e ea eI EE L e 13
ClassSroomM MANAGEMENL ... .ottt e o b e E L 14
DISCIPINE REFEITA ...ttt e LSS 14
Lost or Damaged SCROOI PrOPEMY.........oi i erie e b 14
Student Search, Seizure, and Video SUNVEIIIANCE ... 15
items NOt Permitted 0N CamPUS. . ..uveeiriercei ittt asare e e s e e e ee e o e oo e et 15
StUAENt USE Of TECNNOIOGY ...veioeeii ettt or s e 15



Campus Passes

Cell Phone, Smartphones, Pagers & Other Electronic Signaling Devices Policy
HEALTH AND SAFETY

First Aid and liness during School Hours

Medication

Sun Protection

Communication Process

Bicycles, Scooters, and SKAtehO@IAS ........uiv i
Emergency Contact INFOMMEALION ..o b s

APPENDIX A: ANNUAL NOTICES
California Healthy Kids SUMVEY ... it s e e s
Campus SEATCh aNG SEIZUIE. .......oiri ot b s
CONCUSSION/HEAM IMJUTIES. ... .. veueeeeiemcec et eessns s e es e e eSS
BT o s TVRUUR T U T PO PSP PP PP P T T PP RSP RTCRULTRELE IR LI
DANGErS Of SYNNEHC DIUGS. ....oeuerieietees et e
Education of Foster and Mobile Youth

Education of Homeless Children and Youth

English Learners

1R 8118181 (T 4 L= DT U P PSP P P S L P PP P P SLLEEECRLLEES
INVOIUNTANY REMOVAI PTOCESS ... .cveouitiiietesieer et e
MENTAL HEAIN SEIVICES ...oeeoeeeeee e ieeteeeeetee e e eee e e srete s aar e s oae e e eae s e e e rn e r oL LR e s e e p LR
NONGISCIIMINAION SEAIEMENT. ..o e e e et e e Lt s s e
Opioid INFOIMAHON SHEET. ...t
OA] HEARN ASSEESITIEIL . o eveeee et eeetteeseteeieee s ssereassaaeaseeaaseeesabeeaisaan o s e e e s EE £ an e s oS e e e m e e e s e na e b
Parent and Family ERGagement PONCY ... ..o
Pregnant and Parenting STUA@NES. ..........oo o
Physical Examination and RIght 10 REfUSE ...
Safe Storage of Firearms
School Safety Plan
ror=e 17 4 Ts 0. WU P PP P PP PSPPI ST I PSP L LIPS PRI ST
Students with Disabilities

State Testing

Student Records, including Records Challenges and Directory Information ...
Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention and Automated External Defibrillators
Surveys About Personal Beliefs

Teacher Qualification Information

Uniform Complaint Procedure (*UCP")

Use of Student Information Learmned from Social Media
APPENDIX B: COMPLETE POLICIES



Professional Boundaries: Staff/Student Interaction POlCY ... 46

Corporal PUNISRIMBNT ..ot 46
Acceptable and Unacceptable Staff/Student Behavior.................o 46
Titie IX/Harassment/intimidation/Discrimination/Bullying Policy............ o 49
ATENAANEE POICY ... o.evevrete ettt ettt es e b eE bR LS 62
Suspension and EXpUISION POLICY ... .....coiiri 68
PARENT/STUDENT HANDBOOK ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 77

GENERAL INFORMATION

Lost and Found

Any items found on campus should be taken to the lost and found in the cafeteria. The item(s) found on campus
may belong to someone else. It does not automatically belong to the person who found it. The lost and found
will be cleared regularly. Items not claimed will be donated or discarded. All items brought to school should be
clearly labeled with the child’s name. The school is not responsible for replacing lost or damaged student
belongings.

Birthdav Celebrations

Families should contact the classroom teacher to make arrangements. Parents/guardians must sign in at the front
office and obtain a visitor badge to be worn during their visit.

Personal Belongings

Do not leave personal belongings unattended. The school is not responsible for lost or stolen items. Money
should always be turned in to the teacher or carried on the person and never put in backpacks or lett in desks or
classrooms. The school is not responsible for lost money.

Photo Release

If you do not wish to grant permission for school use of pictures in which your child is included, and relinquish
all title to said photographs. negatives, and reproduction, please contact the Superintendent at 760-375-1010.

Textbook Contract: Parent/Student

Students in grades 4-6 will have their books checked out to them directly through the library. These books are
bar-coded, and the student will be responsible for the assigned bar-coded textbooks.

Use of the Office Phone

Any student feeling ill at any time during the day, including after school, needs to check in to the school office.
The office will call home and see that care is given until the child is taken home.

Students may not use the phone: to see if they can go home with, or bring home, a friend or to have their work or

4



other forgotten items brought to school. Phone calls from parents/guardians to the classroom during the school

day are disruptive to the teacher and students and are NOT recommended. Please make transportation plans
before school.

Visitation/Qbservation

All campus visitors must have the consent and approval of the Superintendent or designee prior to their visit.
The Superintendent or designee should do its utmost to answer all visit requests within a reasonable period of
time following the request. Children who are not enrolled at the school are not to be on the campus unless prior
approval of the Superintendent has been obtained. Visitors may not interfere with, disrupt or cause substantial
disorder in any classroom or school activity. REALMS Policy states that smoking and the use of all tobacco
products is prohibited on all REALMS property including REALMS-owned or leased buildings. and in
REALMS vehicles at all times, by all persons, including employees. students, and visitors at any school or
REALMS site, or attending any school-sponsored events.

All visitors shall register their visit in the main office immediately upon entering any school building or grounds
during regular school hours. When registering, the visitor is required to provide his/her name, address, age (if
under 21), histher purpose for entering school grounds, and proof of identity.

If the visitor is a government officer/official (including but not limited to local law enforcement officers,
immigration enforcement officers, social workers, district attorneys, or U.S. attorneys) the officer/official will
also be asked to produce any documentation that authorizes school access. REALMS shall make reasonable
efforts to notify parents or guardians prior to permitting a student to be interviewed or searched. consistent with
the law and/or any court order, warrant or instructions from REALMS, consistent with the law. The REALMS
Governing Board and Bureau of Children’s Justice in the California Department of Justice, at BCJ@doj.ca.gov.
will be timely informed regarding any attempt by a law-enforcement officer to access a school site or a student
for immigration-enforcement purposes, as recommended by the Attorney General.

For purposes of school safety and security. the Superintendent or designee may design a visible means of
identification for visitors while on school premises.

Visitors are expected to:

« Follow the established school policy in requesting a classroom visitation

« Complete a visitor’s permit upon arrival at the site

« Enter and leave the classroom as quietly as possible

« Not converse with the students, teacher and/or instructional aides during the visitation
* Not interfere with any school activity

+ Keep the length and frequency of classroom visits reasonable and not longer than scheduled with the
Superintendent

« Follow the school's established procedures for meeting with the teacher and/or Superintendent after the visit, if
needed

* Learn and follow the school-wide behavioral expectations

+ Return the visitor™s permit to the point of origin before leaving the campus.



Any individual who disrupts a school site or fails to follow school rules and/or procedures is subject to removal
from the school site and may be further restricted from visiting the school.

Weekly Envelopes, Automated Email, School Web Page, & Facebook

Weekly envelopes or an equivalent method of communication are a primary source of providing information to
cach student’s home. Your student’s teacher will let you know what method of communication will be used in
that class. Ifan envelope is used, it will be sent home every Monday in the student’s backpack. Please
remember to look for this envelope every week. It will contain everything you need to know concerning class
and school activities for the week. Advance notice of all important events, including permission slips, will be
sent home via this envelope; please be sure to sign the outer cover of the envelope each week. The front of the
Envelope is to be signed by the parent cach week to verify receipt of the contents. Student work that has been
graded at below 70% will need to be signed by the parent/guardian and returned to the teacher. The front of the
Envelope is to be signed by the parent/guardian each week to verify receipt of the contents. If the envelope is not
signed and the contents of the envelope still remain, the parent/guardian will be contacted by the teacher.

Additional information about school activities and events will be posted regularly on the School’s web and
Facebook pages. Automated e-mail and recorded messages are also frequently sent to those who have
current contact information in our student database.

Suggestions, Comments. and Concerns Process

Any suggestion, comment, or concern should be addressed initially with your child’s teacher. You should
receive a response to your inquiry within 72 hours. In the event that you are not satisfied with the teacher’s
response or the timeframe established has not been met, you should then address your suggestion, comment, or
concern in writing to the Superiniendent. The Superintendent should respond to your suggestion, comment, or
concern within 72 hours.

In the event you are not satisfied with the Superintendent’s response or timeliness of response, the next step
would be to address your concern to the REALMS Governing Board. [t is recommended that you write a letter
to the school board clearly stating your suggestion, comment, or concern. Identify in the letter that you have
taken action and attempted to resolve the issue with your child’s teacher and the Superintendent. The Board will
respond within 14 days of the next regular board meeting after receiving the letter.

Dress Code

A dress code has been established to minimize economic and competitive differences among students. All
students will be required to wear specified school attire. The students are expected to follow the adopted dress
code policy and to exercise good hygiene every day. The Superintendent or designee will make the
determination if the student is in violation of the dress code. A dress code violation will result in, but is not
limited to, one or more of the following consequences: warning, detention, and call to parents in case of
questionable dress (not covered in the rules listed below). The Superintendent or Designee will make a final
decision.

Shirts may be:

« any solid color, plain, collared, shirt (polo shirts). If the collared shirt has a small logo, they must be school
appropriate with no alcohol, tobacco, profanity or drug logos.

+ a button oxford shirt with sleeves (no zippers, snaps, ribbing. or designs)



* Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language. Music, and Science Shirts

« Friday only. plain, any solid color, crew neck t-shirt
Shirts may not be pinned, tied tight, or rubber-banded behind the back or off to the side.

Undershirts must be plain, solid color (no lace or see-through) underneath the required uniform shirt.
Turtleneck shirts may be worn in lieu of the uniform shirt during cold weather periods. All undershirts must be
long enough to be tucked in.

Sweatshirts, Hoodies and Jackets may be any color. If the sweatshirt or jacket has logos, they must be school
appropriate with no alcohol, tobacco, profanity or drug logos. Sweatshirts, hoodies and jackets may not be worn
over the head in any buildings.

Pants must be uniform style and navy blue, black. gray or khaki in color. Pants must be straight leg, regular or
relaxed fit only. Excessively loose or excessively tight pants are not permitted. Jeggings, leggings, or tights may
only be worn under a uniform skirt or dress. Pants must fit at the waist (no sagging, no low-waist, and no hip
huggers). Denim jeans or any material resembling denim are not part of the uniform. Logos should not
exceed a total size of 2” x 3” (business card size) - similar to "Dockers" or "Dickies” labels.

Shorts must be uniform style and navy blue, black, or khaki colored. Shorts must fit at the waist (no sagging, no
low-waist. no hip huggers). Denim jean shorts or any material resembling denim are not part of the
uniform. Logos should not exceed a total size of 2" x 37 (business card size) - similar to "Dockers" or "Dickies"
labels.

Skorts, skirts, capris and jumpers must be navy blue, black, or khaki colored. Skorts, skirts, and capris must fit
at the waist (no sagging. no low-waist, no hip huggers). Denim skorts, skirts, capris, and skirt jumpers {(or
material resembling denim) are not part of the uniform. Logos should not exceed a total size of 2" x 3"
(business card size) - similar to "Dockers” or "Dickies" labels.

Length and Size: Shorts, skorts, skirts, dresses, and jumpers must fall below the fingertips when arms/hands are
held straight down at the side. Students are encouraged to wear shorts under skirts and jumpers. All uniforms
must be the appropriate size. Uniform items intentionally worn to be excessively loose or excessively tight are
not permitted, regardless of waist size.

Shoes: Students are to wear safe, athletic-type shoes, with traction soles that may be Velcro or with laces that
tie. Shoes are 1o be tied securely to the feet. For safety reasons, at no time are bare feet, open-ioe shoes, high
heels, wedges. Heelys, mules, slippers, or flip flops to be worn. Shoes must be appropriate for daily PE and
comfortable for physical activity.

Hats or Beanies with an appropriate logo or plain may be worn outside. Hats and Beanies are not allowed to be
worn inside buildings. Headwear worn for purposes of religious observance shall be permitted both indoors and
outdoors.

Jewelry: A single post earring in one or both ears may be worn. For safety reasons, no dangling or hoop-style
earrings are allowed. Body piercing (except for ears) is not allowed. One necklace may be worn inside the
blouse or shirt. No “Dog Collar” necklaces are allowed. A bracelet, wristwatch, and ring may also be worn.
Tattoos are prohibited.



Meals & Nutrition

Applications for School Meals

REALMS participates in the National School Lunch Program. Commencing with the 2024-25 school year.
REALMS shall provide two (2) nutritionally adequate meals to each student who requests a meal without
consideration of the student’s eligibility for a federally funded free or reduced-price meal, with a maximum of
one (1) free meal per meal service (breakfast and lunch) each school day. This shall apply to all pupils in
Transitional Kindergarten through grade six (6).

Students are required to fill out a meal application at the beginning of each school year. Applications are
available through Titan link on the school’s website and are also available at the school. Titan link can also be
accessed at https:/family.titank 12.com

Only one application per household is required. Please do not submit multiple applications as this will slow
down your processing. Applications are accepted throughout the school year. If your income or houschold size
changes you may submit an updated application. This may be subject to verification and documentation.
Detailed information on how to fill out a Meal Application is available on our website. Students who received
free or reduced meals the previous schoo! year must submit a new application at the beginning of the school
year.

A copy of the complete Policy is available upon request at the main office. The Charter School also maintains a
School Wellness Policy pursuant to state and federal requirements.

Breakfast and Lunch

Students may also bring lunch from home each day. A parent may bring a hot lunch to the office for their
student. Students have 40 minutes for lunch. All food must be eaten in designated areas inside the cafeteria or
outside tables and benches. Energy and soda drinks are NOT permitted on campus. Milk is sold in the
cafeteria. Water or 100% fruit juice is recommended. Please be sure that your student has adequate food for
lunch and snacks for the full school day. The school office personnel cannot provide these items for your
student.

Parents/guardians are welcome to have lunch with students during the student’s designated lunch time.
Parents/guardians must sign in at the front office and obtain a visitor badge to be worn during their visit.
While on campus parents/guardians will be supervised by staff members.

CURRICULAR PROGRAM

School Attendance Hours: Student Drop Off and Pick Up Before/After School

Students are not to arrive on campus before 7:30 a.m.. unless requested by a teacher. Once on campus, students
are not allowed to leave without permission. The first bell rings at 7:55 a.m. and students must be in class and
ready to begin at 8:00 a.m. Students arriving after 8:00 a.m. must report to the office for a tardy slip to keep
from being marked absent. School ends at 3:00 p.m. and at 12:15 p.m. on Flex/Minimum Days. Students are to
leave campus directly after school, unless they are staying for an authorized activity. If students are staying for
an activity. they are to remain with their teacher until they are released to the activity.



Short Term Independent Study Contracts

Independent Study Contracts allow students to complete their class work and homework assignments away from
the schoo! campus while not being considered absent during these days. The following conditions must be met
to participate in the short-term independent study: The contract covers a period from one (1) to twenty (20)
school days. The parents must complete the application request at least three (3) school days prior to the planned
leave or as soon as practicably possible. The Superintendent or designee must approve the request. The student
and parent must sign the appropriate form and pick up assignments before independent study begins. Assigned
work must be completed and returned the day the student returns to school. If the assigned work is not returned
on time, the student will not receive attendance credit.

Independent Study Contract for Military Families
REALMS may grant up to five days of excused absences for military-connected students whose parents are
deployed. The conditions under which the school may approve excused absences are:

(1) the absence is pre-approved;

(2) the student is in good standing:

(3) the student has a prior record of good attendance;

(4) missed work is completed and turned in within the school’s allotted time period; and

(5) the absence is not during standardized testing dates.

Athletic Guidelines

Students must obtain a sports physical and return it to the school. Students must have a signed sports waiver on
file and have proof of health insurance before they can try out or practice. Students must aftend the entire school
day of a game day. Only verified doctor or dentist appointments are acceptable excuses.

Students must attend a mandatory check-in for eligibility for the following week. This check-in will be held by
the coach or coaches. At this check in, the coach will verify that students have picked up a weekly progress
report and have it completed. This report will reflect a “(** — 70% or better for each class. Students who have
grades below 70% in any class will be benched and required to attend tutoring until they have achieved at least
70%, and students must attend all meetings and competitions. Progress reports will be verified on Friday for the
following week.

Students who receive an in-School Suspension will not play the following game; any other disciplinary action
may result in a loss of playing time. Student athletes are expected to be role models for the school. They will
sign an Athletic Code of Conduct, and any violations of this code may result in suspension from the team.

Student Recognition

Students will be recognized monthly for the efforts and achievements in “Three E's™ Excellent Citizenship (no
documented discipline infractions). Excellent Attendance (no unexcused/unverified absences), and Excellent
Academics (no more than 2 late or missing assignments). Students will also be recognized at the end of the
school year for their efforis and achievements in the “Three E’s.”

List of Course Descriptions (Prospectus)

Upon request, REALMS will make available to any parent or legal guardian a school prospectus, which shall
include the curriculum, including titles, descriptions, and instructional aims of every course offered. Please note
that, pursuant to law, REALMS may charge for the prospectus in an amount not to exceed the cost of
duplication.




Academic Performance Standards

Students are expected to perform to California Common Core grade level standards. Scores below 70% indicate
that a student is performing below basic standard skill levels. If a student receives a grade lower than 70% on
any given assessment, the teacher will send the graded work or a note home in the weekly envelope or

equivalent communication method for parent/guardian signatures. The signed work or note is to be returned to
the classroom teacher the following day.

« Academic: Students must have an overall Grade Point Average ("GPA™) of at least 2.0 in the subjects of
Language Arts, Math, Science and Social Studies.

« Behavior: Students must not receive more than two (2) in-school or out of school suspensions during the
schoo! year. Suspended or expelled students shall be excluded from all school and school-related activities
unless otherwise agreed during the period of suspension or expulsion.

« Textbooks: All textbooks must be turned in and fines paid. Lost textbooks must be paid prior to the class trips
and ceremony.

« Attendance: Students must comply with the attendance policy and procedures, as outlined in this Handbook.
Grades are determined as follows:

5= Advanced | 90 - A: Outstanding
100% 90- 100%

4= Proficient | 80 - B: Good 80-89%
89%

3= Basic 70 - C: Satisfactory
79% 70-79%

2= Below 60 - D: Needs

basic 69% Improvement 60-

69%

1= Far 0 -59% F: Unsatisfactory

Below 50- 59%

basic

Behavior Standards Academic Standards

Grade Promotion and Retention

The Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for Language. Music, and Science Board is dedicated to the continuous
development of each student. Typically, a student will be promoted annually to the next grade level; however,
he/she may be retained when there is evidence that the student has not made satisfactory progress in the current
grade level, or the student will not make satisfactory progress in the next grade. The Board takes inio
consideration a myriad of factors including developmental stage. physical age, fine motor skills, gross motor
coordination, capacity for learning, and academic progress. The parent of a student who is in danger of retention
will be notified as early as possible. The Superintendent and teacher have the final authority for grade promotion
after providing parents an opportunity to meet with the Superintendent to discuss.

10



Homework

Homework will not be given by classroom teachers at REALMS during the 2024-25 school year. For parents and
guardians who want their child/ren to do additional skills-based work at home, iReady Reading and iReady Math
and other online resources will be accessible for families to work on at home as a self-paced approach where
students work independently at their personal level to review and develop skills in core subjects.

Honor Roll

Honor Roll is a means of giving recognition to fourth through sixth grade students based on scholastic
achievement. To make the Honor Roll, a student must have at least a 3.0 GPA, with no failing marks, and be
working at, or above, grade level content standards. Honor Roll awards are given out at the end of each trimester
and REALMS will submit student names to the local newspaper. If you do not wish to have your student’s name
published, please contact the Superintendent at the beginning of the school year.

Kindergarten Graduation Requirements

In order to participate in the kindergarten graduation ceremony, the following requirements must be
met:

+ Academic: The student must be recommended for 1% grade promotion by the classroom teacher.

+ Behavior: The student must not receive more than five (5) out of school suspensions during the year.

Suspended or expelled students shall be excluded from all school and school-related activities unless
otherwise agreed during the period of suspension or expulsion.

Progress Reports

Progress reports are generated halfway through each trimester to advise the parent of their student’s progress.
Parents of students with IEPs may also be provided progress reports as outlined in their student’s IEP. This gives
the student the opportunity to improve his/her grade before the report card is issued. Additional progress reports
may be sent home during the trimester. Parents are encouraged to check their student’s progress on the Aeries
parent portal. Please contact the school office for verification information to access the Aeries parent portal.
REALMS schedules three (3) Parent/teacher conferences per year. First and third trimester progress reports will
be handed out at a mandatory parent/teacher conference. The second trimester progress report will be sent home
in the weekly envelope or equivalent communication method for students in Transitional Kindergarten through
fifth grade. If you are unable to attend the scheduled conference. please call to make alternate arrangements
with your child’s teacher. The necessity of other conferences is left to the teacher’s or parent’s discretion to
schedule. However, parents/guardians may and are encouraged to schedule times to meet with teachers on a
regular basis to discuss their student’s progress. For students in sixth grades, progress reports will be mailed
home.

Report Cards

Students in Transitional Kindergarten through fifth grade will have their first and second trimester report cards
sent home in their weekly envelope or equivalent communication method. The third trimester report card will be

mailed home for all students. Sixth grade students will always have their progress reports and report cards
mailed home.

School Accountability Report Cards

The School Accountability Report Card is available on request and is accessible at www.rcrealms.org. This

contains information about the school regarding the quality of the programs and its progress toward achieving
stated goals.

11



Standardized, Norm-Referenced Achievement Tests

e

REALMS is required to report each pupil's individual score, in writing, to the pupil's parent or guardian. The
school invites parents/guardians to contact appropriate school personne! for further explanation or information
regarding how the parent or guardian can best assist the school and the pupil in improving the pupil's
performance.

Pupils at REALMS participate in the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP).
REALMS will grant a parent or guardian’s request to excuse that parent or guardian’s pupil from any or all parts
of the CAASPP assessment system. REALMS will not solicit or encourage any parent or guardian to request the
exemption. Upon request, parents have a right to information on the level of achievement of their student on
every State academic assessment administered to the student.

Student Study Team

The Student Study Team (“SST”) process is used at REALMS as a tool to help students that are not making
academic progress, at risk of retention, or having behavior issues and/or attendance issues, which impede his or
her success during the school year. The SST Team also determines grade acceleration (skipping grades). The
SST is made up of the student’s teacher(s), one or several other teachers. an administrator or designee, and the
parents/guardians and the student. In grades four and above the student is part of this team and attends the
meetings. The team works to assess the learning modes of the student and devises interventions to help them be
more successful. During the meetings. the student’s strengths and arcas of concern are discussed and an
intervention plan is created. The SST should meet every 6-8 weeks to assess student progress based on the
intervention plan. Teachers or parents/guardians may request an SST meeting at any time during the school year.

Academic Acceleration

Assignment to a higher grade level will occur only after careful assessment of the student’s ability. intellectual
growth, emotional development, social competence, and academic achievement. Any change in a student’s
orade level must be in the student’s best interest. In some unique cases, parents/guardians may seek grade level
advancement for a student in grades TK-6. The needs of each individual student are of utmost importance and
must be met in the most effective manner possible; therefore, TK-6 grade level acceleration will be considered
when compliance with all of the following criteria is completed:

« receipt of a written request to the Superintendent from the parent/guardian requesting their student

“advance” a grade. The Superintendent should receive this written request no later than the end of the
second trimester.

« recommendation from the current grade level teacher as to in-class/grade performance in core subjects
(Language Arts, and Mathematics).

« in-class observation confirming developmental readiness of the student:

« review of available norm-referenced tests to determine academic ability with the proposed grade level

placement as determined by NWEA and benchmark testing, current grade level norm referenced test (pre
and post), and the post test for the grade level to be “skipped™

« emotional and social readiness evaluation conducted by the school psychologist or counselor of the
student’s ability to deal with issues and students in the proposed grade placement;

» conference with the Superintendent and parent/guardian.

12



The Student Study Team will make the recommendation for acceleration and the decision made will be
final. Placement will occur based on the Team’s decision,

Academic acceleration is ultimately decided by the Superintendent and will be made prior to the start of the new
school year. The decision will be formally communicated to the parents/guardians via letter to their home
address. A student may be accelerated if he or she meets all of the following requirements (scores are for end of
the year exams of the grade being skipped):

1. Reading Assessment: 90%

2. Math Assessment: 90%

3. Other materials such as social maturity, observation records and student work

4. A school representative recommends acceleration of the student

5. A parent of guardian approves acceleration of the student

6. NWEA Reading and Language (grades 3-8) score: (90" percentile or higher)

7. NWEA Math score: (90" percentile or higher)

8. CAASPP reading and math scores: Advanced

EXPECTATIONS FOR STUDENT CONDUCT

All pupils are required to adhere to school and class expectations and rules, directions, be diligent in study and
respectful to teachers and others in authority, and refrain from the use of profanity and vulgar language. School
wide and classroom expectations and rules are established to promote positive behavior.

Character Counts, Second Step, and PBIS

School staff supports an environment that teaches students, through the daily curriculum, the skills to resolve
conflicts and take responsibility for their actions. Character education instruction is based on “Character Counts™
a program comprising six units or components: trustworthiness. respect, responsibility, fairness, caring. and
citizenship. Students participate in discussions about the meaning of each behavioral trait, and randomly receive
reward coupons for practicing these character traits. The reward coupons are displayed on interactive bulletin
boards and help students earn recognition for their behavior.

Second Step is an evidence-based program that addresses social-emotional learning when offered. During
implementation, students are provided instruction in social and emotional learning with units on skills for
learning, empathy, emotion management, friendship skills, and problem solving. Students watch videos and
participate in discussion and activities that support skill development.

Positive Behavior and Intervention Supports (PBIS) is a framework of expected student behavicrs in common

areas on campus. Common areas include line up area, cafeteria, restrooms, and playground. Behavior
expectations are communicated in a matrix and are modeled and taught to all students.

Academic Honesty

To be successful in school, all students are expected to do their own work. If a student or group of students
chooses to cheat on an assignment or test, progressive discipline and education about the seriousness of
academic dishonesty will be implemented. Students caught cheating on any assignment or test may receive a
warning, loss of credit for the assignment or test, referral to the office, or any other logical consequence. Parents
will be notified of any academic dishonesty involving their child.

13



Classrcom Management

Each teacher establishes a classroom management system that includes student expectations, rules, and logical
consequences based on schoo! wide rules and expectations. Teachers also created a positive reinforcement
system and incentive programs to reinforce and recognize students for adherence to rules and expectations.
Progressive disciplinary measures begin in the classroom when students are disruptive or demonstrating poor
citizenship. Students who continue to make poor choices in conduct are referred to the Superintendent or
designee. Logical and natural consequences and disciplinary action are based upon the student’s past behavioral
trend and severity of infraction. Discipline measures are applied firmly. fairly, and consistently throughout the
school year.

Discipline Referral

Teachers are empowered to handle student misbehavior in their classrooms and hold students accountable for
their conduct on the way to and from school and the playground. Non-compliance may result in referral to the
office to speak with the Superintendent or designee. Students are to immediately report to the Superintendent
or designee when referred to the office.

A certificated or classified employee may refer a student to school administrators for in-school intervention or
supports from the list of other means of correction specified in EC 48900.5(b)(1). That school administrator
will, within 5 business days, document the actions taken, if any, and place that documentation into the pupil’s
record. The school administrator will inform the referring staff member, verbally or in writing, what actions
were taken, and if none, the rationale for that decision.

A referral will result in, but is not limited to, one or more of the following consequences:

- Restoration: Repairing any harm caused by behavior or action;
* Logical Consequence: A consequence that aligns with improper behavior or action;
+ Detention: After school, lunch detention, or campus clean-up:

» Suspension: In-school or out-of-school suspension of 1-5 days depending upon the severity of the offense.
Suspensions may be extended past the initial 5 days if an expulsion hearing is pending.

« Expulsion: Results in the student not attending school at REALMS and the parents/guardians seeking

placement elsewhere. This decision is made in a hearing with the Ridgecrest Elementary Academy for
Language, Music, and Science Governing Board per applicable state lfaw and REALMS’ Suspension and
Expulsion policy, which is available on the school’s website at www.rcrealms.org

Lost or Damaged School Property

if a student willfully damages the REALMS® property or the personal property of a REALMS employee, or fails
to return a textbook, library book, computet/tablet or other REALMS property that has been loaned to the
student. the student’s parents/guardians are liable for all damages caused by the student’s misconduct in an
amount not to exceed $10.000, adjusted annually for inflation, as described above. If a student and parent are
unable to pay for the damages or return the property, REALMS will provide a program or voluntary work for the
minor student in lieu of the payment of money. After notifying the student’s parent or guardian in writing of the
student’s alleged misconduct and affording the student due process, the school may withhold the grades,
diplomas, or transcripts of the student until such damages are paid, or the property returned, or until completion
of a voluntary work program in lieu of payment of monetary damages.

14



Student Search, Seizure, and Video Surveillance

The Superintendent or designee may search the person of a student (including backpack, purse, bag. etc.) or the
student's locker if there is a reasonable individualized suspicion to believe the student has violated school policy
and/or the law. REALMS recognizes and has determined that the occurrence of incidents which may include the
possession of firearms, weapons, alcohol, controlled substances, or other items of contraband prohibited by law
or REALMS’ rules and regulations, jeopardizes the health, safety and welfare of students and Charter School
employees.

The California Constitution requires that all students and staff of public schools have the inalienable right to
attend campuses which are safe, secure, and peaceful. As such. REALMS has adopted a Policy outlining the
reasonable search of students and their property. student use areas, and/or student lockers and the seizure of
illegal, unsafe, unauthorized or contraband items and materials through a search based upon reasonable
suspicion.

A student’s personal cell phone, smartphone, or other personal electronic device shall not be searched by school
officials without a warrant, the student's consent, or a legitimate emergency, unless the device is lost or
abandoned. An emergency is any situation involving danger of death or serious physical injury to any person,
that requires access to the information located or reasonably believed to be located on the electronic device. If
REALMS has a good faith belief that the device is lost, stolen. or abandoned, REALMS may only access
electronic device information in order to attempt to identify, verify. or contact the owner of the device.

REALMS is not prohibited from seizing/confiscating a student’s personal electronic device. without searching
its contents, if the student’s use or possession of the private electronic device is in violation of REALMS’ rules
or regulations. Evidence gathered from video surveillance tape systems in posted areas may be specifically
admissible in discipline hearings, as no one has a reasonable expectation of privacy in those circumstances. The
complete Policy is available for review at the main office.

Items Not Permitted on Campus

Beyond those items banned by law from campus (i.e. drugs. alcohol, nicotine products, and/or weapons), the
following items are forbidden on campus without prior approval by REALMS staff: unshelled peanuts or
sunflower seeds, gum, electronic toys and devices, radios, tape recorders, electronic music players, portable
gaming devices, rollerblades, shoes with wheels such as Heelys, toy water guns (devices capable of discharging
water), balloons (choking hazard), trading cards, CD players, hair spray, make-up, perfume. aftershave, cologne,
aerosol containers. or any potentially dangerous items. Items forbidden on campus that are lost or stolen are not
the responsibility of the school and will not be investigated by the school or its officials. ltems brought to school
on the above list will be confiscated when seen by a member of the school staff. A parent or guardian must pick
up the items.

Student Use of Technology

Acceptable Use Policy & Digital Portfolios

Each student has daily access to technology and receives instruction in the appropriate use of this
technology. While REALMS regularly utilizes and regularly updates filters to limit access to inappropriate
resources and information, it is impossible to restrict access to all controversial materials. Students are to
follow all rules and regulations governing technology and Internet conduct. Any violations of these rules and
regulations will result in disciplinary action. Students are responsible for their use of technology and
technological resources and must sign an Acceptable Use Agreement annually.

15



The purpose of computers and internet access is for school assignments and to conduct research. REALMS
will work to protect students from any dangerous or inappropriate material found on the Internet.

It is the student’s job to use the computer properly and responsibly.
Personal Responsibility: Students are expected to:

» use computers and access the internet for school assignments and research only.
» know school rules must be followed on the computer network.

« report inappropriate content to an adult as soon as it is noticed.

Acceptable Use: Students are expected to understand that computers should be used for learning, research
and creating classroom projects. The purpose of using the internet at school is to support research and
education by providing access to unique resources and the opportunity for collaborative work. Transmission
of any material in violation of school policy or any U.S. or state law or regulation is prohibited. This
includes, but is not limited to: copyrighted material; threatening or obscene material; or material protected by
trade secrets. If a student copies anything from the Internet or software program and pastes it into their
project, they are to give credit to the author.

Students are expected to:

» follow the rules of the network.
» not buy, sell, or advertise anything on the school network.

« understand hardware, including computers, are property of the school and are not to alter the settings or
operation of hardware.

« not download any commercial software from the internet.

Network Etiquette and Privacy: Students are expected to abide by the generally accepted rules of network
etiquette. The following are not permitted: sending or displaying offensive messages or pictures; using
obscene language; accessing personal email; harassing, insulting or attacking others; sharing confidential
information (name, personal address, phone number); damaging computers, computer systems or computer
networks; violating copyright laws; using others' passwords; trespassing in others' folders, work or files;
intentionally wasting limited resources; employing the network for commercial or for profit purposes;
downloading of files; and purchasing of items, materials, goods, ete.

Services: REALMS has no control over the internet. While the School is able to exercise reasonable control
over content created and purchased by the School, it has limited control over content accessed via the
internet and no filtering system is 100% effective. Neither REALMS nor its staff shall be responsible for the
failure of any technology protection measures, violations of copyright restrictions. or user mistakes or
negligence. The student and parent agree not to hold the School or any School staff responsible for the
failure of any technology protection measures, violations of copyright restrictions, or user mistakes or

negligence. They also agree to indemnify and hold harmless REALMS and REALMS personnel for any
damages or costs incurred.

Teachers and staff will work with students to protect them from inappropriate material on the internet using
an internet filter and will also teach students how to save and protect their work.

16



Vandalism: Vandalism is defined as any malicious attempts to harm or destroy data of another user.
internet, or any of the networks that are connected to the internet. This includes, but is not limited to. the
uploading or creation of computer viruses, attempts at gaining unauthorized access. or changing online
materials without permission. Students should not intentionally interfere with the performance of the
School's network or intentionally damage any REALMS technology resources. If this occurs, computer
access may be revoked.

Privileges: Using the computer network is a privilege students must carn and keep. If' students do not use the
computer correctly, students will face disciplinary action and their parents/guardians will be notified.

Security: Security on any computer system is a high priority, especially when the system involves many
users. [f a student feels they can identify a security problem on the internet or feels their student account has
been compromised, they must notify the teacher or staff member in charge. Students should safeguard all
personal passwords. Students should not share passwords with others and should change passwords
frequently. Students should access technology only with their account or with a shared account as directed
by their teacher and not allow others to use their account or to use the accounts of others, with or without the
account owner’s authorization. Students shall not use another student’s log in. Attempts to logon to the
internet as anyone but themselves may result in cancellation of user privileges. Any user identified as a
security risk or having a history of problems with other computer systems may be denied access to the
internet.

Updating: With the rapidly changing nature of technology and information resources, it may be necessary to
update and/or modify this Acceptable Use Policy (AUP). Each user will be required to review and sign this
policy annually. All users are responsible for notifying the designated system administrator or any REALMS
staff member of changes in personal information that may compromise the integrity of the user’s Acceptable
Use Policy.

Digital Citizenship: Access to REALMS-provided materials and technologies from any location will be
subject to REALMS discipline guidelines and procedures.

No Expectation of Privacy. Students and parents acknowledge that computer equipment, internet access
networks, email accounts, and any other technology resources are owned by the School and provided to
students for educational purposes. REALMS may require staff to monitor and supervise all access to
computer equipment, internct access networks, and email accounts. To facilitate monitoring of activities,
computer screens may be positioned so that they are visible to the staff member supervising the students.
The School reserves the right to access stored computer records and communications, files, and other data
stored on School equipment or sent over School networks. Such communications, files, and data are not
private and may be accessed during routine system maintenance; during inspection of REALMS equipment
at the end of the school year/term or agree to use period; and review of individual files or monitoring of
individual activity when there is a reasonable suspicion that the student is engaging in an inappropriate use.

REALMS makes no warranties of any kind, whether expressed or implied, for the service it is providing.
REALMS will not be responsible for any damages suffered. This includes loss of data resulting from delays,
non-deliveries. miss-deliveries, or service interruptions caused by its own negligence or your errors or
omissions. Use of any information obtained via the internet is at your own risk. REALMS specifically denies
any responsibility for the accuracy or quality of information obtained through its services.

Safety: The Charter School shall ensure that all Charter School computers with internet access have a
technology protection measure that blocks or filters internet access to websites that have no educational
purpose and/or contain visual depictions that are obscene, constitute child pornography, or that are harmful
to minors. While the Charter School is able to exercise reasonable control over content created and

17



purchased by the Charter School, it has limited control over content accessed via the internet and no filtering
system is 100% effective. Neither the Charter School nor its staff shall be responsible for the failure of any
technology protection measures, violations of copyright restrictions, or user mistakes, misuse or negligence.

To reinforce these measures, the Superintendent or designee shall implement rules and procedures designed
to restrict students' access to harmful or inappropriate matter on the internet and to ensure that students do
not engage in unauthorized or unlawful online activities. Staff shall monitor students while they are using
Charter School computers, laptops, or tablets to access the internet or online services on the Charter School
campus and may have teacher aides, student aides, and volunteers assist in this monitoring.
Parents/guardians are required to supervise and monitor their child’s use of Charter School equipment
including but not limited to their child’s access to the internet and any online services through such
equipment any and all times during which any Charter School equipment is being used by their child outside
school facilities or school hours to ensure compliance with this policy.

The Superintendent or designee also shall establish regulations to address the safety and security of students
and student information when using email, chat rooms, and other forms of direct electronic communication.

The Superintendent or designees shall provide age-appropriate instruction regarding safe and appropriate
behavior on social networking sites. chat rooms, and other Internet services. Such instruction shall include,
but not be limited to, maintaining the student’s online reputation and ensuring their personal safety by
keeping their personal information private, the dangers of posting personal information online,
misrepresentation by online predators, how to report inappropriate or offensive content or threats, behaviors
that constitute cyberbullying, and how to respond when subjected to cyberbullying.” Students are expected
to follow safe practices when using Charter School technology.

Charter School advises students:

1. To never share passwords, personal data, or private photos online.

2. To think about what they are doing carefully before posting and by emphasizing that comments
cannot be retracted once they are posted.

3. That personal information revealed on social media can be shared with anyone including parents,
teachers, administrators, and potential employers. Students should never reveal information that
would make them uncomfortable if the world had access to it.

4. To consider how it would feel receiving such comments before making comments about others
online.

Students shall not use the Internet to perform any illegal act or to help others perform illegal acts. lllegal
acts include, but are not limited to, any activities in violation of local, state, and federal law and/or accessing
information designed to further criminal or dangerous activities. Such information includes, but is not
limited to, information that if acted upon could cause damage, present a danger, or cause disruption to the
Charter School, other students, or the community. Damaging, debilitating or disabling computers, computer
networks or systems through the intentional or overuse of electronic distribution or the spreading of
computer viruses or other harmful programs shall be prohibited. Any unauthorized online access to other
computers by means of hacking into other computers, downloading hacker tools such as port scanners and
password crackers designed to evade restrictions shall also be strictly prohibited.

2-Bullying” means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduet, including communications made in writing or by means of
an electronic act. and including one or more acts committed by a pupil or group of pupils, directed toward one or more pupils that has or
can be reasonably predicted to have one or more of the following effects:

Placing a reasonable pupil or pupils in tear of harm to that pupil's or those pupil's person or property. - Causing a reasonable

18



pupil to experience a substantially detrimental eftect on his or her physical or mental health,  Causing a reasonable pupil to
experience substantial interference with his or her academic performance. © Causing a reasonable pupil to experience substantial
interference with his or her ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities. or privileges provided by the school.
As used in connection with *bullying,” an “electronic act” means the creation or transmission originated on or off the school site, by
means of an electronic device, including. but not limited to, a telephone, wireless telephone, or other wireless communication device.
computer, or pager, of a communication, including, but not limited to. any of the following: = A message, texl, sound, video, or image.
A post on a social network Internet Web site, including, but not limited to:
m Posting to or creating a “burn page™ (i.¢., an Intemet Web site created for the purpose of bullying). m Creating a credible
impersanation of another actual pupil for the purpose of having one or more of the effects of bullying. To create a
~credible impersonation™ means to {(knowingly and without consent) impersonate a pupil for the purpose of bullying the
pupil and such that another pupil would reasonably believe. or has reasonably believed, that the pupil was or is the pupil
who was impersonated.

m Creating a false profile for the purpose ot having one or more of the eftecis of bullying. A “false profile” means a

profile of a fictitious pupil or a profile using the likeness or attributes of an actual pupil other than the pupil who created
the false profile.

An act of cyber sexual bullying, The term “cyber sexual bullying™ means the dissemination of, or the solicitation or incitement 10
disseminate, a photograph or other visual recording by a pupil to another pupil or to school personnel by means of an electronic
act that has or can be reasonably predicted to have one or more of the effects of bullying. A photograph or other visual
recording. as described above, shall include the depiction of 2 nude. semi-nude, or sexually explicit photograph or other visual
recording of a minor where the minor is identifiable from the photograph. visual recording. or other electronic act. The term
“cyber sexual bullying” does not include a depiction, portrayal, or image that has any serious literary, artistic, educational,
political, or scientific value or that involves athletic events or school sanctioned activities.

Student use of Charter School computers to access social networking sites is not prohibited, but access is
limited to educational purposes only. To the extent possible, the Superintendent or designee shall block
access to such sites on Charter School computers with internet access.

The Superintendent or Designee shall oversee the maintenance of the Charter School's technological
resources and may establish guidelines and limits on their use.

All employees shall receive a copy of this policy and the accompanying Acceptable Use Agreement
describing expectations for appropriate use of the system and shall also be provided with information about
the role of staff in supervising student use of technological resources. All employees shall comply with this
policy and the Acceptable Use Agreement, in addition to any separate policies governing employee use of
technology.

Student use of Charter School's computers, networks, and internet services is a privilege, not a right.
Compliance with the Charter School's policies and rules concerning computer use is mandatory. Students
who violate these policies and rules may have their computer privileges limited and may be subject to
discipline, including but not limited to suspension or expulsion per school policy.

Campus Passes

All students who are out of class must have a pass from a staff member. Students must have a pass to leave
designated areas at lunch time, between classes, and before or after school.

Cell Phone, Smartphones, Pagers & Other Electronic Signaling Devices Policy

It is the policy of REALMS to prohibit the use of cellular phones or any electronic signaling device by students

on campus during normal school hours. All students are required to adhere to the following gui<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>